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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Staements

Statements set forth in or incorporated into tlejsort regarding the expected net increase in timebeu of our restaurants, U.S. same
restaurant sales, total sales growth, diluted astiegs per share growth, and capital expenditurdéscal 2016, and all other statements t
are not historical facts, including without limita statements with respect to the financial caodjtresults of operations, plans, objecti
future performance and business of Darden Resteiaic. and its subsidiaries that are precededdiipwed by or that include words suct
“may,” “will,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “project,” “believe,” “plandr similar expressions, are forwalabking
statements within the meaning of the Private S&earLitigation Reform Act of 1995 and are includatbng with this statement, for purpc
of complying with the safe harbor provisions oftthAat. Any forwardiooking statements speak only as of the date ortwdlch statements .
made, and we undertake no obligation to update siatbments for any reason to reflect events ougistances arising after such date. By
nature, forwardeoking statements involve risks and uncertaintieg could cause actual results to differ matsrifiibm those set forth in
implied by such forwardeoking statements. In addition to the risks andeutainties of ordinary business obligations, dmbsé described
information incorporated into this report, the famngdooking statements contained in this report argesbto the risks and uncertaini
described in Item 1A below under the heading “Hisktors.”

” o ” o ” o ” o LT LT " ou




Table of Contents

PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

Introduction

Darden Restaurants, Inc. is a full-service restaurampany, and as of May 31, 2015 , we owned g@edated 1,534estaurants throus
subsidiaries in the United States and Canada uhdedlive Gardeff, LongHorn Steakhouse, The Capital Grille®, Yard House®, Seasor
52®, Bahama Breez®, and Eddie V's Prime Seafo8dnd Wildfish Seafood Grill€ (collectively "Eddie V's") trademarks. We served 1
352 million meals in fiscal 2015 . As of May 31,120, we also had 3#estaurants operated by independent third partiesupnt to are
development and franchise agreements. The followdtde details the number of Darden owned and d¢ge@reestaurants, as well as tr
operated under franchise agreements, as of Ma2(3B.

Olive LongHorn The Capital Bahama Seasons EddieV's Yard Total
Number of restaurants Garden Steakhouse Grille Breeze 52 2) House  Restaurants
Owned and operated:
United States (1) 840 480 54 36 43 16 59 1,528
Canada 6 — — — = — — 6
Total 846 480 54 36 43 16 59 1,534
Franchised:
U.S. Airports — 2 — — — — — 2
Puerto Rico 7 — — — — — 8
Middle East 2 — — — — — 7
Central and South America 13 1 1 — — — — 15
Malaysia 1 1 — — — — — 2
Total 20 13 1 — — — — 34

(1) Includes three restaurants located in Central @#o&nd three restaurants in California that areeawjointly by us and third parties, ¢
managed by us.

(2) Includes 13 Eddie V's andV8ildfish restaurant

Darden Restaurants, Inc. is a Florida corporatimoriporated in March 1995, and is the parent compdrGMRI, Inc., also a Floric
corporation. GMRI, Inc. and certain other of oubsidiaries own and operate our restaurants. GMRI,Wwas originally incorporated in Mal
1968 as Red Lobster Inns of America, Inc. We weguaed by General Mills, Inc. in 1970 and becanseparate publicly held company
1995 when General Mills distributed all of our datsling stock to the stockholders of General Milar principal executive offices a
restaurant support center are located at 1000 Dataémter Drive, Orlando, Florida 32837, telepho#@7§ 2454000. Our corporate webs
address is www.darden.comWe make our reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q anld, &nd Section 16 reports on Forms 3, 4 and 5, all
amendments to those reports available free of ehangour website the same day as the reportsladewith or furnished to the Securities
Exchange Commission. Information on our websiteas deemed to be incorporated by reference inte Form 10K. Unless the conte
indicates otherwise, all references to “Darden,’e;w"our” or “us” include Darden Restaurants, Inc., GMRI, Inc. and mspectiv
subsidiaries.

On May 15, 2014, we entered into an agreementltdRed Lobster and certain related assets and a$sddiabilities. Additionally, in th
fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, in connection witle tanticipated sale of Red Lobster, we closed wopanyewned restaurants that housed |
a Red Lobster and an Olive Garden in the sameihgil@isynergy restaurants"). On July 28, 2014, wased on the sale of 70®ed Lobste
restaurants. We have classified the results ofatipers and impairment charges of the Red Lobsteinbss and the two closed companyrec
synergy restaurants as discontinued operationsriecansolidated statements of earnings and caals flor all periods presented.

We have a 52/53 week fiscal year ending the lastd®y in May, which for fiscal 2015 was May 31, 20%ecordingly, fiscal 201
consisted of 53 weeks. Fiscal 2014 and 2013 , whialied May 25, 2014 and May 26, 201&spectively, each consisted of 52 weel
operation.

The following description of our business shouldrbad in conjunction with the information in our Magemens Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiems incorporated by reference in Item 7 of frasm 10K and our consolidated financ
statements incorporated by reference in Item 8isfform 10-K.




Table of Contents

Segment Information

We manage our restaurant brands in North Ameriagpasating segments. The brands operate principaliye U.S. within fullservice
dining. We aggregate our operating segments irtortable segments based on a combination of tle stnomic characteristics and sul
segment of fullservice dining within which each brand operates.W&ee four reportable segments: 1) Olive Gardeho2pgHorn Steakhous
3) Fine Dining (which includes The Capital GrillacaEddie V's) and 4) Other Business (which includaesd House, Seasons 52, Bah
Breeze, consumarackaged goods and franchise revenues). Exterlesl age derived principally from food and beveragkes, we do not re
on any major customers as a source of sales ancutemers and lonlized assets of our reportable segments are predoiily in the U.<
There were no material transactions among repertsdments. Additional information about our segsdncluding financial information,
included in Note 6 “Segment Information” under Note Consolidated Financial Statements in our 28iBual Report to Shareholders, wt
is incorporated herein by reference.

Restaurant Brands
Olive Garden

Olive Garden is an internally-developed brand andhe largest fulservice dining Italian restaurant operator in theitét State:
Olive Gardenoffers a variety of Italian foods featuring fresigiedients presented simply with a focus on flaaod quality, and a bro
selection of imported Italian wines. In fiscal 1988ive Garden opened its first restaurant in Qitgri-lorida.

Olive Garden's updated menu includes new betteydarltalian fare as well as classic Tuscan faveritacluding flatbreads and ot
appetizers; soups, salad and garlic breadstickedopastas; sautéed specialties with chicken, sdafnd fresh vegetables; grilled meats; &
variety of desserts. Olive Garden also uses caffiperted from Italy for its espresso and cappuccino

Most dinner menu entrée prices rangerh $10.00 to $20.00, and most lunch menu entrigegprange from $7.00 to $15.00. The ¢
of each entrée includes as much fresh salad or andpreadsticks as a guest desires. During f&@hb, the average check per person
approximately $17.00, with alcoholic beverages aatiog for 6.7 percent of Olive Gardensales. Olive Garden maintains different menu
dinner and lunch and di€rent menus across its trade areas to reflectrgpbig differences in consumer preferences, pacesselections,
well as a smaller portioned, lower-priced childenienu.

LongHorn Steakhouse

LongHorn Steakhouse is a fidervice steakhouse restaurant with locations piiynar the eastern United States, operating it
atmosphere inspired by the American West. We aeduiongHorn Steakhouse in October 2007 as patltedRARE Hospitality Internationz
Inc. (“RARE”) acquisition.LongHorn Steakhouse restaurants feature a varfetyemu items including signature fresh steaks aridken, a
well as salmon, shrimp, ribs, pork chops, burgads@ime rib.

Most dinner menu entrée prices rangerfr $12.00 to $25.00, and most lunch menu entré@eprange from $7.50 to $15.50. The
of most entrées includes a side and/or salad amduas freshly baked bread as a guest desires. @@isnal 2015, the average check |
person was approximately $20.00, with alcoholicdsages accounting for 9.7 percent of LongHorn Steake$ sales. LongHorn Steakho
maintains different menus dr dinner and lunch and different menus acrosgdriéde areas to reflect geographic differences inseme
preferences, prices and selections, as well asaiesmportioned, lower-priced children’s menu.

The Capital Grille

The Capital Grille is a fulkervice restaurant with locations in major metrdpolcities in the United States and features exlaadeganc
and style. We acquired The Capital Grille in OctoB@07 as part of the RARE acquisitidvationally acclaimed for dry aging steaks on
premises, The Capital Grille is also known for fregafood flown in daily and culinary specials tedaby its chefs. The restaurants featur
award-winning wine list offering over 350 selecsprpersonalized service, comfortable clike- atmosphere, and premiere private dil
rooms.

Most dinner menu entrée prices range from $16.0868000 a nd most lunch menu entrée prices ramgm f$12.00 to $39.00During
fiscal 2015 , the average check per person wasoappate ly $75.00, with al coholic beverages actmgnfor 29.6 percendf The Capite
Grille’s sales. The Capital Grille offers different mefarsdinner and lunch and varies its wine list taet geographic differences in consui
preferences, prices and selections.
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Eddie V's

Eddie V's is a fullservice restaurant with locations in major metrdpol cities in the United States with a sophisgédaian:
contemporary ambiance, featuring live nightly musithe VLounge. The menu is inspired by the great clagstaurants of New Orleans, !
Francisco and Boston, with an emphasis on priméosdacreations, USDA prime beef and chops, andhfregster bar selections. T
atmosphere provides a comfortable dining experiémdeere your pleasure is our sole intention." WatfSeafood Grille is a fulbervice
restaurant providing a dining experience focusedcomfort and excitement with fresh seafood dailyl dnigh quality USDA steaks. V
acquired eight Eddie V's Prime Seafood restaumdsthree Wildfish Seafood Grille restaurants irvéfober 2011.

Most dinner menu entrée prices at Eddie V's ramgm f$18.00 to $61.00. During fiscal 2018he average check per person
approximately $90.00, with alcoholic beverages antiog for 32.5 percerdf Eddie V's sales. Eddie V's maintains differemnuomns for dinne
and varies its wine list to reflect geographiceliéinces in consumer preferences, prices and sglecti

Bahama Breeze

Bahama Breeze is an internally-developed $ellvice restaurant brand operating primarily inghstern United States, that offers gt
the feeling of a Caribbean escape, with food, driakd atmosphere found in the islands. The menurésadistinctive, Caribbednspired fres
seafood, chicken and steaks as well as handcraftpital cocktails.n fiscal 1996, Bahama Breeze opened its firstargsint in Orland:
Florida.

Most dinner menu entrée prices at Bahama Breezgerarom $9.00 to $30.00, and most lunch entrémepriange fron $7.00 to $21.0
During fiscal 2015 , the average check per persas approximately $26.00, with alcoholic beveragasaunting for 23.1 percewof Baham
Breezes sales. Bahama Breeze maintains different memassits trade areas to reflect geographic diffegerin consumer preferences, pr
and selections, as well as a smaller portionedetteguiced children’s menu.

Seasons 52

Seasons 52 is an internally-developed $elfvice restaurant brand operating primarily in ¢astern United States, with a cast
sophisticated, fresh grill and wine bar that offarseasonally changing menu inspired by the appfeal local farmess market. The mel
includes an international collection of more thad0 lwines, with 52 available by the glass, alonghwekceptional signature handcra
cocktails. In fiscal 2003, Seasons 52 openedrsifestaurant in Orlando, Florida.

Most dinner menu entrée prices at Seasons 52 rfaoge$11.00 to $31.00, and most lunch entrée priaage from $8.00 to $31.(
During fiscal 2015 , the average check per persas approximately $45.00, with alcoholic beverageanting for 26.6 percewf Seasor
52's sales. Seasons 52 maintains different memwhirfioer and lunt and different menus across its trade areas liectafeographic differenc
in consumer preferences, prices and selections.

Yard House

Yard House is a fulbervice restaurant operating in metropolitan aezasss the United States and is known for great,folassic roc
and features over 100 draft beer offerings. The ieaga menu includes more than 100 chef driven itevith a wide range of appetize
snacks, natural burgers and steaks, street taalasiss sandwiches, fresh fish and a generous welagtvegetarian dishes. Yard House ope
its first restaurant in 1996 and we acquired Yaodise in August 2012.

Yard House design elements create a contemporatycasual, "come as you are" environment. MostHuaed dinner menu enti
prices at Yard House range from $7.00 to $32.0Girguiscal 2015, the average check per person was approximatdy@3with alcoholi
beverages accounting for 38.3 peraaYard House's sales. Yard House maintains diffieneenus and selections of craft beers acrosgaits
areas to reflect geographic differences in consumneferences, prices and selections, as well amadles portioned, lowepriced children'
menu.

Our Specialty Restaurant Group was formed at the df the RARE acquisition to provide a more effitioperational support struct
for The Capital Grille, Seasons 52 and Bahama Bréeands. We incorporated Eddie V's and Yard Hantsethis support structure upon tt
acquisition.
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The following table shows our growth and lists thenber of restaurants owned and operated by eaobrdirands for the fiscal ye:
indicated. The table excludes our restaurants tgetay independent third parties pursuant to aes@ldpment and franchise agreements.
final column in the table lists our total salesnfreontinuing operations for the fiscal years inthca

Total Total

Fiscal Olive LongHorn The Capital Bahama Seasons Yard Restaurants Sales

Year Garden Steakhouse Grille Breeze 52 Eddie V's  House D@2 (in Millions)
1995 477 477 $1,172.6
1996 487 1 488 $1,240.9
1997 477 2 479 $1,285.2
1998 466 3 469 $1,386.9
1999 464 6 470 $1,490.2
2000 469 11 480 $1,615.7
2001 477 16 493 $1,780.0
2002 496 22 518 $1,966.1
2003 524 25 1 550 $2,097.5
2004 543 23 1 567 $2,359.3
2005 563 23 3 589 $2,542.4
2006 582 23 5 610 $2,775.8
2007 614 23 7 644 $2,965.2
2008 653 305 32 23 7 1,020 $3,997.5
2009 691 321 37 24 8 1,081 $4,593.1
2010 723 331 40 25 11 1,130 $4,626.8
2011 754 354 44 26 17 1,196 $4,980.3
2012 792 386 46 30 23 11 1,289 $5,327.1
2013 828 430 49 33 31 12 44 1,431 $5,921.0
2014 837 464 54 37 38 15 52 1,501 $6,285.6
2015 846 480 54 36 43 16 59 1,534 $6,764.0

(1) Includes only restaurants included in continuingragions. Excludes other restaurant brands opebgted in these years that are no lol
owned by us, and restaurants that were classifietissontinued operations.

(2) Includes compangwned synergy restaurants as follows: one in fi2€4dl1l, one in fiscal 2012, four in fiscal 2013, dadr in fiscal 2014
We converted the four remaining synergy restaurtan@live Garden restaurants in the first quartdisgal 2015.

Strategy

We believe that capable operators of strong muliti-orands have the opportunity to increase thedrres of the restaurant indusgy’
full-service segment. Generally, the restaurant industgonsidered to be comprised of three segmenisk gervice, fast casual, and
service. All of our restaurants fall within the lfglervice segment, which is highly fragmented andughes many independent operators
small chains. We believe we have strong brands tlaatcthe breadth and depth of our experience apdriise sets us apart in the faérvice
restaurant industry. This collective capabilitythe product of investments over many years in atfeasare critical to success in our busir
including brand management excellence, restauerations excellence, supply chain, talent manageara information technology, amc
other things.

During fiscal 2016, our operating philosophy isdsed on improving the core operational fundamerhite business by providi
an outstanding guest experience rooted in culimagvation, attentive service, engaging atmosphard,integrated marketing. Darden ene
each brand to reach its full potential by leverggits scale, insight, and experience in a way {hratects uniqueness and compet
advantages. Additionally, brands can capitalizénsights to deliver customized onedoe customer relationship marketing. We hold owves
accountable for operating our restaurants withnaesef urgency to achieve our commitments to atiwfstakeholders.

Our established, lontime brand, Olive Garden, has identified severaiced initiatives to further revitalize the bran®live Garde
plans to improve quality and intensify the focustioa guest. In addition, the brand expects to ahpét on the

4
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convenience trend of the restaurant industry aiideuan integrated communication platform. Theaduction of the Cucina Mia Menu, wh
allows our guests to select from popular elemehtsuomenu, has reduced the need for constant disepunted price pointed promotions
has allowed for greater flexibility within menu dbes. Olive Garden has also seen strong resulthdcapitalization on guestseed fo
convenience through ToGo ordering. The restauramus reflect a focus on the guest and expand Ihaticess and variety to further enrich
convenience trend.

LongHorn plans to continue to differentiate the gjuexperience through culinary innovation and improents in marketing. LongHc
utilizes current food trends usually developedndependent and findining restaurants, and utilizes seasonal menusitenstrengthen quali
and freshness perceptions. Individually portiongpletizers are also available.

The main focus of our smaller brands is on obtgigreater penetration within new regions of thentguand opening new, succes:
restaurant locations. Additionally, we are focusorgregaining sameestaurant sales momentum, particularly at Yardddcand Seasons
Dardens emphasis within Yard House is on expanding l&atroccasions, as well as accelerating beveradecalinary innovation. Seasc
52 is working on perfecting the seasonal and reajiarenu strategy as well as evolving operationglemce and increasing brand aware
throughout new markets.

Recent and Planned Restaurant Growth

During fiscal 2015 , we opened 33 net new compamgenl restaurants in the United States and Canaddigoal 2015actual restaural
openings and closings and fiscal 2016 projectediogs by brand are shown below.

Projected -
Actual - Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2016
New Restaurant Restaurant New Restaurant
Openings Closings Openings
Olive Garden (2) 13 4 1-2
LongHorn Steakhouse 17 1 8-10
The Capital Grille 1 1 1-2
Bahama Breeze — 1 1-2
Seasons 52 5 — 0-1
Eddie V's 1 — 0-1
Yard House 7 — 6-8
Other (1)(2) — 4 —
Totals 44 11 18 -22

(1) Represents compayvned synergy restaurar

(2) The 13 Olive Garden new restaurant openinds@al 2015 include the conversions of the 4 renmgi companyswned synergy restaura
into stand-alone Olive Garden restaurants durieditet quarter of fiscal 2015.

The actual number of openings for each of our bsandl depend on many factors, including our abilib locate appropriate sit
negotiate acceptable purchase or lease terms,nohtmiessary local governmental permits, completestoaction, and recruit and tri
restaurant management and hourly personnel. Oecidbg is to continue to expand all of our restatimands.

We consider location to be a critical factor inedatining a restaurant’s lortgfm success, and we devote significant efforheo dite
selection process. Prior to entering a market, earedact a thorough study to determine the optimahlmer and placement of restaurants.
site selection process incorporates a variety afydical technigues to evaluate key factors. THas®ors include trade area demographics,
as target population density and household incaveld; competitive influences in the trade area;dite’s visibility, accessibility and traff
volume; and proximity to activity centers such domping malls, hotel/motel complexes, offices amdversities. Members of sen
management evaluate, inspect and approve eachinastaite prior to its acquisition. Constructingdapening a new restaurant typically te
approximately 180 days on average after permit®bi@ned and the site is acquired.

The following table illustrates the approximate rmage capital investment, square footage and dicaqgacity of the Olive Gard
restaurants and LongHorn Steakhouse restaurantedmiuring the three-year period ending fiscal 2848 Yard House restaurants ope
during the two-year period ending fiscal 2015 . Tdide excludes any rebuilt restaurants.

5




Table of Contents

Number of Capital Square Dining Dining

Restaurants Investment(1) Feet(2) Seats(3) Tables(4)
Olive Garden 58 $4,706,000 7,807 238 58
LongHorn Steakhouse 99 $3,620,000 6,343 228 49
Yard House 15 $8,682,000 12,652 355 75

(1) Estimated final cost includes net present valueade obligations and working capital credit, budledes internal overhes
(2) Includes all space under the roof, including thelexs and freezel

(3) Includes bar dining seats and patio seating, beltides bar stool

(4) Includes patio dining table

We systematically review the performance of outawsnts to ensure that each one meets our standaliten a restaurant falls bel
minimum standards, we conduct a thorough analgsidetermine the causes, and implement marketingopedational plans to improve t
restaurans performance. If performance does not improvecteptable levels, the restaurant is evaluatedeflocation, closing or conversi
to one of our other brands. Permanent closuregypieally due to economic changes in trade ardasgkpiration of lease agreements, or
concerns. Accordingly, we continue to evaluatesitér locations in order to minimize the risk ofutg closures or asset impairment charges.

Restaurant Operations

We believe that high-quality restaurant managergentitical to our longerm success. Our restaurant management strucauies\b
brand and restaurant size. We issue detailed apesamanuals covering all aspects of restaurantabipes, as well as food and bever
manuals which detail the preparation proceduresuofrecipes. The restaurant management teams spengble for the day-tday operatio
of each restaurant and for ensuring compliance athoperating standards.

Each typical Olive Garden restaurant is led by megal manager, and each LongHorn Steakhouse rastasied by a managing partr
Each also has two to five additional managers, ni@ipg on the operating complexity and sales voluhéhe restaurant. In addition, ei
restaurant typically employs an average of 50 t6 hdurly employees, most of whom work ptmte. Restaurant general manager
managing partners report to a director of operatiwho is responsible for approximately six to testaurants. Each director of operatior
Olive Garden and LongHorn Steakhouse reports teréo® Vice President of Operations who is respdaditr up to one hundred restaura
Restaurants are visited regularly by operationsagament, including officer level executives, tophehsure strict adherence to all aspec
our standards.

Each Bahama Breeze and Yard House restaurant isyledgeneral manager, and each The Capital GBBasons 52 and Eddie
restaurant is led by a managing partner. Eachtalsmne to six managers. Each The Capital Grilas@ns 52 and Eddie V's restaurant ha
to three executive chefs, and each Bahama Breer&'am House restaurant has one to three culinayagers. In addition, each restau
typically employs an average of 65 to 150 hourlypkaypees, most of whom work paitne. The general manager or managing partner @
restaurant reports directly to a director of oderes, who has operational responsibility for appreately three to ten restaurants. Restau
are visited regularly by operations managementudtieg officer level executives, to help ensurécstdherence to all aspects of our standard

Our Learning Center of Excellence in partnershiphwaach brand' head of training, together with senior operatierscutives,
responsible for developing and maintaining our apens training programs. These efforts includelanto 12week training program fi
management trainees (seven to nine weeks in tleeafdaaternal promotions) and continuing develophymograms for managers, supervi
and directors. The emphasis of the training anceldgwnent programs varies by restaurant brand,mides leadership, restaurant busi
management and culinary skills. We also use a Yigtilictured training program to open new restasrancluding deploying training tea
experienced in all aspects of restaurant operatibine opening training teams typically begin worle@and a half weeks prior to opening
remain at the new restaurant for up to three wedtes the opening. They are deployed as appropriate to enable a smooth transiti the
restaurant’s operating staff.

We maintain performance measurement and incentimgensation programs for our manageniené! employees. We believe that
leadership position, strong success-oriented aultunrd various short-term and long-term incentivagpams, including stock and stobkse:
compensation, help attract and retain highly mégigaestaurant managers.

Quality Assurance

Our Total Quality Department helps ensure thatestaurants provide safe, highality food in a clean and safe environment. Tgh
rigorous supplier and risk based product evaluatiove purchase only products that meet or exceegpmaduct specifications. We rely
independent third parties to inspect and evaluatesoppliers and distributors. Suppliers that poedthigh-risk” products are subject to a fc
safety evaluation by Darden personnel at leastatnuVe require our suppliers to maintain sounchofacturing practices and operate \
the comprehensive Hazard Analysis and Critical @dftoint
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(“HACCP") food safety programs and risk based preventativerals adopted by the U.S. Food and Drug Adminiitra These prograr
focus on preventing hazards that could cause faodebillnesses by applying scientificaliygsed controls to analyze hazards, identify
monitor critical control points, and establish eative actions when monitoring shows that a ciificait has not been met. We require rou
microbiological testing of high risk products. Iddition, our total quality managers and third paatditors visit each restaurant periodic
throughout the year to review food handling angrmvide education and training in food safety aanitstion. The total quality managers
serve as a liaison to regulatory agencies on isglasng to food safety.

Purchasing and Distribution

Our ability to ensure a consistent supply of higlality food and supplies at competitive priceslitof our restaurant brands depend
reliable sources of procurement. Our purchasinif stairces, negotiates and purchases food andiesgdpdm more than 1,700 suppliers wt
products originate in more than 10 countries. Sepplmust meet our requirements and strict qualitytrol standards in the developm
harvest, catch and production of food products. @etitive bids, longerm contracts and strategic supplier relationshigsroutinely used
manage availability and cost of products.

We believe that our purchasing capabilities arégaificant competitive advantage. Our purchasirgffstravels routinely within tr
United States and internationally to source toplityufood products at competitive prices. We bediehat we have established excellent lon
term relationships with key suppliers and usuatlyrse our product directly from producers (not lenskor middlemen). We actively supy
several national minority supplier organizationsetasure that Darden incorporates women- and myaovined businesses in all of
purchasing decisions.

We continue to progress in automating our suppairchallowing our suppliers, logistics partners aigtributors to improve optimizatis
with information visibility. Through our subsidigrDarden Direct Distribution, Inc. ("Darden Dir&gtand longterm agreements with our th
party national distribution companies, we mainfairentory ownership of food and supplies in waredesuprimarily dedicated to Darden wt
practical to do so. Darden Direct further enabbes purchasing staff to integrate demand forecadts longterm agreements drivil
efficiencies in production economics when we callabe with vendors. Because of the relativelydaprnover of perishable food produ
inventories in the restaurants have a modest agtgellar value in relation to sales.

Advertising and Marketing

Our size enables us to be a leading advertisdrarfull-service dining segment of the restaurant indusdtixe Garden leverages 1
efficiency of national network television advemigi Olive Garden supplements this with cable, Iaed¢vision and digital advertisir
LongHorn Steakhouse uses local television andaligtivertising to build engagement and loyalty yrket. The Capital Grille, Yard Hou
Bahama Breeze, Seasons 52 and Eddie V's do nétlesesion advertising, but rely on local and dagjinarketing. Our restaurants appeal
broad spectrum of consumers and we use advertsiogeate awareness and to attract guests. Werimepleperiodic promotions as appropr
to maintain and increase our sales and profitsyels as strengthen our brands. We also rely onamrtdbillboard, direct mail and em
advertising, as well as radio, newspapers, digitalpons, search engine marketing and social menia as Facebook and Twitter® , as
appropriate, to attract and retain guests. We limxeloped and consistently use sophisticated comsumarketing research technique
monitor guest satisfaction and evolving expectation

In fiscal 2014, we began efforts to consolidate lmands into a single digital technology platfostrengthen brand relevance and ¢
longerterm sales growth. The new digital platform willadshe our brands to tailor marketing programs toa@ck consumer relevance
strengthen brand loyalty. We also developed anegdes new online ordering system for Olive Gardelich was implemented nationwide
fiscal 2015. In addition, during fiscal 2015, wegha exploring brand loyalty and customer relatigmshanagement programs for our branc
increase the frequency of visits and offer our tgilexibility when making dining out decisions. Végpect that these new marketing progri
along with other guest facing technology platformgl be implemented during fiscal 2016. In fis@015, Olive Garden continued to deve
Spanish language advertising to increase awaramebgisits from Hispanic consumers.

Employees

At the end of fiscal 2015 we employed approximately 150,000 people in thdtdd States and Canada. Of these empla
approximately 140,000 were hourly restaurant persbrThe remainder were restaurant managementrpezbtocated in the restaurants ¢
the field, or were located at one of our restaursupport center facilities in Orlando, Florida awihe, California. The decrease
approximately 56,000 employees compared to the aérfiscal 2014 primarily reflects the dispositiofi Bed Lobster in fiscal 2015. C
executives have an average of 16 years of experieith us. The restaurant general managers andgimgnpartners average 11 years witt
We believe that we provide working conditions anchpensation that compare
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favorably with those of our competitors. Most enygles, other than restaurant management and coepoeaiagement, are paid on an hc
basis. None of our employees are covered by activkebargaining agreement. We consider our emglogiations to be good.

Consistent with one of our core values of diversitg are committed to attracting, retaining, engggind developing a workforce t
mirrors the diversity of our guests. Approximatéfy percent of our restaurant team member emplogeeminorities and over 52 percent
female. According to the People Report's Human t@hpitelligence Report for April 2015, the divaysbf our operations leadership te:
exceed the industry averages by 4 percentage gointsinority and 4 percentage points for femaleresentation. 23 percent of our leade
the vice president and above level are minorities 30 percent are female. The percentages of nyramid female leaders at the vice presi
and above level rank above average in our induktrgddition, we achieved a 100 percent score erHthman Rights Campaign's Corpo
Equality Index for our business practices and peditoward our lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgreechployees.

Consistent with our core values of respect anchgaaind teamwork, in fiscal 1999 we establishedognam called Darden Dimes to h
fellow Darden colleagues in need. Darden Dimeshiefized employees weather the aftffiects of hurricanes and other natural disassenger:
medical problems and other personal difficultieartieipating employees donate at least 10 cents feach paycheck to the Darden Dil
fund, which raises more than $1.5 million annually.

Information Technology

We strive for leadership in the restaurant busitgsssing technology as a competitive advantageaarah enabler of our strategy. S
1975, computers located in the restaurants have bsed to assist in the management of the restisundfe have implemented technology
enabled business solutions targeted at improvedndial control, cost management, enhanced guesiceeand improved employ
effectiveness. These solutions are designed toskd across restaurant brands, yet are flexible ginéo meet the unique needs of ¢
restaurant brand. Our strategy is to fully integraystems to drive operational efficiencies andokneestaurant teams to focus on resta
operations excellence.

In fiscal 2015, we continued a mujtear effort to implement new technology platforrhattwill allow us to digitally engage with ¢
guests and employees and strengthen our marketthgrealytics capabilities in this increasingly ceated society. These technology platfc
will be leveraged across all brands to build glegalty and employee engagement. Ultimately thidtiryear effort will be integrated into
guest touch points including restaurant operatiyrsgesns to enable compelling personalized guestrees.

Restaurant hardware and software support for aflunfrestaurant brands is provided or coordinateth fthe restaurant support cel
facility in Orlando, Florida. A higlspeed data network sends and receives criticahéssidata to and from the restaurants througheuddk
and night, providing timely and extensive information business activity in every location. Our deg¢ater contains sufficient comput
power to process information from all restaurantikly and efficiently. Our information is proceslsim a secure environment to protect |
the actual data and the physical assets. We gug@idsd business interruption by maintaining a desacovery plan, which includes stor
critical business information off-site, testing ttisaster recovery plan at a host-site facility gnoviding onsite power backup via a lai
diesel generator. We use internally developed petary software, as well as purchased softward) miibven, norproprietary hardware. Tt
allows processing power to be distributed effedyive each of our restaurants.

Our management believes that our current systempeactice of implementing regular updates willifos us well to support curre
needs and future growth. We use a strategic infobomaystems planning process that involves semianagement and is integrated into
overall business planning. Information systemsemigj are prioritized based upon strategic, findnoggulatory and other business advan
criteria.

Competition

The restaurant industry is intensely competitivehwespect to the type and quality of food, priervice, restaurant location, persor
brand, attractiveness of facilities, and effecte®s of advertising and marketing. The restaurastness is often affected by change
consumer tastes; national, regional or local ecanoronditions; demographic trends; traffic patterttee type, number and location
competing restaurants; and consumelistretionary purchasing power. We compete witlsiohemarket with national and regional chains
locally-owned restaurants for guests, management and hmendpnnel and suitable real estate sites. Wefatgogrowing competition from t
supermarket industry, which offers “convenient rséah the form of improved entrées and side dishemfthe deli section. In additic
improving product offerings at fast casual restatgand quickservice restaurants, together with negative econawminditions, could cau
consumers to choose less expensive alternative@xéct intense competition to continue in alllide areas.
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Other factors pertaining to our competitive positilm the industry are addressed under the sectanigled ‘Purchasing ar
Distribution,” “Advertising and Marketing” and “lofmation Technology” in this Item 1 and in our RE&ctors in Item 1A of this Form 10-K.

Trademarks and Service Marks

We regard our Dardeh, Darden Restaurants Olive Garder?, LongHorn Steakhous®, The Capital Grill¢®, Yard Hous€® , Baham:
Breeze®, Seasons 52, Eddie V's Prime Seafodtand Wildfish Seafood Grill& service marks, and other service marks and tradenmelate:
to our restaurant businesses, as having significaloie and as being important to our marketingreffdOurpolicy is to pursue registration
our important service marks and trademarks ancpmse vigorously any infringement of them. Gengrallith appropriate renewal and L
the registration of our service marks and tradesmaill continue indefinitely.

Franchises, Joint Ventures and New Business Developnt

As of May 31, 2015 we operated 1,534 restaurants through subsidiarithe United States and Canada all of whichoaneed by u
except three restaurants located in Central Floadd three restaurants in California. The thred¢atgants located in Florida and th
restaurants located in California are owned bytjeantures managed by us. The joint ventures payagement fees to us, and we contro
joint venture’ use of our service marks. In fiscal 2014, we eténéo a license agreement with respect to an fdlaBeorgia airport locatit
and we entered into a license agreement in fisBab 2with respect to a Detroit, Michigan airport ddon. Seven LongHorn Steakho
restaurants in Puerto Rico are franchised to arffilimi@d franchisee as part of an agreement thas wxecuted prior to our fiscal 2(
acquisition of RARE. In April 2012, we entered iramew area development agreement with this saameHisee to develop and operate
Olive Garden and LongHorn Steakhouse brands int®dico and during fiscal 2015 the franchisee odemge Olive Garden restaurant
January 2013, we amended the new area developrgm#naent which now calls for the franchisee toiatiit develop a minimum of eig
Olive Garden restaurants and three additional Lamgtbteakhouse restaurants in Puerto Rico by 2017.

Our restaurant operations outside of the UniteteStand Canada are conducted through area deveibame franchise agreements
October 2010, we entered into a formal agreemett avi unaffiliated operator to develop and ope@itee Garden and LongHorn Steakha
restaurants in the Middle East. The agreement fmllihe operator to develop a minimum of 35 resiats in Bahrain, Egypt, Kuwait, Leban
Qatar, Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emiratesr dhre next five years. As of May 31, 201Wwe have 7 restaurants in the region (two (
Garden restaurants in United Arab Emirates, thiéee@arden restaurants in Kuwait, a LongHorn Steaise restaurant in Saudi Arabia a
LongHorn Steakhouse restaurant in Qatar), openrutinil® agreement. In August 2011, we entered imagreement with an unaffiliat
operator to develop and operate Olive Garden amdCdpital Grille brands in Mexico. The agreemetisdar the operator to initially devel
a minimum of 29 restaurants in Mexico over the rfaxd years. As of May 31, 2015, ten Olive Gardestaurants and one The Capital G
restaurant had been opened in Mexico under thiseagent. In February 2013, we entered into a foagetement with an unaffiliated oper:
to develop and operate Olive Garden and LongHoeakBtouse brands in Central and South America. §heement calls for the operatol
develop a minimum of 30 restaurants in Brazil, @ubia, the Dominican Republic and Panama. As of Nay 2015, one Olive Gard
restaurant has been opened in Brazil under thiseagent, and the rights to develop the Panamaadsriitave been sold to the operator of
restaurant locations in Guatemala, El Salvador,ddoas, Nicaragua, and Costa Rica. In July 2013emtered into separate formal agreernr
with two unaffiliated operators to develop and @perOlive Garden and LongHorn Steakhouse restauian€entral America and Sol
America. One agreement calls for the operator teldg 21 restaurants in Guatemala, El Salvadorddms, Nicaragua and Costa Rica (
as amended, Panama). The other agreement cattsefeecond unaffiliated operator to develop 1latgsints in Peru. As of May 31, 2015,
Olive Garden restaurant has been opened in PeeuDtimve Garden restaurant has been opened in Ea&ad and one LongHorn Steakhac
restaurant has been opened in El Salvador. In Sdyete2013, we entered into a formal agreement antlunaffiliated operator to develop i
operate Olive Garden and LongHorn Steakhouse mesteuin Malaysia. As of May 31, 2015 one Olive @ar restaurant and one LongH
Steakhouse restaurant have been opened in Maléiyslaly 2014, we entered into a formal agreematit an unaffiliated operator to deve
and operate Olive Garden and LongHorn Steakhoustlaumants in Ecuador, where no restaurants haveedp® date. We do not have
ownership interest in any of these franchiseesweauteceive royalty income under the area developmed franchise agreements. The am
of income we derive from our joint venture and friaise arrangements is not material to our cons@liiinancial statements.

During fiscal 2013, and continuing through fisc8ll8, we achieved distribution for several item&\&imart, including Olive Gardt
regular and light salad dressing, salad croutaoxtsa @irgin olive oil, two sizes of Balsamic vinggaongHorn Steakhouse seasoning and (
Garden seasoning. We have expanded Olive Gardat dedssing into broad distribution channels iniclganost major grocery chains.
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Seasonality

Our sales volumes fluctuate seasonally. Typically, average sales per restaurant are highest isptfieg and winter, followed by t
summer, and lowest in the fall. Holidays, changethé economy, severe weather and similar conditioay impact sales volumes seasona
some operating regions. Because of the seasowélayr business, results for any quarter are noes&arily indicative of the results that r
be achieved for the full fiscal year.

Government Regulation

We are subject to various federal, state, local iatetnational laws affecting our business. Eaclowf restaurants must comply w
licensing requirements and regulations by a nunobgovernmental authorities, which include heatthfety and fire agencies in the stat
municipality in which the restaurant is located eTdhevelopment and operation of restaurants depersglecting and acquiring suitable si
which are subject to zoning, land use, environmentaffic and other regulations. To date, we hang been significantly affected by ¢
difficulty, delay or failure to obtain required éinses or approvals.

During fiscal 2015 , 12.2 perceot our sales were attributable to the sale of altiolbeverages. Regulations governing their sajgire
licensure by each site (in most cases, on an arrasi$), and licenses may be revoked or suspemdezhfise at any time. These regulat
relate to many aspects of restaurant operatiotydimg the minimum age of patrons and employeesrhof operation, advertising, wholes
purchasing, inventory control and handling, andagje and dispensing of alcoholic beverages. THeréaof a restaurant to obtain or re
these licenses would adversely affect the restéisraperations. We also are subject in certairest&d “dram-shopS$tatutes, which genera
provide an injured party with recourse against statdishment that serves alcoholic beverages fataricated person who then causes in
to himself or a third party. We carry liquor liabjl coverage as part of our comprehensive genigdaility insurance.

We also are subject to federal and state minimurgewaws and other laws governing such matters agtime, tip credits, workir
conditions, safety standards, and hiring and enmpit practices. Changes in these laws during f@@abhave not had a material effect
our operations.

We currently are operating under a Tip Rate AltemeaCommitment (“TRAC")agreement with the Internal Revenue Service. Tth
increased educational and other efforts in theatgahts, the TRAC agreement reduces the likelitafopotential chain-wide employ@mly
FICA tax assessments for unreported cash tips.

We are subject to federal and state environmeptallations, but these rules have not had a mateffiatt on our operations. Duri
fiscal 2015, there were no material capital expenditures forirenmental control facilities and no material ergitures for this purpose |
anticipated.

Our facilities must comply with the applicable r@gements of the Americans with Disabilities Act 190 (“ADA”) and related sta
accessibility statutes. Under the ADA and relatedeslaws, we must provide equivalent service &allied persons and make reasor
accommodation for their employment, and when contitrg or undertaking significant remodeling of aestaurants, we must make tr
facilities accessible.

We continue to review the health care reform lawoted by Congress in March of 2010 (“Affordable €4act”) and related rules a
regulations. As part of that review, we evaludte potential impacts of this law on our business, accommodate various parts of the la
they take effect.

We are subject to laws and regulations relatinght® preparation and sale of food, including regoitest regarding product safe
nutritional content and menu labeling. We are oy ilbacome subject to laws and regulations requidisglosure of calorie, fat, trans fat,
and allergen content. The Affordable Care Act respirestaurant companies such as ours to discdsgecinformation on their menus. 1
Food and Drug Administration has proposed rulesnfglement this provision that would require resgauis to post the number of calories
most items on menus or menu boards and to makkahleamore detailed nutrition information upon regt

We are subject to laws relating to information s#gu privacy, cashless payments and consumer tcrpddtection and fraud. £
increasing number of governments and industry gsowpridwide have established data privacy laws stacidards for the protection
personal information, including social security rhers, financial information (including credit caxdmbers), and health information.

See Item 1A “Risk Factordjelow for a discussion of risks relating to fedesshte and local regulation of our business, wticly in the
areas of health care reform, data privacy and enwiental matters.
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Sustainability

Darden's commitment to sustainability is embedded key component of providing great service amd fw our guests. It is an elem
that separates us from our competitors, and aibobdr to our business success. Our approach s intégrated and strategic and span:
enterprise from the commaodities we source to theratfpon of our restaurants. Conservation is a coithge advantage it will lower our
operating costs over time, insulate our supplyrchand help us attract and retain best the modifigdaemployees all increasing the succe
of our business.

More information about our sustainability stratebgw we are implementing that strategy and our r@ssyto date is available throt
our sustainability report available on our webaite&vww.darden.com/sustainability.

Health and Wellness

In September 2011, we announced a comprehensiVi laea wellness commitment to reduce our calonié@ sodium footprints and
provide greater choice and variety on our childrenenus. Across our brands, we are working towat@ percent reduction of calories
sodium over five years and a 20 percent reductfaralmries and sodium over 10 years. Additional, have established nutrition criteria
children's meals, including serving fruit or veds¢s with every meal.

Darden Foundation and Community Affairs

We are recognized for a culture that rewards caforgand responding to people. That defines serfieeDarden. The Dardi
Restaurants, Inc. Foundation ("Foundation") worsbting to life this spirit of service through ifghilanthropic support of charital
organizations across the country as well as thentekr involvement of our employees. The Foundadioes this by focusing its philanthro
efforts on the following key program areas: acteg®stsecondary education; preservation of natesalurces; and good neighbor grants.

In April 2015, the Foundation announced it was alivag more than $1.1 million to nearly 800 nonprafiganizations in communiti
across the U.S. and Canada as part of its Dardstaiants Community Grants Program. The local graragram is intended to help sup
nonprofit organizations in the hundreds of comniasitve serve. Each of our restaurants had the apptrto help award a $1,000 grant 1
nonprofit organization in its local community.

In fiscal 2015, we also awarded approximately $ilion in grants through the Foundation. We awardeants to organizations suct
the Boys & Girls Clubs of America and the NatioRastaurant Association Education Foundation. Tloeganizations provide service to
public through education, community engagement,thagromotion of career opportunities.

In 2003, we began the Darden Harvest program aschamism for getting fresh and healthy food to peefo need it. Each day, acr
every one of our 1,500 restaurants, we collectlsaypvholesome food that isn't served to guests ratker than discarding the food, we pre
it for donation to local nonprofit feeding partnels fiscal 2015, Darden contributed approxima®ly million pounds of food which is enot
to feed almost 1,900 families of four, three mealday for an entire year. As an added benefit @Darden Harvest program, we are ab
divert millions of pounds of surplus food from wastreams every year, making the Darden Harvegramo a key part of our goal to one
send zero waste to landfills.

More information about the Foundation and its @ffdo enhance the quality of life in the commusitighere we do business, incluc
its annual Community Service Report, is availablear website at www.darden.com.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers as of the date of this repoe listed below.

Eugene I. (Gene) Lee, Jr., age 54, has been osiderg and Chief Executive Officer since Februad§® Prior to that, Mr. Lee serv
as President and Interim Chief Executive Officercei October 2014, and as President and Chief Opgréxficer of the Company fro
September 2013 to October 2014. He served as Bn¢siflour Specialty Restaurant Group since ouuiaitépn of RARE on October 1, 20(
Prior to the acquisition, he served as RARE's Bezgiand Chief Operating Officer from January 28®Dctober 2007. From January 1
until January 2001, he served as RARE's Executige FPresident and Chief Operating Officer.

Jeffrey A. Davis, age 52, has been our Senior Piasident and Chief Financial Officer since July 2@15. Prior to that, he servec
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offifie the Walmart U.S. segment of Wal-Mart Stodes, (“Walmart”),a multinational reta
corporation. Mr. Davis joined Walmart in 2006 as&/President of Finance for the Walmart U.S. sftyaitivision. He held additional roles
increasing importance, including Executive Viceditent and Treasurer for
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Walmart globally, prior to assuming the top finagost in Walmart’s largest business segmentséipo he held until May 2015.

David C. George, age 59, has been our Presidefilieé Garden since January 2013. He served as msident of LongHot
Steakhouse from October 2007, when we acquired RABEpitality International, Inc. (RARE), until Jaamy 2013. Prior to the acquisition,
served as RARE’s President of LongHorn Steakhouse May 2003 until October 2007. From October 206fil May 2003, he was RARE’
Senior Vice President of Operations for LongHoreaRhouse and from May 2000 until October 2001 wARRS Vice President
Operations for The Capital Grille.

Harald E. Herrmann, age 49, was named our Presaddbardens Specialty Restaurant Group (SRG) in January 28&4previous!
served as our President of Yard House, a brandefmedh launch in 1996, since we acquired the companfugust 2012. Prior to tl
acquisition, he served as President of Yard Horusa May 2002 to January 2014.

Valerie L. Insignares, age 47, has been our PresifeLongHorn Steakhouse since January 2013. 8twed as our Chief Restaur
Operations Officer (CROO) from March 2011 to Jagu2®13 and our Executive Vice President of Oliverdea from October 2004 ur
March 2011. She joined us in January 1997 as Direst Food and Smallwares for the commodities paseig department and h
progressively more responsible positions includemior Vice President of Operations for Olive GatdeDallas division prior to becomi
Executive Vice President of Olive Garden in 2004.

Danielle L. Kirgan, age 39, has been our Senioe\Reesident, Chief Human Resources Officer sinoeialg 2015. From Februe
2014 to January 2015, she was our Senior Vice deresiHuman Resources, Specialty Restaurants Guodid otal Rewards. She joined u
May 2010 as Senior Vice President, Total Reward$RShared Services. Prior to joining us, she wadHead of Human Resources with /
Worldwide from January 2009 to December 2009. F&984 to 2008 she was Vice President, Human Resedocethe Consumer Foc
Division at ConAgra Foods.

David R. Lothrop, age 54, has been our Senior Wresident and Corporate Controller since May 2@h2| was our Senior Vi
President of Finance and Strategy from June 2010 May 2012. He was Senior Vice President, FinafareOlive Garden from 2006 ur
June 2010. He joined Darden in 1984 as a corpa@teuntant. He joined the Olive Garden team in 188& Senior Operations Analyst,
was promoted to Assistant Controller in 1991. Afewveral years in a variety of finance roles atdear Red Lobster and Smokey Bc
Barbeque & Grill, he was promoted to Senior Vicedident, Finance and Controller for Olive GardeB006.

C. Bradford (Brad) Richmond, age 56, has been euids Vice President, Finance Transition, sincg 1@, 2015 and will retire fro
the Company on July 28, 2015. Prior to this, MrcHmond had been our Senior Vice President and Ginefncial Officer since Decemt
2006. From August 2005 to December 2006, he seagedur Senior Vice President and Corporate CortrolHe served as Senior V
President Finance, Strategic Planning and ControfleRed Lobster from January 2003 to August 208%] previously was Senior Vi
President, Finance and Controller at Olive GardemfAugust 1998 to January 2003. He joined us9iB2las a food and beverage analys
Casa Gallardo, a restaurant concept formerly owawed operated by us, and from June 1985 to Augu88 Ifeld progressively mc
responsible finance and marketing analysis postith our York Steak House, Red Lobster and OBaeden operating companies in both
United States and Canada.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Various risks and uncertainties could affect owsibeiss. Any of the risks described below or elsee/lirethis report or our other filin
with the Securities and Exchange Commission coalceta material impact on our business, financiatlit@mn or results of operations. It is
possible to predict or identify all risk factorsdditional risks and uncertainties not presentlywndo us or that we currently believe ta
immaterial may also impair our business operations.

Our strategic real estate plan which includes thansfer of a portion of our real estate assets tmew real estate investment trust (“REIJ”
that will be separated by a spin-off, split-off eimilar transaction, resulting in the REIT becomingn independent, publiclyraded compan
(the “REIT Transaction”) may not be completed or manot deliver its intended results, which could aasely affect our business.

On June 23, 2015, we announced the REIT Transaclitle completion of the REIT Transaction is subjémta number ¢
implementation and operational complexities inahgdihe separation of some of our real estate asgeta REIT. There can be no assura
that the REIT Transaction will be completed anddtare a number of risks and uncertainties relatékde REIT Transaction, including:

« whether we will be able to separate some of olragate assets into a RE
* whether we are able to obtain required regulatppravals for the REIT Transaction or the timingsath approval
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« whether the new, independent, publitigded company will qualify as a REIT which invadvéhe application of high
technical and complex provisions of the Internalé&tmie Code of 1986, as amended, as well as vaagtisal determinatiol
not entirely within our control;

- whether changes in legislation, the Treasury rdiguig, or Internal Revenue Service interpretatioray adversely impact ¢
ability to separate our real estate assets inteld Br whether shareholders will benefit from bem&EIT;

- whether we are able to complete financings and¥financing related to the REIT Transaction withmacceptable timefrar
and on acceptable terms, if at all;

« whether we and the REIT may be able to conducteaap@nd our respective businesses following the RE#&hsaction due
circumstances beyond our control; and

- whether there could be legal or other challengeth¢oREIT Transaction, including changes in legegjulatory, market ai
other circumstances which could lead our Boardetmde not to pursue the REIT Transaction.

We have the right to terminate the transactionnpédfall of the conditions have been satisfiedthié Board determines, in its sole
absolute discretion, that the REIT Transactionoin the best interests of the Company and itsetttdders or that market conditions or o
circumstances are such that the REIT Transactioo isnger advisable at that time. While we havesmtered a variety of strategies, incluc
alternative financings, capital and tax strategiesigned to maximize lortgrm shareholder value, there can be no assurdhnaethe REI
Transaction will be the most beneficial alternatomsidered.

In connection with our strategic real estate plawe may be locked into lo-term and noneancelable leases that we may want to cancel,
may be unable to renew the leases that we may waeitend at the end of their terms.

Under the strategic real estate plan being pursuedyill transfer approximately 430 of our ownedteairant properties to the RE
with substantially all of the REIF’initial assets being leased back to us. In aulditive have been marketing selected propertiemdividual
sale leasebacks. To date, we have listed approaiyn@® properties including our Orlando Restauimpport Center property and buildir
The initial terms for the leases for these properis 15 years except in a few cases, and have fex@ escalations for the initial term
multiple renewal options at our discretion. If wese a restaurant, we may remain committed to parfaur obligations under the applica
lease, which would include, among other things,npayt of the base rent for the balance of the léaxse. Additionally, the potential loss
associated with our inability to cancel leases megylt in our keeping open restaurant locationsdha performing significantly below targe
levels. As a result, ongoing lease obligationd@ed or underperforming restaurant locations caufghir our results of operations. In addit
at the end of the lease term and expiration ofesiewal periods, we may be unable to renew the legthout substantial additional cost, i
all. As a result, we may be required to close twoate a restaurant, which could subject us totcacon and other costs and risks, and
have an adverse effect on our operating performance

A failure to maintain food safety throughout the gpply chain and foorborne illness concerns may have an adverse eféecbur business.

Food safety is a top priority, and we dedicate wrti@l resources to ensuring that our guests esgfs, quality food products. Howe\
food safety issues could be caused at the poisbafce or by food suppliers or distributors anda assult, be out of our control. In additi
regardless of the source or cause, any reportagiborne ilinesses such as E. coli, hepatitis A, imickis or salmonella, and other food sa
issues including food tampering or contaminationp@e of our restaurants could adversely affectréputation of our brands and hav
negative impact on our sales. Even instances af-fmone iliness, food tampering or food contaminataeurring solely at restaurants of
competitors could result in negative publicity abthe food service industry generally and advergelyact our sales. The occurrence of fooc
borne illnesses or food safety issues could alseradly affect the price and availability of affedtingredients, resulting in higher costs
lower margins.

Litigation, including allegations of illegal, unfai or inconsistent employment practices, may advérsaffect our business, financii
condition and results of operations.

Our business is subject to the risk of litigation émployees, guests, suppliers, shareholders, gmant agencies or others thro
private actions, class actions, administrative peokings, regulatory actions or other litigation.e3& actions and proceedings may inv
allegations of illegal, unfair or inconsistent emphent practices, including wage and hour violai@amd employment discrimination; gt
discrimination; food safety issues including poood quality, foodsorne iliness, food tampering, food contaminatiand adverse hea
effects from consumption of various food produatshigh-calorie foods (including obesity); other gamal injury; violation of “dram shop
laws (providing an injured party with recourse agaian establishment that serves alcoholic bevsrgan intoxicated party who then cat
injury to himself or a third party); trademark imgement; violation of the federal securities laespther concerns. The outcome of litigat
particularly class action lawsuits and regulatariiams, is difficult to assess or quantify. Pldiistin these types of lawsuits may seek reca
of very large or indeterminate amounts, and thenitade of the potential loss relating to such laitgssmay remain unknown for substan
periods of time. The cost to defend litigation nieysignificant. There may also be adverse publistsociated with litigation
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that could decrease guest acceptance of our breeghrdless of whether the allegations are valid@mltimately are found liable. Litigati
could impact our operations in other ways as walllegations of illegal, unfair or inconsistent erapinent practices, for example, ca
adversely affect employee acquisition and retentima result, litigation may adversely affect dwusiness, financial condition and result
operations.

Unfavorable publicity, or a failure to respond effévely to adverse publicity, could harm our reptitan and adversely impact our gut
counts and sales.

The good reputation of our restaurant brands igyaflctor in the success of our business. Actualieged incidents at any of ¢
restaurants could result in negative publicity ttatld harm our brands. Even incidents occurringestaurants operated by our competito
in the supply chain generally could result in nagapublicity that could harm the restaurant indpsiverall and, indirectly, our own bran
Negative publicity may result from allegations dfegal, unfair or inconsistent employment practicemployee dissatisfaction, gu
discrimination, iliness, injury, or any of the othmatters discussed above that could give ris@igation. Regardless of whether the allegat
or complaints are valid, unfavorable publicity telg to a limited number of our restaurants, orydola single restaurant, could adversely a
public perception of the entire brand. Negative ljgith also may result from health concerns inchglifood safety and flu outbrea
publication of government or industry findings centing food products, environmental disasters, erintidents, data privacy breact
scandals involving our employees, or operationablams at our restaurants, all of which could make brands and menu offerings |
appealing to our guests and negatively impact aesgcounts and sales. Adverse publicity and fexebn overall consumer perceptions of
brands, or our failure to respond effectively teede publicity, could have a material adverseceéfi@ our business.

We are subject to a number of risks relating to pigtpolicy changes and federal, state and local wéaion of our business, including in th
areas of health care reform, environmental matterajnimum wage, unionization, data privacy, menu kling, immigration requirement
and taxes, and an insufficient or ineffective respge to government regulation may impact our cosusture, operational efficiencies ar
talent availability.

The restaurant industry is subject to extensiverfad state, local and international laws and r&tjuhs. The development and opera
of restaurants depend to a significant extent ensiilection and acquisition of suitable sites, Whace subject to building, zoning, land 1
environmental, traffic and other regulations amguieements. We are subject to licensing and reiguidty state and local authorities relatin
health, sanitation, safety and fire standards hadéle of alcoholic beverages. We are subjeewvts bnd regulations relating to the prepar:
and sale of food, including regulations regardingdpct safety, nutritional content and menu lalgelWe are subject to federal and state
governing minimum wages, unionization and othemtalssues. These include the Fair Labor Standarctsof 1938 and requiremel
concerning overtime, paid or family leave, tip étedworking conditions and safety standards. Talsp include the Immigration Reform ¢
Control Act of 1986, which requires among othem¢js the preparation of Form9lto verify that employees are authorized to ac
employment in the United States.

We also are subject to federal and state laws wrichibit discrimination and other laws regulatihg design and operation of faciliti
such as the ADA. Compliance with these laws andileggpns can be costly and increase our exposurktigation and government
proceedings, and a failure or perceived failureamply with these laws could result in negative ljmitly that could harm our reputation. N
or changing laws and regulations relating to urdoganizing rights and activities may impact our ratiens at the restaurant level and incr
our labor costs.

The Affordable Care Act was enacted in March 20¥e have continued to evaluate the potential ingpatthis law on our busine
and accommodate various parts of the law and cklatles and regulations as they take effect. Thezeno assurances that a combinatic
cost management and price increases can accommaltafethe costs associated with compliance. Wk rdit receive tafree subsidies fi
providing prescription drugs to retirees under Madé Part D. Therefore, we have no deferred tagteisssociated with our retiree mec
plan that would be impacted by this law. The Affalote Care Act also requires restaurant companigs asiours to disclose calorie informa
on their menus. Although the FDA published proposslilations to implement the nutritional menu latgeprovisions, it has delayed rele
of final regulations. We do not expect to incur angterial costs from compliance with this provisibat cannot anticipate any changes in ¢
behavior resulting from the implementation of thition of the law, which could have an adverseafbn our sales or results of operati
We are also reviewing the potential impacts of fems associated with health care passed by vasi@tis and local governments.

We are subject to a variety of federal, state agdlllaws and regulations relating to the use ag@ydischarge, emission and dispos
hazardous materials. There also has been increéstng by United States and overseas governmeunthbities on other environmen
matters, such as climate change, the reductiorre#nipouse gases and water consumption. This imctdasus may lead to new initiati\
directed at regulating a yet to be specified amhgnvironmental matters, such as the emissionreérthouse gases, where “cap and trad
initiatives could effectively impose a tax on cambemissions. Legislative, regulatory or other @ffailo combat climate change or o
environmental concerns could result in future iases in the cost of raw
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materials, taxes, transportation and utilities, aslshtould decrease our operating profits and ndedssiuture investments in facilities ¢
equipment.

We are subject to laws relating to information si#gu privacy, cashless payments and consumer tcrpddtection and fraud. £
increasing number of governments and industry gsompridwide have established data privacy laws statidards for the protection
personal information, including social security rhers, financial information (including credit cardimbers), and health informati
Compliance with these laws and regulations candstlyc and any failure or perceived failure to ctynwith those laws could harm c
reputation or lead to litigation, which could adselly affect our financial condition.

The impact of current laws and regulations, theafbf future changes in laws or regulations thgtase additional requirements and
consequences of litigation relating to currentudufe laws and regulations, or an insufficientr@fiective response to significant regulator
public policy issues, could increase our cost $tme; operational efficiencies and talent availahiband therefore have an adverse effect ol
results of operations. Failure to comply with taev$ and regulatory requirements of federal, statklacal authorities could result in, ami
other things, revocation of required licenses, aitiative enforcement actions, fines and civil anidninal liability. Compliance with the
laws and regulations can be costly and can increasexposure to litigation or governmental invgations or proceedings.

We may be subject to increased labor and insuranosts.

Our restaurant operations are subject to UniteteStand Canadian federal and state laws governicly satters as minimum wag
working conditions, overtime and tip credits. Asideal and state minimum wage rates increase, wen®eg to increase not only the wage
our minimum wage employees, but also the wages toagnployees at wage rates that are above minimage. Labor shortages, increa
employee turnover and health care mandates cosddimtrease our labor costs. This in turn could leato increase prices which could im|
our sales. Conversely, if competitive pressurestber factors prevent us from offsetting increaksabr costs by increases in prices,
profitability may decline. In addition, the currgmtemiums that we pay for our insurance (includivarkers’ compensation, general liabili
property, health, and directors’ and officdiability) may increase at any time, thereby furthereasing our costs. The dollar amount of cli
that we actually experience under our workers’ cengation and general liability insurance, for whigh carry high peclaim deductibles, m:
also increase at any time, thereby further increpsiur costs. Further, the decreased availabifitproperty and liability insurance has
potential to negatively impact the cost of premiuang the magnitude of uninsured losses.

We rely heavily on information technology in our epations, and insufficient guest or employee facitechnology, or a failure to maintain
continuous and secure cyber network, free from nré@eéfailure, interruption or security breach couldharm our ability to effectively opera
our business and/or result in the loss of respectetationships with our guests or employees.

We rely heavily on information systems across querations, including for marketing programs, empbgngagement, managemel
our supply chain, point-afale processing system in our restaurants, andusother processes and transactions. Our ahiligffectively
manage our business and coordinate the produdistnipbution and sale of our products depends Bagritly on the reliability and capacity
these systems. In addition, we must effectivelypoesl to changing guest expectations and new tecbival developments. Disruptio
failures or other performance issues with thesestgiaeing technology systems could impair the bighéiat they provide to our business
negatively affect our relationship with our guélte failure of these systems to operate effectiyalgblems with transitioning to upgradec
replacement systems, a material network breachdrsécurity of these systems as a result of a afeck, or any other failure to maintai
continuous and secure cyber network could resudtilvstantial harm or inconvenience to us or arviddal. This could include the theft of
intellectual property or trade secrets, or the oper use of personal information or other “identitgft.” Each of these situations or ¢
privacy breaches may cause delays in guest sereidace efficiency in our operations, require digant capital investments to remediate
problem, result in customer or advertiser dissattsdn or otherwise result in negative publicitgtticould harm our reputation and we coul
subjected to litigation, regulatory investigatiarsthe imposition of penalties. As privacy and m@tion security laws and regulations che
and cyber risks evolve, we may incur additionak€ts ensure we remain in compliance.

Our inability or failure to execute on a compreheine business continuity plan following a major natal disaster such as a hurricane
manmade disaster, including terrorism, at our comade facility could have a materially adverse imgam our business.

Many of our corporate systems and processes apdrate support for our restaurant operations aneaeed at one Florida location.
We have disaster recovery procedures and businessgity plans in place to address most even ofisis nature, including hurricanes
other natural disasters, and back up anditéflocations for recovery of electronic and otftems of data and information. However, if we
unable to fully implement our disaster recoverynglawe may experience delays in recovery of daability to perform vital corpora
functions, tardiness in required reporting and clienpe, failures
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to adequately support field operations and otheakdowns in normal communication and operating g@taces that could have a mate
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperation and exposure to administrative anergal claims.

Health concerns arising from foo-related pandemics, outbreaks of flu viruses or ettdiseases may have an adverse effect on our lassin

The United States and other countries have expmteror may experience in the future, outbreaksrages, such as norovirus, avian
or “SARS,” and H1N1 or “swine flu,” or other disemssuch as bovine spongiform encephalopathy, comyrkoown as “mad cow diseaséel’d
the extent that a virus or disease is food-born@geceived to be foolderne, future outbreaks may adversely affect tiee@nd availability ¢
certain food products and cause our guests toesatdf a product, or could reduce public confideandeod handling and/or public assem
For example, health concerns relating to the copsiom of beef or to specific events such as anreatb of “mad cow diseasefiay adverse
impact sales at LongHorn Steakhouse and The Cd&piilié restaurants that offer beef as a primarypmi¢em. In addition, public concern o
avian flu may cause fear about the consumptiorhaken, eggs and other products derived from ppulthe inability to serve beef or poultry-
based products would restrict our ability to prevel variety of menu items to our guests. If we geaa restaurant menu in response to
concerns, we may lose guests who do not prefendliemenu, and we may not be able to attract acserfti new guest base to produce the !
needed to make the restaurant profitable. We algp Imave different or additional competitors for antended guests as a result of su
change and may not be able to successfully comgmast such competitors. If a virus is transmitbgdhuman contact, our employee:
guests could become infected, or could choosegeoadvised, to avoid gathering in public places, ahwhich could adversely affect ¢
restaurant guest traffic, and our ability to adeglyastaff our restaurants, receive deliveries ofingely basis or perform functions at
corporate level. We also could be adversely aftedtgurisdictions in which we have restaurants oae mandatory closures, seek volur
closures or impose restrictions on operations. Efesuch measures are not implemented and a virustleer disease does not spi
significantly, the perceived risk of infection agsificant health risk may adversely affect ouribess.

We face intense competition, and if we have an ifiient focus on competition and the consumer laschpe, our business, financi
condition and results of operations would be adwaysaffected.

The full-service dining sector of the restaurant industriniensely competitive with respect to pricing,\éeg, location, personnel a
type and quality of food, and there are many wsthblished competitors. We compete within eactketavith national and regional restaul
chains and locallpwned restaurants. We also face growing competiisra result of the trend toward convergence ircagsg deli an
restaurant services, particularly in the superntairkgustry which offers “convenient mealst the form of improved entrées and side di
from the deli section. We compete primarily on thelity, variety and value perception of menu itefifse number and location of restaure
type of brand, quality and efficiency of servicétractiveness of facilities and effectiveness ofeatlsing and marketing programs are
important factors. We anticipate that intense cditipe will continue with respect to all of thesactors. If we are unable to continue
compete effectively, our business, financial caondiand results of operations would be adversdbcadd.

Our failure to drive both short-term and lonterm profitable sales growth through brand relevamcoperating excellence, and opening r
restaurants of existing brands, and developing ndining brands could result in poor financial perfenance.

As part of our business strategy, we intend toedpvofitable sales growth by increasing saesaurant sales at existing restaur.
continuing to expand our current portfolio of restnt brands, and developing additional brandsdhatbe expanded profitably. This stral
involves numerous risks, and we may not be abéeldeve our growth objectives.

At existing brands, we may not be able to maintaiand relevance and restaurant operating excelleneehieve sustainable same
restaurant sales growth and warrant new unit grofiisting brand shoiterm sales growth could be impacted if we are uwnabldrive nee
term guest count and sales growth, and Iltamg: sales growth could be impacted if we fail ¥dead our existing brands in ways that
relevant to our guests. A failure to innovate axigtled our existing brands in ways that are relet@mgiuests and occasions in order to gen
sustainable same-restaurant traffic growth and yrednontraditional sales and earnings growth opportunitiasufficient focus on ol
competition, or failure to adequately address thelide of the casual dining industry, could haveadwerse effect on our results of operati
In addition, we may not be able to support susthimsw unit growth or open all of our planned nestaarants, and the new restaurants thi
open may not be profitable or as profitable asedsting restaurants. New restaurants typicallyegigmce an adjustment period before ¢
levels and operating margins normalize, and evés st successful newlypened restaurants generally do not make a signtficontributio
to profitability in their initial months of operain. The opening of new restaurants can also haveddaerse effect on sales levels at exis
restaurants.

The ability to open and profitably operate restatsas subject to various risks, such as the ifleation and availability of suitable a
economically viable locations, the negotiation afceptable lease or purchase terms for new locatithes need to obtain all requil
governmental permits (including zoning approvald Beuor licenses) on a timely basis, the needtoly
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with other regulatory requirements, the availapitf necessary contractors and subcontractorsaltiigy to meet construction schedules
budgets, the ability to manage union activitieshsas picketing or hand billing which could delaynstruction, increases in labor and builc
material costs, the availability of financing ateptable rates and terms, changes in weather er atis of God that could result in construc
delays and adversely affect the results of one @arenmestaurants for an indeterminate amount of,tiowe ability to hire and train qualifi
management personnel and general economic andelsssionditions. At each potential location, we cetapvith other restaurants and re
businesses for desirable development sites, caistnucontractors, management personnel, hourlyl@eyeps and other resources. If we
unable to successfully manage these risks, we daatlincreased costs and lower than anticipated sad earnings in future periods.

We also may not be able to identify and integratditional brands or develop new business oppoiamihat are as profitable as
existing restaurants.

Our plans to expand our smaller brands Bahama Breg&easons 52 and Eddie V's, and the testing okothew business ventures that h:
not yet proven their longerm viability, may not be successful, which couldquire us to make substantial further investmerits those
brands and new business ventures and result in éssand impairments.

While each of our restaurant brands, as well ab efdour individual restaurants, are subject to tisks and uncertainties descril
above, there is an enhanced level of risk and teiogy related to the operation and expansion ofsooaller brands such as Bahama Bre
Seasons 52 and Eddie V's. These brands and nemebssientures have not yet proven their lwg: viability or growth potential. We hs
made substantial investments in the developmenteapdnsion of each of these brands and furtherstment is required. While we he
implemented a number of changes to operations haiBa Breeze, and believe we have improved the guxg&rience and unit econon
sufficiently to restart modest unit growth, theende no assurance that these changes will corttnibe successful or that additional new
growth will occur. Seasons 52 and Eddie V's alsiarthe early stages of their development and mgdjuire additional resources to sup
further growth. Our other new business initiatigesh as the sale of consumer packaged goods hayetrimroved their longerm viability an
may not be successful.

In each case, these brands and business initiatilesontinue to be subject to the risks and uteiaties that accompany any emer
restaurant brand or new business initiative.

A lack of availability of suitable locations for ne restaurants or a decline in the quality of thedations of our current restaurants mi
adversely affect our sales and results of operation

The success of our restaurants depends in larg@pdheir locations. As demographic and econoraitepns change, current locati
may not continue to be attractive or profitables$tble declines in neighborhoods where our restasirare located or adverse econc
conditions in areas surrounding those neighborh@oddd result in reduced sales in those locatibtmsaddition, desirable locations for n
restaurant openings or for the relocation of emgstiestaurants may not be available at an acceptadt when we identify a particL
opportunity for a new restaurant or relocation. doeurrence of one or more of these events could haignificant adverse effect on our s
and results of operations.

We may experience higher-thaanticipated costs associated with the opening ofwneestaurants or with the closing, relocating a
remodeling of existing restaurants, which may adsely affect our results of operations.

Our sales and expenses can be impacted significhgtthe number and timing of the opening of newstasrants and the closil
relocating and remodeling of existing restaurak{e. incur substantial prepening expenses each time we open a new restaamdnbthe
expenses when we close, relocate or remodel exiséataurants. The expenses of opening, closidgcating or remodeling any of
restaurants may be higher than anticipated. Areas® in such expenses could have an adverse @ffecir results of operations.

A failure to identify and execute innovative markef) and guest relationship tactics, ineffective amproper use of other marketir
initiatives, and increased advertising and markegigosts, could adversely affect our results of giems.

If our competitors increase their spending on aikiag and promotions, if our advertising, mediantairketing expenses increase,
our advertising and promotions become less effedtian those of our competitors, or if we do natcathtely leverage technology and
analytic capabilities needed to generate concisgpetitive insight, we could experience a materiblease effect on our results of operation
failure to sufficiently innovate, develop guestaténship initiatives, or maintain adequate ane@affe advertising could inhibit our ability
maintain brand relevance and drive increased sales.

As part of our marketing efforts, we rely on seaettgine marketing and social media platforms taettand retain guests, and
begin efforts to consolidate our brands into alsimtigital technology platform. These initiativesynnot be successful, and pose a varie
other risks, as discussed below under the headdgr inability or failure to recognize, respond dad effectively manage the acceler:
impact of social media could materially adversetpact our business."
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A failure to recruit, develop and retain effectideaders, the loss or shortage of personnel with loapacities and skills, or an inability
adequately monitor and proactively respond to enygle dissatisfaction could impact our strategic ditien and jeopardize our ability -
meet our growth targets.

Our future growth depends substantially on the rifmumtions and abilities of key executives and otheployees. Our future growth a
depends substantially on our ability to recruit aethin highquality employees to work in and manage our reatasr We must continue
recruit, retain and motivate management and othgyl@yees in order to maintain our current businmsd support our projected grow
Changes in senior management could expose us ndicint changes in strategic direction and inities. A failure to maintain appropri
organizational capacity and capability to suppe#ddership excellence (adequate resources, innevsitil sets and expectations) and b
adequate bench strength required for growth, a dbdsey employees or a significant shortage of kighlity restaurant employees, anc
inability to adequately monitor and proactivelypesd to employee dissatisfaction which could leagdor guest satisfaction, higher turno
litigation and unionization which could jeopardizer ability to meet our growth targets.

A failure to address cost pressures, including nigi costs for commodities, labor, health care andlities used by our restaurants, and
failure to effectively deliver cost management atties and achieve economies of scale in purchasioguld compress our margins a
adversely affect our sales and results of operation

Our results of operations depend significantly am ability to anticipate and react to changes ia phice and availability of foo
ingredients, labor, health care, utilities and ottedated costs over which we may have little colnt®perating margins for our restaurants
subject to changes in the price and availabilitfoafd commodities, including shrimp, lobster, ceaid other seafood, as well as beef, |
chicken, cheese and produce. The introduction @hanges to tariffs on imported food products, saglshrimp, could increase our costs
possibly impact the supply of those products. Weno& predict whether we will be able to anticipated react to changing food costs
adjusting our purchasing practices and menu primed,a failure to do so could adversely affect apgrating results. We attempt to level
our size to achieve economies of scale in purchasint there can be no assurances that we can ahliago effectively. We are subject to
general risks of inflation.

Increases in minimum wage, health care and otheeftiecosts may have a material adverse effectwnlabor costs. We operate
many states and localities, where the minimum wagggnificantly higher than the federal minimumgea Increases in minimum wage r
also result in increases in the wage rates paiddarminimum wage positions

Our restaurantoperating margins are also affected by fluctuatiorntse price of utilities such as electricity amatural gas, whether a
result of inflation or otherwise, on which the mstants depend for their energy supply. In additinterruptions to the availability of gi
electric, water or other utilities, whether dueatging infrastructure, weather conditions, fire,raali damage, trees, digging accidents or «
reasons largely out of our control, may adverséfigca our operations. Our inability to anticipatedarespond effectively to an adverse chi
in any of these factors could have a significamesske effect on our sales and results of operations

We may lose sales or incur increased costs if oestaurants experience shortages or interruptionstiire delivery of food and other produs
from our third party vendors and supplier

Shortages or interruptions in the supply of fo@ans and other supplies to our restaurants may tmedaby inclement weather; nat
disasters such as hurricanes, tornadoes, floodsghts and earthquakes; the inability of our veadorobtain credit in a tightened credit ma
or remain solvent given disruptions in the finahcrarkets; or other conditions beyond our cont&lich shortages or interruptions cc
adversely affect the availability, quality and co$the items we buy and the operations of ourargsints. We may have a limited numbe
suppliers for certain of our products. Supply chagk could increase our costs and limit the awdlity of products that are critical to ¢
restaurant operations. If we raise prices as dtrefincreased food costs or shortages, it mayatiegly impact our sales. If we tempora
close a restaurant or remove popular items fromstaurans menu, that restaurant may experience a signifieghuction in sales during 1
time affected by the shortage or thereafter asualtref our guests changing their dining habits.

Adverse weather conditions and natural disastersiicbadversely affect our restaurant sale

Adverse weather conditions can impact guest traffiour restaurants, cause the temporary undeaitdn of outdoor patio seating a
in more severe cases such as hurricanes, tornadaiser natural disasters, cause temporary clessmmetimes for prolonged periods, wi
would negatively impact our restaurant sales. Charig weather could result in construction delaytrruptions to the availability of utilitie
and shortages or interruptions in the supply ofiftems and other supplies, which could increasecosts. Some climatologists predict thai
longterm effects of climate change and global warmiray mesult in more severe, volatile weather or edéeindroughts, which could incre.
the frequency and duration of weather impacts aroperations.
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Volatility in the market value of derivatives we @i$o hedge exposures to fluctuations in commoditic@s may cause volatility in our gro
margins and net earnings.

We use or may use derivatives to hedge price nskséme of our principal ingredient and energy sostcluding but not limited
coffee, butter, wheat, soybean oil, pork, beefseliduel, gasoline and natural gas. Changes irvahges of these derivatives are recorde
earnings currently, resulting in volatility in bogflioss margin and net earnings. These gains asddame reported as a component of cc
sales in our Consolidated Statements of Earningsided in our consolidated financial statements. Mé&y experience volatile earnings :
result of these market factors.

Certain economic and business factors specific toe trestaurant industry and other general macroecomic factors including
unemployment, energy prices and interest rates taed largely beyond our control may adversely atfeonsumer behavior and our resu
of operations.

Our business results depend on a number of indspgygific and general economic factors, many of twlaie beyond our control. T
full-service dining sector of the restaurant industraffected by changes in international, nationagiomeal and local economic conditio
seasonal fluctuation of sales volumes, consumardipg patterns and consumer preferences, incluclagges in consumer tastes and di
habits, and the level of consumer acceptance ofesaurant brands. The performance of individastaurants may also be adversely affe
by factors such as demographic trends, severe weatbluding hurricanes, traffic patterns and tget number and location of compe!
restaurants.

General economic conditions may also adverselyctfiar results of operations. Recessionary econayuites, a protracted econor
slowdown, a worsening economy, increased unemplaynecreased energy prices, rising interest ratefwngrade of the U.S. governme
long-term credit rating, the European debt crisis,other industrywide cost pressures could affect consumer behaidr spending fi
restaurant dining occasions and lead to a dediisales and earnings. Job losses, foreclosurekiumcies and falling home prices could c
guests to make fewer discretionary purchases, apdignificant decrease in our guest traffic orrage profit per transaction will negativ
impact our financial performance. In addition, #spline, natural gas, electricity and other energgts increase, and credit card, h
mortgage and other borrowing costs increase wéhgiinterest rates, our guests may have lowermndeage income and reduce the frequi
with which they dine out, may spend less on eandiout occasion, or may choose more inexpengisturants.

Furthermore, we cannot predict the effects thatacor threatened armed conflicts, terrorist atackfforts to combat terroris
heightened security requirements, or a failure totget information systems for critical infrastrud, such as the electrical grid .
telecommunications systems, could have on our @ipag the economy or consumer confidence generAlly of these events could aff
consumer spending patterns or result in increassts ¢or us due to security measures.

Unfavorable changes in the above factors or inroblusiness and economic conditions affecting owestgicould increase our co
reduce traffic in some or all of our restaurantdngpose practical limits on pricing, any of whichutd lower our profit margins and hav
material adverse effect on our financial conditéom results of operations.

Disruptions in the financial and credit markets magdversely impact consumer spending patterns, dftbe availability and cost of crec
and increase pension plan expenses.

Our ability to make scheduled payments or to refigaour debt and to obtain financing for acquisgi@r other general corporate
commercial purposes will depend on our operatird)farancial performance, which in turn is subjexptevailing economic conditions anc
financial, business and other factors beyond oumtrob Global credit markets and the financial $ss industry have been experiencir
period of unprecedented turmoil over the last fearg, characterized by the bankruptcy, failureate sf various financial institutions and
unprecedented level of intervention from the UniBtdtes and other governments. These events maysatlvimpact the availability of cre
already arranged, and the availability and costredlit in the future. There can be no assuranadsiatl will be able to arrange credit on te
we believe are acceptable or that permit us tanfirsour business with historical margins. The latkredit, along with the macroeconoi
factors previously discussed, may have an adverpadt on certain of our suppliers, landlords afotenants in retail centers in which we
located. If these issues continue or worsen, tloeydcfurther materially impact these parties, whithurn could negatively affect our financ
results. Any new or continuing disruptions in theahcial markets may also adversely affect the W&l world economy, which cot
negatively impact consumer spending patterns. Tegnebe no assurances as to how or when this pefrimdmoil will be resolved. Changes
the capital markets could also have significané&® on our pension plan. Our pension income oems® is affected by factors including
market performance of the assets in the masteiigretrsist maintained for the pension plans for saheur employees, the weighted avel
asset allocation and lorigFm rate of return of our pension plan assets,diseount rate used to determine the service atateist co:
components of our net periodic pension cost andnasd rates of increase in our employdasire compensation. If our pension plan asse
not achieve positive rates of return, or if our

19




Table of Contents

estimates and assumed rates are not accuratearmimgs may decrease because net periodic penssts would rise and we could be requ
to provide additional funds to cover our obligasdo employees under the pension plan.

We face a variety of risks associated with doingsimess with franchisees, business partners and wrdn foreign markets.

Our expansion into international markets could wresks to our brands and reputation. We belidéna e have selected higladibel
international operating partners and franchisedk significant experience in restaurant operati@ma are providing them with training ¢
support. However, the probability of opening, ulit® success and quality of any franchise restaueatg with the franchisee. If the franch
does not successfully open or operate its resttinam manner consistent with our standards, estguhave negative experiences due to i
with food quality or operational execution, ourtdavalues could suffer, which could have an adveffet on our business.

There also is no assurance that international tipesmwill be profitable or that international grdwwill continue. Our internation
operations are subject to all of the same riskecated with our domestic operations, as well as@ber of additional risks. These inclt
among other things, international economic andtipali conditions, foreign currency fluctuations,dadiffering cultures and consun
preferences.

We also are subject to governmental regulationsutjinout the world that impact the way we do businegh our internation
franchisees and vendors. These include antitrusttax requirements, anieycott regulations, import/export/customs regoladi and othq
international trade regulations, the USA Patriot, Alte Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and appliedbtal law. Failure to comply with any st
legal requirements could subject us to monetahijliiees and other sanctions, which could harm lousiness, results of operations and fina
condition.

Failure to protect our service marks or other intettual property could harm our business.

We regard our Dardéeh, Darden Restaurants Olive Garder?, LongHorn Steakhous®, The Capital Grill¢®, Yard Hous€® , Baham:
Breeze®, Seasons 52, Eddie V's Prime Seafodtand Wildfish Seafood Grill& service marks, and other service marks and tradenmelate:
to our restaurant businesses, as having significaloie and being important to our marketing effovi&® rely on a combination of protectis
provided by contracts, copyrights, patents, tradkmaervice marks and other common law rightsh aasctrade secret and unfair compet
laws, to protect our restaurants and services frdirmgement. We have registered certain trademaria service marks in the United St
and foreign jurisdictions. However, we are awar@aies and marks identical or similar to our servitarks being used from time to time
other persons. Although our policy is to oppose singh infringement, further or unknown unauthorizséds or other misappropriation of
trademarks or service marks could diminish the eafiour brands and adversely affect our businasaddition, effective intellectual prope
protection may not be available in every countryvinich we have or intend to open or franchise tatgant. Although we believe we hi
taken appropriate measures to protect our inteléggiroperty, there can be no assurance that fgiresections will be adequate, and defen
or enforcing our service marks and other intellacproperty could result in the expenditure of figant resources.

Impairment of the carrying value of our goodwill oother intangible assets could adversely affect dmancial condition and consolidate
results of operations.

Goodwill represents the difference between the lmse price of acquired companies and the relaieddhues of net assets acquil
We test goodwill for impairment annually and wheseevents or changes in circumstances indicateirti@irment may have occurred.
compare the carrying value of a reporting unitludexg goodwill, to the fair value of the unit. @ang value is based on the assets
liabilities associated with the operations of theporting unit. If the carrying value is less thidwe fair value, no impairment exists. If
carrying value is higher than the fair value, thisran indication of impairment. A significant anmbwf judgment is involved in determining
an indication of impairment exists. Factors mayluide, among others: a significant decline in oupeted future cash flows; a sustail
significant decline in our stock price and markepitalization; a significant adverse change in liefgators or in the business clime
unanticipated competition; the testing for recobéity of a significant asset group within a repog unit; and slower growth rates. Any adwvt
change in these factors would have a significanaich on the recoverability of these assets andtivegjaaffect our financial condition a
consolidated results of operations. We computeatheunt of impairment by comparing the implied featue of reporting unit goodwill wi
the carrying amount of that goodwill. We are regdito record a nonash impairment charge if the testing performedcatés that goodw
has been impaired.

We evaluate the useful lives of our other intargiidsets, primarily the LongHorn Steakhots&he Capital Grille®, Yard House® anc
Eddie V's Prime Seafodtitrademarks, to determine if they are definite ateiinitedived. Reaching a determination on useful life riegg
significant judgments and assumptions regardingfuhge effects of obsolescence, demand, competitither economic factors (such as
stability of the industry, legislative action thatsults in an uncertain or changing regulatory mmment, and expected changes in distribi
channels), the level of required maintenance exipaed, and the expected lives of other relatedigs®f assets.
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As with goodwill, we test our indefinitived intangible assets (primarily trademarks) ifmpairment annually and whenever eveni
changes in circumstances indicate that their aagryialue may not be recoverable. We estimate tinesédue of the trademarks based or
income valuation model using the relief from royattethod, which requires assumptions related tgepted sales from our annual loreage
plan, assumed royalty rates that could be payéhte did not own the trademarks and a discount rate

We cannot accurately predict the amount and tinoingny impairment of assets. Should the value afdgall or other intangible asst
become impaired, there could be an adverse effeotiofinancial condition and consolidated resafteperations.

Failure of our internal controls over financial reprting and future changes in accounting standardsasn cause adverse unexpec
operating results, affect our reported results gierations or otherwise harm our business and finaalcresults.

Our management is responsible for establishingraaihtaining effective internal control over finaalcreporting. Internal control ov
financial reporting is a process to provide reabtmassurance regarding the reliability of finahoéporting for external purposes in accord:
with accounting principles generally accepted i thnited States. Because of its inherent limitatjonternal control over financial reporting
not intended to provide absolute assurance thatewdd prevent or detect a misstatement of our fiferstatements or fraud. Our growth
acquisition of other restaurant companies with pdoces not identical to our own could place sigatfit additional pressure on our systel
internal control over financial reporting. Any faie to maintain an effective system of internaltominover financial reporting could limit o
ability to report our financial results accuratelyd timely or to detect and prevent fraud. A sigaifit financial reporting failure or mate:
weakness in internal control over financial repagttould cause a loss of investor confidence amtindein the market price of our comrmr
stock.

A change in accounting standards can have a signifieffect on our reported results and may affectreporting of transactions bef
the change is effective. New pronouncements angingrinterpretations of pronouncements have occduard may occur in the futu
Changes to existing accounting rules or the queistipof current accounting practices may adversdfgct our reported financial resu
Additionally, our assumptions, estimates and judgimeelated to complex accounting matters couldiaantly affect our financial resul
Generally accepted accounting principles and rélateounting pronouncements, implementation guidsland interpretations with regard
wide range of matters that are relevant to ourrmss, including but not limited to, revenue rectignj fair value of investments, impairmen
long-lived assets, leases and related economisacions, derivatives, pension and post-retirerhengfits, intangibles, seifisurance, incon
taxes, property and equipment, unclaimed propeysland litigation, and stodkased compensation are highly complex and involaay
subjective assumptions, estimates and judgmentssbyhanges in these rules or their interpretatioohanges in underlying assumptic
estimates or judgments by us could significantlgirade our reported or expected financial performance

Our inability or failure to recognize, respond tond effectively manage the accelerated impact ofiabmedia could materially adverse
impact our business.

There has been a marked increase in the usec@f media platforms and similar devices whidbvalindividuals access to a broad audie
of consumers and other interested persons. Matiglanedia platforms immediately publish the contieir subscribers and participants
post, often without filters or checks on accuratthe content posted. Information posted on squlatforms at any time may be adverse tc
interests or may be inaccurate, each of which naagntour performance, prospects, or business. @l may be immediate without afford
us an opportunity for redress or correction. Tiss@mination of information online could harm ousimess, prospects, financial condition,
results of operations, regardless of the infornmegiaccuracy.

Many of our competitors are expanding their usesefial media and new social media platforms aredhageing develope:
potentially making more traditional social mediatfdrms obsolete. As a result, we need to contislyannovate and develop our social mt
strategies in order to maintain broad appeal witksts and brand relevance. As part of our marketifgrts, we rely on search eng
marketing and social media platforms to attract @etdin guests. We have initiated a mykar effort to implement new technology platfo
that will allow us to digitally engage with our gate and employees and strengthen our marketingaalgitics capabilities in this increasin
connected society. These initiatives may not beesgful, resulting in expenses incurred without ltkeefit of higher revenues, increa
employee engagement or brand recognition. In amdith variety of risks are associated with the afsgocial media, including the impro|
disclosure of proprietary information, negative coemts about us, exposure of personally identifidbfermation, fraud, or out-odiate
information. The inappropriate use of social med#hicles by our guests or employees could increasecosts, lead to litigation or resuli
negative publicity that could damage our reputation

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
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None.
Iltem 2. PROPERTIES

Restaurant Properties — Continuing Operations

As of May 31, 2015 , we operated 1,534 restauramthe United States and Canada (consisting of @i Garden, 48Q.ongHorr
Steakhouse, 54 The Capital Grille, 59 Yard Hou8eSdasons 52, 36 Bahama Breeze, and 16 EddiérMbg following locations:

Alabama (31) Illinois (51) Montana (2) Rhode Island (3)
Alaska (2) Indiana (34) Nebraska (6) South Carolina (30)
Arkansas (12) lowa (12) Nevada (15) South Dakota (3)
Arizona (39) Kansas (20) New Hampshire (10) Tennessee (44)
California (101) Kentucky (18) New Jersey (48) Texas (134)
Colorado (22) Louisiana (17) New Mexico (7) Utah (15)
Connecticut (15) Maine (9) New York (49) Vermont (2)
Delaware (5) Maryland (32) North Carolina (53) Virginia (46)
District of Columbia (1)  Massachusetts (41) North Dakota (6) Washington (21)
Florida (175) Michigan (33) Ohio (71) West Virginia (9)
Georgia (97) Minnesota (15) Oklahoma (13) Wisconsin (19)
Hawaii (1) Mississippi (13) Oregon (10) Wyoming (2)
Idaho (5) Missouri (35) Pennsylvania (74) Canada (6)

Of these 1,534 restaurants open on May 31, 2@B5 were located on owned sites and 979 wereddaan leased sites. The lease:
classified as follows:

Land-Only Leases (we own buildings and equipment) 707
Ground and Building Leases 79
Space/In-Line/Other Leases 19z
Total 97¢

Properties — General

In connection with the sale leaseback of our forRestaurant Support Center buildings, we purchasedral adjacent parcels of vac
land in Orange County, Florida, and relocated aeadyuarters to this site during the second quaftéiscal 2010. The site includes a
headquarters building, data center and parking.dBo& Restaurant Support Center campus at thidawation offers a more collaborative
unified environment. We became a landlord of a gblease with an unaffiliated third party on a eamf land adjacent to our Restaul
Support Center buildings and during fiscal 2015 tied party completed construction of a 1@2®m hotel. The hotel may be utilized
Darden as lodging for those attending trainingisessat our Restaurant Support Center.

Except in limited instances, our present restausées and other facilities are not subject to geges or encumbrances securing m
borrowed by us from outside sources. In our opinmur current buildings and equipment generallyiargood condition, suitable for th
purposes and adequate for our current needs. SeeNate 5 “Land, Buildings and Equipment, Net” axdte 14 “Leasestunder Notes i
Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2015 AhRe@ort to Shareholders, which is incorporateatimeby reference.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
See the discussion of legal proceedings contaimélde third, fourth and fifth paragraphs of Note"C®mmitments and Contingencies”

under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsiir2015 Annual Report to Shareholders, whichésiporated herein by reference.
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Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The principal United States market on which our own shares are traded is the New York Stock Exalambere our shares are tra
under the symbol DRI. As of June 30, 2015, thereewapproximately 37,176 registered holders of moof our common shares. 1
information concerning the dividends and high aow intraday sales prices for our common sharesttad the New York Stock Exchange
each full quarterly period during fiscal 2015 arfid 2 contained in Note 21 “Quarterly Data (Unauditachder Notes to Consolidated Finan
Statements in our 20¥nnual Report to Shareholders is incorporated hdvgireference. We have not sold any equity seesrituring the la
fiscal year that were not registered under the St@esiAct of 1933, as amended.

Since commencing our common share repurchase pnogreDecember 1995, we have repurchased a totaBaf0 million share
through May 31, 2015 under authorizations from Board of Directors to repurchase an aggregate @f4lgillion shares. No shares w
repurchased during the quarter ended May 31, 200tte most recent authority for our repurchase ogwas announced in a press rel
issued on December 20, 2010. There is no expiratébda for our program.

Total Number of Maximum Number of
Shares Purchased as Shares That
Total Number Average Part of Publicly May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid | Announced Plans orf  Purchased Under the
Period Purchased per Share Programs Plans or Programs (1)
February 23, 2015 through March 29, 2015 — — — 5,431,124
March 30, 2015 through April 26, 2015 — — — Fl424
April 27, 2015 through May 31, 2015 — — — 5,434
Total — — — 5,431,124

(1) Repurchases are subject to prevailing market pricay be made in open market or private transastiand may occur or be discontin
at any time. There can be no assurance that weepilirchase any additional shares.

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information for fiscal 2010 through 2015 con&l in the Five-Year Financial Summary in our 2@IHual Report to Sharehold
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The information set forth in the section entitleldhagemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord aResults ¢
Operations” in our 2015 Annual Report to Shareh@dgincorporated herein by reference.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The information set forth in the section entitle@uantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarlRisk” contained withi
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan@aindition and Results of Operations” in our 204Bnual Report to Shareholders
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Report of Management Responsibilities, Managemd&eport on Internal Control Over Financial RepaytiReport of Independe
Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Coh@ver Financial Reporting, Report of Independregistered
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Public Accounting Firm, Consolidated StatementsEafnings, Consolidated Statements of Compreherisiveme, Consolidated Balar
Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Changes in (8ilneks’ Equity, Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, ldotes to Consolidatt
Financial Statements in our 2015 Annual Reportttar&holders are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
There were no changes in or disagreements withuatants on accounting and financial disclosure iregudisclosure under this Item.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participationoaf management, including our Chief Executive €fiand our Chief Financ
Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of theglesind operation of our disclosure controls andgudares (as defined in Rule 1B&(e) unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchafgg)) as of May 31, 2015 the end of the period covered by this report.eBasn the
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chiafdncial Officer concluded that our disclosure colstand procedures were effective a
May 31, 2015 .

During the fiscal quarter ended May 31, 2Q1there was no change in our internal control direncial reporting (as defined in R
13a45(f) under the Exchange Act) that has materiatfgched, or is reasonably likely to materially affeour internal control over financ
reporting.

The annual report of our management on internatrabover financial reporting, and the audit repoftKkPMG LLP, our independe
registered public accounting firm, regarding oueinal control over financial reporting includedaar 2015Annual Report to Shareholde
are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Entry into Change in Control Agreement with Chief Fnancial Officer

On July 23, 2015, the Company and Jeffrey A. Dathis,Senior Vice President and Chief Financial €ffiof the Company, entel
into a Change in Control Agreement (the “CIC Agreei) in the standard form for eligible executives of fempany, including tt
Company’s named executive officers. Pursuant taQli& Agreement, if Mr. Davisemployment is terminated by the Company other foe
“cause” or by reason of Mr. Davis’ death or “didai, or by Mr. Davis for “good reason”, in eitharase within two years of ahange i
control” of the Company (each term as defined e@x@iC Agreement), he will receive:

» the accrued and unpaid annual base salary thrdwggtiate of termination, payable in a lump sum whoaithin 30 days after the d
of termination; and
e an aggregate of the following amounts, payable ilump sum in cash within 60 days after the datermination, subject to Mr. Davis’
execution and non-revocation of a release of cla@antscompliance with the restrictive covenants aimetd in the CIC Agreement:
o an amount equal to 1.5 times the sum of Mr. Daatisiual base salary and his target annual cashtineen effect for th
fiscal year of termination; and
o an amount equal to 18 times the monthly COBRArghdor the type of Companyrovided group health plan coverag:
effect for Mr. Davis on the date of terminationdéke monthly active employee charge for such ameer

In the event that any payment or benefit due toDévis would be subject to the excise tax undeti@ed999 of the Internal Rever
Code (the “Code™pr any similar tax imposed by state or local lae,Will bear all expense of, and be solely respdediir, any such exci:
tax. However, the Company will reduce the amouaigaple to Mr. Davis in connection with a “changeantrol” of the Company, pursuant
the CIC Agreement or otherwise, so as to not triglge excise tax under certain circumstances.

The foregoing description of the CIC Agreement doaispurport to be complete and is qualified ireitsirety by reference to the Fc
of Change in Control Agreement, a copy of whicfilesl as Exhibit 10(gg) hereto and incorporateddference herein.
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PART IlI

Item 10.DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information contained in the sections entittPdoposal 1 — Election of Directors,'Meetings of the Board of Directors and
Committees,” “Corporate Governance and Board Adshiaiion” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial OwnershippRrting Compliance’in out
definitive Proxy Statement for our 20Bsnual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated inebg reference. Information regarding exect
officers is contained in Part | above under thedivep“Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

All of our employees are subject to our Code ofiBess Conduct and Ethics. Appendix A to the Codwrides a special Code of Eth
with additional provisions that apply to our pripal executive officer, principal financial officerincipal accounting officer or controller, ¢
persons performing similar functions (the “Seniordncial Officers”).Appendix B to the Code provides a Code of Busiamsduct and Ethic
for members of our Board of Directors. These doaumiare posted on our internet website at www.daocden and are available in print free
charge to any shareholder who requests them. Welisilose any amendments to or waivers of theste€or directors, executive officers
Senior Financial Officers on our website.

We also have adopted a set of Corporate Governanddelines and charters for all of our Board coneeis: the Audit Committe
which was established in accordance with Sectia)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act, Compensation ComgsittNominating and Governai
Committee and Finance and Real Estate Committez Clinporate Governance Guidelines and committegerkaare available on our web:
at www.darden.com under the InvestoiGorporate Governance tab and in print free of ahaogany shareholder who requests them. W
requests for our Code of Business Conduct and §thiorporate Governance Guidelines and committagens should be addressed to Da
Restaurants, Inc., 1000 Darden Center Drive, OdaRtbrida 32837, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

ltem 11.EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained in the sections entitiBdector Compensation,” “Executive CompensatiohCompensation Discussion ¢
Analysis,” “Compensation Committee Report” and “Qanate Governance and Board Administrationbur definitive Proxy Statement for ¢
2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporétectin by reference.

Item 12.SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information contained in the sections entiti&tbck Ownership of Principal Shareholders,” “Std@twnership of Managemen#inc
“Equity Compensation Plan Information” in our defive Proxy Statement for our 20¥hnual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated i
by reference.

Item 13.CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information contained in the sections entitlRdlated Party Transactions,” “Meetings of the Rbaf Directors and Its Committees”
and “Corporate Governance and Board Administrationdur definitive Proxy Statement for our 20ABnual Meeting of Shareholders
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained in the section entitiédependent Registered Public Accounting Firm Faes Servicesin our definitive
Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Meeting of 8halders is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
Item 15.EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
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(a) 1. Financial Statements:
Report of Management Responsibilities.
Management’s Report on Internal Control overaRiial Reporting.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accagniiirm on Internal Control over Financial Repagtin
Report of Independent Registered Public Accowgniirm.
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for thafigears ended May 31, 2015, May 25, 2014 and MayQ13.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Indonthe fiscal years ended May 31, 2015, May 23,28nd May 26, 2013.
Consolidated Balance Sheets at May 31, 2015vEnyd25, 2014.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockisl&euity for the fiscal years ended May 31, 20Way 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for $mafiyears ended May 31, 2015, May 25, 2014 and 28a2013.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
2. Financial Statement Schedules:
Not applicable.

3. Exhibits:

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibitdrdare filed as part of this Form ¥0and incorporated herein by reference. Pursus
Item 601(b)(4)(iii)) of Regulation S-K, copies ofrtan instruments defining the rights of holdersceftain of our longerm debt are not file
and in lieu thereof, we agree to furnish copiesebkto the Securities and Exchange Commission upquest. The Exhibit Index specifice
identifies with an asterisk each management contracompensatory plan or arrangement requirecetéiléd as an exhibit to this Form K-
We will furnish copies of any exhibit listed on tBhibit Index upon request upon the payment aéasonable fee to cover our expensi
furnishing such exhibits.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regithas duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date:July 24, 2015 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.

By: /s/ Eugene |. Lee, Jr.
Eugene I. Lee, Jr., President and Chief Execultiffic&

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on bel
of the Registrant and in the capacities and orlétes indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl Eugene I. Lee, Jr. Director, President and Chief Executive OfficeniiBipal July 24, 2015
Eugene . Lee, Jr. executive officer)

/s/ C. Bradford Richmond Senior Vice President, Finance Transition July 24, 2015
C. Bradford Richmond (Principal financial and accounting officer)

/sl Betsy S. Atkins* Director

Betsy S. Atkins

/sl Margaret Shan Atkins* Director
Margaret Shan Atkins

/sl Jean M. Birch* Director
Jean M. Birch
/s/ Bradley D. Blum* Director

Bradley D. Blum

/sl Peter A. Feld* Director
Peter A. Feld
/sl James P. Fogarty* Director

James P. Fogarty

/sl Cynthia T. Jamison* Director
Cynthia T. Jamison

/s/ William H. Lenehan* Director
William H. Lenehan

/sl Lionel L. Nowell 111* Director
Lionel L. Nowell Il

/s/ William S. Simon* Director
William S. Simon

Isl Jeffrey C. Smith* Chairman of the Board and Director
Jeffrey C. Smith




/sl Charles M. Sonsteby*

Charles M. Sonsteby

/sl Alan N. Stillman*

Alan N. Stillman

Director

Director
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" By: /s! Anthony G. Morrow

Anthony G. Morrow, Attorney-In-Fact
July 24, 2015
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Exhibit
Number

2(a)

3(a)

3(b)

3(c)

3(d)

4(a)

4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

4(e)

4(f)

4(9)

4(h)

EXHIBIT INDEX

Title

Asset and Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of MayY014, by and between Darden Restaurants,aimd. RL
Acquisition LLC (incorporated herein by referenceBxhibit 2.1 to our Current Report on FornK8A filed May 23,
2014).

Articles of Incorporation as amended on May 26,2(fcorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(a) to Aunual Report o
Form 10-K (Commission File No. 000-19924) for tiezél year ended May 29, 2005 filed July 29, 2005).

Form of Certificate of Amendment (incorporated bference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report om#8-K filed
November 13, 2014).

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorpacat, as amended on June 23, 2015 (incorporatedcefgyence ti
Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filédne 23, 2015).

Bylaws as amended effective November 11, 2014 (puwated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Curfi@aport on Forr
8-K filed November 13, 2014).

Rights Agreement dated as of May 16, 2005, by aetsvéen Darden Restaurants, Inc. and Wachovia B€atipnal
Association, as Rights Agent (incorporated by mfiee to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Forid flled May 16,
2005).

Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of Juné@6,2by and between Darden Restaurants, Inc., WéalBank,
National Association and Wells Fargo Bank, Natiohs$ociation, as successor Rights Agent (incorpdray reference
Exhibit 4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K fileah& 5, 2006).

Amendment No. 2 to the Rights Agreement, dated &owember 11, 2014, between Darden Restaurartsahd Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as Rights Agertdrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ourr€nt Report on
Form 8-K filed November 13, 2014).

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2015, bettieeCompany and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Riggsnt
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our€nt Report on Form 8-K filed June 23, 2015).

Indenture dated as of January 1, 1996, betweenebdReéstaurants, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Natiésabciation (a
successor to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, Natiorsgdogiation, formerly known as Norwest Bank Minnasdationa
Association) (incorporated by reference to Exhiblt to our Registration Statement on ForrB 8&ommission File N¢
333-146582) filed October 9, 2007).

Officers’ Certificate and Authentication Order, dated Aug8st2005, for the 6.000% Senior Notes due 2035 (@
includes the form of Note) issued pursuant to tidehture dated as of January 1, 1996, between B#&tdstaurants, In
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (as essar to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Asgims, formerly
known as Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Assooigti as Trustee (incorporated by reference to HixHild to oul
Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 11, 2005).

Officers’ Certificate and Authentication Order, dated Octob@y 2007, for the 6.200% Senior Notes due 2017cfw
includes the form of Note) issued pursuant to tidehture dated as of January 1, 1996, between B#&tdstaurants, In
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (as essar to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Asgims, formerly
known as Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Assooigti as Trustee (incorporated by reference to HixHil2 to oul
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 16, 2007).

Officers’ Certificate and Authentication Order, dated Octob@r 2007, for the 6.800% Senior Notes due 2037cfw
includes the form of Note) issued pursuant to tidehture dated as of January 1, 1996, between Ba&tdstaurants, In
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (as essar to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Asgims, formerly
known as Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Assooigti as Trustee (incorporated by reference to HixHil3 to oul



4(i)

4())

Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 16, 2007).

Officers’ Certificate and Authentication Order, e@tOctober 5, 2011, for the 4.50% Senior Notesah2d

(which includes the form of Note) issued pursuamttiie Indenture dated as of January 1, 1996, betvizarder
Restaurants, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank. Nationao&gtion (as successor to Wells Fargo Bank Mintagddationa
Association, formerly known as Norwest Bank MinrteasdNational Association), as Trustee (incorpordigdeference t
Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K fil@dtober 11, 2011).

Officers’ Certificate and Authentication Order, dated Octobhe012, for the 3.350% Senior Notes due 2022 dia
includes the form of Note) issued pursuant to titehture dated as of January 1, 1996, between D&dstaurants, In
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (as essor to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Asgims, formerly
known as Norwest Bank Minnesota, National Assooigti as Trustee (incorporated by reference to HixHild to oul
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 4, 2012).
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Note Purchase Agreement dated June 18, 2012, het@esden Restaurants, Inc. and the purchasers nameeéir
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.dtio Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 20, 2012

Darden Restaurants, Inc. Stock Option and Ldagn Incentive Plan of 1995, as amended March @93 Zincorporate
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to our Qudyt&eport on Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0D#924) for the fisce
guarter ended February 23, 2003).

Darden Restaurants, Inc. FlexComp Plan, as amefinieatporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@¢apur Quarterl
Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 000-19924the quarter ended November 23, 2008).

Darden Restaurants, Inc. Stock Plan for Directassamended (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit)10 our Quarter!
Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 000-19924}he fiscal quarter ended November 23, 2008).

Darden Restaurants, Inc. Management and Profesdimrentive Plan, as amended (incorporated hergineference t
Exhibit 10(e) to our Annual Report on Form 10-K (@mission File No. 00A:9924) for the fiscal year ended May
2009, filed July 24, 2009).

Amended and Restated Darden Restaurants, Inc. iBefefist Agreement dated as of March 23, 201lwéeh Darde
Restaurants, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Nationao&gtion (as successor to Wells Fargo Bank Mintagddationa
Association, formerly known as Norwest Bank MinrtesdNational Association) (incorporated herein kference ti
Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (@vission File No. 000:9924) for the quarter ended February
2011).

Form of Amended and Restated Management Contiligtgement between Darden Restaurants, Inc. anéaautive
officers (incorporated herein by reference to EitHiB(i) to our Annual Report on Form 10-K (ComnidgsFile No. 000-
19924) for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009dfilaly 24, 2009).

Darden Restaurants, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Rlamamended (incorporated herein by reference tibEXLO to ou
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 20, 2013

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2011, gnimarden Restaurants, Inc., certain lenders pheseto and Bank ¢
America, N.A., as administrative agent (incorpadaterein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our CuriRaport on Form 8-
K filed October 3, 2011).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as abker 24, 2013, among Darden Restaurants, Indaindender:
party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as adntiatsve agent (incorporated herein by referencExbibit 10.1 to ou
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 30, 2013).

Form of NonQualified Stock Option Award Agreement under thed2m Restaurants, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Pls
amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exfhijo) to our Annual Report on Form K0¢Commission File Nc
000-19924) for the fiscal year ended May 31, 26i0&] July 24, 2009).

Form of fiscal 2010 Performance Stock Units Awamgré@ement under the Darden Restaurants, Inc. 2@k $tcentive
Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by referengghibit 10(p) to our Annual Report on Form KQCommission File
No. 000-19924) for the fiscal year ended May 31020iled July 24, 2009).

Form of fiscal 2014 Performance Stock Units Awagré@ement under the Darden Restaurants, Inc. 2@k $tcentive
Plan, as amended (United States) (incorporatedrhbyereference to Exhibit 10(n) to our Annual Repan Form 10K
(Commission File No. 000-19924) for the fiscal yeaded May 26, 2013, filed July 19, 2013).

Form of Amendment to Exhibit A to the form of fi$@D09 Performance Stock Unit Award Agreements urioe Darde!
Restaurants, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, asdetk (incorporated herein by reference to Exhib{t)lto our Annua
Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 000-199%4the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009, filed J2dy 2009).

Employment Agreement dated April 28, 2003 betweekXRR Hospitality International, Inc. and Eugene led, Jr
(incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 18f2the RARE Hospitality International, Inc. QuatyeReport or



*10(0)

*10(p)

Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 000-19924) for ttsedl quarter ended June 29, 2003).

First Amendment of Employment Agreement dated Cat@y, 2004 between RARE Hospitality Internationiat. anc
Eugene |. Lee, Jr. (incorporated herein by referefilom Exhibit 10.2 of the RARE Hospitality Intetiwnal, Inc.
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File Bi@0-19924) for the fiscal quarter ended Septembeg2@04).

Second Amendment of Employment Agreement, datedli@ct27, 2005 between RARE Hospitality Internatipiac.
and Eugene |. Lee, Jr. (incorporated herein byreefee from Exhibit 10.2 of the RARE Hospitality énbational, Inc
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File Bi@0-19924) for the fiscal quarter ended Septembe2@05).
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Third Amendment of Employment Agreement, dated Bet®7, 2006 between RARE Hospitality Internatiomat. anc
Eugene |. Lee, Jr. (incorporated herein by referefiom Exhibit 10.2 of the RARE Hospitality Intetiwnal, Inc.
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File Bi@0-19924) for the fiscal quarter ended Octob&00g).

Fourth Amendment of Employment Agreement, datedeldier 15, 2006 between RARE Hospitality Internatipinc.
and Eugene I. Lee, Jr. (incorporated herein byreafee from Exhibit 10(24) of the RARE Hospitalitytérnational, Inc
Annual Report filed on Form 10-K (Commission File.ND00-19924) for fiscal year ended December 30620

Letter Agreement, dated August 16, 2007, betweemngs Eugene I. Lee, Jr. (incorporated herein bgresfce fron
Exhibit (e)(22) of the RARE Hospitality Internatialn Inc. Schedule 14D-9 (Commission File No. A®@®24) filec
August 31, 2007).

RARE Hospitality International, Inc. Amended andsiged 2002 Long-erm Incentive Plan, as amended (incorpor
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(aa) to our AnrRaport on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0D8924) for the fisce
year ended May 31, 2009, filed July 24, 2009).

Form of NonQualified Stock Option Award Agreement under the REAHospitality International, Inc. Amended ¢
Restated 2002 Longerm Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated mdrgireference to Exhibit 10(bb) to our Ann
Report on Form 10-K (Commission File No. 000-199 the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009, filed J2dy 2009).

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of August 22, 20&®rg Darden Restaurants, Inc. and certain lendatgep theret
and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative ag@mtorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 9®to Current Repo
on Form 8-K filed August 28, 2012).

Agreement, dated November 22, 2013, between DaRfestaurants, Inc. and Andrew H. Madsen (incorpdratg
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current ReporfFonm 8-K filed November 27, 2013).

Letter Agreement, dated December 18, 2013, betieeden Restaurants, Inc. and C. Bradford Richmamzbporatet
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Reporf~orm 8-K filed December 24, 2013).

Agreement, dated May 23, 2014, between Darden Restss, Inc. and David T. Pickens (incorporatedrdfgrence ti
Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-Kdilsay 30, 2014).

Agreement, dated August 27, 2014, between DardstaRents, Inc. and Clarence Otis, Jr. (incorpdratereference t
Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-Kdilaugust 28, 2014).

Amendment to Darden Restaurants, Inc. FlexComp, Rlaied September 10, 2014 (incorporated by referém Exhibi
10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed Sepdtem15, 2014).

Amended and Restated Master Confirmation, by Gold®achs & Co. to Darden Restaurants, Inc., datpteBer 23
2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.btio Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission Nte 00013666)
for the quarter ended August 24, 2014).

Amended and Restated Master Confirmation, by Wedsgo Bank, National Association to Darden Restasralnc.
dated September 23, 2014 (incorporated by referenBahibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on FormQQCommissiot
File No. 000-13666) for the quarter ended AugustZd4).

Amended and Restated Supplemental Confirmation,Gojdman Sachs & Co. to Darden Restaurants, Inded
September 23, 2014 (incorporated by reference tabix10.3 to our Quarterly Report on Form Q0¢Commission Fili
No. 000-13666 for the quarter ended August 24, 2014

Amended and Restated Supplemental ConfirmationMejls Fargo Bank, National Association to Darderst&erants
Inc., dated September 23, 2014 (incorporated bgreete to Exhibit 10. 4 to our Quarterly Report Feorm 10Q
(Commission File No. 000-13666) for the quarterexhdugust 24, 2014).

Letter Agreement dated October 14, 2014 betweerdddaRestaurants, Inc. and Eugene |. Lee, Jr. (docated b
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Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated Oatdl¥ 2014, between Darden Restaurants, Inc. ageéreul. Lee, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 4 to Quiarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File Bi@0-13666) for
the quarter ended November 23, 2014).

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated Oatdl® 2014, between Darden Restaurants, Inc. agdrigul. Lee, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 5 to Quiarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission File Bi@0-13666) for
the quarter ended November 23, 2014).

Agreement, dated November 18, 2014, between DdRéstaurants, Inc. and C. Bradford Richmond (incaisal by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current ReporFonm 8-K filed November 19, 2014).
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Agreement, dated November 25, 2014, between DaR¥staurants, Inc. and C. Bradford Richmond (incaisal by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current ReporfFonm 8-K filed December 1, 2014).

Form of Performance Stock Units Award Agreementeaurttie Darden Restaurants, Inc. 2002 Stock Inceriian, a
amended.

Form of Performance Stock Units Award Agreementeaurttie Darden Restaurants, Inc. 2002 Stock Inceriian, a
amended.

Form of annual Nommployee Director Restricted Stock Units Award Aggnent under the Darden Restaurants, Inc.
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended.

Form of initial Nonemployee Director Restricted Stock Units Award Agnent under the Darden Restaurants, Inc.
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended.

Form of quarterly Noremployee Director Restricted Stock Units Award Agment under the Darden Restaurants,
2002 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended.

Form of annual Non-employee Director Stock Optiomadd Agreement under the Darden Restaurants, 082 3tock
Incentive Plan, as amended.

Form of initial Non-employee Director Stock Optiémward Agreement under the Darden Restaurants 2022 Stock
Incentive Plan, as amended.

Form of Change in Control Agreement.

Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement urtde Darden Restaurants, Inc. 2002 Stock Incefftian, as
amended.
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Portions of 2015 Annual Report to Shareholders.
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Powers of Attorney.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawnt $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawnt $ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Schema Document

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document



101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

* ltems marked with an asterisk are managementaocistor compensatory plans or arrangements rebtarbe filed as an exhibit pursuan
Item 15 of Form 10-K and Item 601(b)(10)(iii)(A) Bfegulation S-K.
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EXHIBIT 10(kk)

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

FY PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS AWARD AGREEMENT
(United States)

This Performance Stock Units Award Agreement isvieeh Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Florida corpordtie
“Company” or “Corporation”), and you, a person fietl by the Company, and identified in the Compamngcords, ¢
the recipient of an Award of Performance Stock Bmuring the Company’fiscal year . This Agreemen
effective as of the date of grant communicatedoio gnd set forth in the Company’s records (the hGEate”).

The Company wishes to award to you PerformancekStbuts representing the opportunity to earn a
payment in lieu of the ComparsyCommon Stock, subject to the terms and conditsendorth in this Agreement,
order to carry out the purpose of the Company’'228@ck Incentive Plan (the “Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby aclaunel
the Company and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Award of Performance Stock Units.

The Company hereby grants to you, effective ab®fdrant Date, an Award of Performance Stock Uaitsha
number of Units communicated to you and set fartthe Company’s records (the “Performance StockdJnion the
terms and conditions set forth in such communicatibis Agreement and the Plan.

2. Rights with Respect to the Performance Stock Units.

The Performance Stock Units granted hereunder tambshall not give you any of the rights and ifgges o
a shareholder of Common Stock. Your rights witlpees to the Performance Stock Units shall remaifefiable at a
times prior to the date or dates on which suchtsigpecome vested, and the restrictions with redpeitte Performan:
Stock Units lapse, in accordance with Section 8¢ 8 hereof. Your right to receive cash payment$ wespect to tf
Performance Stock Units is more particularly ddssdiin Section 8 hereof.

3. Vesting.

(&) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresimine Performance Stock Units shall vest,
the restrictions with respect to the PerformanaxlStnits shall lapse, on the date and in the amsemfortt
in this Agreement if you remain continuously em@dyby the Company or an Affiliate of the Companyili
the date you become vested in accordance wittethestand conditions of this Agreement.

(b) One hundred percent (100%) of the total numberesfdPmance Stock Units shall be targetec
vesting on the vesting date communicated to yousatdorth in the Company’s records (the “Vestiragd).




(c) The number of Performance Stock Units in which gotually vest, if any, following the end of
three fiscal years preceding the Vesting Date ‘{#eeformance Period"$hall be determined by multiplying f
Performance Stock Units by the Vesting Percentegleulated as set forth in Exhibit A to this Agrea) an:
may range from zero to one hundred fifty perce6b) of the Performance Stock Units.

(d) The calculations under this Section 3 shall be nader before the Vesting Date and any ve:
resulting from such calculations shall be effectgeof the Vesting Date. Any Performance Stock dJiat d
not vest on the Vesting Date pursuant to the tesmSection 3 or 5 shall be immediately and irre\ay
forfeited, including the right to receive cash payts pursuant to Section 8 hereof, as of the ipfimte.

(e) The Committee administering the Plan shall have dbthority to make any determinati
regarding questions arising from the applicatiothef provisions of this Section 3, which determirashall b
final, conclusive and binding on you and the Conypan

4. Change of Control.

For the purpose of this Agreement, a “Change oft@#rshall mean:

(&  Any individual, entity or group (within the meaningf Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of t
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&nge Act”)) (a “Personecomes the beneficial owi
(within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated urttier Exchange Act) of 20% or more of either (i) then-
outstanding shares of common stock of the Corpmrgthe “Outstanding Corporation Common Stoabe)ii)
the combined voting power of the thentstanding voting securities of the Corporatioriitieal to vote
generally in the election of directors (the “Outsteng Corporation Voting Securities”); providedhowever,
that, for purposes of this Section 4(a), the follyvacquisitions shall not constitute a Change oittbl: (A)
any acquisition directly from the Corporation, (&)y acquisition by the Corporation, (C) any acdiaisi by
any employee benefit plan (or related trust) spmtsmr maintained by the Corporation or any com
controlled by, controlling or under common contnoth the Corporation (an “Affiliated Companydr (D) any
acquisition pursuant to a transaction that compligis Sections 4(c)(i), 4(c)(ii) and 4(c)(iii);

(b) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constithie Board of Directors of the Corporation |
“Incumbent Board”)cease for any reason to constitute at least a ityajoff the Board of Directors of tl
Corporation (the “Board”); providedhowever, that any individual becoming a director subsetjoerthe dat
hereof whose election, or nomination for electigrtiie Corporatiors stockholders, was approved by a vo
at least a majority of the directors then compgsihe Incumbent Board shall be considered as thcugl
individual was a member of the Incumbent Board, éxdluding, for this purpose, any such individudlose
initial assumption of office occurs as a resultaof actual or threatened election contest with sfmethe
election or removal of directors or




other actual or threatened solicitation of proxiesonsents by or on behalf of a Person other tia®Board;

(c) Consummation of a reorganization, merger, statusbigre exchange or consolidation or sir
transaction involving the Corporation or any ofstgsidiaries, a sale or other disposition of aubstantiall
all of the assets of the Corporation, or the actjoisof assets or securities of another entitythiy Corporatio
or any of its subsidiaries (each, a “Business Coatimn”), in each case unless, following such Busi
Combination, (i) all or substantially all of thedimiduals and entities that were the beneficial ewnof th:
Outstanding Corporation Common Stock and the Oudatg Corporation Voting Securities immediatelyog
to such Business Combination beneficially own, alyeor indirectly, more than 50% of the thentstandin
shares of common stock (or, for a nmrporate entity, equivalent securities) and thalwoed voting power
the then-outstanding voting securities entitledvtte generally in the election of directors (orr # non-
corporate entity, equivalent governing body), as ¢hse may be, of the entity resulting from suckifs
Combination (including, without limitation, an efytithat, as a result of such transaction, ownsQbmgporatiol
or all or substantially all of the Corporatisnassets either directly or through one or moresididries) i
substantially the same proportions as their owngrshmediately prior to such Business Combinatidrihe
Outstanding Corporation Common Stock and the Oudgtg Corporation Voting Securities, as the casg
be, (ii) no Person (excluding any entity resultirgm such Business Combination or any employee fiigrlan
(or related trust) of the Corporation or such gmitsulting from such Business Combination) bemaficowns
directly or indirectly, 20% or more of, respectiyeihe then-outstanding shares of common stockido@l non-
corporate entity, equivalent securities) of thatgmesulting from such Business Combination or ¢tbenbine:
voting power of the theoutstanding voting securities of such entity, exdepthe extent that such owners
existed prior to the Business Combination, andl diiileast a majority of the members of the bodrdirector:
(or, for a noneorporate entity, equivalent governing body) of thetity resulting from such Busine
Combination were members of the Incumbent Boarthetime of the execution of the initial agreemenbi
the action of the Board providing for such Busin€ssnbination; or

(d) Approval by the stockholders of the Corporationaoéomplete liquidation or dissolution of
Corporation.

(e) With respect to Section 5 hereof, the followingidibns shall apply:

(1) _Cause Your employment may be terminated for Causeaf@mmmittee administering t
Plan, after you shall have been afforded a reasengfportunity to appear in person together
counsel before the Committee and to present suictergse as you deem appropriate, determine:
Cause exists. For purposes of this Agreement, “€auseans (i) an act or acts of fraud
misappropriation on your part which result in og artended to result in your personal




enrichment at the expense of the Corporation anighnvbonstitute a criminal offense under Stat
Federal laws or (ii) conviction of a felony.

(2) _Good ReasonFor purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason’nsea

a. without your express written consent (1) #ssignment to you of any dut
inconsistent in any substantial respect with yaasifon, authority or responsibilities as in ef
during the 90day period immediately preceding the date of a @hasf Control or (2) any oth
substantial adverse change in such position (imadutitles), authority or responsibilities; or

b. any failure by the Corporation to furnish ywith base salary, target annual bc
opportunity, longterm incentive opportunity or aggregate employasehts at a level equal to
exceeding those received by you from the Corpanatioring the 9@ay period preceding t
date of a Change of Control, other than (1) ankbagantial and inadvertent failure remediec
the Corporation promptly after receipt of noticeerdbof given by you or (2) with respect
aggregate employee benefits only, any such faresalting from an across-thmard reduction i
employee benefits applicable to all similarly stachemployees of the Corporation generally; or

c. the Corporatios’ requiring you to be based or to perform servateany office ¢
location more than 30 miles from the office or lb@a at which you were based as
immediately prior to the date of a Change of Cdnercept for travel reasonably required in
performance of your responsibilities.

For purposes of this Section 4(e)(2), any detertiunaof “Good Reason’shall be made by tl
Committee administering the Plan and shall be emiat. Your mental or physical incapacity followitige
occurrence of an event described above in clausesh(ough (c) shall not affect your ability to rtenate
employment for Good Reason and your death followtgrgnination for Good Reason shall not affect
estate’s entitlement to payments provided hereumplen a termination of employment for Good Reason.

5. Forfeiture; Change of Control; Retirement.

(@) If you cease to be employed by the Company or ditiaké of the Company prior to the vesting
forfeiture of the Performance Stock Units pursuarfsection 3 or 4 hereof, your rights to all of fherformanc
Stock Units shall be immediately and irrevocablyfdied, including the right to receive cash payts
pursuant to Section 8 hereof, except that:




(i) If, within two years after the date of a ChangeCaintrol, the Company terminates y
employment for any reason other than for Causedéined in Section 4(e)(1) above), death or Disiyl
(as defined in Section 5(a)(vi) below) or you tarate employment for Good Reason, you shall be
immediately and unconditionally vested in all ottPerformance Stock Units. The restrictions
respect to such vested Performance Stock Unit$lapak. If a Change of Control occurs during tingt
fiscal year of the Performance Period, the VesRegcentage shall be one hundred percent (100%
Change of Control occurs during the second fiscedryof the Performance Period, the Ves
Percentage shall be the greater of one hundrecmte(@00%) or the amount determined pursua
Section 3(c), provided, however, that the PSU Rjaiind PSU Rating Average will only contain |
Ratings from the first fiscal year of the PerforroarPeriod. If a Change of Control occurs during
third fiscal year of the Performance Period, thestirgy Percentage shall be the greater of one hd
percent (100%) or the amount determined pursuar8etction 3(c), provided, however, that the |
Rating and PSU Rating Average will only contain MRBtings from the first and second fiscal yea
the Performance Period. If you are a person otlserdescribed in this Section 5(a)(i) but you ase
described in Section 5(a)(ii), 5(a)(iii) or 5(a)(vihen you shall be entitled to vested Performadice}
Units as described in this Section 5(a)(i) in ledithe amounts otherwise described in Section ibya)(
(a)(ii) or 5(a)(vi). If you are otherwise describen Section 5(a)(ii), 5(a)(iii) or 5(a)(vi) and y
voluntarily separate from service for a reason iothen Good Reason within two years after the das
Change of Control, then you shall be entitled tstee¢ Performance Stock Units as described in Sebtic
(a)(ii), 5(a)(iit) or 5(a)(vi), as applicable, withe Vested Percentage described under this Seg@)().

(i)  Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(a)(i)va@haf you retire on or after age 65 w
five years of service with the Company or an Adfié of the Company (pursuant to the methos
crediting service under the Darden Savings PldNp¢mal Retirement”)prior to the vesting or forfeitu
of the Performance Stock Units pursuant to Se@idmereof, you shall become immediately
unconditionally vested in all of the Performancec&tUnits. The restrictions with respect to suchtee
Performance Stock Units shall lapse, and the Vg@fercentage shall be the amount determined pu
to Section 3(c).

(i)  Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(a)(i)v&hdf you retire on or after age 55 w
ten years of service with the Company or an Afiiaf the Company (pursuant to the methoc
crediting service under the Darden Savings Plaaaily Retirement”prior to the vesting or forfeiture
the Performance Stock Units pursuant to SectioreBedf, you shall become immediately
unconditionally vested in a pro rata portion of fherformance Stock Units based on your peric
employment between the Grant Date and the dat@wf Farly Retirement hereunder. The restrict
with respect to such vested Performance




Stock Units shall lapse, and the Vesting Percensagé be the amount determined pursuant to Se8tio

(©).

(iv)  Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(a)(i)vahaf your age and service with
Company or an Affiliate of the Company (pursuantie method for crediting service under the Da
Savings Plan) is equal to or greater than 70 ond#te your employment is involuntarily termine
without Cause (“Involuntary Terminationfrior to the vesting or forfeiture of the PerformanStoc
Units pursuant to Section 3 hereof, you shall bexammediately and unconditionally vested in a
rata portion of the Performance Stock Units basegiaur period of employment between the Grant
and the date of your Involuntary Termination hed®m The restrictions with respect to such ve
Performance Stock Units shall lapse, and the Vg®igercentage shall be the amount determined pu
to Section 3(c).

(v) If you die prior to the vesting or forfeiture ofelPerformance Stock Units pursuar
Section 3 or 4 hereof, you shall become immediaaly unconditionally vested in all of the Performre
Stock Units. The restrictions with respect to sé@rformance Stock Units shall lapse and the Ve
Percentage shall be one hundred percent (100%).

(vi) Except as otherwise provided in Section 5(a)(i)va@hda you become Disabled (as defi
below) prior to the vesting or forfeiture of therfdemance Stock Units pursuant to Section 3 hengmi
shall become immediately and unconditionally vesteé pro rata portion of the Performance S
Units based on your period of employment between Gnant Date and the date of your Disak
hereunder. The restrictions with respect to suctteek Performance Stock Units shall lapse, an
Vesting Percentage shall be the amount determingdupnt to Section 3(c). For purposes of
Agreement, “Disabled” or “Disabilitymeans you have a disability due to illness or injuhich is
expected to be permanent in nature and which pteyeu from performing the material duties requ
by your regular occupation, all as determined ley@ommittee administering the Plan.

(b) If you are an executive officer of the Company &hdg reports with the Securities and Excha
Commission pursuant to Section 16 of the Securii}ashange Act of 1934, as amended, then this Redoct
Stock Units Award has been awarded subject to theléh Restaurants, Inc. Management and Profes
Incentive Plan (the “MIP”)and this Performance Stock Units Award shall becebed, forfeited and return
to the Company unless all of the requirements eeh fin the MIP for the year to which the granttbfs
Performance Stock Units Award relates are satisfied

6. Restriction on Transfer.

None of the Performance Stock Units may be soldjgasd, transferred, pledged, attached or othe
encumbered, and no attempt to transfer the Perfozen&tock Units, whether voluntary




or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwisbah vest the transferee with any interest or righdr with respect |
the Performance Stock Units.

7. Financial Restatements.

This Section 7 only applies to you if at any tinmuywere or are designated as an offleeel employee in tt
Company payroll system with the Peoplesoft idestifilOFC” or its equivalent. Notwithstanding the provisiort
Sections 3, 4, 5 and 8 of this Agreement, if (& @ompany is required to restate its financialest&ints due to frau
and (b) the Committee administering the Plan datexmthat you have knowingly participated in sucud, then th
Committee may, in its sole and absolute discretmny time within two years following such restaent, require yc
to, and you shall immediately upon notice of sudm@ittee determination, return to the Company ash@aymen
received by you or your personal representativeeutils Agreement during the period commencing years befor
the beginning of the restated financial period anding on the date of such Committee determinatioaddition, all o
you rights to Performance Stock Units that arevested on the date that the Committee makes suehaation sha
be immediately and irrevocably forfeited. Notwitlistling anything to the contrary in this Sectionthg Committe
shall have the authority and discretion to maked@etgrmination regarding the specific implementatbthis Section
with respect to you.

8. Payment of Performance Stock Units.

(@) Except as described in Section 5(a)(v) (when théoReance Stock Units vest as a result of
death) or in Section 8(c) below, the Company smalke a cash payment to you promptly after the Wgdbiate
in an amount equal to the Fair Market Value of share of Common Stock for each vested Performatomk
Unit (as adjusted by the Vested Percentage), sutgjeghe payment of applicable withholding taxesspiant t
Section 10 hereof. The Company will pay the Fairléa Value of any fractional share of Common S
relating to any vested Performance Stock Unithmndvent of your death after your retirement anteation o
employment and before payment, the amount otherpas@able under this Section 8(a) shall be paidoux
beneficiary or, if none, your estate as soon astisable after your death.

(b) If the Performance Stock Units vest as a resuljanfr death, your beneficiary or, if none, y
estate shall be paid as soon as practicable abi@r geath the amount described in Section 8(a) ebly
transfer by will or the applicable laws of descandl distribution of any Performance Stock Unitsakhiest b
reason of your death shall be effective to bind@oenpany unless the Committee administering tha Bttel
have been furnished with written notice of sucmgfar and a copy of the will or such other evideaseh:
Committee may deem necessary to establish theityabithe transfer.

(c) Inthe event of a Change in Control, the followpayment provisions shall apply:




() Code Section 409A Change in Contrdf you are a person described in Section 5(a){t
the Change in Control is a transaction describe@ade Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(v) and the regulat
and other guidance thereunder (i.e., a “Code Secet@®A Change in Control”)pr you are a pers:
described in Sections 5(a)(ii), (iii), or (vi) aydu separate from service (as determined in acook
with Code Section 409A and the regulations andragluédance thereunder) within two years of a (
Section 409A Change in Control, the Company shakema cash payment to you as soon as pract
following your separation from service the amoymedfied in Section 8(a) above; provided, howe
that any distribution to any “specified employeas’ determined in accordance with procedures ad
by the Company that reflect the requirements of eC&&ction 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) (and any applice
guidance thereunder), shall be made as soon asicatde after the first day of the seventh mu
following such separation from service (or, if galthe date of the specified employee’s death).

(i)  Non-Code Section 409A Change in Contrdfl you are a person described in Section 5|
and the Change in Control is not a Code SectiorAd0Bange in Control, the Company shall ma
cash payment to you of the amount specified ini®e&(a) above promptly after the Vesting Datethie
event of your death after your separation fromiserand before payment, the amount otherwise pe
under this Section 8(c) shall be paid to your bierefy or, if none, estate as soon as practicafiéy
your death.

(d) On the date amounts under this Section 8 are pajbt (or your beneficiary or, if none, y
estate in the event of your death after havingegest Performance Stock Units), the Company shedl enaki
a cash payment to you equal to the amount of cagtiedds that the Company paid per share of Con
Stock to holders generally during tRerformance Period, multiplied by (i) the numbePefrformance Stor
Units and (ii) the Vesting Percentage, withoutriest, and less any tax withholding amount appleadblsuc
payment. To the extent that the Performance StauksUWelating to the Performance Period are fagteprio
to vesting, such cash payment shall also be fedeilf the Performance Stock Units vest as a redujoul
death, the Company shall make a cash payment tobgmeficiary or, if none, your estate equivalenthie cas
dividends that the Company paid per share of Com8took to holders generally from the Grant Dat¢hg
date of your death, multiplied by the number off@@nance Stock Units.

9. Adjustments.

In the event that the Committee administering the Bhall determine that any dividend or otherritigtion
(whether in the form of cash, shares of CommonIiStother securities or other property), recapitdlan, stock spli
reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, codabbn, split-up, spireff, combination, repurchase or exchang
shares or other securities of the Company, issuahearrants or other rights to purchase sharesttwgr securities «
the Company or other similar corporate transactioevent affects the Common Stock such that ansadgnt of th
Performance Stock Units is determined by the Cotemiadministering the Plan to be appropriate




in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of benefits or potential benefits intended to be meadslable under th
Agreement, then the Committee shall, in such maagsetr may deem equitable, in its sole discretamhust any or all
the number and type of shares subject to the Peaioce Stock Units.

10. Taxes.

(&) You acknowledge that you will consult with your genal tax advisor regarding the income
consequences of the grant of the Performance Sdodk, the receipt of cash payments pursuant tai@eé
hereof, the vesting of the Performance Stock Usnis the receipt of cash upon the vesting of théoReanct
Stock Units, and any other matters related toAlgieement. In order to comply with all applicabéeléral, stat
local or foreign income tax laws or regulationss thompany may take such action as it deems apptepx
ensure that all applicable federal, state, localoogign payroll, withholding, income or other taxavhich ar
your sole and absolute responsibility, are withtwldollected from you.

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sutds as may be adopted by the Comir
administering the Plan, you may elect to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations arisingiin the
vesting of the Performance Stock Units and dbeesponding receipt of cash by (i) deliveringhcéacluding
check, draft, money order or wire transfer madeap#gy to the order of the Company), (ii) deliveritogthe
Company shares of Common Stock having a Fair Markkie equal to the amount of such taxes, ortayinc
the Company withhold a portion of the cash paymaherwise to be delivered pursuant to Section.
election must be made on or before the date tleaartmount of tax to be withheld is determined.

11. Restrictive Covenants.

(@) _NonbDisclosure.

(i) During the course of your employment, befaed after the execution of t
Agreement, and as consideration for the restrictiseenants entered into by you herein, you
received and will continue to receive some or &lth@ Companys various Trade Secrets (as def
under applicable law) and confidential or propmgtaformation, which includes the following whet
in physical or electronic form: (1) data and corafdns of data related to Business Opportun
(2) computer software, hardware, network and irgetechnology utilized, modified or enhanced by
Company or by employee in furtherance of employehities with the Company; (3) compilation:
data concerning Company products, services, cusgona@d end users including but not limite
compilations concerning projected sales, new ptdjeeelines, inventory reports, sales, and cost
expense reports; (4) compilations of informatiorowtbthe Compang employees and indepenc
contracting consultants; (5) the Companfihancial information, including, without limiian, amount
charged to customers and amounts charged to thep&uomby its vendors, suppliers, and ser
providers; (6) proposals




submitted to the Comparsg/customers, potential customers, wholesalergjldigdrs, vendors, supplie
and service providers; (7) the Companyarketing strategies and compilations of marketiata; (8
compilations of data or information concerning, ar@mmunications and agreements with, ven
suppliers and licensors to the Company and otherces of technology, products, services
components used in the Company’s business; (¢tmpanys research and development records
data; and, (10) any summary, extract or analysisuch information together with information that
been received or disclosed to the Company by any plarty as to which the Company has an oblig:
to treat as confidential (“Confidential Informatipn“Business Opportunitiesineans all ideas, conce
or information received or developed (in whatevernf) by employee concerning any busin
transaction or potential transaction that conggudr may constitute an opportunity for the Compt
earn a fee or income, specifically including thoslationships that were initiated, nourished oredepec
at the Companyg expense. Confidential Information does not inelddta or information: (1) which f
been voluntarily disclosed to the public by the @amy, except where such public disclosure has
made by you without authorization from the Comp&iy;which has been independently developec
disclosed by others; or (3) which has otherwiseret the public domain through lawful means.

(i) All Confidential Information, Trade Secretand all physical and electronic embodim
thereof are confidential and are and will remaia $ole and exclusive property of the Company. [
the term of employment and for a period of five yBars following the termination of your employnr
with the Company for any reason, with or withoutus® and upon the initiative of either you or
Company, you agree that you shall protect any starfidential Information and Trade Secrets and|
not, except in connection with the performance aifiryremaining duties for the Company, use, disi
or otherwise copy, reproduce, distribute or othsendisseminate any such Confidential Informatic
Trade Secrets, or any physical or electronic emhedts thereof, to any third party. Providdtbwever,
that you may make disclosures required by a valigioor subpoena issued by a court or adminisa
agency of competent jurisdiction, in which eventiyaill promptly notify the Company of such orde
subpoena to provide the Company an opportunitydtept its interests.

(i)  Upon request by the Company and, in angrgyupon termination of the your employn
with the Company for any reason, you will prompdigliver to the Company (within twentgur (24
hours) all property belonging to the Company, idolg but without limitation, all Confidenti
Information, Trade Secrets and all electronic ahgspral embodiments thereof, all Company f
customer lists, management reports, memorandaardgeCompany forms, financial data and rej
and other documents (including but not limited tb saich data and documents in electronic f
supplied to or created by you in connection witturyemployment with the Company (including
copies of the foregoing) in your possession or radnand all of the Compang’equipment and ott
materials




in your possession or control. You agree to allbe Company, at its request, to verify returi
Company property and documents and information cndérmanent deletion of the same, thrc
inspection of personal computers, personal storagelia, third party websites, third partymeil
systems, personal digital assistant devices, belhes and/or social networking sites on which Cay
information was stored during your employment wiite Company.

(iv) Nothing contained herein shall be in detagaor a limitation of the rights of the Comp:
to enforce its rights or your duties under the eaple law relating to Trade Secrets.

(b) NonCompetition. You agree that, while employed by the Company fanda period c
twentyfour (24) months following the termination of yoamployment with the Company for any reason,
or without cause, whether upon the initiative d¢iier you or the Company (the “Restricted Periogdl) will not
provide or perform the same or substantially sinskrvices, that you provided to the Company, dralieof any
Direct Competitor, directly (i.e., as an officer employee) or indirectly (i.e., as an independemiti@ctor
consultant, advisor, board member, agent, sharehdlivestor, joint venturer, or partner), anywhesthin the
United States of America (the “Territory”). “Dire€@ompetitor’'means any individual, partnership, corpora
limited liability company, association, or otheilogp, however organized, who competes with the Comjra
the full service restaurant business.

(i) If you are a resident of California and dijto its laws, the restrictions set fortl
paragraph (b) above shall not apply to you.

(i) Nothing in this provision shall divest ydwom the right to acquire as a pas:
investor (with no involvement in the operationshnmanagement of the business) up to 1% of any ck
securities which is: (i) issued by any Direct Cotitpe, and (ii) publicly traded on a national satas
exchange or over-the-counter market.

(c) _NonSolicitation. You agree that you shall not at any time duriegiryemployment ar
during the Restricted Period, on behalf of yourselany other Person, directly or by assisting ithsolicit
induce, encourage or cause any of the Compavgndors, suppliers, licensees, or other Persdghsakom the
Company has a contractual relationship and withrwigou have had Material Contact during the last year:
of your employment, to cease doing business with@ompany or to do business with a Direct Compe
“Material Contact’means contact between you and a Person: (1) witimadr which you dealt on behalf of -
Company; (2) whose dealings with the Company wedinated or supervised by you; (3) about whom
obtained Confidential Information in the ordinargucse of business as a result of your associatidim tive
Company; or (4) who receives products or servicgBamized by the Company, the sale or provisionvbich
results or resulted in compensation, commissiorgasnings for you within two years prior to the elaf the
termination of your employment with the Companyergon” means




any individual, firm, partnership, association,manation, limited liability entity, trust, ventu other busine:
organization, entity or enterprise.

(d) _NonRecruitment. You agree that during the course of employmerd daring the
Restricted Period, you will not, on behalf of yalfor any other Person, directly or by assistitigecs, solici
induce, persuade, or encourage, or attempt toitsaliduce, persuade, or encourage, any indiviéugbloyed b
the Company, with whom you have worked, to terrg@raich employeg’position with the Company, whet
or not such employee is a fiitne or temporary employee of the Company and wdreth not such employme
IS pursuant to a written agreement, for a deterchpexiod, or at will. The provision of this paraghashall onl
apply to those individuals employed by the Companthe time of solicitation or attempted solicibati If you
are a resident of California and subject to itsdathe restrictions set forth in paragraph (c) &band thi
paragraph (d) shall be limited to apply only whEraployee uses or discloses Confidential Informatiofirads
Secrets when engaging in the restricted activities.

(e) _AcknowledgementsYou acknowledge that the Company is in the bssired marketing
developing and establishing its restaurant bramik cGoncepts on a nationwide basis and that the @ny
makes substantial investments and has establishestiasitial goodwill associated with its restauftaiainds an
concepts, supplier relationships and marketing g throughout the United States. You there
acknowledge that the Territory in which the CompanBusiness is conducted is, at the very leastugirou
the United States. You further acknowledge andetrat it is fair and reasonable for the Companyake stef
to protect its Confidential Information, Trade Sasr good will, business relationships, employeesnomis
advantages, and/or other legitimate business stgerigom the risk of misappropriation of or harm its
Confidential Information, Trade Secrets, good willjsiness relationships, employees, economic aages
and/or other legitimate business interests. Younaskedge that the consideration, including this Ad
Agreement, continued employment, specialized tnginand the Confidential Information and Trade S
provided to you, gives rise to the Companyiterest in restraining you from competing wile Company ar
that any limitations as to time, geographic scape scope of activity to be restrained are reasenabtl do n«
impose a greater restraint than is necessary tegir@ompanys Confidential Information, Trade Secrets, ¢
will, business relationships, employees, econordi@aatages, and/or other legitimate business irtserasd wil
not prevent you from earning a livelihood.

()  Survival of Covenants The provisions and restrictive covenants in tBection of thi
Agreement shall survive the expiration or termimatiof this Agreement for any reason. You agree to
challenge the enforceability or scope of the piiovis and restrictive covenants in this Section. Yother agre
to notify all future persons, or businesses, withiolh you become affiliated or employed by, of thevsion:s
and restrictions set forth in this Section, prmtiie commencement of any such affiliation or emmient.




(@) Injunctive Relief You acknowledge that if you breach or threaten reabh any of tt
provisions of this Agreement, your actions will sauirreparable harm and damage to the Company
cannot be compensated by damages alone. Accordihgtyu breach or threaten to breach any of tloigions
of this Agreement, the Company shall be entitlechjonctive relief, in addition to any other rights remedie
the Company may have. You hereby waive the req@ntror a bond by the Company as a condition t&isg
injunctive relief. The existence of any claim ousa of action by you against the Company, whethedipate:
on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not congitatdefense to the enforcement by the Company i
agreements under this Agreement.

(h) _Forfeiture In the event that you violate the terms of thestibn, you understand and ac
that in addition to the Comparsytights to obtain injunctive relief and damagesdich violation, any and
rights to any award under this Agreement, whetlested or unvested, shall be forfeited and extirgaals

12. General Provisions.

(@) _Interpretations his Agreement is subject in all respects to thenseof the Plan. A copy of the P
is available upon your request. Terms used herdiichware defined in the Plan shall have the respe
meanings given to such terms in the Plan, unldssnetse defined herein. In the event that any @iowi of this
Agreement is inconsistent with the terms of thenPle terms of the Plan shall govern. Any questi
administration or interpretation arising under thgireement shall be determined by the Commr
administering the Plan, and such determinationl steafinal, conclusive and binding upon all partiesnterest
To the extent that any Award granted by the Comparsubject to Code Section 409A, such Award she
subject to terms and conditions that comply with thquirements of Code Section 409A to avoid advéas
consequences under Code Section 409A.

(b) No Right to EmploymentNothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall bastoued as giving yc
the right to be retained as an employee of the Goypr any Affiliate of the Company. In additiore
Company or an Affiliate of the Company may at anyetdismiss you from employment, free from anyiligkt
or any claim under this Agreement, unless othereigeessly provided in this Agreement.

(c) Reservation of SharesThe Company shall at all times prior to the vesgtof the Performan
Stock Units reserve and keep available such numbshares of Common Stock as will be sufficiens&bisfy
the requirements of this Agreement.

(d)  Securities Matters The Company shall not be required to deliver singres of Common Stc
until the requirements of any federal or state gges or other laws, rules or regulations (inchglthe rules ¢
any securities exchange) as may be determinedeb@admpany to be applicable are satisfied.

(e) Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsectibrthis Agreement solely a:
convenience to facilitate reference. Such headshgdl not be




deemed in any way material or relevant to the cansbn or interpretation of this Agreement or ggvisior
hereof.

()  Arbitration . Except for injunctive relief as set forth herethg parties agree that any disj
between the parties regarding this Agreement dtwlsubmitted to binding arbitration in Orlando, ride
pursuant to the Darden dispute resolution program.

() Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construett@ordance with the laws
the State of Florida (without giving effect to thenflict of law principles thereof). Employee agsdabat th
state and federal courts of Florida shall havesgiction over any litigation between you and thampany
regarding this Agreement, and you expressly subonihe exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the fatlanc
state courts sitting in Orange County, Florida.

(h) Notices. You should send all written notices regarding thgreement or the Plan to the Comg
at the following address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.

Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive

Orlando, FL 32837

() Award Agreement and Related Documeritéis Performance Stock Unit Agreement shall haa
force or effect unless you have been notified iy @ompany, and identified in the Companyecords, as tl
recipient of a Performance Stock Unit grantOU MUST REVIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE
ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDIN G SPECIFICALLY THE
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT ELECTRONICALLY VIA
YOUR ESTABLISHED ACCOUNT ON THE MORGAN STANLEY SMIT H BARNEY WEBSITE
WITHIN 60 DAYS OF THE DATE OF GRANT; PROVIDED, HOWE VER, THAT THE COMMITTEE
MAY, AT ITS DISCRETION, EXTEND THIS DATE. FAILURE T O ACCEPT THE REFERENCED
TERMS AND TO EXCUTE THIS AGREEMENT ELECTRONICALLY W ILL PRECLUDE YOU
FROM RECEIVING YOUR PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT. In connection with yot
Performance Stock Unit grant and this Award Agrestméhe following additional documents were
available to you electronically, and paper copige available on request directed to the Compan
Compensation Department: (i) the Plan; and (iiy@pPectus relating to the Plan.




FY15 PSU AWARD AGREEMENT — EXHIBIT A

VESTING OF PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

The Performance Stock Units that shall vest, if, doNowing the end of the Performance Period shaltetermined by
multiplying the number of Performance Stock Unitarded by the “Final Vesting Percentage,” as datezthbelow,
provided that the maximum Final Vesting Percenfagéhe Performance Period shall be 165%.

The PSU Achievement percentage for each of the tiseal years covered by the Performance Periall s
determined by Sales, weighted 50%, and Free Casth, lleighted 50% with the specific Sales and FraghG-low
targets set by the Committee each year. Free Qash(FCF) is defined as operating cash flow (nebime plus
depreciation plus change in working capital plus-nash items, including but not limited to stockmeensation and
asset write-downs, less capital expenditures).

The Final Vesting Percentages shall be determinedrding to the following grid:

PSU Rating Prellgé?géyr/]t\a/lgztlng TSR Adjustment VestingFIFr:g:centage
0.9 0.0%
0 0% 1.0 0.0%
1.1 0.0%
0.9 22.5%
0.5 25% 1.0 25.0%
1.1 27.5%
0.9 45.0%
1.0 50% 1.0 50.0%
1.1 55.0%
0.9 90.0%
14 100% 1.0 100.0%
1.1 110.0%
0.9 112.5%
1.6 125% 1.0 125.0%
1.1 137.5%
0.9 135.0%
1.8 or Greater 150% 1.0 150.0%
1.1 165.0%

The Preliminary Vesting Percentage Average shalh lsmple average of the PSU Achievement percesitéayethe
three fiscal years covered by the Performance erio

As demonstrated above, at the end of the PerforenBeciod, the Preliminary Vesting Percentage dieihcreased
decreased by a maximum of 10% based on Dasderal shareholder return (TSR) performance radat the S&P 5C
to calculate the Final Vesting Percentage as falow

A-1






« I, over the three-year performance period, Baisl TSR is at or above the 7percentile of the S&P 500, th
the Final Vesting Percentage shall be calculatadea®reliminary Vesting Percentage multiplied k01

« If, over the three-year performance period, Batsl TSR is at or below the 2%ercentile of the S&P 500, th
the Final Vesting Percentage shall be calculatedea®reliminary Vesting Percentage multiplied 800

« If, over the three-year performance period, Ratsl TSR is above the 25percentile and below the 75

percentile of the S&P 500, then the Final VestirggcBntage shall be calculated as the Preliminarstinvg
Percentage multiplied by 1.0.

TSR performance shall be determined by the aver&gefor the S&P 500 over the first month and tlst taonth in th
3-year performance period.

The MIP Ratings and Vesting Percentages shall biet@smined by the Committee in its discretion.

The number of Performance Stock Units that vessyamt to the Final Vesting Percentage shall bedwedrto th
nearest whole number, with 0.5% being rounded up.



EXHIBIT 10(I)
DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.

2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

FY PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
(United States)

This Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement (thegf@ement”)is between Darden Restaurants, In
Florida corporation (the “Company” or “Corporatignand you, a person notified by the Company, andtifieth in the
Company’s records, as the recipient of an Awar@@fformance Stock Units during the Companfyscal year
This Agreement is effective as of the date of g@rhmunicated to you and set forth in the Compamgtords (tF
“Grant Date”).

The Company wishes to award to you PerformancekStbuts representing the opportunity to earn a
payment in lieu of the ComparsyCommon Stock, subject to the terms and conditsendorth in this Agreement,
order to carry out the purpose of the Company’'228@ck Incentive Plan (the “Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby aclaunel
the Company and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Award of Performance Stock Units.

The Company hereby grants to you, effective ab®fdrant Date, an Award of Performance Stock Uaitsha
number of Performance Stock Units communicatedoto and set forth in the Company’s records (the “@$bn the
terms and conditions set forth in such communicatibis Agreement and the Plan.

2. Rights with Respect to the PSUs.

The PSUs granted hereunder do not and shall netygiu any of the rights and privileges of a shaladroof
Common Stock. Your rights with respect to the PShiall remain forfeitable at all times prior to tate or dates ¢
which such rights become vested, and the restngtaith respect to the PSUs lapse, in accordaniteSections 3 or
hereof. Your right to receive cash payments witbpeet to the PSUs is more particularly describe®eation
hereof.

3. Vesting.

(@) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agrestithe PSUs shall vest, and the restrictions
respect to the PSUs shall lapse, on the date anbeiramount set forth in this Agreement if you rex
continuously employed by the Company or an Affdiatf the Company until the date you become vest
accordance with the terms and conditions of thise&ment.

(b)  One hundred percent (100%) of the total number Si)$> shall be targeted for vesting on
vesting date communicated to you and set forthenGompany’s records (the “Vesting Date”).




(c) The number of PSUs in which you actually vestny,afollowing the end of the three fiscal ye
preceding the Vesting Date (the “Performance P&rigall be determined by multiplying the PSUs by
Vesting Percentage, calculated as set forth in ltxAi to this Agreement, and may range from zerane
hundred sixty-five percent (165%) of the PSUs.

(d) The calculations under this Section 3 shall be ntader before the Vesting Date and any ve:
resulting from such calculations shall be effectagof the Vesting Date. Any PSUs that do not westhe
Vesting Date pursuant to the terms of Section 8 ehall be immediately and irrevocably forfeiteagluding
the right to receive cash payments pursuant tad@ec¢thereof, as of the Vesting Date.

(e) The Committee administering the Plan shall have dbthority to make any determinati
regarding questions arising from the applicatiothef provisions of this Section 3, which determirashall b
final, conclusive and binding on you and the Conypan

4. Forfeiture; Early Vesting.

(@) If you cease to be employed by the Company or ditiaké of the Company prior to the vesting
forfeiture of the PSUs pursuant to Section 3 hergotir rights to all of the PSUs shall be immediatnc
irrevocably forfeited, including the right to regeicash payments pursuant to Section 7 hereofpeitat:

(i) If you retire on or after age 65 with five yearssefvice with the Company or an Affiliate
the Company (pursuant to the method for creditieryise under the Darden Savings Plaidfma
Retirement”)prior to the vesting or forfeiture of the PSUs manst to Section 3 hereof, you shall bec
immediately and unconditionally vested in all oétRSUs. The restrictions with respect to such d
PSUs shall lapse, and the Vesting Percentagetsh#ile amount determined pursuant to Section 3(c).

(i)  If you retire on or after age 55 with ten yearseifvice with the Company or an Affiliate
the Company (pursuant to the method for creditiagrise under the Darden Savings Plargatly
Retirement”)prior to the vesting or forfeiture of the PSUs manst to Section 3 hereof, you shall bec
immediately and unconditionally vested in a proargbrtion of the PSUs based on your perio
employment between the Grant Date and the dat@wf Farly Retirement hereunder. The restrict
with respect to such vested PSUs shall lapse, ¥ e¢sting Percentage shall be the amount deted
pursuant to Section 3(c).

(i) If your age and service with the Company or anliati of the Company (pursuant to
method for crediting service under the Darden SgviRlan) is equal to or greater than 70 on the
your employment is involuntarily terminated witho@ause (as defined below) Irfvoluntary
Termination”) prior to the vesting or forfeiture of the PSUs manst to Section 3 hereof, you sl
become




immediately and unconditionally vested in a proargbrtion of the PSUs based on your perlo
employment between the Grant Date and the dateoof jnvoluntary Termination hereunder.
restrictions with respect to such vested PSUs $yadle, and the Vesting Percentage shall be theial
determined pursuant to Section 3(c).

(iv)  If you die prior to the vesting or forfeiture ofetfPSUs pursuant to Section 3, you ¢
become immediately and unconditionally vested irolithe PSUs. The restrictions with respect toh
PSUs shall lapse and the Vesting Percentage shalh® hundred percent (100%).

(v) If you become Disabled (as defined below) priothe vesting or forfeiture of the PS
pursuant to Section 3 hereof, you shall become idiaely and unconditionally vested in a pro
portion of the PSUs based on your period of empkxyinbetween the Grant Date and the date of
Disability hereunder. The restrictions with respextsuch vested PSUs shall lapse, and the V¢
Percentage shall be the amount determined pursoaaéction 3(c). For purposes of this Agreen
“Disabled” or “Disability” means you have a disability due to illness or ywhich is expected to
permanent in nature and which prevents you frofopaing the material duties required by your rec
occupation, all as determined by the Committee agwaring the Plan.

(b) If you are an executive officer of the Company &hdg reports with the Securities and Excha
Commission pursuant to Section 16 of the Securieshange Act of 1934, as amended, then this PSdré
has been awarded subject to the Darden Restautaotdylanagement and Professional Incentive Plae
“MIP™), and this PSU Award shall be cancelled, forfeited asturned to the Company unless all of
requirements set forth in the MIP for the year tach the grant of this PSU Award relates are datisf

(c) Your employment may be terminated for “Caufiethe Committee administering the Plan, ¢
you shall have been afforded a reasonable opptyttmiappear in person together with counsel betbe
Committee and to present such evidence as you dppropriate, determines that Cause exists. Forogesc
this Agreement, “Causathieans (i) an act or acts of fraud or misapproeatin your part which result in or
intended to result in your personal enrichmenhatexpense of the Corporation and which constdautemina
offense under State or Federal laws or (ii) comwcof a felony.

5. Restriction on Transfer.

None of the PSUs may be sold, assigned, transfgrtedged, attached or otherwise encumbered, amadtemp
to transfer the PSUs, whether voluntary or invamt by operation of law or otherwise, shall vés transferee wi
any interest or right in or with respect to the BSU




6. Financial Restatements.

This Section 6 only applies to you if at any tinmuywere or are designated as an offleeel employee in tt
Company payroll system with the Peoplesoft idestifilOFC” or its equivalent. Notwithstanding the provisiort
Sections 3, 4, and 7 of this Agreement, if (a)@enpany is required to restate its financial stateis1due to fraud a
(b) the Committee administering the Plan determitine¢ you have knowingly participated in such fratiten th
Committee may, in its sole and absolute discretmny time within two years following such restaent, require yc
to, and you shall immediately upon notice of sudm@ittee determination, return to the Company ash@aymen
received by you or your personal representativeeutils Agreement during the period commencing years befor
the beginning of the restated financial period anding on the date of such Committee determinatioaddition, all o
you rights to PSUs that are not vested on the ttiatiethe Committee makes such determination stealhimediatel
and irrevocably forfeited. Notwithstanding anythitgy the contrary in this Section 6, the Committéellshave th
authority and discretion to make any determinategarding the specific implementation of this Smt#é with respe:
to you.

7. Payment of PSUSs.

(@) Except as described in Section 4(a)(iv) (when P&t as a result of your death), the Com
shall make a cash payment to you promptly afteMésting Date in an amount equal to the Fair Makkadtie
of one share of Common Stock for each vested PSladausted by the Vested Percentage), subjecte
payment of applicable withholding taxes pursuan®éation 9 hereof; provided, however, that anyrithistion
to any “specified employeeds determined in accordance with procedures addytélde Company that refle
the requirements of Code Section 409A(a)(2)(Bdnd any applicable guidance thereunder), that totes
“deferred compensation” under Code Section 409A i@gndn account of such employseseparation fro
service shall be made as soon as practicablethgéirst day of the seventh month following suelparatiol
from service (or, if earlier, the date of the sfiedi employees death). The Company will pay the Fair Ma
Value of any fractional share of Common Stock metato any vested PSU. In the event of your dedr goul
retirement or termination of employment and befoagment, the amount otherwise payable under thesd®
7(a) shall be paid to your beneficiary or, if nopeur estate as soon as practicable after youhdeat

(b) If the PSUs vest as a result of your death, yonebeiary or, if none, your estate shall be pai
soon as practicable after your death the amourtridesl in Section 7(a) above. No transfer by willtloe
applicable laws of descent and distribution of B8jJJs which vest by reason of your death shall fextfe tc
bind the Company unless the Committee administahiagPlan shall have been furnished with writteticecof
such transfer and a copy of the will or such othadence as the Committee may deem necessaryatolisk
the validity of the transfer.

(c) On the date amounts under this Section 7 are payba (or your beneficiary or, if none, y
estate in the event of your death after havingegest PSUs), the Company shall also make a casimgratytc
you equal to the amount of cash dividends that the




Company paid per share of Common Stock to holderemglly during thé’erformance Period, multiplied
(i) the number of PSUs and (ii) the Vesting Peragat without interest, and less any tax withholdangoun
applicable to such payment. To the extent thaPBes relating to the Performance Period are fedeatrior tc
vesting, such cash payment shall also be forfeifdle PSUs vest as a result of your death, the@my sha
make a cash payment to your beneficiary or, if ng/mar estate equivalent to the cash dividends tie
Company paid per share of Common Stock to holdeneiglly from the Grant Date to the date of youatd
multiplied by the number of PSUs.

8. Adjustments.

In the event that the Committee administering the Bhall determine that any dividend or otherritistion
(whether in the form of cash, shares of Common Stother securities or other property), recapitlan, stock spli
reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, cadabbn, split-up, spireff, combination, repurchase or exchang
shares or other securities of the Company, issuahearrants or other rights to purchase sharesttwgr securities
the Company or other similar corporate transaatiorvent affects the Common Stock such that ansadgnt of th
PSUs is determined by the Committee administerimg Plan to be appropriate in order to prevent iditutor
enlargement of the benefits or potential benefiterided to be made available under this Agreentbet thi
Committee shall, in such manner as it may deemta&ujei in its sole discretion, adjust any or altteg number and ty,
of shares subject to the PSUs.

9. Taxes.

(@ You acknowledge that you will consult with your genal tax advisor regarding the income
consequences of the grant of the PSUs, the regkegatsh payments pursuant to Section 7 hereofyeékeng o
the PSUs and the receipt of cash upon the vestittged®SUs, and any other matters related to tigieédmen
In order to comply with all applicable federal, tstalocal or foreign income tax laws or regulatiotise
Company may take such action as it deems apprepaansure that all applicable federal, stategllocforeigr
payroll, withholding, income or other taxes, whiake your sole and absolute responsibility, are Iveikth o
collected from you.

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sutds as may be adopted by the Comir
administering the Plan, you may elect to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations arisingiin the
vesting of the PSUs and the corresponding recéipash by (i) delivering cash (including check,ftrenoney
order or wire transfer made payable to the ordethef Company), (ii) delivering to the Company &sao
Common Stock having a Fair Market Value equal ® d@mount of such taxes, or (iii) having the Com|
withhold a portion of the cash payment otherwisddodelivered pursuant to Section 7. Your electiarst b
made on or before the date that the amount ofotée twithheld is determined.

11. Restrictive Covenants.

(@) _NonbDisclosure.




(i) During the course of your employment, befaed after the execution of t
Agreement, and as consideration for the restrictgeenants entered into by you herein, you
received and will continue to receive some or &lth@ Companys various Trade Secrets (as def
under applicable law) and confidential or propmgtaformation, which includes the following whet
in physical or electronic form: (1) data and coradns of data related to Business Opportun
(2) computer software, hardware, network and irtetechnology utilized, modified or enhanced by
Company or by employee in furtherance of employehities with the Company; (3) compilation:
data concerning Company products, services, custona@d end users including but not limitec
compilations concerning projected sales, new ptdjeelines, inventory reports, sales, and cost
expense reports; (4) compilations of informatiorowtbthe Compang employees and indepenc
contracting consultants; (5) the Companfihancial information, including, without limitah, amount
charged to customers and amounts charged to thep&uomby its vendors, suppliers, and ser
providers; (6) proposals submitted to the Compsngustomers, potential customers, wholes:
distributors, vendors, suppliers and service prendd (7) the Compang’ marketing strategies &
compilations of marketing data; (8) compilationsdata or information concerning, and communica
and agreements with, vendors, suppliers and liegertsothe Company and other sources of technc
products, services or components used in the Coyigpdiusiness; (9) the Compagytesearch ai
development records and data; and, (10) any sumreatsact or analysis of such information toge
with information that has been received or disaiosethe Company by any third party as to whict
Company has an obligation to treat as confiden{faConfidential Information”). Busines
Opportunities”means all ideas, concepts or information receivedaveloped (in whatever form)
employee concerning any business, transaction tenpal transaction that constitutes or may couts
an opportunity for the Company to earn a fee oomne, specifically including those relationshipst
were initiated, nourished or developed at the Comisaexpense. Confidential Information does
include data or information: (1) which has beenuntdrily disclosed to the public by the Compi
except where such public disclosure has been magelwwithout authorization from the Company;
which has been independently developed and distlogethers; or (3) which has otherwise entere
public domain through lawful means.

(i) All Confidential Information, Trade Secretand all physical and electronic embodim
thereof are confidential and are and will remaia $ole and exclusive property of the Company. [
the term of employment and for a period of five yBars following the termination of your employnr
with the Company for any reason, with or withoutus® and upon the initiative of either you or
Company, you agree that you shall protect any starfidential Information and Trade Secrets and|
not, except in connection with the performance airyremaining duties for the Company, use, dis
or otherwise copy, reproduce, distribute or othsendisseminate any such Confidential Informatic
Trade Secrets, or any physical or electronic emrbedts thereof, to any third party.




Provided, however, that you may make disclosures required by a \aiter or subpoena issued k
court or administrative agency of competent judsdn, in which event you will promptly notify t
Company of such order or subpoena to provide thag@any an opportunity to protect its interests.

(i)  Upon request by the Company and, in angrgyupon termination of the your employn
with the Company for any reason, you will prompdigliver to the Company (within twentgur (24
hours) all property belonging to the Company, idolg but without limitation, all Confidenti
Information, Trade Secrets and all electronic ahgsgal embodiments thereof, all Company f
customer lists, management reports, memorandaardseCompany forms, financial data and ref
and other documents (including but not limited tb saich data and documents in electronic f
supplied to or created by you in connection wituryemployment with the Company (including
copies of the foregoing) in your possession or rmapnand all of the Company’equipment and otf
materials in your possession or control. You agoeslow the Company, at its request, to verifyretof
Company property and documents and information andérmanent deletion of the same, thrc
inspection of personal computers, personal storageia, third party websites, third partymel
systems, personal digital assistant devices, belhes and/or social networking sites on which Cam
information was stored during your employment wviite Company.

(iv) Nothing contained herein shall be in detagaor a limitation of the rights of the Comp:
to enforce its rights or your duties under the maple law relating to Trade Secrets.

(b) NonCompetition. You agree that, while employed by the Company fanda period ¢
twenty{four (24) months following the termination of yoamployment with the Company for any reason,
or without cause, whether upon the initiative ¢fier you or the Company (the “Restricted Periogdl) will not
provide or perform the same or substantially sinskrvices, that you provided to the Company, dralief any
Direct Competitor, directly (i.e., as an officer employee) or indirectly (i.e., as an independeasrit@ctor
consultant, advisor, board member, agent, sharehaltvestor, joint venturer, or partner), anywhesthin the
United States of America (the “Territory”). “Dire€@ompetitor’'means any individual, partnership, corpora
limited liability company, association, or otheilogp, however organized, who competes with the Comjra
the full service restaurant business.

() If you are a resident of California and sdijto its laws, the restrictions set fortl
paragraph (b) above shall not apply to you.

(i) Nothing in this provision shall divest ydwom the right to acquire as a pas:
investor (with no involvement in the operationsnmainagement of the business) up to 1% of any ck
securities which is: (i) issued by any Direct Cotitpe, and (ii) publicly traded on a national satias
exchange or over-the-counter market.




(c) _NonSolicitation. You agree that you shall not at any time duriegiryemployment ar
during the Restricted Period, on behalf of yourselany other Person, directly or by assisting i&thsolicit
induce, encourage or cause any of the Compavgndors, suppliers, licensees, or other Persghsskom the
Company has a contractual relationship and withrwlgou have had Material Contact during the last year:
of your employment, to cease doing business withG@ompany or to do business with a Direct Compe
“Material Contact’means contact between you and a Person: (1) witimadr which you dealt on behalf of -
Company; (2) whose dealings with the Company wedinated or supervised by you; (3) about whom
obtained Confidential Information in the ordinargucse of business as a result of your associatidim tive
Company; or (4) who receives products or servicgBaaized by the Company, the sale or provisionvbich
results or resulted in compensation, commissiorgasnings for you within two years prior to the elaf the
termination of your employment with the Company.efébn” means any individual, firm, partnerst
association, corporation, limited liability entityust, venture or other business organizationtyeot enterprise.

(d) _NonRecruitment. You agree that during the course of employmerd daring the
Restricted Period, you will not, on behalf of yalfor any other Person, directly or by assistitigecs, solici
induce, persuade, or encourage, or attempt toitsaliduce, persuade, or encourage, any indiviéugbloyed b
the Company, with whom you have worked, to terng@raich employesg’position with the Company, whet
or not such employee is a fuline or temporary employee of the Company and wdrath not such employme
IS pursuant to a written agreement, for a deterchpexiod, or at will. The provision of this paraghashall onl
apply to those individuals employed by the Companthe time of solicitation or attempted solicibati If you
are a resident of California and subject to itsdathe restrictions set forth in paragraph (c) &band thi
paragraph (d) shall be limited to apply only whEraployee uses or discloses Confidential Informatiofirade
Secrets when engaging in the restricted activities.

(e) _AcknowledgementsYou acknowledge that the Company is in the bssired marketing
developing and establishing its restaurant bramik Gbncepts on a nationwide basis and that the @ny
makes substantial investments and has establishstastial goodwill associated with its restaufamainds an
concepts, supplier relationships and marketing g throughout the United States. You there
acknowledge that the Territory in which the ComparnBusiness is conducted is, at the very leastugirou
the United States. You further acknowledge andeatrat it is fair and reasonable for the Compangake ster
to protect its Confidential Information, Trade Sasr good will, business relationships, employeesnomis
advantages, and/or other legitimate business stgerigom the risk of misappropriation of or harm its
Confidential Information, Trade Secrets, good wilysiness relationships, employees, economic aages
and/or other legitimate business interests. Younaskedge that the consideration, including this Ad
Agreement, continued employment, specialized tnginiand the Confidential Information and Trade S&
provided to you, gives rise to the Companyiterest in restraining you from competing witle tCompany ar
that any limitations as to time, geographic scape scope of activity to be restrained are reasenabtl do n«
impose a greater restraint




than is necessary to protect CompanyConfidential Information, Trade Secrets, goodl,wiusines
relationships, employees, economic advantagespranotiier legitimate business interests, and witl jr@ven
you from earning a livelihood.

()  Survival of Covenants The provisions and restrictive covenants in tBection of thi
Agreement shall survive the expiration or termimatiof this Agreement for any reason. You agree to
challenge the enforceability or scope of the piiovis and restrictive covenants in this Section. Yother agre
to notify all future persons, or businesses, withiolh you become affiliated or employed by, of thevsion:s
and restrictions set forth in this Section, prmtlie commencement of any such affiliation or emmient.

(g) Injunctive Relief You acknowledge that if you breach or threaten reabh any of tr
provisions of this Agreement, your actions will sauirreparable harm and damage to the Company
cannot be compensated by damages alone. Accordihgtbu breach or threaten to breach any of tlwvigron:
of this Agreement, the Company shall be entitlechjonctive relief, in addition to any other rights remedie
the Company may have. You hereby waive the req@ngror a bond by the Company as a condition t&isg
injunctive relief. The existence of any claim ousa of action by you against the Company, whethedigate:
on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not congitatdefense to the enforcement by the Company i
agreements under this Agreement.

(h) _Forfeiture In the event that you violate the terms of thestidn, you understand and ac
that in addition to the Comparsytights to obtain injunctive relief and damagesdich violation, any and
rights to any award under this Agreement, whetlestad or unvested, shall be forfeited and extirgaals

12. General Provisions.

(a) _Interpretationshis Agreement is subject in all respects to thengeof the Plan. A copy of the P
is available upon your request. Terms used herdiithware defined in the Plan shall have the resp
meanings given to such terms in the Plan, urddssrwise defined herein. In the event that anyigron of this
Agreement is inconsistent with the terms of thenPlhe terms of the Plan shall govern. Any questid
administration or interpretation arising under thiggreement shall be determined by the Commr
administering the Plan, and such determinationl §igafinal, conclusive and binding upon all partiesnterest
To the extent that any Award granted by the Comparsubject to Code Section 409A, such Award she
subject to terms and conditions that comply with thquirements of Code Section 409A to avoid adveas
consequences under Code Section 409A.

(b) _No Right to EmploymentNothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall bastaued as giving yc
the right to be retained as an employee of the Goypwr any Affiliate of the Company. In additiore
Company or an Affiliate of the Company may at anyetdismiss you from employment, free from anyiligkt
or any claim under this Agreement, unless othereiqeessly provided in this Agreement.




(c) Reservation of SharesThe Company shall at all times prior to the vegbf the PSUs reserve ¢
keep available such number of shares of Commork&teawvill be sufficient to satisfy the requirementshis
Agreement.

(d)  Securities Matters The Company shall not be required to deliver singres of Common Stc
until the requirements of any federal or state gges or other laws, rules or regulations (inchglithe rules ¢
any securities exchange) as may be determinedeb@admpany to be applicable are satisfied.

(e) Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsectbrthis Agreement solely a:
convenience to facilitate reference. Such headshgdl not be deemed in any way material or relevarthe
construction or interpretation of this Agreemengny provision hereof.

()  Arbitration . Except for injunctive relief as set forth herethg parties agree that any disj
between the parties regarding this Agreement dtelsubmitted to binding arbitration in Orlando, ridle
pursuant to the Darden dispute resolution program.

() Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construetaordance with the laws
the State of Florida (without giving effect to thenflict of law principles thereof). Employee agsdabat th
state and federal courts of Florida shall havesgiction over any litigation between you and thampany
regarding this Agreement, and you expressly subonibe exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the fatlanc
state courts sitting in Orange County, Florida.

(h) Notices. You should send all written notices regarding thgreement or the Plan to the Comg
at the following address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.

Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive

Orlando, FL 32837

() Award Agreement and Related Documenighis PSU Agreement shall have no force or €
unless you have been notified by the Company, dadtified in the Company’records, as the recipient ¢
PSU grantYOU MUST REVIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE ACCEPTANCE OF THE T ERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT, INCLUDING SPECIFICALLY THE RESTRICTIVE C OVENANTS, BY EXECUTING
THIS AGREEMENT ELECTRONICALLY VIA YOUR ESTABLISHED ACCOUNT ON THE
MORGAN STANLEY SMITH BARNEY WEBSITE WITHIN 60 DAYS OF THE DATE OF GRANT;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THE COMMITTEE MAY, AT ITS D ISCRETION, EXTEND THIS
DATE. FAILURE TO ACCEPT THE REFERENCED TERMS AND TO EXCUTE THIS AGREEMENT
ELECTRONICALLY WILL PRECLUDE YOU FROM RECEIVING YOU R PSU GRANT. In connectiol
with your PSU grant and this Award Agreement, thiéofving additional documents were made availablgdl
electronically, and paper copies




are available on request directed to the Comma@gmpensation Department: (i) the Plan; and (Ry@spectL
relating to the Plan.




FY15 PSU AWARD AGREEMENT — EXHIBIT A

VESTING OF PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS

The PSUs that shall vest, if any, following the efdhe Performance Period shall be determined bliplying the
number of PSUs granted by the “Final Vesting Pdexp” as determined below, provided that the marinkinal
Vesting Percentage for the Performance Period bk&allb5%.

The PSU Achievement percentage for each of the tiseal years covered by the Performance Periall s
determined by Sales, weighted 50%, and Free Cash, lleighted 50% with the specific Sales and FraghG-low
targets set by the Committee each year. Free Qash(FCF) is defined as operating cash flow (nebime plus
depreciation plus change in working capital plus-nash items, including but not limited to stockmmensation and
asset write-downs, less capital expenditures).

The Final Vesting Percentages shall be determinedrding to the following grid:

PSU Rating Prellgé?géyr/]t\a/lgztlng TSR Adjustment VestingFIFr:g:centage
0.9 0.0%
0 0% 1.0 0.0%
1.1 0.0%
0.9 22.5%
0.5 25% 1.0 25.0%
1.1 27.5%
0.9 45.0%
1.0 50% 1.0 50.0%
1.1 55.0%
0.9 90.0%
14 100% 1.0 100.0%
1.1 110.0%
0.9 112.5%
1.6 125% 1.0 125.0%
1.1 137.5%
0.9 135.0%
1.8 or Greater 150% 1.0 150.0%
1.1 165.0%

The Preliminary Vesting Percentage Average shalh lsmple average of the PSU Achievement percesitéayethe
three fiscal years covered by the Performance erio

As demonstrated above, at the end of the PerforenBeciod, the Preliminary Vesting Percentage dieihcreased
decreased by a maximum of 10% based on Dasderal shareholder return (TSR) performance radat the S&P 5C
to calculate the Final Vesting Percentage as falow

A-1






« I, over the three-year performance period, Baisl TSR is at or above the 7percentile of the S&P 500, th
the Final Vesting Percentage shall be calculatadea®reliminary Vesting Percentage multiplied b0l

« If, over the three-year performance period, Batsl TSR is at or below the 2%ercentile of the S&P 500, th
the Final Vesting Percentage shall be calculatadea®reliminary Vesting Percentage multiplied 800

« If, over the three-year performance period, Ratsl TSR is above the 25percentile and below the 75
percentile of the S&P 500, then the Final VestirggcBntage shall be calculated as the Preliminarstinvg
Percentage multiplied by 1.0.

TSR performance shall be determined by the aver&gefor the S&P 500 over the first month and tlst taonth in th
3-year performance period.
The MIP Ratings and Vesting Percentages shall biet@smined by the Committee in its discretion.

The number of PSUs that vest pursuant to the Rieating Percentage shall be rounded to the neatesie numbe
with 0.5% being rounded up.



EXHIBIT 10(mm)

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS (ANNUAL EQUITY GRANT)

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the fégment”)is between Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Fl
corporation (the “Company” or “Corporation”), andw ([ Name] ), a person notified by the Company, and ident
in the Company’s records, as the recipient of aradof Restricted Stock Units during the Companifyscal yee
_____.This Agreement is effective as of he ,date communicated to you and set forth in the@2my s record
(the “Grant Date”).

The Company wishes to award to you a number ofriResd Stock Units, subject to certain restricticas
provided in this Agreement, in order to carry dwg purpose of the Company’s 2002 Stock Incentiaa Bhe “Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby aclaunel
the Company and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Award of Restricted Stock Units.

The Company hereby grants to you, effective ahefGrant Date, an Award of Restricted Stock Urotstiia
number of Restricted Stock Units communicated to god set forth in the Company’s records (the “R$Usn the
terms and conditions set forth in such communicatibis Agreement and the Plan. Each RSU represeataght t
receive, subject to the vesting provisions setfbelow, one share of the CompanZommon Stock, no par value |
“Common Stock”).

2. Rights with Respect to the RSUSs.

The RSUs granted hereunder do not and shall netypwu any of the rights and privileges of a shalddroof
Common Stock, other than the right to receive d@imis and other distributions as provided in Sestifin) and 7(«
hereof. Your rights with respect to the RSUs stethain forfeitable at all times prior to the datedates on which su
rights become vested, and the restrictions witheetsto the RSUs lapse, in accordance with Sec8ars4 hereof.

3. Vesting.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresimine RSUs shall vest, and the restrictions wetpect t
the RSUs shall lapse, on the date or dates andeiramount or amounts communicated to you and s#t fio the
Company’s records and as reflected below, subjeBettion 4 of this Agreement.

(@) The grant of RSUs under Section 1 above shallaeshe earlier of (i) the ongear anniversary
the Grant Date and (ii) the date of the Compang)d mnnual meeting of shareholders.




4. Early Vesting; Forfeiture.

(&) If your service on the Board terminates other thgpmeason of your death or Disability (as defi
below) prior to the vesting of the RSUs pursuarfséation 3 hereof, your rights to all of the unedsRSUs she
be immediately and irrevocably forfeited.

(b) If you die prior to the vesting of the RSUs purduanSection 3 hereof, then you shall become
immediately and unconditionally vested in all RSwsl the restrictions with respect to all RSUs dlaaise on
the date of your death. No transfer by will or #pplicable laws of descent and distribution of R8s which
vest by reason of your death shall be effectivieitd the Company unless the Committee administehiadPlan
shall have been furnished with written notice affstransfer and a copy of the will or such othedence as the
Committee may deem necessary to establish theityabfithe transfer.

(c) If you become Disabled (as defined below) priothi® vesting of the RSUs pursuant to Section 3
hereof, then you shall become immediately and uditionally vested in all RSUs and the restrictiovith
respect to all RSUs shall lapse on the date onhwihie Committee administering the Plan makes the
determination that you are Disabled. For purpo$éisi®s Agreement, “Disabledtheans you have a disability ¢
to illness or injury which is expected to be pererann nature and which prevents you from perfogriie
material duties required by your regular occupatahas determined by the Committee administetiregPlan.

5. Restriction on Transfer.

Except as contemplated by Section 4(b) hereof, mdrtbe RSUs may be sold, assigned, transferredigelc
attached or otherwise encumbered, and no attentpdriefer the RSUs, whether voluntary or involuptéry operatio
of law or otherwise, shall vest the transferee \aitly interest or right in or with respect to thelRS

6. Settlement of RSUs.

No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to ymu for the date on which the RSUs vest, in accardamitl
the terms and conditions communicated to you antbsah in the Companyg records. After the RSUs vest pursua
Sections 3 or 4 hereof, the Company shall prombily,no later than 3@ays following the applicable vesting d:
cause to be issued in your name one share of ConBback for each RSU and pay to you any accumt
distributions (less applicable tax withholding) guant to Sections 7(b) and (c) hereof. Notwithstamthe foregoing
you may elect to defer the settlement of the RSl @ny accumulated distributions) beyond the ngsiate of th
RSUs. Any deferral election must be made in compkawith such rules and procedures as may be esstadlby th
Committee administering the Plan. Following paynmathe applicable withholding taxes pursuant totea 8 hereo
the Company shall promptly cause such shares ofn@mStock (less any shares withheld to pay taxed)e
delivered, either by bookntry registration or in the form of a stock céctite or certificates, registered in your ni
or in the names of your legal representatives, fi@ages or heirs, as the case may be.




7. Distributions and Adjustments.

(@) If any RSUs vest subsequent to any change in theaucor character of the Common Stock o
Company (through any stock dividend or other distiibn, recapitalization, stock split, reverse ktaplit,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-upinsgf, combination, repurchase or exchange of shar
otherwise) occurring after the Grant Date, you Isttedn receive upon such vesting the number and by
securities or other consideration which you woudvén received if such RSUs had vested prior to thea
changing the number or character of the outstan@mgmon Stock.

(b)  Any additional shares of Common Stock, any othe@ugges of the Company and any ot
property (except for cash dividends or other castributions) distributed with respect to the slsaoé Commo
Stock underlying the RSUs prior to the date or sitthe RSUs vest shall be subject to the sameatsts, term
and conditions as the RSUs to which they relate stradl be promptly deposited with the Secretarythe
Company or a custodian designated by the Secrekagysuch accumulated distributions shall be distied tc
you in accordance with Section 6 hereof. If the RStk forfeited prior to vesting, any accumulatestridhutions
payable in respect of such RSUs shall also beifede

(c) Any cash dividends or other cash distributions péyavith respect to the shares of Common £
underlying the RSUs prior to the vesting of the RSWall be distributed to you upon the settlemétite RSU
in the amount originally declared, without interestiny such accumulated cash dividends or other
distributions shall be distributed to you in acande with Section 6 hereof. If the RSUs are foetkiprior tc
vesting, any accumulated cash dividends or oth&hr destributions payable in respect of such RSadl skso b
forfeited.

8. Taxes.

(@ You acknowledge that you will consult with your genal tax advisor regarding the income
consequences of the grant of the RSUs, the vestitite RSUs, the receipt of shares of Common Sipdn th
vesting of the RSUs and any other matters relatethis Agreement. In order to comply with all applble
federal, state or local income tax laws or regatatj the Company may take such action as it deppropriat
to ensure that all applicable federal, state oallgayroll, withholding, income or other taxes, ahiare yot
sole and absolute responsibility, are withheldadlected from you.

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sutds as may be adopted by the Comir
administering the Plan, you may elect to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations arisingiin the
receipt of, or the lapse of restrictions relatingthe RSUs by (i) delivering cash (including chediaft, mone
order or wire transfer made payable to the ordéh@iCompany), (ii) having the Company withholdaation of
the shares of Common Stock, cash or other propthigrwise to be delivered having a Fair Market #adgjue
to the amount of such taxes, or (iii) deliveringthe Company shares of Common Stock having a Fank&
Value equal to the amount of such taxes. The Cognpalhnot deliver any fractional share of Commoto&k
but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Fair Market Valwf such fractional share of Common Stock. Yoecbr
must be made on or before the date that the anoduiax to be withheld is determined.




9. General Provisions

(@) _Interpretations This Agreement is subject in all respects totdrens of the Plan. A copy of t
Plan is available upon your request. Terms useeimeavhich are defined in the Plan shall have trspeetive
meanings given to such terms in the Plan, unldssnetse defined herein. In the event that any @iowi of thit
Agreement is inconsistent with the terms of thenPlhe terms of the Plan shall govern. Any questi
administration or interpretation arising under thiggreement shall be determined by the Commr
administering the Plan, and such determination sledfinal, conclusive and binding upon all pariiesnterest.

(b) _No Right to Board ServiceNothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall bestaued as giving yc
the right to continue to serve on the Board.

(c) _Securities MattersThe Company shall not be required to deliver ahgres of Common Stc
until the requirements of any federal or state stes or other laws, rules or regulations (inchglithe rules ¢
any securities exchange) as may be determinedeb@dmpany to be applicable are satisfied.

(d) _Headings Headings are given to the sections and subssctiérthis Agreement solely ac
convenience to facilitate reference. Such headsigdl not be deemed in any way material or relevarthe
construction or interpretation of this Agreemengny provision hereof.

(e) _Arbitration. Except for injunctive relief as set forth herethe parties agree that any disj
between the parties regarding this Agreement sieadiubmitted to binding arbitration in Orlando, rida.

() Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed and construext@ordance with the laws
the State of Florida (without giving effect to tbenflict of law principles thereof). You agree thhaé state ar
federal courts of Florida shall have jurisdictiorepo any litigation between you and the Company naigg this
Agreement, and you expressly submit to the exclugivisdiction and venue of the federal and staterte
sitting in Orange County, Florida.

(g) _Notices You should send all written notices regarding thgreement or the Plan to the Comg
at the following address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.
Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive
Orlando, FL 32837

(h) _Award Agreement and Related Documenidis Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement <
have no force or effect unless you have been rdtiliy the Company, and identified in the Compamgtords
as the recipient of a Restricted Stock Unit Awardng YOU MUST REVIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE
ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT BY EXECUT ING THIS AGREEMENT
ELECTRONICALLY VIA YOUR ESTABLISHED ACCOUNT ON THE MORGAN




STANLEY SMITH BARNEY WEBSITE WITHIN 60 DAYS OF THE DATE OF GRANT; PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, THAT THE COMMITTEE MAY, AT ITS DISCRETION, EXTEND THIS DATE.
FAILURE TO ACCEPT THE REFERENCED TERMS AND TO EXECU TE THIS AGREEMENT
ELECTRONICALLY WILL PRECLUDE YOU FROM RECEIVING YOU R RESTRICTED STOCK
UNIT GRANT. In connection with your Restricted Stock Unit grand this Award Agreement, the follow
additional documents were made available to youwtmleically, and paper copies are available on es
directed to the Company’s Compensation Departnfgrthe Plan; and (ii) a Prospectus relating toPiemn.



EXHIBIT 10(nn)

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS (INITIAL EQUITY GRANT)

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the fégment”)is between Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Fl
corporation (the “Company” or “Corporation”), andw ([ Name] ), a person notified by the Company, and ident
in the Company’s records, as the recipient of aradof Restricted Stock Units during the Companifyscal yee
. This Agreement is effective as of , the date communicated to you and set forth @nGbmpan’s
records (the “Grant Date”).

The Company wishes to award to you a number ofriResd Stock Units, subject to certain restricticas
provided in this Agreement, in order to carry dwg purpose of the Company’s 2002 Stock Incentiaa Bhe “Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby aclaunel
the Company and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Award of Restricted Stock Units.

The Company hereby grants to you, effective ahefGrant Date, an Award of Restricted Stock Urotstiia
number of Restricted Stock Units communicated to god set forth in the Company’s records (the “R$Usn the
terms and conditions set forth in such communicatibis Agreement and the Plan. Each RSU represeataght t
receive, subject to the vesting provisions setfbelow, one share of the CompanZommon Stock, no par value |
“Common Stock”).

2. Rights with Respect to the RSUSs.

The RSUs granted hereunder do not and shall netypwu any of the rights and privileges of a shalddroof
Common Stock, other than the right to receive d@imis and other distributions as provided in Sestifin) and 7(«
hereof. Your rights with respect to the RSUs stethain forfeitable at all times prior to the datedates on which su
rights become vested, and the restrictions witheetsto the RSUs lapse, in accordance with Sec8ars4 hereof.

3. Vesting.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresimine RSUs shall vest, and the restrictions wetpect t
the RSUs shall lapse, on the date or dates andeiramount or amounts communicated to you and s#t fio the
Company’s records and as reflected below, subjeBettion 4 of this Agreement.

(@) The grant of RSUs under Section 1 above shallaeshe earlier of (i) the ongear anniversary
the Grant Date and (ii) the date of the Compang)d mnnual meeting of shareholders.




4. Early Vesting; Forfeiture.

(&) If your service on the Board terminates other thgpmeason of your death or Disability (as defi
below) prior to the vesting of the RSUs pursuarfséation 3 hereof, your rights to all of the unedsRSUs she
be immediately and irrevocably forfeited.

(b) If you die prior to the vesting of the RSUs purduanSection 3 hereof, then you shall become
immediately and unconditionally vested in all RSwsl the restrictions with respect to all RSUs dlaaise on
the date of your death. No transfer by will or #pplicable laws of descent and distribution of R8s which
vest by reason of your death shall be effectivieitd the Company unless the Committee administehiadPlan
shall have been furnished with written notice affstransfer and a copy of the will or such othedence as the
Committee may deem necessary to establish theityabfithe transfer.

(c) If you become Disabled (as defined below) priothi® vesting of the RSUs pursuant to Section 3
hereof, then you shall become immediately and uditionally vested in all RSUs and the restrictiovith
respect to all RSUs shall lapse on the date onhwihie Committee administering the Plan makes the
determination that you are Disabled. For purpo$éisi®s Agreement, “Disabledtheans you have a disability ¢
to illness or injury which is expected to be pererann nature and which prevents you from perfogriie
material duties required by your regular occupatahas determined by the Committee administetiregPlan.

5. Restriction on Transfer.

Except as contemplated by Section 4(b) hereof, mdrtbe RSUs may be sold, assigned, transferredigelc
attached or otherwise encumbered, and no attentpdriefer the RSUs, whether voluntary or involuptéry operatio
of law or otherwise, shall vest the transferee \aitly interest or right in or with respect to thelRS

6. Settlement of RSUs.

No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to ymu for the date on which the RSUs vest, in accardamitl
the terms and conditions communicated to you antbsah in the Companyg records. After the RSUs vest pursua
Sections 3 or 4 hereof, the Company shall prombily,no later than 3@ays following the applicable vesting d:
cause to be issued in your name one share of ConBback for each RSU and pay to you any accumt
distributions (less applicable tax withholding) guant to Sections 7(b) and (c) hereof. Notwithstamthe foregoing
you may elect to defer the settlement of the RSl @ny accumulated distributions) beyond the ngsiate of th
RSUs. Any deferral election must be made in compkawith such rules and procedures as may be esstadlby th
Committee administering the Plan. Following paynmathe applicable withholding taxes pursuant totea 8 hereo
the Company shall promptly cause such shares ofn@mStock (less any shares withheld to pay taxed)e
delivered, either by bookntry registration or in the form of a stock céctite or certificates, registered in your ni
or in the names of your legal representatives, fi@ages or heirs, as the case may be.




7. Distributions and Adjustments.

(@) If any RSUs vest subsequent to any change in theaucor character of the Common Stock o
Company (through any stock dividend or other distiibn, recapitalization, stock split, reverse ktaplit,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-upinsgf, combination, repurchase or exchange of shar
otherwise) occurring after the Grant Date, you Isttedn receive upon such vesting the number and by
securities or other consideration which you woudvén received if such RSUs had vested prior to thea
changing the number or character of the outstan@mgmon Stock.

(b)  Any additional shares of Common Stock, any othe@ugges of the Company and any ot
property (except for cash dividends or other castributions) distributed with respect to the slsaoé Commo
Stock underlying the RSUs prior to the date or sitthe RSUs vest shall be subject to the sameatsts, term
and conditions as the RSUs to which they relate stradl be promptly deposited with the Secretarythe
Company or a custodian designated by the Secrekagysuch accumulated distributions shall be distied tc
you in accordance with Section 6 hereof. If the RStk forfeited prior to vesting, any accumulatestridhutions
payable in respect of such RSUs shall also beifede

(c) Any cash dividends or other cash distributions péyavith respect to the shares of Common £
underlying the RSUs prior to the vesting of the RSWall be distributed to you upon the settlemétite RSU
in the amount originally declared, without interestiny such accumulated cash dividends or other
distributions shall be distributed to you in acande with Section 6 hereof. If the RSUs are foetkiprior tc
vesting, any accumulated cash dividends or oth&hr destributions payable in respect of such RSadl skso b
forfeited.

8. Taxes.

(@ You acknowledge that you will consult with your genal tax advisor regarding the income
consequences of the grant of the RSUs, the vestitite RSUs, the receipt of shares of Common Sipdn th
vesting of the RSUs and any other matters relatethis Agreement. In order to comply with all applble
federal, state or local income tax laws or regatatj the Company may take such action as it deppropriat
to ensure that all applicable federal, state oallgayroll, withholding, income or other taxes, ahiare yot
sole and absolute responsibility, are withheldadlected from you.

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sutds as may be adopted by the Comir
administering the Plan, you may elect to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations arisingiin the
receipt of, or the lapse of restrictions relatingthe RSUs by (i) delivering cash (including chediaft, mone
order or wire transfer made payable to the ordéh@iCompany), (ii) having the Company withholdaation of
the shares of Common Stock, cash or other propthigrwise to be delivered having a Fair Market #adgjue
to the amount of such taxes, or (iii) deliveringthe Company shares of Common Stock having a Fank&
Value equal to the amount of such taxes. The Cognpalhnot deliver any fractional share of Commoto&k
but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Fair Market Valwf such fractional share of Common Stock. Yoecbr
must be made on or before the date that the anoduiax to be withheld is determined.




9. General Provisions

(@) _Interpretations This Agreement is subject in all respects totdrens of the Plan. A copy of t
Plan is available upon your request. Terms useeimeavhich are defined in the Plan shall have trspeetive
meanings given to such terms in the Plan, unldssnetse defined herein. In the event that any @iowi of thit
Agreement is inconsistent with the terms of thenPlhe terms of the Plan shall govern. Any questi
administration or interpretation arising under thiggreement shall be determined by the Commr
administering the Plan, and such determination sledfinal, conclusive and binding upon all pariiesnterest.

(b) _No Right to Board ServiceNothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall bestaued as giving yc
the right to continue to serve on the Board.

(c) _Securities MattersThe Company shall not be required to deliver ahgres of Common Stc
until the requirements of any federal or state stes or other laws, rules or regulations (inchglithe rules ¢
any securities exchange) as may be determinedeb@dmpany to be applicable are satisfied.

(d) _Headings Headings are given to the sections and subssctiérthis Agreement solely ac
convenience to facilitate reference. Such headsigdl not be deemed in any way material or relevarthe
construction or interpretation of this Agreemengny provision hereof.

(e) _Arbitration. Except for injunctive relief as set forth herethe parties agree that any disj
between the parties regarding this Agreement sieadiubmitted to binding arbitration in Orlando, rida.

() Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed and construext@ordance with the laws
the State of Florida (without giving effect to tbenflict of law principles thereof). You agree thhaé state ar
federal courts of Florida shall have jurisdictiorepo any litigation between you and the Company naigg this
Agreement, and you expressly submit to the exclugivisdiction and venue of the federal and staterte
sitting in Orange County, Florida.

(g) _Notices You should send all written notices regarding thgreement or the Plan to the Comg
at the following address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.
Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive
Orlando, FL 32837

(h) _Award Agreement and Related Documenidis Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement <
have no force or effect unless you have been rdtiliy the Company, and identified in the Compamgtords
as the recipient of a Restricted Stock Unit Awardng YOU MUST REVIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE
ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT BY EXECUT ING THIS AGREEMENT
ELECTRONICALLY VIA YOUR ESTABLISHED ACCOUNT ON THE MORGAN




STANLEY SMITH BARNEY WEBSITE WITHIN 60 DAYS OF THE DATE OF GRANT; PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, THAT THE COMMITTEE MAY, AT ITS DISCRETION, EXTEND THIS DATE.
FAILURE TO ACCEPT THE REFERENCED TERMS AND TO EXECU TE THIS AGREEMENT
ELECTRONICALLY WILL PRECLUDE YOU FROM RECEIVING YOU R RESTRICTED STOCK
UNIT GRANT. In connection with your Restricted Stock Unit grand this Award Agreement, the follow
additional documents were made available to youwtmleically, and paper copies are available on es
directed to the Company’s Compensation Departnfgrthe Plan; and (ii) a Prospectus relating toPiemn.



EXHIBIT 10(00)

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS (QUARTERLY GRANT IN LIEU OF CASH RETAINER)

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the fégment”)is between Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Fl
corporation (the “Company” or “Corporation’gnd you ([Name]), a person notified by the Compamgd identified i
the Company’s records, as the recipient of an Avedirestricted Stock Units during the Companfiscal year
This Agreement is effective as of [Date], the dedenmunicated to you and set forth in the Compamgcords (tF
“Grant Date”).

The Company wishes to award to you a number ofriResd Stock Units, subject to certain restricticas
provided in this Agreement, in order to carry dwg purpose of the Company’s 2002 Stock Incentiaa Bhe “Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby aclaunel
the Company and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Award of Restricted Stock Units.

The Company hereby grants to you, effective ahefGrant Date, an Award of Restricted Stock Urotstiia
number of Restricted Stock Units communicated to god set forth in the Company’s records (the “R$Usn the
terms and conditions set forth in such communicatibis Agreement and the Plan. Each RSU represeataght t
receive one share of the Company’s Common Stockan@alue (the “Common Stock”).

2. Rights with Respect to the RSUs.

The RSUs granted hereunder do not and shall netypwu any of the rights and privileges of a shaladrooi
Common Stock, other than the right to receive d@imis and other distributions as provided in Sestigfn) and 6(«
hereof.

3. Vesting.
The RSUs shall be fully vested on the Grant Date.

4. Restriction on Transfer.

No transfer by will or the applicable laws of desicand distribution of any RSUs shall be effectioeoind the
Company unless the Committee administering the stall have been furnished with written notice wélstransfer ar
a copy of the will or such other evidence as then@ittee may deem necessary to establish the wabdithe transfe
Except as contemplated by the preceding sentermee of the RSUs may be sold, assigned, transfepledgec
attached or otherwise




encumbered, and no attempt to transfer the RSUsthehvoluntary or involuntary, by operation of lawotherwise
shall vest the transferee with any interest ortriglor with respect to the RSUs.

5. Settlement of RSUs.

The Company shall promptly, but no later thanda@s following the Grant Date, cause to be issunegou
name one share of Common Stock for each RSU andgggu any accumulated distributions (less appleday
withholding) pursuant to Sections 6(b) and (c) bér&lotwithstanding the foregoing, you may electdefer th
settlement of the RSUs (and any accumulated digioibs) beyond the Grant Date. Any deferral electimist be mac
in compliance with such rules and procedures as b®yestablished by the Committee administering Rken
Following payment of the applicable withholding éaxpursuant to Section 7 hereof, the Company phathptly caus
such shares of Common Stock (less any shares Wwithih@ay taxes) to be delivered, either by beokry registratio
or in the form of a stock certificate or certifieat registered in your name or in the names of kegal representative
beneficiaries or heirs, as the case may be.

6. Distributions and Adjustments.

(@) If any RSUs settle subsequent to any change imtingber or character of the Common Stoc
the Company (through any stock dividend or othstritliution, recapitalization, stock split, revesteck split
reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-upinsgf, combination, repurchase or exchange of shar
otherwise) occurring after the Grant Date, you Istien receive upon such settlement the numbertygre o
securities or other consideration which you wouétvén received if such RSUs had settled prior toabhen
changing the number or character of the outstan@mgmon Stock.

(b)  Any additional shares of Common Stock, any othe@ugies of the Company and any ot
property (except for cash dividends or other castributions) distributed with respect to the slsaoé Commo
Stock underlying the RSUs prior to the date or sldte RSUs settle shall be subject to the samactestis
terms and conditions as the RSUs to which theyeead shall be promptly deposited with the Secyaithe
Company or a custodian designated by the Secredagysuch accumulated distributions shall be disiied tc
you in accordance with Section 5 hereof.

(c) Any cash dividends or other cash distributions psyavith respect to the shares of Common £
underlying the RSUs prior to the settlement of R®Us shall be distributed to you upon the settléméihe
RSUs in the amount originally declared, withouenest. Any such accumulated cash dividends or aths!
distributions shall be distributed to you in ac@nde with Section 5 hereof.

7. Taxes.

(@ You acknowledge that you will consult with your genal tax advisor regarding the income
consequences of the grant of the RSUs, the vestitite RSUs, the receipt of shares of Common Stpdn th
vesting of the RSUs and any other matters relatethis Agreement. In order to comply with all applble
federal, state or local income tax laws or regategj the Company may take such action as it depprejriate




to ensure that all applicable federal, state oallgayroll, withholding, income or other taxes, ahiare yot
sole and absolute responsibility, are withheldadlected from you.

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sutds as may be adopted by the Comir
administering the Plan, you may elect to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations arisingiin the
receipt of, or the lapse of restrictions relatingthe RSUs by (i) delivering cash (including chediaft, mone
order or wire transfer made payable to the ordéh@iCompany), (ii) having the Company withholdaation of
the shares of Common Stock, cash or other propthigrwise to be delivered having a Fair Market #adgjue
to the amount of such taxes, or (iii) deliveringthe Company shares of Common Stock having a Fank&
Value equal to the amount of such taxes. The Cognpalhnot deliver any fractional share of Commoto&k
but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Fair Market Valwf such fractional share of Common Stock. Yoecbr
must be made on or before the date that the anoduiax to be withheld is determined.

9. General Provisions

(@) _Interpretations This Agreement is subject in all respects totdrens of the Plan. A copy of t
Plan is available upon your request. Terms usedimevhich are defined in the Plan shall have tispeetive
meanings given to such terms in the Plan, unldssnetse defined herein. In the event that any @iowi of this
Agreement is inconsistent with the terms of thenPle terms of the Plan shall govern. Any questi
administration or interpretation arising under thgireement shall be determined by the Commr
administering the Plan, and such determination sleafinal, conclusive and binding upon all partiesnterest.

(b) _No Right to Board ServiceNothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall baestaued as giving yc
the right to continue to serve on the Board.

(c) _Securities MattersThe Company shall not be required to deliver shgres of Common Stc
until the requirements of any federal or state s@es or other laws, rules or regulations (inchglithe rules ¢
any securities exchange) as may be determinedeb@dmpany to be applicable are satisfied.

(d) Headings Headings are given to the sections and subsectérthis Agreement solely as
convenience to facilitate reference. Such headsigdl not be deemed in any way material or relevarihe
construction or interpretation of this Agreemengny provision hereof.

(e) _Arbitration. Except for injunctive relief as set forth herethe parties agree that any disj
between the parties regarding this Agreement sleadlubmitted to binding arbitration in Orlando, rida.

(H Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed and construextaordance with the laws
the State of Florida (without giving effect to tbenflict of law principles thereof). You agree thhaé state ar
federal courts of Florida shall have jurisdictioreo any litigation between you and the Company naigg this
Agreement, and you expressly submit to the exctugivisdiction and venue of the federal and staterte
sitting in Orange County, Florida.




(g) _Notices You should send all written notices regarding thgreement or the Plan to the Comg
at the following address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.
Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive
Orlando, FL 32837

(h) _Award Agreement and Related Documentdis Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement ¢
have no force or effect unless you have been rdtiliy the Company, and identified in the Compamgtords
as the recipient of a Restricted Stock Unit Awardng YOU MUST REVIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE
ACCEPTANCE OF THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT BY EXECUT ING THIS AGREEMENT
ELECTRONICALLY VIA YOUR ESTABLISHED ACCOUNT ON THE MORGAN STANLEY SMITH
BARNEY WEBSITE WITHIN 60 DAYS OF THE DATE OF GRANT; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT
THE COMMITTEE MAY, AT ITS DISCRETION, EXTEND THIS D ATE. FAILURE TO ACCEPT
THE REFERENCED TERMS AND TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ELECTRONICALLY WILL
PRECLUDE YOU FROM RECEIVING YOUR RESTRICTED STOCK U NIT GRANT. In connectio
with your Restricted Stock Unit grant and this Ad/&greement, the following additional documents everad:

available to you electronically, and paper copies available on request directed to the Compman

Compensation Department: (i) the Plan; and (iiy@pectus relating to the Plan.



EXHIBIT 10(pp)

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

FY NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS (ANNUAL
EQUITY GRANT)

This Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (the “Agment”)is between Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Floridaccatipn (th
“Company” or “Corporation”), and you, a person fietl by the Company and identified in the Compamgcords, as the recipient ¢
Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant during the Companyiscal year . This Agreement is effectiveodshe date of gra
communicated to you and set forth in the Comparecerds (the “Grant Date”).

The Company desires to provide you with an oppdtun purchase shares of the Compangommon Stock, no par value {
“Common Stock”), as provided in this Agreement ndar to carry out the purpose of the Compar8002 Stock Incentive Plan (
“Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby acletded, the Compa
and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Grant of Option

The Company hereby grants to you, effective ab@fGrant Date, the right and option (the “Optiott’purchase all or any p
of the aggregate number of shares of Common Stookrwnicated to you and set forth in the Compamgcords, on the terms ¢
conditions contained in such communication, thise®gnent and the Plan. The Option is not intendeldet@an incentive stock opti
within the meaning of Section 422 of the InternalBnue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).

2. Exercise Price

The per share purchase price of the shares subj¢ioe Option shall be the purchase price per sbammunicated to you a
set forth in the Company’s records.

3. Term of Option and Exercisability The term of the Option shall be for a period ef tyears from the Grant Dz
terminating at the close of business on the expiradate communicated to you and set forth in tben@any’s records (theExpiratior
Date”) or such shorter period as is prescribed in Se@iohthis Agreement. The Option shall become egatie, or vest, on the date
dates communicated to you and set forth in the @Gmyp records, subject to the provisions of Sectioffi #his Agreement. To the exte
the Option is exercisable, you may exercise it role or in part, at any time, or from time to tinpeior to the termination of the Option.

4. Effect of End of Board Service

(a) If your service on the Board terminates other thgameason of your death or Disability (as definetblw), any portion ¢
the Option that was not vested on your last daga#rd service shall be forfeited




and any portion of the Option that was vested amr yast day of Board service may be exercised tindéilearlier of (x) the Expiratit
Date and (y) the date that is one year after yasirday of Board service.

(b) If you die while serving on the Board, the Optidralk become immediately exercisable in full astef tdate of your dee
and may be exercised until the earlier of (x) tkkpiEation Date and (y) the date that is one yeterdhe date of your death. The Op
may be exercised by your personal representatit@ecadministrators of your estate or by any PemsdPersons to whom the Option
been transferred by will or the applicable lawslescent and distribution.

(c) If you become Disabled (as defined below) whilevggy on the Board, the Option shall become immetija¢xercisabl
in full as of the Disability Date (as defined beljoand may be exercised until the earlier of (xX) Expiration Date and (y) the date the
one year after the date on which the Committee aidbering the Plan makes the determination that gr@uDisabled (theDisability
Date”). The Option may be exercised by your persogresentative. For purposes of this Agreemedbisabled” or “Disability” mean
you have a disability due to illness or injury whiis expected to be permanent in nature and whietiepts you from performing t
material duties required by your regular occupatahas determined by the Committee administetiregPlan.

5. Method of Exercising Option

(&) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresimgou may exercise your Option by following theogedure
established by the Company from time to time. Idit@h, you may exercise your Option by writteninetto the Company as provic
in Section 8 of this Agreement that states (i) yelection to exercise the Option, (ii) the Grantdaf the Option, (iii) the purchase pt
of the shares, (iv) the number of shares as tolwtlie Option is being exercised, (v) the mannepafment and (vi) the manner
payment for any income tax withholding amount. Hlatice shall be signed by you or the Perso®ersons exercising the Option.
notice shall be accompanied by payment in fullhef éxercise price for all shares designated imttiee. To the extent that the Optio
exercised after your death or the Disability D#te, notice of exercise shall also be accompanieablpyopriate proof of the right of st
Person or Persons to exercise the Option.

(b) Payment of the exercise price shall be made t&€tmapany through one or a combination of the follggunethods:

0] cash, in United States currency (including chedlaftd money order or wire transfer made payablethi
Company); or

(i) delivery (either actual delivery or by attestatiaf)shares of Common Stock acquired by you more #iz
months prior to the date of exercise having a Mairket Value on the date of exercise equal to thddd exercise price. Y
shall represent and warrant in writing that youtaeeowner of the shares so delivered, free arat call liens, encumbranc
security interests and restrictions, and you ghal} endorse in blank all certificates deliveredite Company.

6. Taxes.

(@) You acknowledge that you will consult with your penal tax adviser regarding the income tax consempse 0
exercising the Option or any other matters relabethis Agreement. If you are employed by




the Company or an Affiliate of the Company, in artle comply with all applicable federal, state,dbor foreign income tax laws
regulations, the Company may take such action deseiins appropriate to ensure that all applicaldlertd, state, local or foreign payr
withholding, income or other taxes, which are ysole and absolute responsibility, are withheldallected from you.

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sulgds as may be adopted by the Committee admiimigténe Plan, yo
may elect to satisfy any applicable tax withholdoigigations arising from the exercise of the Optly (i) delivering cash (includit
check, draft, money order or wire transfer madeap&yto the order of the Company), (ii) having @@mpany withhold a portion of t
shares of Common Stock otherwise to be deliveranh igxercise of the Option having a Fair Market ¢afigual to the amount of st
taxes or (i) delivering to the Company shareCaoimmon Stock having a Fair Market Value equal ® dmount of such taxes. 1
Company will not deliver any fractional share off@aon Stock but will pay, in lieu thereof, the F&larket Value of such fractior
share. Your election must be made on or beforeldbe that the amount of tax to be withheld is deteed.

7. Adjustments

In the event that the Committee administering tlen RBhall determine that any dividend or otherritistion (whether in th
form of cash, shares of Common Stock, other séesiritr other property), recapitalization, stocktspéverse stock split, reorganizati
merger, consolidation, split-up, spaff, combination, repurchase or exchange of sharesther securities of the Company, issuant
warrants or other rights to purchase shares or atheurities of the Company or other similar cogpertransaction or event affects
shares covered by the Option such that an adjustimeletermined by the Committee administeringRten to be appropriate in orde
prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefitspotential benefits intended to be made availabléeurthis Agreement, then 1
Committee administering the Plan shall, in such mearas it may deem equitable, in its sole discretamljust any or all of the numl
and type of the shares covered by the Option améxkercise price of the Option.

8. General Provisions

(a) Interpretations This Agreement is subject in all respects tottrens of the Plan. A copy of the Plan is availaiper
your request. Terms used herein which are defingtlé Plan shall have the respective meanings dgivench terms in the Plan, unl
otherwise defined herein. In the event that anyigion of this Agreement is inconsistent with tkens of the Plan, the terms of the |
shall govern. Any question of administration orempiretation arising under this Agreement shall be&hnined by the Committ
administering the Plan, and such determination &leafinal, conclusive and binding upon all partiesnterest.

(b) No Rights as a ShareholdeNeither you nor your legal representatives shalle any of the rights and privileges «
shareholder of the Company with respect to theeshaf Common Stock subject to the Option unlessuanil such shares are issi
upon exercise of the Option.

(c) No Right to Board ServiceNothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall bastaued as giving you the right to continu
serve on the Board.

(d) Option Not Transferable Except as otherwise provided by the Plan or ey Glmmmittee administering the Plan,
Option shall not be transferable other than by @rilby the laws of descent and




distribution and the Option shall be exercisablarduyour lifetime only by you or, if permissiblender applicable law, by your guard
or legal representative. The Option may not be geed alienated, attached or otherwise encumbernsdi,aay purported pled¢
alienation, attachment or encumbrance of the Opsioall be void and unenforceable against the Cogmanany Affiliate of thi
Company.

(e) Reservation of SharesThe Company shall at all times during the ternthe&f Option reserve and keep available
number of shares of Common Stock as will be sw#fitto satisfy the requirements of this Agreement.

()  Securities Matters The Company shall not be required to deliver simgres of Common Stock until the requiremen
any federal or state securities or other laws sroleregulations (including the rules of any sd@sgiexchange) as may be determine
the Company to be applicable are satisfied.

() Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsectibithis Agreement solely as a convenience tditaie
reference. Such headings shall not be deemed ivagymaterial or relevant to the construction deiipretation of this Agreement
any provision hereof.

(h)  Arbitration . Except for injunctive relief as set forth herdime parties agree that any dispute between thegaegardin
this Agreement shall be submitted to binding aalidn in Orlando, Florida.

()  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construeatgordance with the laws of the State of Flc
(without giving effect to the conflict of law prifgles thereof). Employee agrees that the statefeaieral courts of Florida shall he
jurisdiction over any litigation between you anck tBompany regarding this Agreement, and you exlyresgbmit to the exclusiy
jurisdiction and venue of the federal and statetsaitting in Orange County, Florid

()] Notices. You should send all written notices regardings tAgreement or the Plan to the Company at the \iartig
address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.

Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive

Orlando, FL 32837

(k)  Award Agreement and Related Documenikhis NonQualified Stock Option Agreement shall have no éoce effec
unless you have been notified by the Company, detified in the Company’s records, as the recipiém NonQualified Stock Optio
grant. YOU MUST REVIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE ACCEPTANCE ©THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT BY EXECUTIN
THIS AGREEMENT ELECTRONICALLY VIA YOUR ESTABLISHED ACCOUNT ON THE MORGAN STANLEY SMITtH
BARNEY WEBSITE. FAILURE TO ACCEPT THE REFERENCED RS AND TO EXCUTE THIS AGREEMEN
ELECTRONICALLY WILL PRECLUDE YOU FROM RECEIVING YOR STOCK OPTION GRANT. In connection with your Non:
Qualified Stock Option grant and this Award Agreemehe following additional documents were madailable to you electronicall
and paper copies are available on request dir¢otdte Company Compensation Department: (i) the Plan; and [y@spectus relati
to the Plan.




EXHIBIT 10(aq)

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

FY __ NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT FOR NO N-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS (INITIAL EQUITY
GRANT)

This Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (the “Agment”)is between Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Floridaccatipn (th
“Company” or “Corporation”), and you, a person fietl by the Company and identified in the Compamgcords, as the recipient ¢
Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant during the Companyiscal year . This Agreement is effectiveodshe date of gra
communicated to you and set forth in the Comparecerds (the “Grant Date”).

The Company desires to provide you with an oppdtun purchase shares of the Compangommon Stock, no par value {
“Common Stock”), as provided in this Agreement ndar to carry out the purpose of the Compar8002 Stock Incentive Plan (
“Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby acletded, the Compa
and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Grant of Option

The Company hereby grants to you, effective ab@fGrant Date, the right and option (the “Optiott’purchase all or any p
of the aggregate number of shares of Common Stookrwnicated to you and set forth in the Compamgcords, on the terms ¢
conditions contained in such communication, thise®gnent and the Plan. The Option is not intendeldet@an incentive stock opti
within the meaning of Section 422 of the InternalBnue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).

2. Exercise Price

The per share purchase price of the shares subj¢ioe Option shall be the purchase price per sbammunicated to you a
set forth in the Company’s records.

3. Term of Option and Exercisability The term of the Option shall be for a period ef tyears from the Grant Dz
terminating at the close of business on the expiradate communicated to you and set forth in tben@any’s records (theExpiratior
Date”) or such shorter period as is prescribed in Se@iohthis Agreement. The Option shall become egatie, or vest, on the date
dates communicated to you and set forth in the @Gmyp records, subject to the provisions of Sectioffi #his Agreement. To the exte
the Option is exercisable, you may exercise it role or in part, at any time, or from time to tinpeior to the termination of the Option.

4. Effect of End of Board Service

(a) If your service on the Board terminates other thgameason of your death or Disability (as definetblw), any portion ¢
the Option that was not vested on your last daga#rd service shall be forfeited




and any portion of the Option that was vested amr yast day of Board service may be exercised tindéilearlier of (x) the Expiratit
Date and (y) the date that is one year after yasirday of Board service.

(b) If you die while serving on the Board, the Optidralk become immediately exercisable in full astef tdate of your dee
and may be exercised until the earlier of (x) tkkpiEation Date and (y) the date that is one yeterdhe date of your death. The Op
may be exercised by your personal representatit@ecadministrators of your estate or by any PemsdPersons to whom the Option
been transferred by will or the applicable lawslescent and distribution.

(c) If you become Disabled (as defined below) whilevggy on the Board, the Option shall become immetija¢xercisabl
in full as of the Disability Date (as defined beljoand may be exercised until the earlier of (xX) Expiration Date and (y) the date the
one year after the date on which the Committee aidbering the Plan makes the determination that gr@uDisabled (theDisability
Date”). The Option may be exercised by your persogresentative. For purposes of this Agreemedbisabled” or “Disability” mean
you have a disability due to illness or injury whiis expected to be permanent in nature and whietiepts you from performing t
material duties required by your regular occupatahas determined by the Committee administetiregPlan.

5. Method of Exercising Option

(&) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresimgou may exercise your Option by following theogedure
established by the Company from time to time. Idit@h, you may exercise your Option by writteninetto the Company as provic
in Section 8 of this Agreement that states (i) yelection to exercise the Option, (ii) the Grantdaf the Option, (iii) the purchase pt
of the shares, (iv) the number of shares as tolwtlie Option is being exercised, (v) the mannepafment and (vi) the manner
payment for any income tax withholding amount. Tlatice shall be signed by you or the Person ordPargxercising the Option. T
notice shall be accompanied by payment in fullhef éxercise price for all shares designated imttiee. To the extent that the Optio
exercised after your death or the Disability D#te, notice of exercise shall also be accompanieablpyopriate proof of the right of st
Person or Persons to exercise the Option.

(b) Payment of the exercise price shall be made t&€tmapany through one or a combination of the follggunethods:

0] cash, in United States currency (including chedlaftd money order or wire transfer made payablethi
Company); or

(i) delivery (either actual delivery or by attestatiaf)shares of Common Stock acquired by you more #iz
months prior to the date of exercise having a Mairket Value on the date of exercise equal to thddd exercise price. Y
shall represent and warrant in writing that youtaeeowner of the shares so delivered, free arat call liens, encumbranc
security interests and restrictions, and you ghal} endorse in blank all certificates deliveredite Company.

6. Taxes.

(@) You acknowledge that you will consult with your penal tax adviser regarding the income tax consempse 0
exercising the Option or any other matters relabethis Agreement. If you are employed by




the Company or an Affiliate of the Company, in artle comply with all applicable federal, state,dbor foreign income tax laws
regulations, the Company may take such action deseiins appropriate to ensure that all applicaldlertd, state, local or foreign payr
withholding, income or other taxes, which are ysole and absolute responsibility, are withheldallected from you.

(b) In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sulgds as may be adopted by the Committee admiimigténe Plan, yo
may elect to satisfy any applicable tax withholdoigigations arising from the exercise of the Optly (i) delivering cash (includit
check, draft, money order or wire transfer madeap&yto the order of the Company), (ii) having @@mpany withhold a portion of t
shares of Common Stock otherwise to be deliveranh igxercise of the Option having a Fair Market ¢afigual to the amount of st
taxes or (i) delivering to the Company shareCaoimmon Stock having a Fair Market Value equal ® dmount of such taxes. 1
Company will not deliver any fractional share off@aon Stock but will pay, in lieu thereof, the F&larket Value of such fractior
share. Your election must be made on or beforeldbe that the amount of tax to be withheld is deteed.

7. Adjustments

In the event that the Committee administering tlen RBhall determine that any dividend or otherritistion (whether in th
form of cash, shares of Common Stock, other séesiritr other property), recapitalization, stocktspéverse stock split, reorganizati
merger, consolidation, split-up, spaff, combination, repurchase or exchange of sharesther securities of the Company, issuant
warrants or other rights to purchase shares or atheurities of the Company or other similar cogpertransaction or event affects
shares covered by the Option such that an adjustimeletermined by the Committee administeringRten to be appropriate in orde
prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefitspotential benefits intended to be made availabléeurthis Agreement, then 1
Committee administering the Plan shall, in such mearas it may deem equitable, in its sole discretamljust any or all of the numl
and type of the shares covered by the Option améxkercise price of the Option.

8. General Provisions

(a) Interpretations This Agreement is subject in all respects tottrens of the Plan. A copy of the Plan is availaiper
your request. Terms used herein which are defingtlé Plan shall have the respective meanings dgivench terms in the Plan, unl
otherwise defined herein. In the event that anyigion of this Agreement is inconsistent with tkens of the Plan, the terms of the |
shall govern. Any question of administration orempiretation arising under this Agreement shall be&hnined by the Committ
administering the Plan, and such determination &leafinal, conclusive and binding upon all partiesnterest.

(b) No Rights as a ShareholdeNeither you nor your legal representatives shalle any of the rights and privileges «
shareholder of the Company with respect to theeshaf Common Stock subject to the Option unlessuanil such shares are issi
upon exercise of the Option.

(c) No Right to Board ServiceNothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall bastaued as giving you the right to continu
serve on the Board.

(d) Option Not Transferable Except as otherwise provided by the Plan or ey Glmmmittee administering the Plan,
Option shall not be transferable other than by @rilby the laws of descent and




distribution and the Option shall be exercisablarduyour lifetime only by you or, if permissiblender applicable law, by your guard
or legal representative. The Option may not be geed alienated, attached or otherwise encumbernsdi,aay purported pled¢
alienation, attachment or encumbrance of the Opsioall be void and unenforceable against the Cogmanany Affiliate of thi
Company.

(e) Reservation of SharesThe Company shall at all times during the ternthe&f Option reserve and keep available
number of shares of Common Stock as will be sw#fitto satisfy the requirements of this Agreement.

()  Securities Matters The Company shall not be required to deliver simgres of Common Stock until the requiremen
any federal or state securities or other laws sroleregulations (including the rules of any sd@sgiexchange) as may be determine
the Company to be applicable are satisfied.

() Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsectibithis Agreement solely as a convenience tditaie
reference. Such headings shall not be deemed ivagymaterial or relevant to the construction deiipretation of this Agreement
any provision hereof.

(h)  Arbitration . Except for injunctive relief as set forth herdime parties agree that any dispute between thegaegardin
this Agreement shall be submitted to binding aalidn in Orlando, Florida.

()  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construeatgordance with the laws of the State of Flc
(without giving effect to the conflict of law prifgles thereof). Employee agrees that the statefeaieral courts of Florida shall he
jurisdiction over any litigation between you anck tBompany regarding this Agreement, and you exlyresgbmit to the exclusiy
jurisdiction and venue of the federal and statetsaitting in Orange County, Florid

()] Notices. You should send all written notices regardings tAgreement or the Plan to the Company at the \iartig
address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.

Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive

Orlando, FL 32837

(k)  Award Agreement and Related Documenikhis NonQualified Stock Option Agreement shall have no éoce effec
unless you have been notified by the Company, detified in the Company’s records, as the recipiém NonQualified Stock Optio
grant. YOU MUST REVIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE ACCEPTANCE ©THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT BY EXECUTIN
THIS AGREEMENT ELECTRONICALLY VIA YOUR ESTABLISHED ACCOUNT ON THE MORGAN STANLEY SMITtH
BARNEY WEBSITE. FAILURE TO ACCEPT THE REFERENCED RS AND TO EXCUTE THIS AGREEMEN
ELECTRONICALLY WILL PRECLUDE YOU FROM RECEIVING YOR STOCK OPTION GRANT. In connection with your Non:
Qualified Stock Option grant and this Award Agreemehe following additional documents were madailable to you electronicall
and paper copies are available on request dir¢otdte Company Compensation Department: (i) the Plan; and [y@spectus relati
to the Plan.




EXHIBIT 10(rr)
DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.

CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

THIS CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement’petwee
Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Florida corporatioa {tbompany”), and NAME OF EXECUTIVE] (the “Executive”)is hereby entere
into as of the date this Agreement is signed byEkecutive.

WHEREAS, the Company considers it essential to efoghe continuot
employment of the Executive and recognizes thapthesibility of a Change in Control (as hereinaftefined) of the Company exi
and that such possibility, and the uncertainty thatay cause, may result in the departure oratision of the Executive, to the detrim
of the Company and its stockholders; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to encourage theragedi employment of tl
Executive by the Company and wants assurancetthhall have the continued dedication, loyalty aedvice of, and the availability
objective advice and counsel from, the Executivievitbstanding the possibility, threat or occurrené@ Change in Control.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual pises and agreeme
contained in this Agreement and other good andaldéuconsideration, the receipt and sufficiencyvbfch are hereby acknowledg
the Executive and the Company hereby agree asvilo

1. Certain Definitions In addition to those terms elsewhere definedihemhen used herein, the following capitali
terms shall have the meanings indicated belowigSkction 1.

(@) “ Accounting Firm” means a nationally recognized accounting firm,anarial, benefits or compensat
consulting firm (with experience in performing tbalculations regarding the applicability of Codet8® 280G and of the tax impos
by Code Section 4999) selected by the Company irmatedd prior to a Change in Control.

(b) “ Base Salary means the Executive’annual base salary at the rate in effect atithe the Notice ¢
Termination was given without giving effect to amguction thereof that would constitute groundsafeesignation for Good Reason.

(c) “ Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(d) “ Caus€’ means (i) an act or acts of fraud or misapprdfmaon the Executive part which result in or &
intended to result in the Executigepersonal enrichment at the expense of the Comaadywvhich constitute a criminal offense ur
State or Federal laws, (ii) the Executive’s congiddiailure to substantially perform the Executssduties with the Company (other tl
any such failure resulting from the Executsehcapacity due to physical or mental illnessjemf written demand for substan
performance is delivered to the Executive[tpr the CEO: the Applicable Board (as defined bglévior other executives: the Ch
Executive Officer of the Comparjy, which demand specifically identifies the manmewhich|[ for the CEO: the Applicable Board /
other executives: the Chief Executive Officer ok t@ompany] believes that the Executive has not substantiadlyfopmed th
Executive’s duties; (iii) the Executive'willful engagement in conduct that is demonsiradoid materially injurious to the Compa
monetarily or otherwise; or (iv) the




Executives conviction of, or entering into a plea of eitlgeilty or nolo contendere to, any felony, includifigit not limited to, a felor
involving moral turpitude, embezzlement, theft omitar act that occurred during or in the coursdte Executives employment wit
the Company.

The Executive’s termination of employment shall het deemed to be for “Causehless and until the Compe
delivers to the Executive a copy of a resolutioty@dopted by the affirmative vote of a majoritytbhé Board, or if the Company is |
the ultimate parent corporation of the Affiliate@r@panies (as defined below) and is not publichded, the board of directors of
ultimate parent of the Company (the “Applicable Biia (excluding the Executive, if the Executive is a membf the Applicabl
Board), finding that the Executive is guilty of tbenduct described in any of clauses iff)-&bove, after having afforded the Executi
reasonable opportunity to appear in person togethittr counsel before the Applicable Board and tespnt such evidence as
Executive deemed appropriate. For purposes ofAgieement, an act, or failure to act, shall nodeemed to be “willful’unless it i
done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive id fath or without a reasonable belief that thecacior omission was in the b
interests of the Company.

(e) “ Change in Contrdl means:

i. Any individual, entity or group (within the meanitg Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securi
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchang®)A@ “Person”)becomes the beneficial owner (within the meanir
Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act)08b ®r more of either (x) the thautstanding shares of common stoc
the Company (the “Outstanding Company Common Sock’(y) the combined voting power of the themstanding votin
securities of the Company entitled to vote gengiriallthe election of directors (the “Outstandingn@xany Voting Securitie3;
provided, however, that, for purposes of this Secti(e), the following acquisitions shall not cagé a Change of Control: (.
any acquisition directly from the Company, (B) amquisition by the Company, (C) any acquisitionamy employee bene
plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintainedheyCompany or any company controlled by, contrgllor under commc
control with the Company (an “Affiliated Companydj (D) any acquisition pursuant to a transactiat tomplies with Sectio

1(e)(i(x), (v) and (2);

ii. Consummation of a reorganization, merger, statuthrgre exchange or consolidation or sin
transaction involving the Company or any of itssdlaries, a sale or other disposition of all dosantially all of the assets
the Company, or the acquisition of assets or sgesirdof another entity by the Company or any ofsitbsidiaries (each,
“Business Combination”Jn each case unless, following such Business Caatibim, (x) all or substantially all of the individls
and entities that were the beneficial owners of@utstanding Company Common Stock and the Outsigndompany Votin
Securities immediately prior to such Business Coratidn beneficially own, directly or indirectly, meothan 50% of the then-
outstanding shares of common stock (or, for a canporate entity, equivalent securities) and thalgioed voting power of tt
then-outstanding voting securities entitled to vgéaerally in the election of directors (or, fon@n-corporate entity, equivale
governing body), as the case may be, of the ergiylting from such Business Combination (includiwithout limitation, a
entity that, as a result of such transaction, othesCompany or all or substantially all of the Camyp's assets either directly
through one or more subsidiaries) in substantitdy same proportions as their ownership immediatelyr to such Busine
Combination of the Outstanding Company Common Stouk the Outstanding Company Voting Securitieshasase may k
(y) no Person (excluding any entity resulting freath Business Combination or any employee benliit or related trust)
the Company or such entity resulting from such Bess Combination) beneficially




owns, directly or indirectly, 30% or more of, respeely, the then-outstanding shares of commonksfoc, for a noneorporat
entity, equivalent securities) of the entity resgtfrom such Business Combination or the combinaiihg power of the then-
outstanding voting securities of such entity, exdepthe extent that such ownership existed poahe Business Combinatic
and (z) at least a majority of the members of tharth of directors (or, for a naserporate entity, equivalent governing body
the entity resulting from such Business Combinatiere members of the Board at the time of the ed@twf the initia
agreement or of the action of the Board providimgsuch Business Combination; or

iii. Approval by the stockholders of the Company of anplete liquidation or dissolution of t

Company.
) “ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as aatkend
(9) “ Date of Terminatiori means (i) if the Executive’ employment is terminated by the Company for C,

the date of receipt of the Notice of Termination @ause or any later date specified therein (whete shall be not more than thirty (
days after giving such notice), as the case mayjiipé,the Executives employment is terminated by the Executive for GBeason, tt
30th day following receipt by the Company of thetis® of Termination for Good Reason if the Compdails to cure the conditic
giving rise to Good Reason during the &y cure period, or any later date specified timer@s the case may be, provided that suct
may not be more than sixty (60) days following @@mpany’s receipt of the Notice of Terminationi) (ii the Executives employmer
is terminated by the Company other than for Caus®isability, the date on which the Company nofifithe Executive of su
termination, (iv) if the Executive’ employment is terminated by reason of death ealbiity, the date of death of the Executive ol
date on which it is determined that the Executiae & Disability, as the case may be, and (v) iBkecutives employment is terminat
by the Executive without Good Reason (and not @uBisability), the date of receipt of the Notice BDérmination or any later d¢
specified therein (which date shall be not morettidrty (30) days after giving such notice), as ttase may be. Notwithstanding
foregoing, in no event shall the Date of Terminatiecur until the Executive experiences a “sepamdtiom service’'within the meanin
of Section 409A of the Code, and the date on whigth separation from service takes place shati&éDate of Termination.”

(h) “ Disability " means a physical or mental disability which mathrimterferes with the capacity of t
Executive in fulfilling the Executive's responsitigs and which shall qualify the Executive for atidity benefits under the Company-

sponsored plan in which the Executive participates.

0] “ Effective Date” means the first date during the Contract Periodiéimed in Section 2 hereof) on whic
Change in Control occurs.

()] “ Excise Tax” means, collectively, (i) the tax imposed by Sec#®99 of the Code, (ii) any similar 1
imposed by state or local law, and (iii) any ingtrer penalties with respect to any tax describedduse (i) or (ii).

(k) “ Good Reasofi means:

i. without the express written consent of the Exeeau(ix) the assignment to the Executive of any d
inconsistent in any substantial respect with thedttive’s position, authority




or responsibilities as in effect during the @y period immediately preceding the Effective DatgB) any other substant
adverse change in such position (including titlasthority or responsibilities;

i. a material reduction in the Executive’s base salagget annual bonus opportunity, lotegm incentiv
opportunity or aggregate employee benefits as fecefmmediately prior to the Effective Date, otliban (A) an inadverte
failure remedied by the Company promptly after igtcef notice thereof given by the Executive or (g&}h respect to aggreg:
employee benefits only, any such failure resultiram an across-thbeard reduction in employee benefits applicablelt
similarly situated employees of the Company gehgerat

ii. any failure by the Company to obtain the assumpéind agreement to perform this Agreement
successor as contemplated by Section 9(e).

The Executive shall only have Good Reason if (A) Executive has provided Notice of Terminationii® Company ¢
any of the foregoing conditions within ninety (ays of the initial existence of the condition, (B¢ Company has been given at |
thirty (30) days following receipt of such notiae dure such condition, and (C) if such conditioma$ cured within such thirty (30) d
period, the Executive actually terminates employnveithin sixty (60) days after the Notice of Terration. The Executive’ mental ¢
physical incapacity following the occurrence ofearent described above in clauses (i) throughgfigll not affect the Executiveability
to terminate employment for Good Reason and thelke's death following delivery of a Notice of Termirati for Good Reast
shall not affect the Executive's estaentitlement to severance payments provided hdegumpon a termination of employment
Good Reason.

)] “ Notice of Termination” means a written notice of termination of employmfant Cause given by tl
Company to the Executive or a written notice ofrtimation of employment for Good Reason or othenmgisen by the Executive to t
Company, in either case in the manner specifig8ecation 9(k), which (i) indicates the specific té@mation provision in this Agreeme
relied upon, (ii) sets forth in reasonable detad facts and circumstances claimed to provide & hastermination of the Executive’
employment under the provision so indicated anpqjiecifies the Date of Termination.

(m) “ Qualifying Termination” means the Executive’termination of employment initiated by the Comy
other than for Cause or by reason of the Executidgeath or Disability, or initiated by the Execatifor Good Reason, in either ¢
during the time period commencing on the Effecdate and continuing until the earlier of (i) theotyear anniversary of such date
(ii) the date of the Executive’s termination of doynent by reason of death or Disability.

(n) “ Release” means an agreement under which the Executive psva release of claims against
Company in a form provided to the Executive by @a@mpany in connection with the payment of the saves benefits under tl
Agreement.

(0) “ Release Consideration Peribtheans the period of time specified by the Releaseto exceed fort§ive
(45) days, during which the Executive is permiti@donsider whether or not to sign the Release.

(9)) “ Release Revocation Periédmeans the period of time specified by the Releasefo exceed seven
days, during which the Executive is permitted teoke the executed Release.




(a) “ Target Bonus means the Executive'target annual cash incentive in effect for tkedl year in which tt
Date of Termination occurs.

2. Contract Period The “Contract Periodis the period commencing on the date this Agreenmrsigned by tt
Executive and ending on the next December 31 afteh date; provided that, on such December 31parghch annual anniversary
such date (such date and each annual anniversargothshall be hereinafter referred to as the “ReheDate”), unless previous
terminated, the Contract Period shall be automljtiextended for one additional year, unless astlighirty (30) days prior to a
Renewal Date, the Company shall give notice toBEkecutive that the Contract Period shall not beestended, in which case t
Agreement shall terminate on such next Decembéth&l“Expiration Date”) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event th&teang
in Control occurs prior to the Expiration Date,stifigreement shall remain effective indefinitely réedfter with respect to any and
consequences flowing from that Change in Contrdlenrthe terms of this Agreement. However, aftethar@e in Control, the Compe
may terminate this Agreement with respect to amh&r Change in Control that might occur after auifea Renewal Date by giving
notice of non-renewal to the Executive as contetegdlabove in this Section 2.

3. Obligations of the Company upon Qualifying Temation. Upon a Qualifying Termination, the Executive $hse
entitled to receive the payments described in $@stion 3, subject to the Release requirement fepedielow. Within seven (7) da
following the Date of Termination, the Company $tmbvide the Executive with a Release substagtialithe form of the Relea
attached hereto as_Exhibit AAs a condition of receiving the severance paynaascribed in Section 3(b) below, the Executive t
execute and deliver the Release to the Companyinwitie Release Consideration Period, the Releasedagon Period must exp
without revocation of the Release by the Executarg] the Executive must comply with the restrictbeenants set out in Sectio
hereof. In the event the Executive breaches omeooe of such restrictive covenants, the Executhadl dorfeit or repay to the Compal
as applicable, the amount of such severance payment

(&8 The Company shall pay to the Executive, in a luram gn cash within thirty (30) days after the Datk
Termination, the Executive’'s Base Salary throughate of Termination if not theretofore paid (tAecrued Base Salary”).

(b)  The Company shall pay to the Executive, in a lummdn cash within sixty (60) days after the Datt
Termination (except as provided in Section 7 hgrébé aggregate of the following amounts:

i. an amount equal tpfor the CEO: two (2) times / for other executivese and one-half (1.5) timgghe
sum of (i) the Base Salary and (ii) the Target Byrand

i. anamount equal fofor the CEO: twenty-four (24) / for other execusveighteen (18)times the month!
COBRA charge in effect on the Date of Terminationthe type of Compangrovided group health plan coverage in effec
the Executive (e.g., family coverage) on the Ddt&armination less the monthly active employee ghkdior such coverage
effect on the Date of Termination.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the sixty (60)ydperiod referenced above in this Section 3(b) wild during
different taxable year of the Executive than thedrive’s taxable year in which the Date of Terminationusscthen, to the extent tl
the severance payment provided for in this Sec3idm) constitutes nonqualified deferred compensasiainject to Section 409A of t
Code, the severance payment shall not be madereidudin the first business day of the later of daghble years.




4. Termination of Employment due to Death or Diligbi. If, within two (2) years after the Effective Datthe
Executive’'s employment is terminated by reasorhefExecutives death or Disability, the Company shall pay toHxecutive with th
Accrued Base Salary within thirty (30) days of thate of Termination, and shall have no other sex@raobligations under tt
Agreement.

5. Termination of Employment by the Executive ottiean for Good Reason or by the Company for Caugewithin
two years after the Effective Date, (x) the Exemi8 employment is terminated by the Company for Causéy) the Executiv
voluntary terminates the Executigeemployment other than for Good Reason, the Coynglaall pay to the Executive the Accrued E
Salary within thirty (30) days of the Date of Temafion, and shall have no other severance obligatimder this Agreement.

6. Restrictive Covenants

(&) NonDisparagement The Executive agrees that the Compamgputation and goodwill in the marketplace i
utmost importance and value to the Company. Thelike further agrees not to make, publish or cdaadee published any public
private statement or comments disparaging or defarfie Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates, Board or the management of th
companies. The Executive acknowledges and agressthis prohibition extends to statements, writtgnverbal, made to anyol
including but not limited to, the news media, cotitpes, vendors, and employees (past and preseime) Executive further understal
and agrees that this Section is a material pravisfathis Agreement and that any breach of thigi8eshall be a material breach of -
Agreement, and that the Company would be irrepgrfaétmed by violation of this provision.

(b) No Reemployment The Executive agrees that the Executive is nigibéd for reemployment or independ
contractor status with the Company and hereby vgaamy claim of right to reemployment by the Compaimgluding any of it
subsidiaries or affiliates. The Executive also adiet the Executive is not now seeking and stalimthe future seek employment
independent contractor status with the Company. Bxecutive agrees that if, for some reason, theclikee is reemployed by t
Company in any capacity, such employment shallinmmediately terminated upon the Compangliscovery of such employment. ~
Executive further agrees that upon the Compamgrmination of such employment, the Executivdlshake no claim whatsoever a
result of such termination.

(c) Cooperation The Executive agrees that after the Date of Teaiion, the Executive shall make the Exect
available at reasonable times, intervals and pléareisiterviews, consultations, internal investigas and/or testimony during which
Executive shall provide to the Company, or its geated attorneys or agents, any and all informatiamwn to the Executive regardi
or relating to the Company or the Executi/elctivities on behalf of the Company pertainingtiie subject matter on which -
Executives cooperation is sought. The Executive agrees rmire involved for so long as any such matters shallpending. TF
Executive further agrees that if the Executive veresubpoenaed or otherwise required by law to igeowany statement or otl
assistance to a party to a dispute or litigatiothwhie Company, other than the Company, then tleelie shall provide written noti
of the circumstances requiring such statement leeradssistance, including where applicable a cdgheosubpoena or other legal w
in such a manner and at such a time that allowsCtiapany to timely respond. Nothing herein shaélvent the Executive fro
cooperating with calefendants in litigation or with inquiry in a gowement investigation without a need to obtain pdonsent ¢
approval from the Company; provided, however, thedttive shall provide prompt notice of any volugta




giving of oral or written statements to such patiend provide to the Company a copy of any writiaement so given or a summar
any oral statement provided.

(d) Non-Disclosure.

i. During the course of the Executive’'s employment, Etxecutive has received some or all of the Comigan
various Trade Secrets (as defined under applidableand confidential or proprietary informationhieh includes the followin
whether in physical or electronic form: (1) datad asompilations of data related to Business Oppdias) (2) compute
software, hardware, network and internet technolaijized, modified or enhanced by the Companyyybu in furtherance
your duties with the Company; (3) compilations @ftad concerning Company products, services, custnaerd end use
including but not limited to compilations concermgiprojected sales, new project timelines, inventeports, sales, and cost .
expense reports; (4) compilations of informatiomwththe Compang employees and independent contracting consult¢s)
the Companys financial information, including, without limitah, amounts charged to customers and amounts exhaogth:
Company by its vendors, suppliers, and service igess; (6) proposals submitted to the Compangustomers, potent
customers, wholesalers, distributors, vendors, lgngpand service providers; (7) the Companyharketing strategies &
compilations of marketing data; (8) compilationsdafta or information concerning, and communicatiand agreements wi
vendors, suppliers and licensors to the Companyoéimel sources of technology, products, servicesoarponents used in 1
Company'’s business; (9) the Companyesearch and development records and data; 8héri¥ summary, extract or analy
of such information together with information threts been received or disclosed to the Company yyhaml party as to whic
the Company has an obligation to treat as confiderfall of which constitutes “Confidential Inforrtian”). “Busines
Opportunities”"means all ideas, concepts or information receivedeveloped (in whatever form) by the Executiveaarning
any business, transaction or potential transadtiahconstitutes or may constitute an opporturotytie Company to earn a
or income, specifically including those relationshithat were initiated, nourished or developedhat Companys expens:
Confidential Information does not include data wiormation: (1) which has been voluntarily discidge the public by tt
Company, except where such public disclosure has beade by you without authorization from the Conypd2) which ha
been independently developed and disclosed by sitleer(3) which has otherwise entered the publimaio through lawft
means.

i. All Confidential Information, Trade Secrets, and plysical and electronic embodiments thereof
confidential and are and shall remain the soleexwilisive property of the Company. For a perioéivaf (5) years following th
date on which the Executiveemployment with the Company terminates, the Bxexwagrees that the Executive shall prc
any such Confidential Information and Trade Secaets shall not, except in connection with the prniance of your remaini
duties for the Company, use, disclose or otherw@g®y, reproduce, distribute or otherwise dissemiraaty such Confident
Information or Trade Secrets, or any physical ecgbnic embodiments thereof, to any third partgvfded, however, that t
Executive may make disclosures required by a \@iiter or subpoena issued by a court or adminigeragency of compete
jurisdiction, in which event the Executive shalbpmptly notify the Company of such order or subpoenprovide the Compal
an opportunity to protect its interests.

ii. As of the date on which the Executiseggmployment with the Company terminates, the Bkezwagree
to promptly deliver to the Company all property dreding to the Company, including but without lintiten, all Confidentie
Information, Trade Secrets and all electronic




and physical embodiments thereof, all Company firstomer lists, management reports, memorandaareh, Compal
forms, financial data and reports , computers, peppersonal digital assistants, books, recordi®og, cards, keys, Comp:i
credit cards and other documents (including butlimaited to all such data and documents in eleétrdorm) supplied to ¢
created by the Executive in connection with the ditige’'s employment with the Company (including all copisthe
foregoing) in the Executive’s possession or contold all of the Company’s equipment and other natein the Executive’
possession or control (collectively “Company Proy@r The Executive agrees to allow the Company, ateitgpiest, to verit
return of Company Property and documents and irdtion and/or permanent deletion of the same, thromgpection c
personal computers, personal storage media, thirty pvebsites, third party mail systems, personal digital assistant dev
cell phones and/or social networking sites on wiidmpany information was stored during the Exe&sivemployment wit
the Company.

iv.  Nothing contained herein shall be in derogatiom ¢éimitation of the rights of the Company to enfoiit:
rights or the Executive’s duties under the applieddw relating to Trade Secrets.

(e) NonCompetition. The Executive agrees that for a period of twdoty- (24) months following the Date
Termination (the “Restricted Periodfhe Executive shall not provide or perform the samesubstantially similar services that
Executive provided to the Company, on behalf of Birgct Competitor, directly (i.e., as an officaramployee) or indirectly (i.e., as
independent contractor, consultant, advisor, boaethber, agent, shareholder, investor, joint ventumepartner), anywhere within t
United States of America (the “Territory”). “Dired€ompetitor” means any individual, partnership, corporation,itieh liability
company, association, or other group, however orgdn who competes with the Company in the fullviger restaurant busine
Nothing in this provision shall divest the Execeatifirom the right to acquire as a passive investith(no involvement in the operatic
or management of the business) up to 1% of ang dbsecurities which is: (i) issued by any Dir€ampetitor, and (ii) publicly trad
on a national securities exchange or over-the-esunarket.

(H NonSolicitation. The Executive agrees that the Executive shallabainy time during the Restricted Period
behalf of the Executive or any other Person, diyeat by assisting others, solicit, induce, encgerar cause any of the Compasny’
vendors, suppliers, licensees, or other Persortswhibm the Company has a contractual relationshépveith whom the Executive h
had Material Contact during the last two yearsha Executives employment, to cease doing business with the @agnpr to d
business with a Direct Competitor. “Material Contameans contact between the Executive and a Pergpwith whom or which th
Executive dealt on behalf of the Company; (2) whdsealings with the Company were coordinated or suiped by the Executive; (
about whom the Executive obtained Confidential tmfation in the ordinary course of business as altre§ the Executives associatic
with the Company; or (4) who receives productsesvises authorized by the Company, the sale origiav of which results or result
in compensation, commission, or earnings for thechve within two (2) years prior to the Date dgdrinination. “Persontneans an
individual, firm, partnership, association, corgama, limited liability entity, trust, venture ortleer business organization, entity
enterprise.

() NonRecruitment The Executive agrees that during the RestricxibR, the Executive shall not, on behal
the Executive or any other Person, directly or bgisting others, solicit, induce, persuade, or erage, or attempt to solicit, indu
persuade, or encourage, any individual employethbyCompany, with whom the Executive has workedetminate such employee’
position with the Company, whether or not




such employee is a fulime or temporary employee of the Company and wdretit not such employment is pursuant to a wi
agreement, for a determined period, or at shakk giovisions of this Section 6(g) shall only apfbythose individuals employed by
Company at the time of solicitation or attemptelicgtation.

(h)  Acknowledgements The Executive acknowledges that the Company teérbusiness of marketing, develog
and establishing its restaurant brands and conoepts nationwide basis and that the Company makiestantial investments and
established substantial goodwill associated wighréstaurant brands and concepts, supplier retdtips and marketing progra
throughout the United States. The Executive theeedmknowledges that the Territory in which the @any’s business is conducted
at the very least, throughout the United Statee Ekecutive further acknowledges and agrees thiat fir and reasonable for 1
Company to take steps to protect its Confidentiébrimation, Trade Secrets, good shall, businesdioekhips, employees, econo
advantages, and/or other legitimate business sitefeom the risk of misappropriation of or harmiteoConfidential Information, Tras
Secrets, goodwill, business relationships, empleyeeonomic advantages, and/or other legitimaténbsis interests. The Execul
acknowledges that the consideration, including tigeement and the Confidential Information andderéSecrets provided to 1
Executive, gives rise to the Compasynterest in restraining the Executive from corimgetvith the Company and that any limitation
to time, geographic scope and scope of activitgaaestrained are reasonable and do not imposeagegirestraint than is necessai
protect Company Confidential Information, Trade Secrets, goodlsbasiness relationships, employees, economi@atges, and/
other legitimate business interests, and shalpretent the Executive from earning a livelihood.

()  Survival of Covenants The provisions and restrictive covenants in 8éstion 6 shall survive the expiratior
termination of this Agreement for any reason. Thedtitive agrees not to challenge the enforcealilitgcope of the provisions ¢
restrictive covenants in this Section 6. The Exi@euturther agrees to notify all future personshasinesses, with which the Execu
becomes affiliated or employed by, of the provisi@amd restrictions set forth in this Section 6ppto the commencement of any s
affiliation or employment.

()  Injunctive Relief. The Executive acknowledges that if the Execubweaches or threatens to breach any c
provisions of this Agreement, the Executwedctions shall cause irreparable harm and damagket Company which cannot
compensated by damages alone. Accordingly, if tkecitive breaches or threatens to breach any ofrinésions of this Agreeme!
the Company shall be entitled to injunctive relief,addition to any other rights or remedies thanPany may have. The Execut
hereby waives the requirement for a bond by the @ as a condition to seeking injunctive relidieTexistence of any claim or ca
of action by the Executive against the Company,thdrepredicated on this Agreement or otherwisell sioa constitute a defense to
enforcement by the Company of the Executive’s agesgs under this Agreement.

(k) Extinguishment of Rights and Return of ConsideratidJpon the Compang’ good faith determination of
violation by the Executive of any of the terms loitSection 6, the Executive understands and aghegsin addition to the Comparsy’
rights to obtain injunctive relief and damages $ach violation, any and all rights to any paymemtdenefits under this Agreeme
whether vested or unvested, shall be extinguished, that the Executive shall be obligated to retamg consideration paid to |
Executive in exchange for the promises containedihe

7. Section 409A It is the intent of the Company that this Agreameomply with the requirements of Section 409,
the Code and all guidance issued thereunder by Gelnternal Revenue Service (“Section




409A") with respect to any nonqualified deferred compeasasubject to Section 409A. This Agreement shallibterpreted ar
administered to maximize the exemptions from Secd09A and, to the extent this Agreement providasdeferred compensati
subject to Section 409A, to comply with Section AQ#nd to avoid the imposition of tax, interest amddenalties upon the Execut
under Section 409A. Each payment under this Agreersieall be treated as a separate payment for pespof Section 409A. In
event may the Executive, directly or indirectlysidgmate the calendar year of any payment to be mader this Agreement. In no ev
whatsoever shall the Company be liable for anytamdil tax, interest or penalties that may be inggosn the Executive under Sec
409A or any damages for failing to comply with Sect409A. If the Executive dies following the DaigéTermination and prior to tl
payment of any amounts delayed on account of Secti@®A, such amounts shall be paid to the persosalesentative of tl
Executive’s estate within sixty (60) days after tfzge of the Executive’s death. To the extent aiyplbursements or ikind benefits du
to the Executive under this Agreement constitutequalified deferred compensation subject to Secti@®A, any such reimburseme
or inkind benefits shall be paid or provided in accomawith the requirements of Section 409A, includiwghout limitation, (a) in n
event shall reimbursements by the Company undsrAbieement be made later than the last day ofdlendar year next following t
calendar year in which the expense was incurraaigeed that the Executive shall have submittednaoice for such fees and exper
at least ten (10) days before the end of the caleyelar next following the calendar year in whiciclsfees and expenses were incul
(b) the amount of any reimbursement (other thanica¢deimbursements described in Treas. Reg. 89A4&Li)(1)(iv)(B)) or inkind
benefits that the Company is obligated to pay owisle during a given calendar year shall not afteetamount of reimbursement or in
kind benefits that the Company is obligated to payprovide in any other calendar year; and (c) Executives right to have tt
Company pay or provide such reimbursements amhihih-benefits may not be liquidated or exchangedfty other benefit. In the ew
that the Executive is a “specified employeeithin the meaning of Section 409A of the Code datermined in accordance with
methodology established by the Company as in effacthe Date of Termination, amounts and benefitsg tonstitute nonqualifit
deferred compensation subject to Section 409A wmatld otherwise be payable or provided during tixensonth period immediate
following the Date of Termination shall insteadg@éd or provided on the first business day after the daat is six (6) months followil
the Executive’s Date of Termination (or, if earjien the date of the Executive’s death).

8. Section 280G

(&) The Executive shall bear all expense of, and belysoésponsible for, any Excise Tax; provided, hesvein the
event that the Accounting Firm shall determine tiegieipt of all payments or distributions in theuna of compensation to or for 1
benefit of the Executive, whether paid or payahlespant to this Agreement or otherwise (the “Paysignvould subject the Executi
to tax under Section 4999 of the Code, the Accagniirm shall determine whether the Payments $tealleduced (but not below ze
to meet the definition of Reduced Amount (as defitelow). The Payments shall be reduced to the édmount only if th
Accounting Firm determines that the Net Affeax Receipt (as defined below) of unreduced aggeeBayments would be equal tc
less than one-hundred ten percent (110%) of theAftet-Tax Receipt of the aggregate Payments if the Pataneere reduced to t
Reduced Amount.

(b)  If the Accounting Firm determines that aggregatgnients should be reduced to the Reduced Amoun
Company shall promptly give the Executive noticahat effect and a copy of the detailed calculatiereof. All determinations ma
by the Accounting Firm under this Section 8 shall llinding upon the Company and the Executive aradl fle made as soon
reasonably practicable and in no event later than(b) business days following the Effective Datesuch later date on which there
been a Payment. The reduction of the Paymentppifaable, shall be made in the order that woutnvjate the Executive with the




largest amount of aftdex proceeds (with such order, to the extent péechiby Code Sections 280G and 409A designated ¢
Executive, or otherwise determined by the Accountiirm). All fees and expenses of the AccountingrFin implementing th
provisions of this Section 8 shall be borne by @menpany. To the extent requested by the ExecutiMeCompany shall cooperate v
the Executive in good faith in valuing servicesyided or to be provided by the Executive (includimighout limitation, the Executive’
agreeing to refrain from performing services punéua a covenant not to compete or similar covenbetore, on or after the date ¢
change in ownership or control of the Corporatieitiin the meaning of Q&A2(b) of Section 280G of the Code), such that paymie
respect of such services may be considered readgsooaimpensation within the meaning of Q&A-9 and Q&8 to Q&A-44 of Sectio
280G of the Code and/or exempt from the definibbthe term “parachute payment” within the meani@&A-2(a) of Section 280
of the Code in accordance with Q&A-5(a) of SectB®9G of the Code.

(c) As aresult of the uncertainty in the applicatidrsection 4999 of the Code, at the time of thdahidleterminatio
by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possiblat tamounts shall have been paid or distributechbyQompany to or for the benefit
the Executive pursuant to this Agreement which ghaot have been so paid or distributed (“Overpayt)eor that additional amour
which shall have not been paid or distributed ly@ompany to or for the benefit of the Executivespant to this Agreement could h.
been so paid or distributed (“Underpaymenify,each case, consistent with the calculation ef Beduced Amount hereunder. In
event that the Accounting Firm, based upon theraigeeof a deficiency by the Internal Revenue Seevégainst either the Company
the Executive which the Accounting Firm believes hahigh probability of success determines thaDaerpayment has been made,
Executive shall pay any such Overpayment to the @y, without interest; provided, however, thatamoount shall be payable by
Executive to the Company if and to the extent queyment would not either reduce the amount on wttiehExecutive is subject to
under Section 1 and Section 4999 of the Code oerg#m a refund of such taxes. In the event thaidteounting Firm, based up
controlling precedent or substantial authority,edetines that an Underpayment has occurred, any Saclerpayment shall be pi
promptly (and in no event later than sixty (60) slégillowing the date on which the Underpaymentdtednined) by the Company to
for the benefit of the Executive, without interest.

(d) For purposes of this Section 8, the following tetmase the meanings set forth below:

i. “Reduced Amount’shall mean $1000.00 less than the greatest amduPayonents that can be paid !
would not result in the imposition of the excise tmder Section 4999 of the Code if the Accountiign determines to redu
Payments pursuant to this Section 8, and

ii. “Net After-Tax Receipt” shall mean the present eafas determined in accordance with Sections 280G
(2)(A)(ii) and 280G(d)(4) of the Code) of a Paymemt of all taxes imposed on the Executive withpees thereto und
Sections 1 and 4999 of the Code and under appéicsthke and local laws, determined by applyinghiglest marginal ra
under Section 1 of the Code and under state arad laws which applied to the Executigegaxable income for the immediat
preceding taxable year, or such other rate(s)@a&Xecutive certifies, in the Executigesole discretion, as likely to apply to
Executive in the relevant tax year(s).

(e) The parties hereto shall provide the AccountingnFiiccess to and copies of any books, records, @htents i
their possession as reasonably requested by theuAting Firm, and otherwise cooperate with the Artting Firm in connection wi
the preparation and issuance of the determinatams calculations contemplated by this Section &. purposes of making t
calculations required by this Section 8,




the Accounting Firm may rely on reasonable, godith fiaterpretations concerning the application od€ Sections 280G and 4999.
9. Miscellaneous

(&) Nonrexclusivity of Rights. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent or lirtie Executives continuing or futu
participation in any benefit, bonus, incentive defd compensation or other plan or program providgedhe Company or any of
Affiliated Companies and for which the Executive yrgualify, nor shall anything herein limit or otlése affect such rights as -
Executive may have under any employment, stockoopfperformance stock units or other agreements thi2 Company or any of
Affiliated Companies. Amounts which are vested Higmer which the Executive is otherwise entitlexl receive under any plan
program of the Company or any of its Affiliated Coamies at or subsequent to the Date of Terminatiati be payable in accordal
with such plan or program, except as explicitly ified by this Agreement, and shall not in any marmeincluded in the determinat
of benefits calculated under Section 3 hereof. Withimiting the generality of the foregoing, thedeutives resignation under tt
Agreement with or without Good Reason shall in nayvaffect the Executive’ ability to terminate employment by reason of
Executive’'s “retirement’under, or to be eligible to receive benefits undemy compensation and benefits plans, progran
arrangements of the Company or the Affiliated Conigs, including without limitation any retirement mension plans or arrangeme
or substitute plans adopted by the Company, thdlist6fd Companies or their respective successard, any termination whic
otherwise qualifies as Good Reason shall be treagedsuch even if it is also a “retiremerftir purposes of any such pl
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Executiveg®®s a severance payment pursuant to Sectiorhd(ebf, the Executive shall not
entitled to any severance pay or benefits undersawerance plan, program or policy of the Company the Affiliated Companie
unless otherwise specifically provided therein gpacific reference to this Agreement.

(b)  Entire Agreement This Agreement contains the entire understandlith the Executive with respect to -
subject matter hereof, and from and after the Hffedate, except as specifically provided heréiis Agreement shall supersede
other agreement between the parties with respethdaosubject matter hereof in effect immediateliopto the execution of th
Agreement.

(c) Amendment This Agreement may not be amended or modifieémitse than by a written agreement exec
by the parties hereto or their respective successul legal representatives.

(d)  Eull Settlement The Companys obligation to make the payments provided foris Agreement and otherw
to perform its obligations hereunder shall not Hecded by any circumstances, including, withoutitation, any setoff, counterclai
recoupment, defense or other right which the Compaay have against the Executive or others or by amounts received |
Executive from others. In no event shall the Exieube obligated to seek other employment by wayndfgation of the amoun
payable to the Executive under any of the provisiohthis Agreement, and except as specificallwiged in Section 8, such amou
shall not be reduced whether or not the Executbtains other employment.

(e) SuccessorsThis Agreement shall inure to the benefit of @edbinding upon the Company and its successol
assigns. This Agreement shall bind any successar dbd the Company, its assets or its businesséetfer direct or indirect, |
purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwisehénsame manner and to the same extent that the@ymmuld be obligated under t
Agreement if no succession had taken place. Ircéise of any transaction in which a successor wootdy the foregoing provision
by operation of law be bound by this Agreement,Goenpany shall require such successor expressly and




unconditionally to assume and agree to performQbmpanys obligations under this Agreement, in the samerneaand to the sar
extent that the Company would be required to parfiimo such succession had taken place. All rigimider this Agreement are persc
to the Executive and, without the prior written sent of the Company, shall not be assignable b¥xeeutive otherwise than by st
or the laws of descent and distribution. This Agmeat shall inure to the benefit of and be enforteabthe event of the Executive’
death or Disability by the Executive’s legal regnesitives, heirs and legatees.

(H  Withholding of Taxes The Company may withhold from any amount payaildenefit provided under tt
Agreement such Federal, state, local, foreign dhdrdaxes as are required to be withheld pursioasuy applicable law or regulation.

() No Right to Employment The Executive and the Company acknowledge thatept as may otherwise
provided under any other written agreement betwberExecutive and the Company, the employment eicktive by the Company
“at will’ and may be terminated by either the Executive er@ompany at any time prior to the Effective Datewhich case tt
Executive shall have no further rights under thgreement. Nothing contained in the Agreement shfédict such rights to termina
provided, however, that nothing in this Section)3(gall prevent the Executive from receiving anyoants payable pursuant to Secti
3, 4 or 5 of this Agreement in the event of a teattibn described in such Sections.

(h)  Alternate Dispute ResolutionIn the event of a dispute arising from or relgtio this Agreement, the part
hereto agree to attempt to resolve the disputaitfiranediation by submitting the dispute to a sodeliator selected by the parties he
or, at the option of a party, to mediation by thmekican Arbitration Association (“AAA”)Any such mediation will be held in Orar
County, Florida. Each party shall bear an equalesb&the mediatos fees and expenses. All defenses based on passtége shall b
suspended pending the termination of the mediatimthing in this Section 9(h) shall be construegteclude any party from seek
injunctive relief in order to protect its rightsmaing mediation. In the event mediation is unsusftgsthe parties hereto agree to sul
the matter for binding arbitration by AAA and incacdance with the applicable AAA rules. Any suchitation will be conducted
Orange County, Florida. Each party shall bear araksghare of the arbitratarfees and expenses, any costs for the hearingyfasic
any costs of AAA arbitration service. Any otherdesnd expenses incurred by a party during the riediar arbitration of a dispute ¢
the party’s responsibility subject to remedies aledrby the arbitrator in accordance with applicddle

()  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforcedrding to the laws of the State of Flor
without giving effect to the conflict of laws priipdes thereof.

() Severability. Any provision in this Agreement which is prohdzitor unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall,a
such jurisdiction, be ineffective only to the extehsuch prohibition or unenforceability withounvialidating or affecting the remaini
provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or doseability in any jurisdiction shall not invalitlaor render unenforceable s
provision in any other jurisdiction.

(k)  Notices. Notices and all other communications contempldtgdhis Agreement shall be in writing and shal
deemed to have been duly given when personallyeateldl or when mailed by U.S. registered or cedifigail, return receipt reques
and postage prepaid or when sent by express U.tb.omavernight delivery through a national deliyeservice (or an internatior
delivery service in the case of an address outdideU.S.) with signature required. Notice to themPany shall be directed to !
attention of] for the SVP, CHRO: the Chief Executive Officer f &l other executives: the Chief Human Resourciis€ | of the




Company at the address of the Company’s headgsaged notice to the Executive shall be directetthéoExecutive at the Executige’
most recent personal residence on file with the aomy.

()  Captions. The captions of this Agreement are not part efgifovisions hereof and shall have no force orceffe

(m) Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in counterpaaish ef which shall be deemed an original,
all of which together shall constitute one andghme instrument.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed alidered this Agreement on the date written below.

EXECUTIVE

[ Name of Executivé
Date:

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.

By:
Date:




EXHIBIT A
Release

You, for yourself, your spouse and your agentscesgors, heirs, executc
administrators and assigns, hereby irrevocably ammbnditionally forever releases and dischargesCihwmpany, its parents, divisio
subsidiaries and affiliates and its and their aurrand former owners, directors, officers, shardéxd, insurers, benefit pla
representatives, agents and employees, and eabkiopredecessors, successors, and assigns (salgcthe “Releasees”from any
and all actual or potential claims or liabilitiesany kind or nature, including, but not limited tny claims arising out of or relatec
your employment and separation from employment #ithCompany and any services that you providédgcCompany; any claims
salary, commissions, bonuses, other severance vaagtion pay, allowances or other compensationfoorany benefits under t
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (exceptiested ERISA benefits); any claims for discrimioaf harassment or retaliation
any kind or based upon any legally protected diassion or activity; any claims under Title VII dhe Civil Rights Acts of 1964, tI
Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Older Wers Benefit Protection Act, the Americans with &hsities Act, 42 U.S.C
81981, 42 U.S.C. § 1983, the Family Medical Leaw# &nd any similar state law, the Fair Credit R&pgrAct and any similar ste
law, the Equal Pay Act and any similar state laveluding the Florida Civil Rights Act, the Florid&histleblower Act, the Floric
Minimum Wage Act, Florida Statute §448.08 (and ather claim for unpaid wages or other compensatimter Florida law), as well
any amendments to any such laws; any claims forvasigition of any federal or state constitutionseaecutive orders; any claims
wrongful or constructive discharge, violation ofpfia policy, breach of contract or promise (oraljtten, express or implied), perso
injury not covered by worker€ompensation benefits, misrepresentation, negligeinaud, estoppel, defamation, infliction of ernaty
distress, contribution and any claims under angmotéderal, state or local law, including those spécifically listed in this Release, t
you, your heirs, executors, administrators, suarsssnd assigns now have, ever had or may herdafte, whether known or unknoy
suspected or unsuspected, up to and includingdteeaf your execution of this Release.

For the purpose of implementing a full and completease and discharge of
Releasees as set forth above, you acknowledgéhibdRelease is intended to include in its effadthout limitation, all claims known
unknown that you have or may have against the Re&sawhich arise out of or relate to your employtmiecluding but not limited 1
compensation, performance or termination of empkyhwith the Company, except for, and notwithstagdinything in this Release
the contrary, claims which cannot be released wadigl private agreement. This Release also excladgs claim for workers’
compensation benefits and any rights you may hawedemnification or directors’ and officers’ lidity insurance under the Company’
bylaws or certificate of incorporation, any indeffigdtion agreement to which you are a party or fieiaey or applicable law, as a res
of having served as an officer, director or empéogéthe Company or any of its affiliates. You het acknowledge and agree that
have received all leave, compensation and reimatate benefits to which you were entitled througé tlate of your execution of ti
Release, and that you were not subjected to ansojpep treatment, conduct or actions as a residtrefjuest for leave, compensatio
reinstatement.

You affirm, by signing this Release, that you hané suffered any unreport
injury or illness arising from your employment, ahét you have not filed, with any federal, statelocal court or agency, any action:
charges against the Releasees relating to or gisihof your employment with or separation frora tbompany. You further agree t
while this Release does not preclude you fromdikincharge with the National Labor Relations Bakl.RB"), the Equal Employme
Opportunity Commission (“EEOC)r a similar state or local agency, or from papi@ting in any investigation or proceeding with th
you do waive your right to personally recover




monies or reinstatement as a result of any comptaicharge filed against the Company with the NL.LIERBEOC or any federal, state
local court or agency, except as to any actionntoree or challenge this Release, to recover asyedebenefits under ERISA, or
recover workers’ compensation benefits.

You acknowledge:

(a) That you were providgdwenty-one (21) / forty-five (45) full days during which to consider whether to sibis Releas:
If you have signed this Agreement prior to the exppn of the[ 21-day / 45-day period, you have voluntarily electec
forego the remainder of that period.

(b) That you have carefully read and fully undemst all of the terms of this Relegsgincluding its Attachment A.

(c) That you understand that by signing this Releage,are waiving your rights under the Age Discrintioa in Employmer
Act, as amended by the Older Workers Benefit PtmtedAct, 29 U.S.C. § 621, et seq., and that yaurast waiving an
rights arising after the date that this Releasigised.

(d) That you have been given an opportunity to consitlt anyone you choose, including an attorney, abius Releas

(e) That you understand fully the terms and effectha$§ Release and know of no claim that has not bekrased by th
Release. And, you further acknowledge that yourerteaware of, or that you have fully disclosed e Company, ar
matters for which you are responsible or which ¢t@®e to your attention as an employee of the Comgizat might giv
rise to, evidence, or support any claim of illegahduct, regulatory violation, unlawful discrimiiat, or other cause
action against the Company.

() That these terms are final and binding on

(g) That you have signed this Release voluntarily, moidin reliance on any representations or statesneaide to you by a
employee or officer of the Company or any of itbsidiaries.

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY. THIS RELEASE INCLUDES A RELE ASE OF ALL KNOWN AND UNKNOWN CLAIMS.

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED

[ Name of Executivgé Date



EXHIBIT 10(ss)
DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.

2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

FY RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
(United States)

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the fdgment”)is between Darden Restaurants, Inc., a Fl
corporation (the “Company” or “Corporation”gnd you, a person notified by the Company, andtifies in the
Company’s records, as the recipient of an AwarBedtricted Stock Units during the Companfiscal year . TF
Agreement is effective as of the date of grant comigated to you and set forth in the Company’s iesdthe Gran
Date”).

The Company wishes to award to you a number ofriResd Stock Units, subject to certain restricticas
provided in this Agreement, in order to carry dug purpose of the Company’s 2002 Stock Incentiaa Bhe “Plan”).

Accordingly, for good and valuable consideratidre teceipt and adequacy of which are hereby aclaunel
the Company and you hereby agree as follows:

1. Award of Restricted Stock Units

The Company hereby grants to you, effective asi@fGrant Date, an Award of Restricted Stock Uretstha
number of Restricted Stock Units communicated to god set forth in the Company’s records (the “R$Usn the
terms and conditions set forth in such communicatiahis Agreement and the Plan. Each RSU repieseatright t
receive, on the vesting date or dates communidatgeu and set forth in the Compasyecords, one share of
Company’s Common Stock, no par value (the “Commioci3).

2. Rights with Respect to the RSUs

The RSUs granted hereunder do not and shall netypw any of the rights and privileges of a shalddroof
Common Stock. Your rights with respect to the RSball remain forfeitable at all times prior to ttiate or dates ¢
which such rights become vested, and the restnistwith respect to the RSUs lapse, in accordantte $gactions 3 or
hereof. Your right to receive cash payments witspeet to the RSUs is more particularly describe®eéation 8(k
hereof.

3. Vesting.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresimine RSUs shall vest, and the restrictions wepect t
the RSUs shall lapse, on the date or dates andeiramount or amounts communicated to you and s#t fio the
Companys records if you remain continuously employed by @ompany or an Affiliate of the Company until
respective vesting dates.

4. Definitions of Change in Control, Cause and Goodd®e.




(@) Change in Contral For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in ©dnshall mean:

()  Any individual, entity or group (within the meaninf Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&nge Act”)) (a “Person”) becomes the benefici
owner (within the meaning of Rule 13deromulgated under the Exchange Act) of 30% orenadreithe!
(x) the then-outstanding shares of common stodcke@fCompany (the “Outstanding Company Commor
Stock”) or (y) the combined voting power of thertheutstanding voting securities of the Company
entitled to vote generally in the election of dimgs (the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities”);
provided, however, that, for purposes of this S&cti(a)(i), the following acquisitions shall notnsbitute
a Change in Control: (A) any acquisition directigrh the Company, (B) any acquisition by the
Company, (C) any acquisition by any employee bépén (or related trust) sponsored or maintaingd |
the Company or any company controlled by, contrgllor under common control with the Company or
(D) any acquisition pursuant to a transaction tmaplies with Sections 4(a)(ii)(x), (y) and (2);

(i)  Consummation of a reorganization, merger, statigbgere exchange or consolidation or
similar transaction involving the Company or anytsfsubsidiaries, a sale or other dispositionliobra
substantially all of the assets of the Companyheracquisition of assets or securities of anoghéty by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (each, ssliBess Combination”), in each case unless, follgwin
such Business Combination, (x) all or substantiallyf the individuals and entities that were the
beneficial owners of the Outstanding Company Com@&tmtk and the Outstanding Company Voting
Securities immediately prior to such Business Coatidon beneficially own, directly or indirectly, meo
than 50% of the then-outstanding shares of comrtawk gor, for a non-corporate entity, equivalent
securities) and the combined voting power of tletbutstanding voting securities entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (or, for@arcorporate entity, equivalent governing body)thes
case may be, of the entity resulting from such Bess Combination (including, without limitation, an
entity that, as a result of such transaction, oitnesCompany or all or substantially all of the Camy's
assets either directly or through one or more sligoses) in substantially the same proportionshag t
ownership immediately prior to such Business Comtiim of the Outstanding Company Common S
and the Outstanding Company Voting Securitieshasase may be, (y) no Person (excluding any enti
resulting from such Business Combination or anyleyge benefit plan (or related trust) of the Cony
or such entity resulting from such Business Comimna beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 3®
or more of, respectively, the then-outstanding ahaf common stock (or, for a non-corporate entity,
equivalent securities) of the entity resulting freath Business Combination or the combined voting
power of the then-outstanding voting securitieswath entity, except to the extent that such




ownership existed prior to the Business Combinatmal (z) at least a majority of the members of the
board of directors (or, for a non-corporate engtyyivalent governing body) of the entity resultfrgm
such Business Combination were members of the Bataite time of the execution of the initial
agreement or of the action of the Board providimgsuch Business Combination; or

(i)  Approval by the stockholders of the Company of mplete liquidation or dissolution of
the Company.

(b) Cause Your employment may be terminated for Causedf@mmmittee administering the Plan,
after you shall have been afforded a reasonablerappty to appear in person together with coubsébre the
Committee and to present such evidence as you deappeopriate, determines that Cause exists. Fpopas
of this Agreement, “Cause” means (i) an act or atfsaud or misappropriation on your part whickut in or
are intended to result in your personal enrichnagtite expense of the Company and which constatatéminal
offense under State or Federal laws, (ii) your ioa&d failure to substantially perform your dutveish the
Company (other than any such failure resulting fyaur incapacity due to physical or mental illnessier a
written demand for substantial performance is @éeéd to you by the Committee, which demand spexific
identifies the manner in which the Committedieves that you have not substantially perforyma duties; (iii
your willful engagement in conduct that is demaaisly and materially injurious to the Company, maniét or
otherwise; or (iv) your conviction of, or enteringo a plea of either guilty or nolo contendereany felony,
including, but not limited to, a felony involvingoral turpitude, embezzlement, theft or similartaet occurred
during or in the course of your employment with @@mpany. For purposes of this Agreement, an adgilore
to act, shall not be deemed to be “willful” unlésis done, or omitted to be done, by you in bathfar without
a reasonable belief that the action or omissioniw#ése best interests of the Company.

(c) Good ReasonFor purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason’nsea

(i) without your express written consent, (A) the assignt to you of any duties inconsisten
any substantial respect with your position, autlyat responsibilities as in effect during the 9d
period immediately preceding the date of the comsation of a Change in Control or (B) any other
substantial adverse change in such position (imadutitles), authority or responsibilities; or

(i) a material reduction in your base salary, targatiahbonus opportunity, long-term
incentive opportunity or aggregate employee bemeftin effect immediately prior to the date of the
consummation of a Change in Control, other thanai\)nadvertent failure remedied by the Company
promptly after receipt of notice thereof given lmuyor (B) with respect to aggregate employee btnefi
only, any such failure resulting from an acrossitbard reduction in employee benefits applicablalito
similarly situated employees of the Company getheral




You shall only have Good Reason if (A) you havevmted notice of termination to the Company of any
of the foregoing conditions within ninety (90) dayfsthe initial existence of the condition, (B) tBempany has
been given at least thirty (30) days following iiptef such notice to cure such condition, andifGuch
condition is not cured within such thirty (30) dagriod, you actually terminate employment withixtyi(60)
days after the notice of termination. Your mentaploysical incapacity following the occurrence ofevent
described above in clauses (i) or (ii) shall né¢etfyour ability to terminate employment for Gdedason and
your death following delivery of a notice of terration for Good Reason shall not affect your estate’
entitlement to settlement of the RSUs as provid=éimder upon a termination of employment for Good
Reason.

5. Early Vesting; Forfeiture

If you cease to be employed by the Company or ditigké of the Company prior to the vesting of tR&U:
pursuant to Section 3 hereof, your rights to althed unvested RSUs shall be immediately and irr@vlycforfeited
including the right to receive cash payments purst@Section 8(b) hereof, except that:

(@) Notwithstanding the vesting provisions containe@eécttion 3 above, but subject to the other t
and conditions contained in this Agreement, if himttwo years after the date of the consummatioa Ghang
in Control that occurs after the Grant Date, thenany terminates your employment for any reasoardtiar
for Cause, death or Disability, or you terminateptoyment for Good Reason, you shall become immely
and unconditionally vested in all RSUs and theriggins with respect to all of the RSUs shall kaps

(b) If (i) the Company or an Affiliate of the Compamgrininates your employment involuntarily
not for Cause prior to the vesting of the RSUs pans to Section 3 hereof, (ii) your combined age wears c
service with the Company or an Affiliate of the Qmany (pursuant to the method for crediting servicder th
Darden Savings Plan) equal at least 70 and (iu) were not designated as an offitevel employee in tt
Company payroll system with the Peoplesoft idemtifOFC” or its equivalent on the Grant Date, then the F
will vest on a pro rata basis on the date of yeamtnation of employment, based on the number lbhionths
of employment completed from the Grant Date todhte of your termination of employment divided by
number of full months in the vesting period for anwested RSUs, and your rights to all of the urete®SU
shall be immediately and irrevocably forfeited,;

(c) If you retire on or after age 65 with five yearssafrvice with the Company or an Affiliate of
Company (pursuant to the method for crediting servinder the Darden Savings Plan) (“Normal Retirgife
prior to the vesting of the RSUs pursuant to SecBdereof, you shall become immediately and unitiomally
vested in all RSUs and the restrictions with resgecall RSUs shall lapse on the date of your Nad
Retirement;




(d) If you retire on or after age 55 with ten yearssefvice with the Company or an Affiliate of
Company (pursuant to the method for crediting servinder the Darden Savings Plan) but before N
Retirement (“Early Retirement”) and you were nosigeated as an officdevel employee in the Compe
payroll system with the Peoplesoft identifier “OF@”its equivalent on the Grant Date, the RSUs vélt on
pro rata basis on the date of your Early Retirenbased on the number of full months of employt
completed from the Grant Date to the date of yaantyERetirement divided by the number of full magith the
vesting period for any unvested RSUs, and yourtsigb all of the unvested RSUs shall be immediasety
irrevocably forfeited;

(e) If you die prior to the vesting of the RSUs purduém Section 3 hereof, you shall becc
immediately and unconditionally vested in all RSigl the restrictions with respect to all RSUs slagise o
the date of your death. No transfer by will or #pplicable laws of descent and distribution of &8Us whicl
vest by reason of your death shall be effectivieimol the Company unless the Committee administehiadgPlal
shall have been furnished with written notice affstransfer and a copy of the will or such othadence as tt
Committee may deem necessary to establish thetyadtithe transfer; or

(f)  If you become Disabled (as defined below) priothe vesting of the RSUs pursuant to Secti
hereof, you shall become immediately and unconuhiiy vested in all RSUs and the restrictions wébkpect t
all RSUs shall lapse on the date on which the Cdtemiadministering the Plan makes the determindhe
you are Disabled. For purposes of this Agreemddisabled” or “Disability” means you have a disability dut
illness or injury which is expected to be permanennhature and which prevents you from performihg
material duties required by your regular occupatadihas determined by the Committee administettrggPlan.

If you have met the age and service conditionga#t in Sections 5(c) or 5(d) at the time of beauy
Disabled, then such disability shall only accelerdie payment of (and the lapse of restriction waspect tc
RSUs which are no longer subject to a substansél of forfeiture if the disability constitutes aisability”
within the meaning of Code Section 409A (and thielgnce issued thereunder) (a “Section 409A DiggbyliIf
the disability does not qualify as a Section 40@Kability, and you have met the foregoing age aedice
conditions, this Section 5(f) shall not apply tauyand the RSUs shall be paid (and the restrictwatis respec
thereto shall lapse) at the time otherwise providedinder this Agreement.

6. Restriction on Transfer

Except as contemplated by Section 5(e) hereof, mwbrtke RSUs may be sold, assigned, transferredigelc
attached or otherwise encumbered, and no attentpdriefer the RSUs, whether voluntary or involuptémy operatio
of law or otherwise, shall vest the transferee \aitly interest or right in or with respect to thelRS




7. Financial Restatements

This Section 7 only applies to you if at any tinmiywere or are designated as an offleeel employee in tt
Company payroll system with the Peoplesoft idestifilOFC” or its equivalent. Notwithstanding the provisiort
Sections 3, 5 and 8 of this Agreement, if (a) tleen@any is required to restate its financial stat@sdue to fraud ai
(b) the Committee administering the Plan determitied you have knowingly participated in such fratlten th
Committee may, in its sole and absolute discretmny time within two years following such restaent, require yc
to, and you shall immediately upon notice of sucdm@ittee determination, repay to the Company arsh gaymen
received by you or your personal representativeyamt to Section 8(b) of this Agreement, returtheo Company ar
shares of Common Stock received by you or yourgmaisrepresentative from the payment of the RSUsyaunt t
Section 8 of this Agreement and pay to the Compangash the amount of any proceeds received byoyoyoul
personal representative from the disposition orsier of, and any dividends and other distributiohsash or proper
received by you or your personal representativé vaspect to, any shares of Common Stock receiyggb or you
personal representative from the payment of the R@Wwsuant to Section 8 of this Agreement, in ezde during tr
period commencing two years before the beginninghefrestated financial period and ending on the @ sucl
Committee determination. In addition, all of youghts to RSUs that are not vested on the datetlf®aCommitte
makes such determination shall be immediately aredacably forfeited, including the right to receieash paymer
on such RSUs pursuant to Section 8(b) of this Agexd. Notwithstanding anything to the contraryhistSection 7, tt
Committee shall have the authority and discretmmgke any determination regarding the specificlemgntation ¢
this Section 7 with respect to you.

8. Payment of RSUs: Issuance of Common Stock

(@) No shares of Common Stock shall be issued to ymu fr the date on which the applicable R
vest, in accordance with the terms and conditimmmunicated to you and set forth in the Compamgtords
After any RSUs vest pursuant to Sections 3 or Bdfethe Company shall promptly, but no later tBanday:
following the applicable vesting date, cause todseied in your name one share of Common Stock dof
RSU. Following payment of the applicable withholglitaxes pursuant to Section 10 hereof, the Comphaj
promptly cause such shares of Common Stock (legsla@res withheld to pay taxes) to be delivereitigeeiby
book-entry registration or in the form of a stock cectte or certificates, registered in your namendhe name
of your legal representatives, beneficiaries ordyeis the case may be; provided, however, thatletiybutior
(including any distribution of amounts otherwisesciibed in Section 8(b) below) to any “specifiedpbogee”
as determined in accordance with procedures addptetthe Company that reflect the requirements odle
Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) (and any applicable guicathereunder) on account of a separation fromceshal
be made as soon as practicable after the firsiofldlye seventh month following such separation fiservice
(or, if earlier, the date of the specified empldgedeath). The Company will not deliver any fracibshare ¢
Common Stock but will pay, in lieu thereof, the Rdiarket Value of such fractional share of Commaoc.




(b) Upon the vesting of the RSUs, the Company shallevea&ash payment to you (subject to the (
for specified employees in Section 7(a)) equah®damount of cash dividends that the Company paidcipar
of Common Stock to holders generally during theiqaeprior to the vesting of the RSUs, multiplied the
number of RSUs, without interest, and less anytiixholding amount applicable to such paymenthé RSU
are forfeited prior to vesting, such cash paymemespect of the RSUs shall also be forfeited.

9. Adjustments

In the event that the Committee administering the Bhall determine that any dividend or otherritistion
(whether in the form of cash, shares of CommonIiStother securities or other property), recapitdlan, stock spli
reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, caodabbn, split-up, spireff, combination, repurchase or exchang
shares or other securities of the Company, issuahearrants or other rights to purchase sharesttuer securities
the Company or other similar corporate transactioevent affects the Common Stock such that ansadgnt of th
RSUs is determined by the Committee administerimg Plan to be appropriate in order to prevent idiutol
enlargement of the benefits or potential benefitsnided to be made available under the attacheddA\@ertificate an
this Agreement, then the Committee shall, in suemmer as it may deem equitable, in its sole diggreadjust any (
all of the number and type of shares subject tdRBbs.

10. Taxes.

(&) You acknowledge that you will consult with your genal tax advisor regarding the income
consequences of the grant of the RSUs, the reckgaish payments pursuant to Section 8(b) herkefyéstin
of the RSUs and the receipt of shares of CommonkSipon the vesting of the RSUs, and any otherart
related to this Agreement. In order to comply wathapplicable federal, state, local or foreigname tax law
or regulations, the Company may take such actiom @sems appropriate to ensure that all applicéddieral
state, local or foreign payroll, withholding, incemor other taxes, which are your sole and abs
responsibility, are withheld or collected from you.

(b)  In accordance with the terms of the Plan, and sutds as may be adopted by the Comir
administering the Plan, you may elect to satisfy applicable tax withholding obligations arisingiin the
vesting of the RSUs and the corresponding recdipghares of Common Stock and cash payments |
delivering cash (including check, draft, money ordewire transfer made payable to the order ofGbenpany’
(i) having the Company withhold a portion of tHeases of Common Stock or cash otherwise to be elek
having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount wfhstaxes, or (iii) delivering to the Company sisacd
Common Stock having a Fair Market Value equal éogdimount of such taxes. The Company will not delars,
fractional share of Common Stock but will pay, igulthereof, the Fair Market Value of such fracéibshare ¢
Common Stock. Your election must be made on orrbefoe date that the amount of tax to be withhs
determined.




11. General Provisions

(@) Interpretations This Agreement is subject in all respects totdrens of the Plan. A copy of t
Plan is available upon your request. Terms useeimeavhich are defined in the Plan shall have trspeetive
meanings given to such terms in the Plan, unldssnetse defined herein. In the event that any @iowi of thit
Agreement is inconsistent with the terms of thenPlhe terms of the Plan shall govern. Any questi
administration or interpretation arising under thiggreement shall be determined by the Commr
administering the Plan, and such determinationl §igafinal, conclusive and binding upon all partiesnterest
To the extent that any Award granted by the Comparsubject to Code Section 409A, such Award she
subject to terms and conditions that comply with thquirements of Code Section 409A to avoid adveas
consequences under Code Section 409A.

(b) No Right to Employment Nothing in this Agreement or the Plan shall bastaued as giving yc
the right to be retained as an employee of the Gowypwr any Affiliate of the Company. In additiore
Company or an Affiliate of the Company may at anyetdismiss you from employment, free from anyiligkt
or any claim under this Agreement, unless othereiqeessly provided in this Agreement.

(c) Reservation of SharesThe Company shall at all times prior to the vegbf the RSUs reserve ¢
keep available such number of shares of Commork&teavill be sufficient to satisfy the requiremenfsthis
Agreement.

(d) Securities Matters The Company shall not be required to deliver shgres of Common Stc
until the requirements of any federal or state s@es or other laws, rules or regulations (inchglithe rules ¢
any securities exchange) as may be determinedeb@dmpany to be applicable are satisfied.

(e) Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsectbrthis Agreement solely as
convenience to facilitate reference. Such headsigdl not be deemed in any way material or relevarihe
construction or interpretation of this Agreemengny provision hereof.

()  Arbitration . Except for injunctive relief as set forth herethg parties agree that any disj
between the parties regarding this Agreement dtmlsubmitted to binding arbitration in Orlando, rida
pursuant to the Darden dispute resolution program.

() _Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed and construetaordance with the laws
the State of Florida (without giving effect to thenflict of law principles thereof). Employee agedat th
state and federal courts of Florida shall havesgiction over any litigation between you and thempany
regarding this Agreement, and you expressly subonihe exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the fati@nc
state courts sitting in Orange County, Florida.




(h) _Notices You should send all written notices regarding thgreement or the Plan to the Comg
at the following address:

Darden Restaurants, Inc.

Supervisor, Stock Compensation Plans
1000 Darden Center Drive

Orlando, FL 32837

() Award Agreement and Related Documenthis RSU Award Agreement shall have no forc
effect unless you have been notified by the Compang identified in the Comparsytecords, as the recipien
a RSU Grant. You are not required to execute tigre@ment, but you will have ten days from the GEatte tc
notify the Company of any issues regarding the seamd conditions of this Agreement; otherwise, wallibe
deemed to agree with them. In connection with yB&U Grant and this Award Agreement, the follov
additional documents were made available to youwtmleically, and paper copies are available on es
directed to the Company’s Compensation Departnfgrthe Plan; and (ii) a Prospectus relating toPiemn.




EXHIBIT 12

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS TO FI XED CHARGES
(Dollar amounts in millions)

Fiscal Year Ended

May 31, May 25, May 26, May 27, May 29,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Consolidated earnings from continuing operatiorfergeincome

taxes $ 175.: % 174€¢ $ 274.C $ 355.1 $ 341.1
Plus fixed charges:

Gross interest expense 194.2 137.5 129.¢ 106. 97.t

40% of restaurant and equipment minimum rentasp 66.¢ 58.¢€ 50.3 40.2 36.2

Total fixed charges 261.( 196.1 180.1 146.€ 133.¢

Less capitalized interest 1.3 (2.6) (2.9 (3.4) (2.6)
Consolidated earnings from continuing operatiorferigencome

taxes available to cover fixed charges $ 435.C % 368.1 % 4512 % 498.¢ % 472.¢
Ratio of consolidated earnings from continuing agiens to

fixed charges 1.7 1.9 2.t 3.4 3.t

(1) Gross interest expense includes interestgreized in connection with our unrecognized incaaxebenefits



Exhibit 13

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis below for Darden Reatds, Inc. (Darden, the Company, we, us or dwykl be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and related @irzustatement notes found elsewhere in this repdet operate on a 52/53 week fiscal year,
which ends on the last Sunday in May, which focdi2015 was May 31, 2015. Accordingly, fiscal 2@bhisisted of 53 weeks of operation.
Fiscal 2014 and 2013, which ended May 25, 2014Mag 26, 2013 , respectively, each consisted of’/62ks of operation.

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Our business operates in the full-service dinirgyrsent of the restaurant industry. At May 31, 204 ,operated 1,534 restaurants through
subsidiaries in the United States and Canada uhdeDlive Gardefi, LongHorn Steakhousg The Capital Grill€®, Yard Hous€®, Bahama
Breeze®, Seasons 52, and Eddie V's Prime Seafo®dnd Wildfish Seafood Grill&(collectively, Eddie V's) trademarks. We own aneé e
all of our restaurants in the United States anda@anexcept for three restaurants located in Adfitseida and three restaurants in California
that are owned jointly by us and third parties, ar@haged by us, one franchised restaurant in Atlame franchised restaurant in Detroit and
eight franchised restaurants in Puerto Rico. We lat¢sve area development and franchise agreemethisimaffiliated operators to develop and
operate our brands in Asia, the Middle East anthlLAamerica. Pursuant to these agreements, as of3ag015 , 24 franchised restaurants
were in operation in the Middle East, Mexico, BtaReru, El Salvador and Malaysia. All significamier-company balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

On May 15, 2014, we entered into an agreementlit®ed Lobster and certain related assets and i¢eddiabilities. On July 28, 2014, we
closed on the sale of 705 Red Lobster restaurhatsever, as of May 31, 2015 , 9 of the propert&sain subject to landlord consents and
satisfaction of other contractual requirements. fidmaining consents and contractual requiremepts)gected to be satisfied within the next
six months. Therefore, the assets of these renwaeistaurants continue to be classified as helddter on our consolidated balance sheet and
recognition of the gain on the related proceedsdedsrred. As of May 31, 2015 , we had receive®%5illion in cash proceeds, net of
transaction-related costs of approximately $298ani. During fiscal 2015 , we recognized a pre-g@in on the sale of Red Lobster of $837.(
million , which is included in earnings from discontinugeb@tions in our consolidated statement of earniAdditionally, in the fourth quart
of fiscal 2014, in connection with the expectects#IRed Lobster, we closed two of the six restatisrethat housed both a Red Lobster and an
Olive Garden in the same building (synergy restatsjaln the first quarter of fiscal 2015, we coetpt the conversion of the four remaining
company-owned synergy restaurants to stand-aloive Glarden restaurants. See Note 2 to our consetidmancial statements in Part I,

Item 8 of this report, incorporated herein by refere.

We believe that capable operators of strong, nuuii-brands have the opportunity to increase ttedire of the restaurant industry’s fa#rvice
segment. Generally, the restaurant industry isidensd to be comprised of three segments: quickceerfast casual, and full service. All of
our restaurants fall within the full-service segmevhich is highly fragmented and includes manyeipehdent operators and small chains. We
believe we have strong brands, and that the breadttdepth of our experience and expertise sedpars in the full-service segment of the
restaurant industry. This collective capabilitytie product of investments over many years in attestsare critical to success in our business,
including restaurant operations excellence, braadagement excellence, supply chain, talent managesne information technology, among
other things.

With a focus on growing same restaurant sales, evie\plemented a “Back-to-Basics” approach rootestiang operating fundamentals.
We're focused on improving culinary innovation amdcution inside each of our brands, deliveringraite service to each and every one of
our guests, and creating an inviting and engagimgpsphere inside our restaurants. We support héseties with smart and relevant
integrated marketing programs that resonate wittgaests. By delivering on these operational aiatd building imperatives, we expect to
increase our market share through same-restawatast growth and deliver best-in-class profitability

The Darden support structure enables our brandshigve their ultimate potential by: 1) driving adtages in supply chain and general and
administrative support; 2) applying insights caléstfrom our significant guest and transactionablases to enhance guest relationships and
identify new opportunities to drive sales growthda) relentlessly driving operating efficiencigglaontinuous improvement, operating wit
sense of urgency and inspiring a performance-drigture.

We seek to increase profits by leveraging our fiaad semi-fixed costs with sales from new restasrand increased guest traffic and sales a
existing restaurants. To evaluate our operatiodsaasess our financial performance, we monitomalrau of operating measures, with a spe
focus on two key factors:




» Same-restaurant sales — which is a year-ovarjaveek comparison of each period’s sales voluimerestaurants open at least 16
months, including recently acquired restauranggamdess of when the restaurants were acquired; and

» Restaurant-level earnings — which is restausal#s, less food and beverage costs, restauramtdabts, restaurant expenses and
marketing expenses.

Increasing same-restaurant sales can improve rastaearnings because these incremental salesprbetter leverage of our fixed and semi-
fixed restaurant-level costs. A restaurant brandgenerate same-restaurant sales increases thramrghses in guest traffic, increases in the
average guest check, or a combination of the te. dverage guest check can be impacted by mermigitéaiges and by the mix of menu
items sold. For each restaurant brand, we gathisrsides data and regularly analyze the guedidrabunts and the mix of menu items sold to
aid in developing menu pricing, product offeringmlgromotional strategies. We focus on balancingpoiging and product offerings with
other initiatives to produce sustainable same-veatd sales growth.

We compute same-restaurant sales using restaugensat least 16 months because this period isglgneequired for new restaurant sales
levels to normalize. Sales at newly opened restasigenerally do not make a significant contribaitio profitability in their initial months of
operation due to operating inefficiencies. Our saled expenses can be impacted significantly bydingber and timing of new restaurant
openings and closings, relocations and remodelirmxisting restaurants. Pre-opening expenses eatahidreflect the costs associated with
opening new restaurants in current and future gerio

Fiscal 2015 Financial Highlights

Our sales from continuing operations were $6.7i6hilin fiscal 2015 compared to $6.29 billion isdal 2014 . The 7.6 percantrease in sals
from continuing operations was driven by the additf 33 net new company-owned restaurants andnbioed Darden same-restaurant sales
increase of a 2.4 percent on a 52-week basis. Hixgjithe impact of the 53week in fiscal 2015 , sales from continuing operatiincreased
approximately 5.6 percent.

Net earnings from continuing operations for fi<2015 were $196.4 million ( $1.51 per diluted sha@hpared with net earnings from
continuing operations for fiscal 2014 of $183.2limil ( $1.38 per diluted share). Net earnings fi@ntinuing operations for fiscal 2015
increased 7.2 percent and diluted net earningshmee from continuing operations increased 9.4guér@ompared with fiscal 2014 . Excluding
the impact of the 58week in fiscal 2015 , diluted net earnings per slieom continuing operations increased approxingate3 percent.

Our net earnings from discontinued operations #&t3.1 million ( $3.96 per diluted share) for fis2815 , compared with net earnings from
discontinued operations of $103.0 million ( $0. %7 diluted share) for fiscal 2014 . When combinéithwesults from continuing operations,
our diluted net earnings per share were $5.47 aritb$or fiscal 2015 and 2014 , respectively.

Proposed REIT Transactiol

On June 23, 2015, our Board of Directors annouapguloval of a strategic real estate plan to putsuresfer of approximately 430 of our
owned restaurant properties into a real estatestment trust (REIT), with substantially all of tR&IT’s initial assets being leased back to
Darden. We expect to complete the REIT transadtioing fiscal 2016. The REIT supplements the presiyp announced sale-leaseback
transactions of approximately 75 restaurant prigeend our corporate headquarters that were ligiedg the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015.
We expect to utilize the proceeds generated frasahransactions to pay down our long-term debth¥¥e conducted substantial analysis of
the feasibility of implementing a REIT transactitiowever, a significant amount of work remains Hrete can be no assurance we will be

to successfully complete the transaction and @stabIREIT. See the subsection entitled "Liquidityd Capital Resources” for further details.

Outlook

We expect combined Darden same-restaurant salesagein fiscal 2016 to range between 2.0 andé&¢ept, with an increase in Olive
Garden same-restaurant sales between 1.5 perak@t@percent, an increase in LongHorn Steakhousesestaurant sales between 2.5
percent and 3.5 percent, and a blended same-rastaales increase for The Capital Grille, BahameeBe, Seasons 52, Eddie V's and Yard
House of approximately 3.0 percent. Based on fi20ab sales of $6.76 billion , we expect fiscal@8&les from continuing operations to
increase between 2.0 percent and 2.5 percent. YWeeediluted net earnings per share from continoipgrations for fiscal 2016 to be above
fiscal 2015 by between 20.0 percent and 25.0 pérezoluding the impacts of the contemplated retdte transactions. In fiscal 2016 , we
expect to add approximately 18 - 22 new restaurani$ we expect capital expenditures incurred tll mew restaurants and remodel and
maintain existing restaurants to be between $28@ldn and $255.0 million.

In June 2015, we announced a quarterly dividersDd35 per share, payable on August 3, 2015 . Basede $0.55 quarterly dividend
declaration, our expected annual dividend is $p&0share, which is consistent with our fiscal 28h&ual dividend.
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Dividends are subject to the approval of our Ba#rBirectors and, accordingly, the timing and amaefrour dividends are subject to change.

There are significant risks and challenges thaldcimapact our operations and ability to increadesand earnings. The restaurant industry is
intensely competitive and sensitive to economideyand other business factors, including changesnsumer tastes and dietary habits. C
risks and uncertainties are discussed and refeddndée subsection below entitled “Forward-LookBigtements.”

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FISCAL 2015, 2014 AND 203

To facilitate review of our results of operatiotise following table sets forth our financial resufibr the periods indicated. All information is
derived from the consolidated statements of easfagthe fiscal years ended May 31, 2015, May?284 and May 26, 2013 . This
information and the following analysis have beeaspnted with the results of operations, costs ierdun connection with the sale and related
gain on the sale of Red Lobster and results fotvloeclosed company-owned synergy restaurantsifitabas discontinued operations for all
periods presented.

Percent Change

May 26,
May 31, 2015 May 25, 201« 2g13 2015 vs 2014 2014 vs 201:
Sales $ 6,764.( $ 6,285.¢ $ 5,921.( 7.€% 6.2 %
Costs and expenses:
Food and beverage 2,085.: 1,892.: 1,743.¢ 10.2 % 8.5%
Restaurant labor 2,135.¢ 2,017.¢ 1,892.¢ 5.8% 6.€ %
Restaurant expenses 1,120.¢ 1,080." 980.4 3.7% 10.2%
Marketing expenses 243.C 252.¢ 241.1 (3.6% 4.€%
General and administrative expenses 430.Z 413.1 384.1 4.1% 7.€%
Depreciation and amortization 319. 304.¢ 278.< 4.C% 9.4%
Impairments and disposal of assets, net 62.1 16.4 0.6 278.1% NM
Total operating costs and expenses $ 6,396. $ 5,976. $ 5,521.( 7.C% 8.2%
Operating income 367.¢ 308.¢ 400.( 19.C% (22.9%
Interest, net 192.: 134.: 126.( 43.2% 6.€ %
Earnings before income taxes 175.% 174.€ 274.( 0.4% (36.9%
Income tax (benefit) expense (1) (21.7) (8.6) 36.7 145.2% (123.9%
Earnings from continuing operations $ 196.¢ $ 183.: $ 237.: 7.2% (22.9%
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax 513.] 103.( 174.¢ 398.2% (41.0%
Net earnings $ 7098 $ 2862 $ 411 147.¢% (30.5%
(1) Effective tax rate (12.0% (4.9% 13.2%




The following table details the number of compamyned restaurants currently reported in continuipgrations, compared with the number
open at the end of fiscal 2014 and the end of [fi36a3 .

May 31,2015  May 25,2014  May 26, 2013

Olive Garden (1) 84¢ 837 82¢
LongHorn Steakhouse 48C 464 43C
The Capital Grille 54 54 49
Bahama Breeze 36 37 33
Seasons 52 43 38 31
Eddie V's 16 15 12
Yard House 59 52 44
Other (2) — 4 4

Total 1,53¢ 1,501 1,431

(1) Includes sitocations in Canada for all periods preser
(2) Represents company-owned synergy restauraojsaration. We completed the conversion of allai@ing synergy restaurants into stand-
alone Olive Garden restaurants during the firsriguaf fiscal 2015.

SALES
The following table presents our sales and U.Sesggtaurant sales (SRS) by brand for the periatisated.

Fiscal Years Percent Change SRS (1)
2015 vs 2015 vs
(in millions) 2015 2014 2013 2014 2014 vs 201 2014 2014 vs 201
Olive Garden $ 3,789.¢ $ 3,643.. $ 3,684 4.C% (1.1% 1.2% (3.9%
LongHorn Steakhouse $ 1544° $ 1,383¢ $ 1,231.: 11.6% 12.4% 4.4% 2.7%
Yard House $ 469.¢ $ 395.2 % 258.¢ 18.8% 53.1% 3.8% 0.2%
The Capital Grille $ 403.: % 3632 $ 331t 11.(% 9.€% 4.8% 3.4%
Bahama Breeze $ 209.. % 201t % 173.7 3.8% 16.C % 1.8% 4.1%
Seasons 52 $ 2386 % 196.1 $ 158.( 21.5% 24.2% 2.2% (2.2%
Eddie V's $ 96.¢ $ 784 $ 64.¢ 23.6% 20.£ % 5.4% 1.1%

(1) Same-restaurant sales is a year-over-year @esonm of each period’s sales volumes for a 52-week and is limited to restaurants open a
least 16 months.

The following table presents our average annuaksaér restaurant for the periods indicated. Aveeamual sales are calculated as net sales
divided by total restaurant operating weeks muégbby 52 weeks.

(in millions) May 31, 201 May 25, 201. May 26, 201
Olive Garden $ 44 $ 44 $ 4.¢€
LongHorn Steakhouse $ 32 % 31 $ 3.C
The Capital Grille $ 72 % 71 % 7.C
Bahama Breeze $ 57 % 5E $ 5.t
Seasons 52 $ 57 $ 57 $ 6.2
Eddie V's $ 6.2 % 6.C $ 5.6
Yard House $ 82 % 82 % 8.2

Olive Garden'’s sales increase for fiscal 2015 waged by revenue from nine net new restaurants eoatbwith a U.S. same-restaurant sales
increase and the impact of the5&eek. The increase in U.S. same-restaurant safescal 2015 resulted from a 2.9 percent increase i
average check partially offset by a 1.6 percentefese in same-restaurant guest counts. Olive Gardales decrease for fiscal 2044ds drive!
by a U.S. same-restaurant sales decrease padafat by revenue from nine net new restaurants.décrease in U.S. same-restaurant sales
fiscal 2014 resulted from a 4.2 percent decreasarnme-restaurant guest counts partially offset @y8gercent increase in average check.
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LongHorn Steakhouse’s sales increase for fiscab2@ds driven by revenue from 16 net new restau@ntshined with a same-restaurant sale
increase and the impact of the5&eek. The increase in same-restaurant sales i 8845 resulted from a 0.8 percent increase iresam
restaurant guest counts combined with a 3.6 peinergase in average check. LongHorn Steakhouatgs screase for fiscal 2014 was driven
by revenue from 34 net new restaurants combine s@ne-restaurant sales increases. The increaaeig-restaurant sales in fiscal 2014
resulted from a 0.3 percent increase in same-m@sthguest counts combined with a 2.4 percent aseén average check.

In total, The Capital Grille, Bahama Breeze, Seasi#l) Eddie V's and Yard House generated sale$.42illion and $1.23 billion in fiscal
2015 and 2014 , which were 14.8 percent and 25&peabove fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 , respebltivi he sales increases for fiscal 2015
were primarily driven by the incremental sales frbnnet new restaurants since the end of fiscad 20t the impact of the 53veek. The

sales increases for fiscal 2014 were primarily ity incremental sales from 27 net new restausante the end of fiscal 2013 . Sales growtl
also reflected same-restaurant sales increasdidigedrands in fiscal 2015 , and increases bBbinds, except Seasons 52, in fiscal 2014 .

COSTS AND EXPENSES

The following table sets forth selected operatiatpdhs a percent of sales from continuing operafionthe fiscal years ended May 31, 2015,
May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 . This informatiodésived from the consolidated statements of egenfaund elsewhere in this report.
Additionally, this information and the following alysis have been presented with the results ofatipais, costs incurred in connection with
the sale of Red Lobster and the closure of two @mywned synergy restaurants classified as disaad operations for all periods
presented.

Fiscal Years
2015 2014 2013
Sales 100.( % 100.( % 100.(%
Costs and expenses:
Food and beverage 30.¢ 30.1 29.4
Restaurant labor 31.€ 32.1 32.C
Restaurant expenses 16.€ 17.2 16.€
Marketing expenses 3.€ 4.C 4.1
General and administrative expenses 6.4 6.€ 6.5
Depreciation and amortization 4.7 4.8 4.7
Impairments and disposal of assets, net 0.¢ 0.2 —
Total operating costs and expenses 94.€ % 95.1% 93.52%
Operating income 5.4 4.¢ 6.7
Interest, net 2.8 2.1 2.1
Earnings before income taxes 2.€ 2.8 4.€
Income tax (benefit) expense 0.3 (0.7 0.€
Earnings from continuing operations 2.9 2.6 4.C
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of taxes 7.€ 1.7 3.C
Net earnings 10.5% 4.€ % 7.C%

Total operating costs and expenses from continopegations were $6.40 billion in fiscal 2015 , $bt8llion in fiscal 2014 and $5.52 billion
fiscal 2013 . As a percent of sales, total costsexpenses from continuing operations were 94.6gmtiin fiscal 2015 , 95.1 percent in fiscal
2014 and 93.3 percent in fiscal 2013 .

Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014 :

» Food and beverage costs increased as perceatasfas a result of food cost inflation, primad&iry and beef, and increased costs fo
promotional items, partially offset by pricing afaovorable menu mix.
» Restaurant labor costs decreased as a percenéesfsanarily as a result of sales lever:
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» Restaurant expenses (which include utilitiepanes and maintenance, credit card, lease, propertyworkers’ compensation, new
restaurant pre-opening, rent expense and otheurasit-level operating expenses) decreased asanpaf sales, primarily as a result
of sales leverage and lower new restaurant pretogexpenses.

» Marketing expenses decreased as a percent of pahasyily as a result of sales leverage and redlmeedia cost

» General and administrative expenses decreasggaxent of sales, primarily as a result of sl@esrage and support cost savings ne
of costs related to implementation of the strategimon plan.

» Depreciation and amortization expense as a peatesaties decreased primarily due to lower net restaurants and remodel activit
as compared to the prior year.

* Netinterest expense increased as a percent &f gamearily due t¢$91.3 million of debt breakage costs related torétieement of
$1.01 billion in principal of long-term debt.

Fiscal2014Compared to Fisca?2013 :

* Food and beverage costs increased as percenesfmaharily as a result of food cost inflationfdly offset by pricing

» Restaurant labor costs increased as a percesated primarily as a result of wagse inflation and decreased labor efficiency, iplyt
offset by sales leverage.

» Restaurant expenses (which include utilitiepanes and maintenance, credit card, lease, propeettyworkers’ compensation, new
restaurant pre-opening, rent expense and otheurasit-level operating expenses) increased ascamgesf sales, primarily due to an
increase in rent expense and higher repairs andtemaince expenses.

» Marketing expenses decreased as a percent of patesyily as a result of sales levere

* General and administrative expenses increasagascent of sales primarily as a result of thesceelated to implementation of the
strategic action plan and workforce reductionstiglly offset by sales leverage.

» Depreciation and amortization expense as a peofesales increased primarily due to an incréaskepreciable assets related to new
restaurants and remodel activities.

* Net interest expense as a percent of sales wastiediyefat.

INCOME TAXES

The effective income tax rates for fiscal 2015142@nd 2013 for continuing operations were (12édtent , (4.9) percent and 13.4 percent ,
respectively. Our effective tax rate from contirgumperations was negative in both fiscal 2015 @whf 2014 primarily due to the impact of
certain tax credits on lower earnings before incéaxes. The decrease in our effective tax ratéigoal 2015 compared to fiscal 2014 is
primarily attributable to the impact of the favolabesolution of prior-year tax matters. The deseeia our effective rate for fiscal 2014
compared to fiscal 2018 primarily due to an increase in the impact ofaia tax credits on lower earnings before incomes$ and a favorak
adjustment related to the deduction of ESOP divdddor the current and prior years, partially dffsg the impact of market-driven changes in
the value of our trust-owned life insurance thatexcluded for tax purposes.

The effective income tax rates for fiscal 2015142@nd 2013 for discontinued operations were 48r2gnt , 23.9 percent and 29.4 percent ,
respectively. The increase in the effective ratdifzal 2015 compared to fiscal 2014 was driverth®gygain on the sale of Red Lobster of
$837.0 million , which is included in earnings fratiscontinued operations in our consolidated staterof earnings. The decrease in the
effective rate for fiscal 2014 compared to fiscdl 2 is primarily due to an increase in the impdaestain tax credits on lower earnings before
income taxes.

NET EARNINGS AND NET EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTIN UING OPERATIONS

Net earnings from continuing operations for fi<2015 were $196.4 million ( $1.51 per diluted sha@hpared with net earnings from
continuing operations for fiscal 2014 of $183.2limil ( $1.38 per diluted share) and net earningmfcontinuing operations for fiscal 2013 of
$237.3 million ( $1.80 per diluted share).

Net earnings from continuing operations for fic2015 increased 7.2 percent and diluted net earpiegshare from continuing operations
increased 9.4 percent compared with fiscal 20#nayily due to increased sales and a lower effedticome tax rate and lower restaurant
labor expenses, restaurant expenses and marka&pegses as a percent of sales, partially offsétidyer food and beverage costs, general an
administrative expenses and impairments and dispbsasets, net as a percent of sales. Our dilge@arnings per share from continuing
operations for fiscal 2015 were adversely impatigdpproximately $1.10, comprised of

» Approximately $0.42 due to debt breakage casdtted to the retirement of $1.01 billion in prip&i of longterm debt

» Approximately $0.33 due to corporate and restatirelated asset impairments and impairment @tageet of related tax benefits)

associated with our lobster aquaculture project;




»  Approximately $0.20 due to severance and othstscassociated with the support expense reduetforts announced in the second
quarter; and

» Approximately $0.15 due to legal, financial asbwiy and other costs related to strategic actian pbsts and associated actions in the
proxy contest.

Net earnings from continuing operations for fis2014 decreased 22.8 percent and diluted net earpigshare from continuing operations
decreased 23.3 percent compared with fiscal 20ib@apity due to higher food and beverage costs asthurant expenses as a percent of sale
partially offset by increased sales and a lowezai¥e income tax rate. Our diluted net earningsspare from continuing operations for fiscal
2014 were adversely impacted by approximately $@&a@prised of:

» Approximately $0.10 due to legal, financial advisand other costs related to implementation ofsti&tegic action plan announcec

December 2013;
» Approximately $0.08 due to asset impairment charge¢
» Approximately $0.05 due to costs associated withSeptember 2013 workforce reducti

EARNINGS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On an after-tax basis, earnings from discontinysetations for fiscal 2015 were $513.1 million (#8per diluted share) compared with
earnings from discontinued operations for fiscal20f $103.0 million ( $0.77 per diluted share) dsdal 2013 of $174.6 million ( $1.33 per
diluted share). In fiscal 2015 , we recorded atpregain of $837.0 million on the sale of Red Lebsts described above. The decrease in
earnings from discontinued operations in fiscal2@hs primarily driven by a decrease in sales amdadl performance at Red Lobster in
addition to separation-related costs (approxime®6lyL0 per diluted share) and impairments recofdethe two closed company-owned
synergy locations (approximately $0.04 per diligbdre).

SEASONALITY

Our sales volumes fluctuate seasonally. Typically,average sales per restaurant are highest sptiveg and winter, followed by the summer,
and lowest in the fall. Holidays, changes in theneny, severe weather and similar conditions mayairhsales volumes seasonally in some
operating regions. Because of the seasonality obosiness, results for any quarter are not neagssalicative of the results that may be
achieved for the full fiscal year.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

We attempt to minimize the annual effects of inflatthrough appropriate planning, operating prastiand menu price increases. We
experienced higher than normal inflationary costsrd) fiscal 2015 and fiscal 20khd were able to partially reduce the annual imp#liting
these strategies. We do not believe inflation hamjaificant overall effect on our annual result®perations during fiscal 2013 .

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We prepare our consolidated financial statement®mormity with U.S. generally accepted accountinigiciples. The preparation of these

financial statements requires us to make estinatdsassumptions that affect the reported amourdssats and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effiteancial statements and the reported amourgales and expenses during the reporting pe
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Our significant accounting policies are more fullgscribed in Note 1 to the consolidated finandatesnents. However, certain of our
accounting policies that are considered criticaltanse we believe are both most important to thergyal of our financial condition and
operating results and require our most difficulyjective or complex judgments, often as a reduti® need to make estimates about the effeq
of matters that are inherently uncertain. Judgmeantsuncertainties affecting the application ofsthpolicies may result in materially different
amounts being reported under different conditiongsing different assumptions. We consider theofeihg policies to be most critical in
understanding the judgments that are involved @paring our consolidated financial statements.

Land, Buildings and Equipment, Ne

Land, buildings and equipment are recorded atlesstaccumulated depreciation. Building componarggiepreciated over estimated useful
lives ranging from 7 to 40 years using the stralgté method. Leasehold improvements, which arecedd on our consolidated balance sheet
as a component of buildings in land, buildings agdipment, net, are amortized over the lessereoéiipected lease term, including cancelabl
option periods, or the estimated useful lives efriglated assets using the
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straight-line method. Equipment is depreciated @stimated useful lives ranging from 2 to 15 yealsp using the straight-line method.

Our accounting policies regarding land, buildingd @quipment, including leasehold improvementduite our judgments regarding the
estimated useful lives of these assets, the rdsidilizes to which the assets are depreciated orteamd, the determination of what constitutes
expected lease term and the determination as tbaeatitutes enhancing the value of or increatliegife of existing assets. These judgment
and estimates may produce materially different amwaof reported depreciation and amortization espéhdifferent assumptions were used.
As discussed further below, these judgments mayialpact our need to recognize an impairment changie carrying amount of these as
as the cash flows associated with the assets aiea®, or as our expectations of estimated futadh flows change.

Leases

We are obligated under various lease agreementeftain restaurants. For operating leases, wayneoe rent expense on a straight-line basis
over the expected lease term, including optionoalsras described below. Capital leases are recaslad asset and an obligation at an amou
equal to the present value of the minimum leasengays during the lease term. Sale leasebacksaargatrtions through which we sell assets
(such as restaurant properties) at fair value abdexjuently lease them back. The resulting leaesmarglly qualify and are accounted for as
operating leases. Financing leases are generallgroduct of a failed sale-leaseback transactiohresult in retention of the "sold" assets
within land, building and equipment with a finangilease obligation equal to the amount of proceecksived recorded as a component of ¢
liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets.

Within the provisions of certain of our leasesr¢hare rent holidays and escalations in paymerdsthre base lease term, as well as renewal
periods. The effects of the holidays and escalatimve been reflected in rent expense on a striighbasis over the expected lease term,
which includes cancelable option periods we areaeably assured to exercise because failure t@iseesuch options would result in an
economic penalty to the Company. The lease ternmuames on the date when we have the right to dahiaise of the leased property,
which is typically before rent payments are dueaurttie terms of the lease. The leasehold improvera d property held under capital leases
for each restaurant facility are amortized on thaight-line method over the shorter of the esteddife of the asset or the same expected leas
term used for lease accounting purposes. Many ofeases have renewal periods totaling 5 to 20sy@mercisable at our option, and require
payment of property taxes, insurance and mainteneosts in addition to the rent payments. The dafeted financial statements reflect the
same lease term for amortizing leasehold improvésnenwe use to determine capital versus operkgasg classifications and in calculating
straight-line rent expense for each restaurantdpéage rent expense is generally based uponlsaéds and is accrued when we determine
that it is probable that such sales levels wilhbhieved. Landlord allowances are recorded basedminactual terms and are included in
accounts receivable, net and as a deferred rdmilitfeand amortized as a reduction of rent expesisa straight-line basis over the expected
lease term.

Our judgments related to the probable term for eastaurant affect the classification and accogrfiim leases as capital versus operating, the
rent holidays and escalation in payments thatrarleided in the calculation of straight-line rentiahe term over which leasehold
improvements for each restaurant facility are aiedt These judgments may produce materially gifieamounts of depreciation,
amortization and rent expense than would be regdirifferent assumed lease terms were used.

Impairment or Disposal of Lon-Lived Assets

Land, buildings and equipment and certain othestasicluding definite-lived intangible assets srviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceramount of an asset may not be recoverable.\Reability of assets to be held and used i
measured by a comparison of the carrying amoutiieoéssets to the future undiscounted net casls floypected to be generated by the asset
Identifiable cash flows are measured at the loves&t for which they are largely independent of ¢lash flows of other groups of assets and
liabilities, generally at the restaurant levelthése assets are determined to be impaired, therdrabimpairment recognized is measured by
the amount by which the carrying amount of the t@sseceeds their fair value. Fair value is gengidditermined by appraisals or sales price
comparable assets. Restaurant sites and cert@nashets to be disposed of are reported at ther loftheir carrying amount or fair value, less
estimated costs to sell. Restaurant sites andic@tizer assets to be disposed of are includeddata held for sale when certain criteria are
These criteria include the requirement that thelillood of disposing of these assets within one igeprobable. Assets whose disposal is not
probable within one year remain in land, buildiagsl equipment until their disposal within one yiegsrobable. Disposals of assets that have
major effect on our operations and financial resattthat represent a strategic shift in our opegaiusinesses are reviewed to determine
whether those assets would also meet the requitsrttebe reported as discontinued operations.
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We account for exit or disposal activities, incluglirestaurant closures, in accordance with FindAcieounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 4E8ijt or Disposal Cost Obligations. Such costs idelthe cost of disposing of the asset
well as other facility-related expenses from presiy closed restaurants. These costs are genesgdBnsed as incurred. Additionally, at the
date we cease using a property under an operaiiisg| we record a liability for the net presentigalf any remaining lease obligations, net of
estimated sublease income. Any subsequent adjustieetinat liability as a result of lease termioator changes in estimates of sublease
income are recorded in the period incurred. UpspaBal of the assets, primarily land, associatél avclosed restaurant, any gain or loss is
recorded in the same caption within our consolidiatatements of earnings as the original impairment

The judgments we make related to the expected lugefa of long-lived assets and our ability toliza undiscounted cash flows in excess of
the carrying amounts of these assets are affegtéachors such as the ongoing maintenance and weprents of the assets, changes in
economic conditions, changes in usage or operagn@rmance, desirability of the restaurant sitas @ther factors, such as our ability to sell
our assets held for sale. As we assess the onggperted cash flows and carrying amounts of oug-lmed assets, significant adverse chal

in these factors could cause us to realize a nadierpairment loss. During fiscal 2015 , 2014 afd2we recognized long-lived asset
impairment and disposal charges of $62.1 milli§4@.3 million net of tax), $16.4 million ( $10.1 liiwn net of tax) and $0.9 million ( $0.6
million net of tax), respectively. Impairment chasgresulted primarily from the carrying value dftegirant assets exceeding the estimated fai
market value, which is based on projected cashsldese costs are included in impairments andd@épf assets, net as a component of
earnings from continuing operations in the accorgjpanconsolidated statements of earnings for fi2€dl5 , 2014 and 2013 . Impairment
charges were measured based on the amount by thieicdarrying amount of these assets exceededf#tireialue.

Valuation and Recoverability of Goodwill and Traderks

We review our goodwill and trademarks for impairmannually, as of the first day of our fiscal fduguarter, or more frequently if indicators
of impairment exist. Goodwill and trademarks arésubject to amortization and have been assigneepiarting units for purposes of
impairment testing. The reporting units are outaesant brands. At May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2044 had goodwill of $872.4 million and
$872.5 million , respectively. We had trademark$®74.6 million at May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2014 .

A significant amount of judgment is involved in dehining if an indicator of impairment has occutr8dch indicators may include, among
others: a significant decline in our expected fetcash flows; a sustained, significant declineunsiock price and market capitalization; a
significant adverse change in legal factors ohaliusiness climate; unanticipated competitionjelsting for recoverability of a significant
asset group within a reporting unit; and slowemglorates. Any adverse change in these factorgidmaNe a significant impact on the
recoverability of these assets and could have anmmhimpact on our consolidated financial statetsen

The goodwill impairment test involves a two-stepgass. The first step is a comparison of each tiegaunit’s fair value to its carrying

value. We estimate fair value using the best infidfom available, including market information aridodunted cash flow projections (also
referred to as the income approach). The incomeoapp uses a reporting unit's projection of estedaiperating results and cash flows that is
discounted using a weighted-average cost of capigdlreflects current market conditions. The ptfgm uses management’s best estimates o
economic and market conditions over the projecttbd including growth rates in sales, costs andlmer of units, estimates of future
expected changes in operating margins and casmeitpees. Other significant estimates and assumgfiloclude terminal value growth rates,
future estimates of capital expenditures and chairgiture working capital requirements. We vatégdaur estimates of fair value under the
income approach by comparing the values to famealstimates using a market approach. A markebapprestimates fair value by applying
cash flow and sales multiples to the reporting’simiperating performance. The multiples are derivech comparable publicly traded
companies with similar operating and investmentatitaristics of the reporting units.

If the fair value of the reporting unit is high&ah its carrying value, goodwill is deemed not édrhpaired, and no further testing is requires
the carrying value of the reporting unit is higkiean its fair value, there is an indication thapaimment may exist and the second step must b
performed to measure the amount of impairment [Blss.amount of impairment is determined by compatire implied fair value of reporting
unit goodwill to the carrying value of the goodwillthe same manner as if the reporting unit wasgoacquired in a business combination.
Specifically, fair value is allocated to all of thesets and liabilities of the reporting unit, uathg any unrecognized intangible assets, in a
hypothetical analysis that would calculate the iegbfair value of goodwill. If the implied fair via¢ of goodwill is less than the recorded
goodwill, we would record an impairment loss foe thifference.




Consistent with our accounting policy for goodwaitid trademarks, we performed our annual impairrgstof our goodwill and trademarks as
of the first day of our fiscal fourth quarter. Astbe beginning of our fiscal fourth quarter, weltsgven reporting units, five of which had
goodwill: Olive Garden, LongHorn Steakhouse, Thei@&Grille, Eddie V's, and Yard House. As parbof process for performing the step
one impairment test of goodwill, we estimated thie ¥alue of our reporting units utilizing the inne and market approaches described above
to derive an enterprise value of the Company. Werreiled the enterprise value to our overall estitianarket capitalization. The estimated
market capitalization considers recent trends innoarket capitalization and an expected controhjuen, based on comparable recent and
historical transactions. Based on the results ®fthp one impairment test, no impairment of gothdveis indicated.

Given the significance of goodwill relative to thige of the LongHorn Steakhouse ( $49.3 milliofife Capital Grille ( $401.7 milliojy Eddie
V's ($22.0 million ) and Yard House ( $369.2 noilli) reporting units, we also performed sensitigityalyses on our estimated fair value of
these reporting units using the income approadkeyAassumption in our fair value estimate is theghted-average cost of capital utilized for
discounting our cash flow estimates in our incomraach. We selected a weighted-average cost @¢htap10.5 percent for LongHorn
Steakhouse and The Capital Grille, 16.0 percenEélaie V's and 13.5 percent for Yard House. A 188idpoint increase in the weighted-
average cost of capital would decrease the estihfaievalue by approximately $458.9 million, $64lion, $32.1 million and $160.9 millic
for LongHorn Steakhouse, The Capital Grille, Eddi® and Yard House, respectively. The estimatedvidues of LongHorn Steakhouse, The
Capital Grille, Eddie V's and Yard House exceedhair tcarrying values by approximately 160 perc2Btpercent, 101 percent and 34 percent,
respectively.

The fair value of trademarks are estimated and emetpto the carrying value. We estimate the fdinevaf trademarks using the relief-from-
royalty method, which requires assumptions rel&tgulojected sales from our annual long-range @asumed royalty rates that could be
payable if we did not own the trademarks; and aadiat rate. We recognize an impairment loss wheregttimated fair value of the trademarks
is less than the carrying value. We completed myairment test and concluded as of the date destethere was no impairment of the
trademarks for LongHorn Steakhouse, The CapitdleGEddie V's and Yard House. The estimated faiug of LongHorn Steakhouse's
trademark exceeded its carrying value of $307.8aniby approximately 103 percent. The estimatédvaue of The Capital Grille's
trademark exceeded its carrying value of $147.0aniby approximately 22 percent. The estimatedvalue of Eddie V's trademark exceedec
its carrying value of $10.5 million by approximat&®38 percent. The estimated fair value of Yard $torademark exceeded its carrying value
of $109.3 million by approximately 68 percent. Aykessumption in our fair value estimate is the dlist rate utilized in the relief-fromsyalty
method. We selected a discount rate of 11.5 pefoehibngHorn Steakhouse and The Capital GrilleDJpercent for Eddie V's and 14.5
percent for Yard House. A 100 basis point increasbe discount rate would decrease the estimatieddlue by approximately $69.3 million,
$20.2 million, $3.3 million and $17.3 million fordngHorn Steakhouse, The Capital Grille, Eddie Wi #ard House, respectively.

We determined that there was no goodwill or trad&rmapairment as of the first day of our fiscal B0fburth quarter and no additional
indicators of impairment were identified througle #nd of our fiscal fourth quarter that would requis to test further for impairment.
However, declines in our market capitalizationlgetied in our stock price) as well as in the madegditalization of other companies in the
restaurant industry, declines in sales at our ueatds, and significant adverse changes in theatipgrenvironment for the restaurant industry
may result in a future impairment loss.

Changes in circumstances, existing at the measumathiage or at other times in the future, or inlnenerous estimates associated with
management’s judgments and assumptions made issagg¢he fair value of our goodwill, could resalian impairment loss of a portion or all
of our goodwill or trademarks. If we recorded ampaimment loss, our financial position and resuftefgerations would be adversely affected
and our leverage ratio for purposes of our creglitement would increase. A leverage ratio exceeii@gnaximum permitted under our credit
agreement would be a default under our credit agee¢. At May 31, 2015 , a write-down of goodwilther indefinite-lived intangible assets,
or any other assets in excess of approximately §iflidn would have been required to cause ourrage ratio to exceed the permitted
maximum. As our leverage ratio is determined oniaigrly basis and due to the seasonal naturerdfuminess, a lesser amount of impairmer
in future quarters could cause our leverage ratiexteed the permitted maximum.

We evaluate the useful lives of our other intargyddsets, primarily intangible assets associatddaur acquisitions, to determine if they are
definite or indefinite-lived. Reaching a determioaton useful life requires significant judgmentslaassumptions regarding the future effects
of obsolescence, demand, competition, other ecantaniors (such as the stability of the industegislative action that results in an uncertain
or changing regulatory environment, and expecteahghs in distribution channels), the level of reggiimaintenance expenditures, and the
expected lives of other related groups of assets.
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Insurance Accruals

Through the use of insurance program deductibldssafi-insurance, we retain a significant portiéexpected losses under our workers’
compensation, certain employee medical and gehabdlity programs. However, we carry insuranceifatividual workers’ compensation and
general liability claims that exceed $0.5 millioAccrued liabilities have been recorded based orestimates of the anticipated ultimate costs
to settle all claims, both reported and not yebregal.

Our accounting policies regarding these insuramograms include our judgments and independent aat@ssumptions about economic
conditions, the frequency or severity of claims alam development patterns and claim reserve, gemant and settlement practices.
Unanticipated changes in these factors may prothaterially different amounts of reported expensgeurthese programs.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues represent our liability for cgiitds that have been sold but not yet redeemede@égnize sales from our gift cards when
the gift card is redeemed by the customer. Althaihgine are no expiration dates or dormancy feesdogift cards, based on our analysis of
our historical gift card redemption patterns, we ogasonably estimate the amount of gift cardsviich redemption is remote, which is
referred to as “breakage.” We recognize breakagieimsales for unused gift card amounts in propartd actual gift card redemptions, which
is also referred to as the “redemption recognitior@thod. The estimated value of gift cards expette@dmain unused is recognized over the
expected period of redemption as the remainingcgiftl values are redeemed, generally over a pefitfl years. Utilizing this method, we
estimate both the amount of breakage and the tariegof redemption. If actual redemption patteras/ from our estimates, actual gift card
breakage income may differ from the amounts reabridée update our estimates of our redemption perr@tiour breakage rate periodically
and apply that rate to gift card redemptions. Ciangur breakage-rate assumption on unredeemedagids by 25 basis points would result in
an adjustment in our unearned revenues of appraeiynd17.0 million.

Income Taxes

We estimate certain components of our provisiorifoome taxes. These estimates include, among ibéimes, depreciation and amortization

expense allowable for tax purposes, allowable teslits for items such as taxes paid on reported@rap tip income, effective rates for state
and local income taxes and the tax deductibilitgartain other items. We adjust our annual effeciticome tax rate as additional information
on outcomes or events becomes available.

FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, requires thabstipn taken or expected to be taken in a taxnebe recognized (or derecognized) in
the financial statements when it is more likelyrtimat (i.e., a likelihood of more than 50 percehgt the position would be sustained upon
examination by tax authorities. A recognized tagipion is then measured at the largest amount iéfitethat is greater than 50 percent likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

We provide for federal and state income taxes atigrgpayable as well as for those deferred becatissmporary differences between repor
income and expenses for financial statement pugpeosesus tax purposes. Federal income tax craditeeaorded as a reduction of income
taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aregmeieed for the future tax consequences attributttbtéfferences between the financial stater
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitind their respective tax bases. Deferred tax .asek liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeernytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities ofiange in tax rates is recognized in earningserp#riod that includes the enactment date.
Interest recognized on reserves for uncertain ¢eitipns is included in interest, net in our coidated statements of earnings. A correspon
liability for accrued interest is included as a gament of other current liabilities on our consatiell balance sheets. Penalties, when incurrec
are recognized in general and administrative exggens

We base our estimates on the best available intiwmat the time that we prepare the provision. §&rerally file our annual income tax
returns several months after our fiscal year eod \FS. federal income tax purposes, we participatbe Internal Revenue Service's (IRS)
Compliance Assurance Process (CAP) whereby ourfdd8ral income tax returns are reviewed by theBBtH prior to and after their filing.
Income tax returns are subject to audit by statkl@aral governments, generally years after thermstare filed. These returns could be subject
to material adjustments or differing interpretatiaf the tax laws. The major jurisdictions in whitle Company files income tax returns
include the U.S. federal jurisdiction, Canada, alhdtates in the U.S. that have an income taxh\Witew exceptions, the Company is no lor
subject to U.S. federal income tax examinationsaiyauthorities for years before fiscal 2014, atadiesand local, or non-U.S. income tax
examinations by tax authorities for years befosedl 2011.
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Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemeafitMay 31, 2015 is $0.7 million related to tasitions for which it is reasonably possible
that the total amounts could change during the h2xhonths based on the outcome of examinatiores $0t7 million relates to items that
would impact our effective income tax rate.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flows generated from operating activitiescaneprincipal source of liquidity, which we useftmd the construction of new restaurants
to remodel and maintain existing restaurants, jodddends to our shareholders and to repurchiagees of our common stock. Since
substantially all of our sales are for cash an¢h emgiivalents, and accounts payable are genenadlyrds to 30 days, we are able to carry
current liabilities in excess of current assetsaddition to cash flows from operations, we usemlzination of long-term and short-term
borrowings to fund our capital needs.

We currently manage our business and financiadsdat maintain an investment grade bond ratingclwhas historically allowed flexible
access to financing at reasonable costs. Curranthypublicly issued long-term debt carries “Balfopdy’s Investors Service), “BBB-

" (Standard & Poor’s) and “BBB-" (Fitch) ratingsu®commercial paper has ratings of “NP” (Moody'séstors Service), “A-3” (Standard &
Poor’s) and “F-3” (Fitch). These ratings are athefdate of the filing of this annual report anddeen obtained with the understanding that
Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s artdhiFwill continue to monitor our credit and makéuie adjustments to these ratings to the
extent warranted. The ratings are not a recommemdtt buy, sell or hold our securities, may berged, superseded or withdrawn at any
and should be evaluated independently of any o#targ.

We maintain a $750.0 milliorevolving Credit Agreement (Revolving Credit Agresmt), with Bank of America, N.A. (BOA) as admingtirve
agent, and the lenders and other agents partytéhdiiee Revolving Credit Agreement is a senior ensed credit commitment to the Company
and contains customary representations and affivenahd negative covenants (including limitationsliens and subsidiary debt and a
maximum consolidated lease adjusted total delwitéd tapitalization ratio of 0.75 to 1.00) and etgenf default usual for credit facilities of this
type. As of May 31, 2015, we were in compliancéhweill covenants under the Revolving Credit Agreeine

The Revolving Credit Agreement matures on Octode2R18 and the proceeds may be used for commeiier back-up, working capital
and capital expenditures, the refinancing of ceritailebtedness, certain acquisitions and generpbcate purposes. Loans under the Revol
Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate of LIBAW ja margin determined by reference to a ratiragged pricing grid (Applicable Margin), or
the base rate (which is defined as the highes$teBIOA prime rate, the Federal Funds rate plus@p&dcent , and the Eurocurrency Rate plus
1.00 percent ) plus the Applicable Margin. AssuméntBBB-" equivalent credit rating level, the Appdible Margin under the Revolving Credit
Agreement will be 1.300 percent for LIBOR loans @800 percent for base rate loans. As of May 8152 we had no outstanding balances
under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

During fiscal 2015 , primarily utilizing proceed®in the sale of Red Lobster, we retired approxiipaii#.01 billion aggregate principal of
long-term debt, comprised of $278.1 million aggtegarincipal of our 4.500 percent senior notes 20@1 , $338.9 million aggregate principal
of our 3.350 percent senior notes due 2022 , $8dldn aggregate principal amount of our 3.790qgert senior notes due 2019 , $210.0
million aggregate principal amount of our 4.520qe&it senior notes due 2024 and $100.0 milliggregate principal amount of our outstant
7.125 percent debentures due 2016 .

In fiscal 2015, we recorded approximately $91.3iatilof expenses associated with the retirements&hexpenses included cash components
for repurchase premiums and make-whole amountpprbaimately $44.0 million and non-cash chargeseiased with hedge and loan cost
write-offs of approximately $47.3 million . Thesmaunts were recorded in interest, net in our codat#d statements of earnings.

At May 31, 2015, our long-term debt consisted gipally of:
e $270.0 million unsecured, variahiate, amortizing term loan, maturing in August 2
*  $500.0 million of unsecured 6.200 percent senioesafue in October 20
*  $121.9 million of unsecured 4.500 percent senioesafue in October 20:
*  $111.1 million of unsecured 3.350 percent senioesafue in November 20:
*  $10.0 million of unsecured 4.520 percent senior sidige in August 202
e $150.0 million of unsecured 6.000 percent senioesalue in August 2035; a
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*  $300.0 million of unsecured 6.800 percent senioesidiue in October 20!

We also have $15.0 million included in current iliéiles as current portion of long-term debt asateil with the term loan, which reflects the
annual principal amortization payment due in Augii5s.

The interest rates on our $500.0 million 6.200 petsenior notes due October 2017 and $300.0 miliBO0 percent senior notes due Octobe
2037 are subject to adjustment from time to tintléf debt rating assigned to such series of netdewngraded below a certain rating level (ol
subsequently upgraded). The maximum adjustmen®@2ercent above the initial interest rate aedrkerest rate cannot be reduced below
the initial interest rate. In October 2014, Moody'gestor Service downgraded our senior unsecuatiags to "Bal" from "Baa3" resulting in
an increase of 0.250 percent in the interest K@tesur senior notes due in October 2017 and Oct2Q@T , effective as of the first day of the
interest period during which the ratings changé tglace. Accordingly, our annual interest expemsegased by $ 2.0 million as a result of
these rate adjustments.

Through our shelf registration statement on filéwihe SEC, depending on conditions prevailindhm public capital markets, we may issue
unsecured debt securities from time to time in @nmore series, which may consist of notes, delestor other evidences of indebtedness in
one or more offerings.

From time to time, we may repurchase our outstandebt in privately negotiated transactions. Segiurchases, if any, will depend on
prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requinents and other factors.

Effective October 13, 2014, 12 new directors wéeeted to the Company’s board, replacing the preyvit? directors. At a meeting held on
July 24, 2014, the Company'’s then current BoarDioéctors sought to address the potential adveyaserjuences to the Company from a
change in control of the Company’s board, includingptential event of default or acceleration sfiitdebtedness under the provisions of our
Revolving Credit Agreement or other debt agreeme¥dsa result, the then current Board of Directmispted resolutions approving and
nominating the 12 new directors solely for purpasieaddressing the provisions in the Revolving @radreement and other debt agreements
so that the election of 12 new members to our bdafehot constitute a change in control triggeritmgevent of default under those agreement:
The board's actions do not affect any other agragikat may have change in control triggers.

During fiscal 2015, we conducted a comprehensiauagion of a wide range of options for the potantionetization of our real estate
portfolio. As a result of this evaluation, we undek the following strategies:

»  We listed approximately 75 properties for sa&aseback transactions, 14 of which were completéiddal 2015 with the remaining
properties expected to be completed in fiscal 20h&. 14 completed transactions generated procdeifgi® million;

* We listed our corporate headquarters to explofierdifit monetizing structures, including a saledbask; an

* InJune 2015, our Board of Directors approvexdba to transfer approximately 430 of our ownedaasant properties into a REIT,
with substantially all of the REIF initial assets being leased back to Darden. Veeixo complete the REIT transaction during fi:
2016.

We expect to utilize the proceeds generated fragehransactions to pay down our long-term debiléMre have conducted substantial
analysis of the feasibility of implementing a REf@nsaction, a significant amount of work remaind there can be no assurance we will be
able to successfully complete the transaction atabésh a REIT.

From time to time, we enter into interest ratedive instruments to manage interest rate riskraht in our operations. See Note 10 to our
consolidated financial statements in Part Il, [&wf this report, incorporated herein by reference.
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A summary of our contractual obligations and conuiaicommitments at May 31, 2015 , is as follows:

(in millions) Payments Due by Period

P Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term debt (1) $ 22990 $ 92t % 904.¢ $ 796 % 1,222
Operating leases (2) 1,324.! 196.¢ 359.: 290.1 478.7
Purchase obligations (3) 328.i 314.( 147 — —
Capital lease obligations (4) 84.t 5.7 11.¢ 12.2 55.C
Benefit obligations (5) 372.2 27.¢ 64.4 75.4 204.¢
Unrecognized income tax benefits (6) 14.£ 0.8 5.E 8.1 —
Total contractual obligations $ 4,423¢ $ 6372 $ 1,360 $ 4652 $  1,960.¢
(in millions) Amount of Commitment Expiration per Period

Total

Other Commercial Amounts Less thar 1-3 35 More than
Commitments Committed 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Standby letters of credit (7) $ 1382 % 1382 % — ¢ —  $ —
Guarantees (8) 147.5 34.C 54.4 32t 26.¢
Total commercial commitments $ 285.¢ % 1722 $ 54.4 % 325 $ 26.¢

(1) Includes interest payments associated withtiexg long-term debt, including the current portidariable-rate interest payments associate
with the term loan were estimated based on an gearderest rate of 2.1 percent. Excludes discandtissuance costs of $14.3 million .

(2) Includes financing lease obligations and associabpdited interest of $76.9 million over the lifetbk obligation:

(3) Includes commitments for food and beveragastand supplies, capital projects, information tetbgy and other miscellaneous
commitments.

(4) Includes total imputed interest of $30.3 roifibver the life of the capital lease obligatic

(5) Includes expected contributions associatel witr defined benefit plans and payments associitbcour postretirement benefit plan and
our non-qualified deferred compensation plan thiofigcal 2026 .

(6) Includes interest on unrecognized income &nefits of $0.7 million , $0.1 million of which egks to contingencies expected to be
resolved within one year.

(7) Includes letters of credit for $124.2 milliohworkers’ compensation and general liabilitiesraed in our consolidated financial
statements, letters of credit for $0.3 million @a$e payments included in the contractual operbgae obligation payments noted above
and other letters of credit totaling $13.7 million

(8) Consists solely of guarantees associatedleétbed properties that have been assigned toghiteks and are primarily related to the
disposition of Red Lobster. We are not aware of @my-performance under these arrangements thatiwesililt in our having to perform
in accordance with the terms of the guarantees.

Share Repurchase Prograi

In July 2014, as part of the previously authorighdre repurchase program, we entered into acceedeshtire repurchase (ASR) agreements
with Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Wells Fargo Bank ot Association (Dealers). The ASR program predidor the repurchase of an
aggregate of $500.0 million of our common stoclkader the ASR agreements, we paid an aggregate06f@hnillion to the Dealers in August
2014 and received an initial delivery of approxieiat.6 million shares on October 1, 2014. In Deben2014, the ASR program was
completed and we received the final delivery ofragpnately 1.3 million shares. The total numbesbéres we purchased in connection with
the ASR transactions was based on a combined dissbwolume-weighted average price (VWAP) of $5(&2 share which was determined
based on the average of the daily VWAP of our comistock over the duration of the program, lessgared discount. Upon receipt, the
repurchased shares were retired and restoredhoraed but unissued shares of common stock.

Our fixed-charge coverage ratio, which measuresitineber of times each year that we earn enougbverour fixed charges, amountedLt@
times and 1.9 times, on a continuing operationgshfs the fiscal years ended May 31, 2015 and ®&y2014 , respectively. Our adjusted
debt to adjusted total capital ratio (which incls@e25 times the total annual minimum rent on a
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consolidated basis of $ 182.1 million and $ 186ilion for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2015 analy 25, 2014 , respectively, as
components of adjusted debt and adjusted totalatppias 55 percent and 65 percent as of May 315 20id May 25, 2014 , respectively. We
include the lease-debt equivalent and contracasasd guarantees in our adjusted debt to adjustddapital ratio reported to shareholders, as
we believe its inclusion better represents thenoglticapital structure that we target from periogéoiod and because it is consistent with the
calculation of the covenant under our RevolvingdirAgreement.

Based on these ratios, we believe our financiatlitimm is strong. The composition of our capitausture is shown in the following table.

(In millions, except ratios) May 31, 2015 May 25, 2014
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Short-term debt $ — 207.¢
Current portion long-term debt 15.C 15.C
Long-term debt, excluding unamortized discount i@sdance costs 1,466.¢ 2,486.¢
Capital lease obligations 54.t 54.:
Total debt $ 1536.. $ 2,763.!
Stockholders’ equity 2,333.t 2,156.¢
Total capital $ 3,869.t $ 4,920.
CALCULATION OF ADJUSTED CAPITAL

Total debt $ 1536.. $ 2,763.!
Lease-debt equivalent 1,138.: 1,165.(
Guarantees 147 3.4
Adjusted debt $ 2821¢ $ 3,931.¢
Stockholders’ equity 2,333t 2,156.¢
Adjusted total capital $ 5155« § 6,088.¢
CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS

Debt to total capital ratio 40% 56%
Adjusted debt to adjusted total capital ratio 55% 65%

Net cash flows provided by operating activitiestiroontinuing operations we$874.3 million , $555.4 million and $594.4 milligmfiscal
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Net cash flpnesided by operating activities include net eagsifrom continuing operations of $196.4
million , $183.2 million and $237.3 million in fia£2015 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. Net cashdlprovided by operating activities from
continuing operations increased in fiscal 2015 pritp due to higher net earnings, a reduction imext period continuing operations income
taxes paid and the timing of inventory purchases.

Net cash flows used in investing activities fronmiiouing operations wei$235.1 million , $436.3 million and $1.11 billion fiscal 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Net cash flows uséaviesting activities from continuing operationsluded capital expenditures incurred
principally for building new restaurants, remodglexisting restaurants, replacing equipment, acknelogy initiatives. Capital expenditures
related to continuing operations were $296.5 nmillio fiscal 2015 , compared to $414.8 million iscfal 2014 and $510.1 million in fiscal
2013 . The decreasing trend of expenditures freoafi2013 to fiscal 2015 results primarily from @ases in remodel and new restaurant
activity. Proceeds from the disposal of land, boid and equipment were $67.9 million , $4.4 millend $0.3 million , in fiscal 2015 , 2014
and 2013, respectively. In fiscal 2015 , procaeflect the impact of closed sale-leaseback trdimsear Additionally, net cash used in the
acquisition of Yard House in fiscal 2013 was $57niflion .

Net cash flows used in financing activities frormtiouing operations wei$1.78 billion in fiscal 2015 , compared to $179.@ion in fiscal
2014 and net cash flows provided by financing &ty from continuing operations of $355.4 millionfiscal 2013 . Including repurchase
premiums and make-whole provisions, cash usedp@yrng-term debt was $1.07 billion , $0.0 milliand $355.9 million in fiscal 2015 ,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Net cash flows prdidy financing activities from continuing operatdor fiscal 2013 also reflected $1.05
billion in proceeds from the issuance of long-tetatt. Net repayments of short-term debt were $20illin in fiscal 2015 and $98.1 million
in fiscal 2013 while net proceeds from the issuasfcghort-term debt were $43.1 million in fiscall20. Net cash flows used in financing
activities included our repurchase of common stwfck502.3 million , $0.5 million and $52.4 millian fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013,
respectively. As of May 31, 2015, our
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Board of Directors had authorized us to repurchgst 187.4 million shares of our common stock andtal of 182.0 million shares had been
repurchased under the authorization. The repurdham®mon stock reduces stockholders’ equity. Aslay 31, 2015 , our unused
authorization was 5.4 million shares. We receivetpeds primarily from the issuance of common stgodn the exercise of stock options of
$159.7 million , $58.1 million and $64.4 million fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. Nehddows used in financing activities also
included dividends paid to stockholders of $278ilfian , $288.3 million and $258.2 million in fist2015 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. In
June 2015 , our Board of Directors approved a qugrtlividend of $0.55 per share payable on Augu&015 , which indicates an annual
dividend of $2.20 per share in fiscal 2016 .

Our defined benefit and other postretirement bégests and liabilities are determined using vagiaatuarial assumptions and methodologies
prescribed under FASB ASC Topic 715, Compensati®atirement Benefits and Topic 712, Compensationretirement Postemployment
Benefits. We use certain assumptions including niotifimited to, the selection of a discount ratepected long-term rate of return on plan
assets and expected health care cost trend ratesetthe discount rate assumption annually fan pkm at its valuation date to reflect the
yield of higr-quality fixed-income debt instruments, with livesat approximate the maturity of the plan beneftsMay 31, 2015, our

discount rate was 4.4 percent and 4.2 percenpectigely, for our defined benefit and postretiratigenefit plans. The expected lotegm rate
of return on plan assets and health care cost tagrd are based upon several factors, includindistorical assumptions compared with ac
results, an analysis of current market conditi@sset allocations and the views of leading findrezlaisers and economists. Our expected loni
term rate of return on plan assets for our defimeefit plan was 7.0 percent for fiscal year 2@L6,percent for fiscal year 2014 and 9.0
percent for fiscal years 2013. We made plan comtiobs of approximately $0.4 million , $0.4 milli@nd $2.4 million in fiscal years 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

In the current year, we reduced our expected ffatetorn for investment of pension plan assets f8@npercent to 7.0 percent in connection
with our current expectations for long-term retuansl target asset fund allocation. The expectegHlerm rate of return on plan assets
component of our net periodic benefit cost is dalimd based on the market-related value of plagtsisSurrently, our target asset fund
allocation is 41.0 percent U.S. equities, 40.0 @etrtigh-quality, long-duration fixed-income seties, 16.0 percent international equities and
3.0 percent real estate securities. We monitoaotual asset fund allocation to ensure that it@gdprates our target allocation and believe tha
our long-term asset fund allocation will contineeapproximate our target allocation. In developing expected rate of return assumption, we
have evaluated the actual historical performancel@mg-term return projections of the plan assgtsch give consideration to the asset mix
and the anticipated timing of the pension planloutf. We employ a total return investment approabbreby a mix of equity and fixed
income investments are used to maximize the long-teturn of plan assets for what we consider agmtilevel of risk. Our historical 1¥ear,
15-year and 20-year rates of return on plan ass&fgjlated using the geometric method averagetaofms, are approximately 8.3 percent , 7.8
percent and 9.6 percent , respectively, as of May015 .

We have a recognized net loss of $68.7 million ¢i¢ax) and a recognized net gain of $5.9 milljoat of tax) as components of accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) for the defireukkit plans and postretirement benefit plan, rethpely, as of May 31, 2015 . These net
gains and losses represent changes in the amothe pfojected benefit obligation and plan assetslting from differences in the assumpti
used and actual experience. The amortization ofé¢héoss component of our fiscal 2016 net peribaicefit cost for the defined benefit plans
is expected to be approximately $2.8 million . Hmeortization of the net gain component of our fi&216 net periodic benefit cost for the
postretirement benefit plan is expected to be apprately $3.8 million .

We believe our defined benefit and postretirememifit plan assumptions are appropriate based thgofactors discussed above. However,
other assumptions could also be reasonably aptiadcould differ from the assumptions used. A tprapercentage point change in the
defined benefit plans’ discount rate and the exgrbling-term rate of return on plan assets wouddeimse or decrease earnings before income
taxes by $0.0 million and $0.5 million , respeclvé\ quarter-percentage point change in our paistraent benefit plan discount rate would
increase or decrease earnings before income tg&8.b million. These changes in assumptions waoldsignificantly impact our funding
requirements. Additionally, as a result of changiug postretirement benefit plan from a self-insupéan to a retiree health exchange with a
subsidy to eligible participants through a Heal#irfbursement Account (HRA) during fiscal 2015, leahre cost trend rates no longer effec
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligat®BEO) and the aggregate of the service cost amdest cost components of net periodic
postretirement benefit cost. We expect to contalagproximately $0.4 million to our defined bengfinsion plans and approximately $1.1
million to our postretirement benefit plan duringchl 2016 .

We are not aware of any trends or events that waaterially affect our capital requirements or ldjity. We believe that our internal cash-
generating capabilities, the potential issuancenskecured debt securities under our shelf registratatement and short-term commercial
paper should be sufficient to finance our capitqlenditures, debt maturities, stock repurchaserprognd other operating activities through
fiscal 2016 .
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We are not a party to any off-balance sheet arraegts that have, or are reasonably likely to hawyrrent or future material effect on our
financial condition, changes in financial conditisales or expenses, results of operations, liyidapital expenditures or capital resources.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Our total current assets were $1.06 billion at May2015 , compared with $1.98 billion at May 2612 . The decrease was primarily due the
decrease in assets held for sale associated weitbedle of Red Lobster partially offset by an inseen cash and cash equivalents.

Our total current liabilities were $1.20 billion diay 31, 2015 , compared with $1.62 billion at M28; 2014 . The decrease was primarily due
to the repayment of short-term debt and the rednadf liabilities associated with assets held fdes

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are exposed to a variety of market risks, indgdluctuations in interest rates, foreign curngegchange rates, compensation and
commodity prices. To manage this exposure, we gigiddly enter into interest rate and foreign cuoyeexchange instruments, equity forwards
and commodity instruments for other than tradingopees (see Notes 1 and 10 to our consolidateddiabstatements, in Part II, Item 8 of t
report, incorporated herein by reference).

We use the variance/covariance method to measiue &arisk, over time horizons ranging from onestwvéo one year, at the 95 percent
confidence level. At May 31, 2015, our potentaddes in future net earnings resulting from changéseign currency exchange rate
instruments, commodity instruments, equity forwaadd floating rate debt interest rate exposuregwpproximately $38.2 million over a
period of one year (including the impact of thesietst rate swap agreements discussed in Notedu) monsolidated financial statements in
Part Il, Item 8 of this report, incorporated herkjnreference). The value at risk from an incréagbe fair value of all of our long-term fixed
rate debt, over a period of one year, was appraein&93.6 million. The fair value of our long-temhebt during fiscal 2015 averaged $1.77
billion, with a high of $2.63 billion and a low &f..54 billion. Excluding debt that was extinguishizaing the year, the fair value of all of our
long-term debt during fiscal 2015 averaged $1.8ibhi with a high of $1.62 billion and a low of &4 billion. Our interest rate risk
management objective is to limit the impact of iat# rate changes on earnings and cash flows tgtiag an appropriate mix of variable and
fixed rate debt.

APPLICATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargdddte 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Custsrflpic 606). This update
provides a comprehensive new revenue recognitiotiehtbat requires a company to recognize revendepict the transfer of goods or
services to a customer at an amount that refleetsdnsideration it expects to receive in exchdogthose goods or services. The guidance
also requires additional disclosure about the eatmount, timing and uncertainty of revenue arsth dlwws arising from customer contracts.
This update was originally effective for annual amterim periods beginning after December 15, 2@liich would have required us to adopt
these provisions in the first quarter of fiscal 20t July 2015, the FASB affirmed its proposal oone-year deferral of the effective date.
Early application is now permitted, but not beftre original effective date. This update permits tilse of either the retrospective or
cumulative effect transition method. We are evahgathe effect this guidance will have on our cditided financial statements and related
disclosures. We have not yet selected a trangitiethod nor have we determined the effect of thedstal on our ongoing financial reporting.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements set forth in or incorporated into thort regarding the expected net increase in thebeu of our restaurants, U.S. same-restaural
sales, total sales growth, diluted net earningsspare growth, and capital expenditures in fis€dl&2, and all other statements that are not
historical facts, including without limitation séahents with respect to the financial conditionulessof operations, plans, objectives, future
performance and business of Darden Restaurantsarddts subsidiaries that are preceded by, fabbly or that include words such as “may,
“will,” “expect,” “i anticipate,” “continug” “estimate,” “project,” “believe,” “plan” or sinlar expressions, are forward-looking

” o ” T ” w ” w

intend,
statements within the meaning of the Private SdearLitigation Reform Act of 1995 and are inclugdatbng with this statement, for purposes
of complying with the safe harbor provisions ofttAat. Any forwardlooking statements speak only as of the date oclwéiich statements :
made, and we undertake no obligation to update statbments for any reason to reflect events ougistances arising after such date. By
nature, forward-looking statements involve riskd ancertainties that could cause actual resultffier materially from those set forth in or
implied by such forward-looking statements. In diddito the risks and uncertainties of ordinaryibess obligations, and those described in
information incorporated into this report, the famd-looking statements contained in this reportsaifgect to the risks and uncertainties
described in Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in ddmnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May2015 , which are summarized as
follows:

»  Our ability to complete our strategic real estdémpincluding risks related to our lease of certaistaurant propertie
» Food safety and foolderne iliness concerns throughout the supply ¢

» Litigation, including allegations of illegal, unfair inconsistent employment practic

« Unfavorable publicity, or a failure to respond effeely to adverse publicit

* Risks relating to public policy changes and fatlestate and local regulation of our businessgpiting in the areas of environmental
matters, minimum wage, unionization, data privamgnu labeling, immigration requirements and taxes;

e Labor and insurance cos

» Insufficient guest or employee facing technologya failure to maintain a continuous and secyteer network, free from material
failure, interruption or security breach;

»  Ourinability or failure to execute a comprehieadusiness continuity plan following a major matuisaster such as a hurricane or
manmade disaster, including terrorism;

» Health concerns arising from foedlated pandemics, outbreaks of flu viruses orrafisease:
* Intense competition, or an insufficient focus omgetition and the consumer landsci

e Our failure to drive both short-term and longateprofitable sales growth through brand relevaoperating excellence, opening new
restaurants of existing brands and developing quigiog new dining brands;

» Our plans to expand our smaller brands BahameaZgy, Seasons 52 and Eddie V's, and the testimfy@f new business ventures that
have not yet proven their long-term viability;

» Alack of suitable new restaurant locations or eide in the quality of the locations of our curreestaurant
» Higher-thananticipated costs to open, close, relocate or refmedtaurant

* Afailure to identify and execute innovative rkating and guest relationship tactics and inefiectir improper use of social media or
other marketing initiatives;

« Afailure to recruit, develop and retain effeetieaders or the loss or shortage of key persponah inability to adequately monitor
and respond to employee dissatisfaction;

* Afailure to address cost pressures, includinggisiosts for commaodities, health care and utilitiesd by our restaurants, and a fai
to effectively deliver cost management activitiagl achieve economies of scale in purchasing;

e The impact of shortages or interruptions indieévery of food and other products from thjpelfty vendors and supplie
» Adverse weather conditions and natural disa:
» Volatility in the market value of derivatives weeut® hedge commodity prici

« Economic and business factors specific to tetargant industry and other general macroeconaamstorfs including energy prices and
interest rates that are largely out of our control;

» Disruptions in the financial markets that mayant consumer spending patterns, affect the avidtyaéind cost of credit and increase
pension plan expenses;

» Risks associated with doing business with fran@sisbusiness partners and vendors in foreign ns
» Failure to protect our intellectual prope
* Impairment of the carrying value of our goodwillather intangible asse
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» Afailure of our internal controls over financi&porting and future changes in accounting standgard
« Aninability or failure to recognize, respond tadagffectively manage the accelerated impact ofsdooedia

Any of the risks described above or elsewhereimrport or our other filings with the SEC coulave a material impact on our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Ihist possible to predict or identify all risk fartoAdditional risks and uncertainties not presentl

known to us or that we currently believe to be irtemal may also impair our business operationsréfoee, the above is not intended to be a
complete discussion of all potential risks or uteieties.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The management of Darden Restaurants, Inc. is megge for the fairness and accuracy of the codatdid financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements have been prdpar@ccordance with U.S. generally accepted adaugiprinciples, using management’s
best estimates and judgments where appropriatefiffdrgcial information throughout this report isnsistent with our consolidated financial
statements.

Management has established a system of internédlatsmver financial reporting that provides reasole assurance that assets are adequatel
safeguarded and transactions are recorded acgyratall material respects, in accordance with aggment’s authorization. Our internal
controls provide for appropriate segregation ofetuand responsibilities and there are documerdidigs regarding utilization of our assets
and proper financial reporting. These formallyesteéand regularly communicated policies set highdseds of ethical conduct for all
employees. We also maintain a strong audit prodhamnindependently evaluates the adequacy of thigunl@nd effectiveness of these internal
controls.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors meatieast quarterly to determine that managemetatrial auditors and the independent
registered public accounting firm are properly Hewming their duties regarding internal control éindncial reporting. The independent
registered public accounting firm, internal auditand employees have full and free access to tk@ fommittee at any time.

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accagntirm, is retained to audit our consolidated fioial statements and the effectiveness o
our internal control over financial reporting. Thegports follow.

/sl Eugene |. Lee, Jr.

Eugene I. Lee, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Offic

MANAGEMENT 'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTI NG

Management is responsible for establishing and ta@ing adequate internal control over financiglaing (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aed®nd@he Company'’s internal control over financegorting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance to the Company’s managemneBiand of Directors regarding the preparation famdpresentation of published
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgtapaternal control over financial reporting asMéy 31, 2015 . In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfottle Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Contro-Integrated Framework (2013)Management has concluded that, as of May 31, 2@4&Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective based on thegeria.

The Companys independent registered public accounting firm KPM.P, has issued an audit report on the effecagsrof our internal cont
over financial reporting, which follows.

20




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darden Restaurants, Inc.:

We have audited Darden Restaurants, Inc.’s intexmairol over financial reporting as of May 31, 8Qlbased on criteria established in
Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO).
Darden Restaurants, Ing.fmanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and ifis assessment
the effectiveness of internal control over finahcéporting, included in the accompanying Managet'sdéReport on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exgg@n opinion on the Company’s internal controlr direncial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtagsonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordver financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsafdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Darden Restaurants, Inc. maintainmedll material respects, effective internal eohbver financial reporting as of May 31,
2015, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control — Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Darden Restaurants, Inc. aniigries as of May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2014 , thedrelated consolidated statements of
earnings, comprehensive income, changes in stod&rsdlequity, and cash flows for each of the y@&atke three-year period ended May 31,
2015, and our report dated July 24, 2015 expreasathqualified opinion on those consolidated fmalstatements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Orlando, Florida
July 24, 2015
Certified Public Accountants
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darden Restaurants, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Darden Restaurants, Inc. and subsglas of May 31, 2015 and May 25,
2014 , and the related consolidated statementarofregs, comprehensive income, changes in stockhsildquity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended May 315 20 hese consolidated financial statements @&eea$ponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenewnilhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Darden
Restaurants, Inc. and subsidiaries as of May 315 2Gid May 25, 2014 , and the results of their ajgems and their cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended May 31, 2015, in conformityhwit.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Darden
Restaurants, Inc.’s internal control over finanecggorting as of May 31, 2015 , based on critestatdished innternal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated July 24,
2015 expressed an unqualified opinion on the affesess of the Company’s internal control overfiicial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Orlando, Florida
July 24, 2015
Certified Public Accountants
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DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(In millions, except per share data)

May 31, 201! May 25, 201. May 26, 201

Sales $ 6,764.C $ 6,285.t $ 5,921.(
Costs and expenses:

Food and beverage 2,085.: 1,892.: 1,743.¢

Restaurant labor 2,135.¢ 2,017.¢ 1,892.¢

Restaurant expenses 1,120.¢ 1,080.° 980.4

Marketing expenses 243.C 252.¢ 241.1

General and administrative expenses 430.2 413.1 384.1

Depreciation and amortization 319.c 304.¢ 278.:

Impairments and disposal of assets, net 62.1 16.4 0.¢

Total operating costs and expenses $ 6,396.. $ 5,976.. $ 5,521.(

Operating income 367.¢ 308.¢ 400.(
Interest, net 192.c 134. 126.(
Earnings before income taxes 175.: 174.€ 274.(
Income tax (benefit) expense (21.7) (8.6) 36.7
Earnings from continuing operations $ 196« $ 1832 $ 237.:
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tepease of $344.8, $32.3 and $7:

respectively 513.1 103.( 174.¢
Net earnings $ 709t % 286.2 $ 411.¢
Basic net earnings per share:

Earnings from continuing operations $ 154 $ 1.4C $ 1.84

Earnings from discontinued operations 4.02 0.7¢ 1.3t

Net earnings $ 55¢ $ 218 % 3.1¢
Diluted net earnings per share:

Earnings from continuing operations $ 151 $ 1.3¢ $ 1.8C

Earnings from discontinued operations 3.9¢ 0.77 1.3¢

Net earnings $ 547 $ 21t % 3.1
Average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic 127.7 131.( 129.(

Diluted 129.7 133.2 131.¢
Dividends declared per common share $ 22C $ 22C % 2.0C

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.
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DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In millions)
May 31, 201! May 25, 201. May 26, 201
Net earnings $ 7098 % 286.. % 411.¢
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency adjustment 3.C (2.9 (0.2
Change in fair value of marketable securities,afieaxes of $0.0, $0.0 and $(0.1),
respectively — (0.7 (0.2
Change in fair value of derivatives and amortizatdd unrecognized gains and
losses on derivatives, net of taxes of $17.4, $89$(0.6), respectively 31.c 3.4 (4.2)
Net unamortized gain arising during period, inchglamortization of
unrecognized net actuarial loss, net of taxes d,%PR.9 and $11.3, respectiv 7.2 .3 18.Z
Other comprehensive income $ 415 $ 47 $ 13.¢
Total comprehensive income $ 751.C % 290.¢ $ 425.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financi&sients.
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DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions)
May 31, 201 May 25, 201
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 535.¢ 98.:
Receivables, net 78.C 83.¢
Inventories 163.¢ 196.¢
Prepaid income taxes 18.¢ 10.¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 69.4 71
Deferred income taxes 157.¢ 124.(
Assets held for sale 32.¢ 1,390.:
Total current assets $ 1,056. 1,975.¢
Land, buildings and equipment, net 3,215.¢ 3,381.(
Goodwill 872.¢ 872.k
Trademarks 574.¢ 574.¢
Other assets 275.k 278.¢
Total assets $ 5,994 7,082.°
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 198.¢ 233.]
Short-term debt — 207.¢
Accrued payroll 141.1 125.%
Accrued income taxes 12.€ —
Other accrued taxes 1.t 64.t
Unearned revenues 328.¢ 299.7
Current portion of long-term debt 15.C 15.C
Other current liabilities 449.1 457 .¢
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale — 215t
Total current liabilities $ 1,196.° 1,618
Long-term debt, less current portion 1,452.: 2,463.
Deferred income taxes 341.¢ 286.1
Deferred rent 225.¢ 206.2
Other liabilities 444.F 351.¢
Total liabilities $ 3,661.: 4,925.¢
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock and surplus, no par value. Authors@@l0 shares; issued 127.9 and 133.6 share
respectively; outstanding 126.7 and 132.3 shaespgerctively 1,405.¢ 1,302.:
Preferred stock, no par value. Authorized 25.0es$t1anone issued and outstanding —
Retained earnings 1,026.( 995.¢
Treasury stock, 1.3 and 1.3 shares, at cost, réeplyc (7.9 (7.9
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (86.€) (128.])
Unearned compensation (4.0 (5.2
Total stockholders’ equity $ 2,333. 2,156.¢
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 5,994.° 7,082."

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisients.
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DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In millions, except per share data)

Common Accumulated
Stock Other Total
And Retained Treasury Comprehensive Unearned Stockholders’
Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Compensation Equity

Balances at May 27, 2012 $ 2518¢ $ 3,172¢ $ (3,695 $ (146.¢) $ 7.2 $ 1,842.(
Net earnings — 411.¢ — — — 411.¢
Other comprehensive income — — — 13.¢ — 13.¢
Dividends declared ($2.00 per share) — (259.¢) — — — (259.6)
Stock option exercises (2.0 shares) 55.2 — 1.8 — — 57.C
Stock-based compensation 24.% — — — — 24.%
ESOP note receivable repayments — — — — 1.1 1.1
Income tax benefits credited to equity 13.€ — — — — 13.€
Repurchases of common stock (1.0 shares) — (0.2) (52.9) — — (52.9)
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase Pla

and other plans (0.2 shares) 7.1 — 0.7 — — 7.8
Treasury shares retirement (159.3 shares) (1,411.9) (2,326.) 3,737.! — — —
Balances at May 26, 2013 $ 1,207¢ $ 998.¢ $ 81 $ (132.8) $ 6.1) $ 2,059.!
Net earnings — 286.2 — — — 286.2
Other comprehensive income — — — 4.7 — 4.7
Dividends declared ($2.20 per share) — (288.9 — — — (288.9
Stock option exercises (1.8 shares) 50.€ — 0.2 — — 50.¢
Stock-based compensation 26.C — — — — 26.C
ESOP note receivable repayments — — — — 0.¢ 0.¢
Income tax benefits credited to equity 10.¢ — — — — 10.¢
Repurchases of common stock (0.0 shares) (0.3 (0.9) — — — (0.5)
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase

and other plans (0.2 shares) 7.2 — — — — 7.2
Balances at May 25, 2014 $ 1302: $ 995.¢ $ 7.8 $ (128.7) $ 5.2 $ 2,156.¢
Net earnings — 709.t — — — 709.t
Other comprehensive income — — — 41t — 41.F
Dividends declared ($2.20 per share) — (279.5) — — — (279.5)
Stock option exercises (4.2 shares) 154.¢ — — — — 154.¢
Stock-based compensation 26.4 — — — — 26.£
ESOP note receivable repayments — — — — 1.2 1.2
Income tax benefits credited to equity 18.4 — — — — 18.4
Repurchases of common stock (10.0 shares) (102.5 (399.9 — — — (502.9)
Issuance of stock under Employee Stock Purchase

and other plans (0.1 shares) 6.8 — — — — 6.8
Balances at May 31, 2015 $ 1405¢ $ 1,026 $ 7.8 $ (86.6) $ 40 $ 2,333

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@#dsients.
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DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions)
Fiscal Year Ended
May 31, 201! May 25, 201. May 26, 201
Cash flows - operating activities
Net earnings $ 7098 $ 286.2 $ 411.¢
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax (513.)) (203.0 (174.¢
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings from contigupperations to cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 319.: 304.4 278.:
Impairments and disposal of assets, net 62.1 16.4 0.¢
Amortization of loan costs and losses on interatg-related derivatives 8.€ 13.¢ 13.C
Stock-based compensation expense 53.7 38.7 40.C
Change in current assets and liabilities 76.2 0.€ (18.0
Contributions to pension and postretirement plans (2.5) (2.9 3.2
Change in cash surrender value of trust-ownedrigarance (6.5) (12.2) (16.¢)
Deferred income taxes 42.C (44.9 (0.9)
Change in deferred rent 22.C 29.t 25.€
Change in other assets and liabilities 3.8 18.¢ 24.C
Loss on extinguishment of debt 91.c — —
Income tax benefits from exercise of stock-basedpansation credited to goodwill 0.1 0.2 0.1
Other, net 6.7 8.2 13.€
Net cash provided by operating activities of couitiy operations $ 874 % 555.2 $ 594 .4
Cash flows - investing activities
Purchases of land, buildings and equipment (296.5) (414.9 (510.7)
Proceeds from disposal of land, buildings and eqgeint 67.€ 4.4 0.3
Purchases of marketable securities — (3.0) (12.9
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 9.7 8.7 26.C
Cash used in business acquisitions, net of cashiradg — — (577.9
Increase in other assets (16.2) (31.6) (40.5)
Net cash used in investing activities of continuapgrations $ (235.0) % (436.) $ (1,114.9
Cash flows - financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 159.7 58.1 64.4
Income tax benefits credited to equity 18.4 10.€ 13.€
Dividends paid (278.9 (288.9) (258.9)
Repurchases of common stock (502.9 (0.5) (52.9)
ESOP note receivable repayments 1.2 0.¢ 1.1
Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt 397.¢ 2,616.: 2,670.:
Repayments of short-term debt (605.0 (2,573.9) (2,768.9)
Repayments of long-term debt (1,065.9 — (355.9
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — — 1,050.(
Payment of debt issuance costs — (2.9 (7.9)
Principal payments on capital leases (2.2) (2.0) 1.7
Proceeds from financing lease obligation 93.1 — —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitégontinuing operations $ 1,784 $ (179.2) $ 355.¢
Cash flows - discontinued operations
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitiediscontinued operations (403.9 214.7 354.¢
Net cash provided by (used) in investing activitésliscontinued operations 1,986.: (144.5) (172.9
Net cash provided by discontinued operations $ 1,582¢ % 70z $ 182.t
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 437.¢ 10.1 17.7

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 98.2 88.2 70.5




Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 535.¢ $ 98.: $ 88.2
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DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(In millions)
Fiscal Year Ended

May 31, 201 May 25, 201 May 26, 201

Cash flows from changes in current assets anditiabi
Receivables, net $ 78 % 15 3 (11.7)
Inventories 64.5 (25.6) (2.9
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2.¢ 0.t (11.3)
Accounts payable (20.9) 27.2 4.4
Accrued payroll 23.4 7.t (5.9
Prepaid/accrued income taxes (13.9) (21.0) 22.F
Other accrued taxes 2.2 — 7.7
Unearned revenues 34.¢ 28.¢ 33.¢
Other current liabilities (24.9) (15.9) (56.€)
Change in current assets and liabilities $ 76.2 3 0€ $ (18.0

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing a&suiti
Increase in land, buildings and equipment througineed purchases $ 111 % 244 % 42.2

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#stents.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Operations and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade the operations of Darden Restaurants,dnd.its wholly owned subsidiaries
(Darden, the Company, we, us or our). We own arettaip the Olive Gardéh LongHorn Steakhous® The Capital Grill¢®, Yard Housé,
Bahama Breez®, Seasons 52, and Eddie V's Prime SeafoBdnd Wildfish Seafood Grill&(collectively, "Eddie V's") restaurant brands
located in the United States and Canada. Throulgidiaries, we own and operate all of our restasramthe United States and Canada, ex
for three restaurants located in Central Florida thinee restaurants in California that we manageate jointly owned with third parties, two
franchised U.S. airport restaurants and eight fiesecl restaurants in Puerto Rico. We also havedaealopment and franchise agreements
with unaffiliated operators to develop and opemiebrands primarily in Asia, the Middle East aratih America. Pursuant to these
agreements, as of May 31, 2015 , 24 franchiseduesmtts were in operation in the Middle East, MexBrazil, Peru, El Salvador and
Malaysia. All significant inter-company balancesldransactions have been eliminated in consolidatio

Basis of Presentatiol

On May 15, 2014, we entered into an agreementlit®ed Lobster and certain related assets and msddiabilities and closed the sale on
July 28, 2014. During fiscal 2007 and 2008, we @tbsr sold all of our Smokey Bones Barbeque & G8ihokey Bones) and Rocky River
Grillhouse restaurants and we closed nine Baharmazérrestaurants. For fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 208aias and losses on disposition,
impairment charges and disposal costs, along Witsales, costs and expenses and income taxésitaiie to the discontinued locations, h
been aggregated in a single caption entitled “Basirom discontinued operations, net of tax expémsour consolidated statements of
earnings for all periods presented. See Note Zpdsiitions for additional information.

Unless otherwise noted, amounts and disclosuresghiout these notes to consolidated financial stames relate to our continuing operations.

Fiscal Year

We operate on a 52/53 week fiscal year, which emdhe last Sunday in May, which for fiscal 2015wWéay 31, 2015. Accordingly, fiscal
2015 consisted of 53 weeks of operation. Fiscalt2id 2013 , which ended May 25, 2014 and May @632 respectively, each consisted of
52 weeks of operation.

Use of Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsimormity with U.S. generally accepted accounpnigciples. The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estinstdsassumptions that affect the reported amourdasssts and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitiancial statements, and the reported amourgale and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those psites.

Reclassifications

We have reclassified certain amounts in prior-pgkfinancial statements to conform to the curremiogks presentation. Included among these,
in our consolidated statements of earnings, weseelvihe categories in our costs and expenseslass$omarketing expenses and general and
administrative expenses, previously reported aspoorants of selling, general and administrative agps, are now reported as separate line
items. Additionally, gains and losses on dispos&lsssets, previously reported as a componentlafigegeneral and administrative expenses
are now reported in impairments and disposal aétasset. On our consolidated balance sheets, werealassified our obligations under
capital leases, net of current installments tonotuded in other liabilities. Additionally, in coeation with the adoption of Financial Account
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Up@e$&)) 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interestilfpic 835-30), Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, we have sHfidalsdebt issuance costs associated with our-teng debt from other assets to long-term
debt, less current portion (see Note 9 - Debt).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investmesush as U.S. Treasury bills, taxable municipal Iscaxd money market funds that have an
original maturity of three months or less. Amourgseivable from credit card companies are alsoidensd cash equivalents because they are
both short term and highly liquid in nature and tyrgcally converted to cash within three daystef sales transaction.

29




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

The components of cash and cash equivalents dodi@ss:

(in millions) May 31, 2015 May 25, 2014
Short-term investments $ 455t $ 0.t
Credit card receivables 77.8 92.C
Depository accounts 2.€ 5.8
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 535.¢ $ 98.2

As of May 31, 2015, and May 25, 2014 , we had @shcash equivalent accounts in excess of indiuméd. We manage the credit risk of our
positions through utilizing multiple financial intsttions and monitoring the credit quality of thdsencial institutions that hold our cash and
cash equivalents.

Receivables, Ne

Receivables, net of the allowance for doubtful acts, represent their estimated net realizableev&tuovisions for doubtful accounts are
recorded based on historical collection experienwthe age of the receivables. Receivables attewoff when they are deemed
uncollectible. See Note 3 — Receivables, Net falitazhal information.

Inventories
Inventories consist of food and beverages and @tesd at the lower of weighted-average cost or etark

Marketable Securitie:

Available-for-sale securities are carried at failue. Classification of marketable securities aseru or noncurrent is dependent upon
management’s intended holding period, the secarityaturity date, or both. Unrealized gains anddssset of tax, on available-for-sale
securities are carried in accumulated other congmgilie income (loss) within the consolidated finahstatements and are reclassified into
earnings when the securities mature or are sold.

Land, Buildings and Equipment, Ne

Land, buildings and equipment are recorded atlesstaccumulated depreciation. Building componaresiepreciated over estimated useful
lives ranging from 7 to 40 years using the stralgte method. Leasehold improvements, which arkecefd on our consolidated balance sheef
as a component of buildings in land, buildings egdipment, net, are amortized over the lessereoéipected lease term, including cancelabl
option periods, or the estimated useful lives efrlated assets using the straight-line methodipBtent is depreciated over estimated useful
lives ranging from 2 to 15 years also using thaight-line method. See Note 5 — Land, Buildings Bgdipment, Net for additional
information. Gains and losses on the disposalrd,lauildings and equipment are included in impaints and disposal of assets, net while the
write-off of undepreciated book value associated withrépdacement of equipment in the normal courseusfriess is recorded as a compol

of restaurant expenses in our accompanying coraelidstatements of earnings. Depreciation and &ation expense from continuing
operations associated with buildings and equipraadtlosses on replacement of equipment were aswfgill

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Depreciation and amortization on buildings and pop&nt $ 305.C $ 296.2 % 271.(
Losses on replacement of equipment 5.E 4.4 4.€

Capitalized Software Costs and Other Definite-Liviedangibles

Capitalized software, which is a component of otiesets, is recorded at cost less accumulatediaatimm. Capitalized software is amortized
using the straight-line method over estimated udietes ranging from 3 to 10 years. The cost ofitdjzed software and related accumulated
amortization was as follows:

(in millions) May 31, 2015 May 25, 2014
Capitalized software $ 148.C $ 132.¢
Accumulated amortization (80.9) (70.9
Capitalized software, net of accumulated amoriiati $ 676 $ 61.7
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

We have other definite-lived intangible assetsluiding assets related to the value of below-madaes resulting from our acquisitions, that
are included as a component of other assets oocomsolidated balance sheets. We also have defin@e-intangible liabilities related to the
value of above-market leases resulting from ouusiipns, that are included in other liabilities our consolidated balance sheets. Definite-
lived intangibles are amortized on a straight-liasis over estimated useful lives of 1 to 20 yeHine cost and related accumulated
amortization was as follows:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201
Other definite-lived intangibles $ 151 $ 15.5
Accumulated amortization (7.3 (6.9
Other definite-lived intangible assets, net of acualated amortization $ 78 $ 9.2
Below-market leases $ 29z $ 29.2
Accumulated amortization (11.5) (9.6)
Below-market leases, net of accumulated amortiaatio $ 177  $ 19.€
Above-market leases $ (21.9) $ (21.9)
Accumulated amortization 6.4 4.¢
Above-market leases, net of accumulated amortizatio $ (15.00 $ (16.5)

Amortization expense from continuing operationoagged with capitalized software and other dedilived intangibles included in
depreciation and amortization in our accompanyimgsolidated statements of earnings was as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Amortization expense - capitalized software $ 133 $ 7C % 6.2
Amortization expense - other definite-lived intanigs 1.C 1.1 1.C

Amortization expense from continuing operation®agged with above- and-below-market leases indudeaestaurant expenses as a
component of rent expense in our consolidatedratatts of earnings was as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Restaurant expense - below-market leases $ 1€ $ 1.8 $ 1.8
Restaurant expense - above-market leases (1.9 (1.9 (1.2

Amortization of capitalized software and other dié-lived intangible assets will be approximatgys.1 million annually for fiscal 2016
through 2020 .

Trust-Owned Life Insurance

We have a trust that purchased life insurance igslicovering certain of our officers and other keyployees (trust-owned life insurance or
TOLI). The trust is the owner and sole beneficiafyhe TOLI policies. The policies were purchasedffset a portion of our obligations under
our non-qualified deferred compensation plan. Tdehcsurrender value for each policy is includedtier assets while changes in cash
surrender values are included in general and adtraive expenses.

Liguor Licenses

The costs of obtaining non-transferable liquordmes that are directly issued by local governmgeneies for nominal fees are expensed as
incurred. The costs of purchasing transferableolidicenses through open markets in jurisdictiofith & limited number of authorized liquor
licenses are capitalized as indefinite-lived infaleassets and included in other assets. Liqaensies are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tieatdahrying amount may not be recoverable. Anngalboli license renewal fees are expensed
over the renewal term.

31




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

Goodwill and Trademarks

We review our goodwill and trademarks for impairmannually, as of the first day of our fourth fisqaarter or more frequently if indicators
of impairment exist. Goodwill and trademarks arésubject to amortization and have been assigneepiarting units for purposes of
impairment testing. The reporting units are outaesnt brands. Our goodwill and trademark balaacesllocated as follows:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201
Goodwill:
The Capital Grille $ 4017 % 401.5
LongHorn Steakhouse 49.2 49.4
Olive Garden (1) 30.2 30.2
Eddie V's 22.C 22.C
Yard House 369.2 369.-
Total Goodwill $ 8724 $ 872.k
Trademarks:
The Capital Grille $ 147.C  $ 147.(
LongHorn Steakhouse 307.¢ 307.¢
Eddie V's 10.t 10.t
Yard House 109.: 109.:
Total Trademarks $ 574.¢ $ 574.¢

(1) Goodwill related to Olive Garden is associatgith the RARE Hospitality International, Inc. (RARacquisition and the direct benefits
derived by Olive Garden as a result of the RAREu&ition.

A significant amount of judgment is involved in detining if an indicator of impairment has occurr8dch indicators may include, among
others: a significant decline in our expected fatcash flows; a sustained, significant declineunsiock price and market capitalization; a
significant adverse change in legal factors ohiliusiness climate; unanticipated competitionfalng for recoverability of a significant
asset group within a reporting unit; and slowewmglorates. Any adverse change in these factorgidmane a significant impact on the
recoverability of these assets and could have amahimpact on our consolidated financial statetsen

The goodwill impairment test involves a two-stepgess. The first step is a comparison of each tiegaunit’s fair value to its carrying

value. We estimate fair value using the best infdram available, including market information arnidatunted cash flow projections (also
referred to as the income approach). The incomeoapp uses a reporting unit's projection of estedatperating results and cash flows that is
discounted using a weighted-average cost of capigdlreflects current market conditions. The mtfm uses management'’s best estimates o
economic and market conditions over the projecttbd including growth rates in sales, costs andlmer of units, estimates of future
expected changes in operating margins and casheéitpees. Other significant estimates and assumstiloclude terminal value growth rates,
future estimates of capital expenditures and changfuture working capital requirements. We vakdaur estimates of fair value under the
income approach by comparing the values to fainevalstimates using a market approach. A markebapprestimates fair value by applying
cash flow and sales multiples to the reporting’simiperating performance. The multiples are deriiveth comparable publicly traded
companies with similar operating and investmentattaristics of the reporting units. If the failwa of the reporting unit is higher than its
carrying value, goodwill is deemed not to be imedjrand no further testing is required. If the yiag value of the reporting unit is higher than
its fair value, there is an indication that impagmbhmay exist and the second step must be perforonmeasure the amount of impairment loss
The amount of impairment is determined by compattiregimplied fair value of reporting unit goodwiitl the carrying value of the goodwill in
the same manner as if the reporting unit was batggired in a business combination. Specificalir, ¥alue is allocated to all of the assets
liabilities of the reporting unit, including any ratognized intangible assets, in a hypotheticalyarsathat would calculate the implied fair
value of goodwill. If the implied fair value of gdwill is less than the recorded goodwill, we wotgdord an impairment loss for the differer

Consistent with our accounting policy for goodvaitid trademarks we performed our annual impairmessttaf our goodwill and trademarks as
of the first day of our fiscal 2015 fourth quartAs of the beginning of our fiscal fourth quartee had seven reporting units, five of which hac
goodwill: Olive Garden, LongHorn Steakhouse, Thei@a Grille, Eddie V's and Yard House. As parbof process for performing the step
one impairment test of goodwill, we estimated thie ¥alue of our reporting units utilizing the inne and market approaches described above
to derive an enterprise value of the Company. Weneiled the

32




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

enterprise value to our overall estimated markpitabzation. The estimated market capitalizationgiders recent trends in our market
capitalization and an expected control premiumebtas comparable recent and historical transact®ased on the results of the step one
impairment test, no impairment of goodwill was itetted for any of our brands.

The fair value of trademarks are estimated and emetpto the carrying value. We estimate the fdinevaf trademarks using the relief-from-
royalty method, which requires assumptions rel&tgulojected sales from our annual long-range @asumed royalty rates that could be
payable if we did not own the trademarks; and aadiat rate. We recognize an impairment loss wheregttimated fair value of the trademarks
is less than carrying value. We completed our immpant test and concluded as of the date of thetteste was no impairment of the
trademarks for LongHorn Steakhouse, The CapitdleGEddie V's and Yard House.

We determined that there was no goodwill or trad&rmapairment as of the first day of our fourthcfid quarter and no additional indicators of
impairment were identified through the end of auurth fiscal quarter that would require us to fasther for impairment. However, declines in
our market capitalization (reflected in our stoclcg) as well as in the market capitalization dfestcompanies in the restaurant industry,
declines in sales at our restaurants, and signifigdverse changes in the operating environmenhérestaurant industry may result in future
impairment.

Changes in circumstances, existing at the measumathiage or at other times in the future, or inlnenerous estimates associated with
management’s judgments and assumptions made issagg¢he fair value of our goodwill, could redalian impairment loss of a portion or all
of our goodwill or trademarks. If we recorded ampaimment loss, our financial position and resufteggerations would be adversely affected
and our leverage ratio for purposes of our creglitement would increase. A leverage ratio exceeii@gnaximum permitted under our credit
agreement would be a default under our credit agee¢ At May 31, 2015 , a write down of goodwilther indefinite-lived intangible assets,
or any other assets in excess of approximatelyd#illon would have been required to cause ouetage ratio to exceed the permitted
maximum. As our leverage ratio is determined guarterly basis and due to the seasonal naturerdiusiness, a lesser amount of impairt
in future quarters could cause our leverage ratiexteed the permitted maximum.

We evaluate the useful lives of our other intargddsets, to determine if they are definite orfinde-lived. A determination on useful life
requires significant judgments and assumptionsrdégg the future effects of obsolescence, demamhpetition, other economic factors (such
as the stability of the industry, legislative antthat results in an uncertain or changing regeyagéavironment, and expected changes in
distribution channels), the level of required maireince expenditures, and the expected lives of otleted groups of assets.

Impairment or Disposal of Lon-Lived Assets

Land, buildings and equipment and certain othestasicluding definite-lived intangible assets srviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceramount of an asset may not be recoverable.\Reability of assets to be held and used i
measured by a comparison of the carrying amoutiieoéssets to the future undiscounted net casls floypected to be generated by the asset
Identifiable cash flows are measured at the lovesst for which they are largely independent of ¢lash flows of other groups of assets and
liabilities, generally at the restaurant levelslich assets are determined to be impaired, therimgat recognized is measured by the amount
by which the carrying amount of the assets exctezlsfair value. Fair value is generally deterndifmsed on appraisals or sales prices of
comparable assets. Restaurant sites and cert@nashets to be disposed of are reported at ther loftheir carrying amount or fair value, less
estimated costs to sell. Restaurant sites andic@tizer assets to be disposed of are includeddata held for sale on our consolidated balanc
sheets when certain criteria are met. These @aitedude the requirement that the likelihood afpdising of these assets within one year is
probable. Assets not meeting the “held for salé&da remain in land, buildings and equipment luthigir disposal is probable within one year.

We account for exit or disposal activities, inchglirestaurant closures, in accordance with FASBoAoting Standards Codification (ASC)
Topic 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations. Sgoists include the cost of disposing of the assetsedl as other facility-related expenses
from previously closed restaurants. These costgemerally expensed as incurred. Additionallyhatdate we cease using a property under a
operating lease, we record a liability for the pietsent value of any remaining lease obligatioasphestimated sublease income. Any
subsequent adjustments to that liability as a teguéase termination or changes in estimatesiblesise income are recorded in the period
incurred. Upon disposal of the assets, primarihd|aassociated with a closed restaurant, any gdwss is recorded in the same caption within
our consolidated statements of earnings as theatignpairment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

Insurance Accruals

Through the use of insurance program deductibldssafi-insurance, we retain a significant portiéexpected losses under our workers’
compensation, certain employee medical and gehabdlity programs. However, we carry insuranceifatividual workers’ compensation and
general liability claims that exceed $0.5 millioAccrued liabilities have been recorded based orestimates of the anticipated ultimate costs
to settle all claims, both reported and not yebregal.

Revenue Recognitio

Sales, as presented in our consolidated staterokBegsnings, represents food and beverage prodictcasd is presented net of discounts,
coupons, employee meals, and complimentary mealeriie from restaurant sales is recognized whehdad beverage products are sold.
Sales taxes collected from customers and remittgdvernmental authorities are presented on aas within sales in our consolidated
statements of earnings.

Revenue from the sale of franchises is recognizdda@me when substantially all of our materialigdgions under the franchise agreement
have been performed. Continuing royalties, whighaapercentage of net sales of franchised restsi@e accrued as income when earned.
Revenue from the sale of consumer packaged gooligles ongoing royalty fees based on a percentalgmensed retail product sales and is
recognized upon the sale of product by our licemsadufacturers to retail outlets.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues represent our liability for cgiitds that have been sold but not yet redeemedre@égnize sales from our gift cards when
the gift card is redeemed by the customer. Alttotlngre are no expiration dates or dormancy feesupgift cards, based on our analysis of
our historical gift card redemption patterns, wa o@asonably estimate the amount of gift cardsviich redemption is remote, which is
referred to as “breakage.” We recognize breakagi@imsales for unused gift card amounts in propartd actual gift card redemptions, which
is also referred to as the “redemption recognitior@thod. The estimated value of gift cards exgetdeemain unused is recognized over the
expected period of redemption as the remainingcgiftl values are redeemed, generally over a pefidf years. Utilizing this method, we
estimate both the amount of breakage and the tériegof redemption. If actual redemption patterasy from our estimates, actual gift card
breakage income may differ from the amounts reabrd&'e update our estimates of our redemption gdexia our breakage rate periodically
and apply that rate to gift card redemptions.

Food and Beverage Costs

Food and beverage costs include inventory, warehguselated purchasing and distribution costs gaids and losses on certain commodity
derivative contracts. Vendor allowances receivecbinnection with the purchase of a vendor’s praglace recognized as a reduction of the
related food and beverage costs as earned. Adymyceents are made by the vendors based on estinfatekime to be purchased from the
vendors and the terms of the agreement. As we palchases from the vendors each period, we recedinézpro rata portion of allowances
earned as a reduction of food and beverage castsdbperiod. Differences between estimated atabhpurchases are settled in accordance
with the terms of the agreements. Vendor agreenzzatgenerally for a period of one year or more @angments received are initially recorded
as long-term liabilities. Amounts expected to bmed within one year are recorded as current liadsl

Income Taxes

We provide for federal and state income taxes atigrgpayable as well as for those deferred becatissmporary differences between repor
income and expenses for financial statement pugpeosesus tax purposes. Federal income tax craditeeaorded as a reduction of income
taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aregeized for the future tax consequences attributabtbfferences between the financial stater
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabiliind their respective tax bases. Deferred tax saaset liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeenytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities ofiange in tax rates is recognized in earningsearptriod that includes the enactment date.
Interest recognized on reserves for uncertain teitipns is included in interest, net in our cordatied statements of earnings. A correspon
liability for accrued interest is included as a gament of other current liabilities on our consatietl balance sheets. Penalties, when incurred
are recognized in general and administrative exgmens

ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, requires that a positiken or expected to be taken in a tax retumebegnized (or derecognized) in the
financial statements when it is more likely than fi@., a likelihood of more than 50 percent) ttregt position would be sustained upon
examination by tax authorities. A recognized tagifon is then measured at the largest amount éfitethat is greater than 50 percent likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. SeeeN6t- Income Taxes for additional information.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

Income tax benefits credited to equity relate toldanefits associated with amounts that are ddaledior income tax purposes but do not affec
earnings. These benefits are principally genertited employee exercises of non-qualified stockapiand vesting of employee restricted
stock awards.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitie

We enter into derivative instruments for risk magragnt purposes only, including derivatives desigghals hedging instruments as required b
FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, ammsthutilized as economic hedges. We use finanocthtammodities derivatives to
manage interest rate, compensation, commoditiesgrand foreign currency exchange rate risks imein our business operations. Our use
of derivative instruments is currently limited tderest rate hedges; and equity forwards contrébisse instruments are generally structured &
hedges of the variability of cash flows relateddecasted transactions (cash flow hedges). Howeseedo at times enter into instruments
designated as fair value hedges to reduce our expts changes in fair value of the related hedgad. We do not enter into derivative
instruments for trading or speculative purposegreltthanges in the cash flows or fair value ofdibiévative are not expected to offset char

in cash flows or fair value of the hedged item. léger, we have entered into equity forwards to endoally hedge changes in the fair value
employee investments in our non-qualified defeaeahpensation plan. All derivatives are recognizedhe balance sheet at fair value. For
those derivative instruments for which we inteneélect hedge accounting, on the date the derivatwract is entered into, we document all
relationships between hedging instruments and teiigens, as well as our risk-management objectidesdrategy for undertaking the various
hedge transactions. This process includes linkingeaivatives designated as cash flow hedges ¢cifip assets and liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet or to specific foredasamsactions. We also formally assess, botheahéltlge’s inception and on an ongoing basi
whether the derivatives used in hedging transastiwa highly effective in offsetting changes intcisws of hedged items.

To the extent our derivatives are effective in effimg the variability of the hedged cash flows] atherwise meet the cash flow hedge
accounting criteria required by Topic 815 of theSBAASC, changes in the derivatives’ fair valueraweincluded in current earnings but are
included in accumulated other comprehensive incloss), net of tax. These changes in fair valué¢ lvélreclassified into earnings at the time
of the forecasted transaction. Ineffectiveness oreasin the hedging relationship is recorded culyen earnings in the period in which it
occurs. To the extent our derivatives are effedtiveitigating changes in fair value, and otherwiseet the fair value hedge accounting criteri:
required by Topic 815 of the FASB ASC, gains arsés in the derivatives’ fair value are includedurrent earnings, as are the gains and
losses of the related hedged item. To the extenhélllge accounting criteria are not met, the déwviaontracts are utilized as economic
hedges and changes in the fair value of such adstase recorded currently in earnings in the einowhich they occur. Cash flows related to
derivatives are included in operating activitiese $lote 10 — Derivative Instruments and Hedgingvitets for additional information.

Leases

For operating leases, we recognize rent expensestnaight-line basis over the expected lease tewtuding cancelable option periods where
failure to exercise the options would result inegonomic penalty to the Company. Differences betvarounts paid and amounts expensed
are recorded as deferred rent. Capital lease®eaoeded as an asset and an obligation at an araquat to the present value of the minimum
lease payments during the lease term. Sale ledsehee transactions through which we sell assath(as restaurant properties) at fair value
and subsequently lease them back. The resultisgdegenerally qualify and are accounted for asabipgrleases. Financing leases are
generally the product of a failed sale-leasebamksaction and result in retention of the "sold'etssvithin land, building and equipment with a
financing lease obligation equal to the amountrotpeds received recorded as a component of adibdities on our consolidated balance
sheets.

Within the provisions of certain of our leasesr¢hare rent holidays and escalations in paymerdsthhe base lease term, as well as renewal
periods. The effects of the holidays and escalatimve been reflected in rent expense on a striighbasis over the expected lease term,
which includes cancelable option periods whereifaito exercise such options would result in amenuc penalty to the Company. The lease
term commences on the date when we have the agluritrol the use of the leased property, whidigpgcally before rent payments are due
under the terms of the lease. Many of our leases Fenewal periods totaling 5 to 20 years, exebbésat our option and require payment of
property taxes, insurance and maintenance cosigdition to the rent payments. The consolidatearfimal statements reflect the same lease
term for amortizing leasehold improvements as wetagletermine capital versus operating leaseifitaons and in calculating straight-line
rent expense for each restaurant. Percentagexpgense is generally based on sales levels anaiisett at the point in time we determine that
it is probable that such sales levels will be aobit Amortization expense related to capital leégséxluded in depreciation and amortization
expense in our consolidated statements of earniragllord allowances are recorded based on conttbieirms and are included in accounts
receivable, net and as a deferred rent liability amortized as a reduction of rent expense ore@htrline basis over the expected lease term.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

Pre-Opening Expenses

Non-capital expenditures associated with opening restaurants are expensed as incurred.

Advertising

Production costs of commercials are charged toatioess in the fiscal period the advertising istfaged. The costs of programming and other
advertising, promotion and marketing programs &eeged to operations in the fiscal period incuard reported as marketing expenses o

consolidated statements of earnings.

Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize the cost of employee service recdivedchange for awards of equity instruments basethe grant date fair value of those
awards. We utilize the Black-Scholes option priaingdel to estimate the fair value of stock optieraeds. We recognize compensation
expense on a straight-line basis over the emplegagce period for awards granted. The dividentbyies been estimated based upon our
historical results and expectations for changefirdend rates. The expected volatility was deteediusing historical stock prices. The risk-
free interest rate was the rate available on zeopan U.S. government obligations with a term agipnating the expected life of each grant.
The expected life was estimated based on the aeehistory of previous grants, taking into consatien the remaining contractual period for
outstanding awards. The weighted-average fair valumn-qualified stock options and the relatediaggtions used in the Blackeholes mod

to record stock-based compensation are as follows:

Stock Options
Granted in Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Weighted-average fair value $ 10.5¢ $ 12.0¢ $ 12.2%
Dividend yield 4.5% 4.4% 4.C%
Expected volatility of stock 37.2% 39.6% 39.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.1% 1.5% 0.8%
Expected option life (in years) 6.5 6.4 6.5
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

Net Earnings per Shart

Basic net earnings per share are computed by diyidét earnings by the weighted-average numbesrafrmon shares outstanding for the
reporting period. Diluted net earnings per shaflecethe potential dilution that could occur ifcseities or other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted into common stOckstanding stock options and restricted stoekgd by us represent the only dilutive
effect reflected in diluted weighted-average shargstanding. These stock-based compensation instits do not impact the numerator of the
diluted net earnings per share computation.

The following table presents the computation ofdasd diluted net earnings per common share:

(in millions, except per share data) Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013

Earnings from continuing operations $ 196.2 $ 183.2 % 237.:
Earnings from discontinued operations 513.1 103.( 174.€
Net earnings $ 7095 $ 286.2 $ 411.¢
Average common shares outstanding — Basic 127.% 131.C 129.(
Effect of dilutive stock-based compensation 2.C 2.2 2.€
Average common shares outstanding — Diluted 129.% 133.2 131.€
Basic net earnings per share:

Earnings from continuing operations $ 154 $ 14C % 1.8¢

Earnings from discontinued operations 4.0z 0.7¢ 1.3¢

Net earnings $ 55¢ $ 218 $ 3.1¢
Diluted net earnings per share:

Earnings from continuing operations $ 151 $ 1.3¢ % 1.8C

Earnings from discontinued operations 3.9¢ 0.77 1.3

Net earnings $ 547 $ 215 $ 3.1

Restricted stock and options to purchase sharesrafommon stock excluded from the calculationibfted net earnings per share because th
effect would have been anti-dilutive, are as fokow

(in millions) Fiscal Year Ended
May 31, 2015 May 25, 2014  May 26, 2013
Anti-dilutive restricted stock and options 0.1 4.2 2.8

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net earnings anda otimeprehensive income (loss) items that are exddbm net earnings under U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Othergretmensive income (loss) items include foreigneney translation adjustments, the
effective unrealized portion of changes in the Yailue of cash flow hedges, unrealized gains asskl® on our marketable securities classified
as held for sale and recognition of the fundedisteglated to our pension and other postretiremplams. See Note 13 - Stockholddgsjuity for
additional information.

Foreign Currency

The Canadian dollar is the functional currencydor Canadian restaurant operations and the Malaysiggit is the functional currency for ¢
franchises based in Malaysia. Assets and lialslidienominated in foreign currencies are translatiedU.S. dollars using the exchange rates ir
effect at the balance sheet date. Results of dpesatre translated using the average exchangepegeailing throughout the period.
Translation gains and losses are reported as aasegammponent of other comprehensive income (léggregate cumulative translation los
were $1.7 million and $4.7 million at May 31, 20d5d May 25, 2014 , respectively. Net losses froreim currency transactions recognized
in our consolidated statements of earnings wer¢ @llion for fiscal 2015 and were not significént fiscal 2014 or 2013 .

Application of New Accounting Standards
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revemom fContracts with Customers (Topic 606). This upgaovides a comprehensive new

revenue recognition model that requires a compamgdognize revenue to depict the transfer of g@od®rvices to a customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration it expects to rex@i exchange for those goods or services.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

The guidance also requires additional disclosumeiithe nature, amount, timing and uncertaintyeeenue and cash flows arising from
customer contracts. This update was originallyctiife for annual and interim periods beginning mRecember 15, 2016, which would have
required us to adopt these provisions in the fjtgtrter of fiscal 2018. In July 2015, the FASBraffed its proposal for a one-year deferral of
the effective date. Early application is now petedt but not before the original effective dateisTipdate permits the use of either the
retrospective or cumulative effect transition methé/e are evaluating the effect this guidance élve on our consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures. We have netletted a transition method nor have we deteurtime effect of the standard on our
ongoing financial reporting.

NOTE 2 — DISPOSITIONS

On July 28, 2014, we closed on the sale of 705 Raabter restaurants; however, as of May 31, 202%f, the properties remain subjec
landlord consents and satisfaction of other contedeequirements. Therefore, the assets of theysaining restaurants continue to be class
as held for sale and recognition of the gain onrétated proceeds was deferred. The proceeds obdppately $31.5 millionassociated wil
the remaining landlord consents are classifiedtlasraurrent liabilities on our consolidated bakusteet as of May 31, 201%s the landlor
consents and remaining contractual requirementsatisfied, which we expect to occur within the thgix months, we will derecognize 1
related assets and record the commensurate gdhedransaction. All direct cash flows related perating these businesses were eliminat
the date of sale. Our continuing involvement hasnblémited to a transition service agreement fortapwo years from the date of sale v
minimal impact to our cash flows. In conjunctiorttwthe sale of Red Lobster, there werelddtions where Red Lobster shared a land
with another Darden brand. The land and relateddimgis for these 19arden locations were included in the sale tramsacanc
simultaneously leased back to Darden. The procasstsciated with the sale of these properties assifled as a financing lease obligatiol
our consolidated balance sheet as a componenhef abilities and the associated lease paymeiltamortize the obligation over the life
the properties. Additionally, in the fourth quartdrfiscal 2014, in connection with the expectel s&# Red Lobster, we closed two of thi
restaurants that housed both a Red Lobster andiaa @arden in the same building (synergy restais)ain the first quarter of fiscal 2015,
completed the conversion of the four remaining canypowned synergy restaurants to stand-alone @amlen restaurants.

As of May 31, 2015 , we received $2.08 billion esh proceeds, net of transaction-related costpprbaimately $29.3 million During fisca
2015, we recognized a pre-tax gain on the saRedf Lobster of $837.0 millionwhich is included in earnings from discontinugeations i
our consolidated statement of earnings.

For fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2012ll gains on disposition, impairment charges dispposal costs, along with the sales, costs andresgs ar
income taxes attributable to these restaurants baen aggregated in a single caption entitteafiings from discontinued operations, ne
tax expensein our consolidated statements of earnings fopatiods presented. No amounts for shared genedahdministrative operatil
support expense or interest expense were allotatdidcontinued operations. Assets associatiil those restaurants not yet disposed of,
are considered held for sale, have been segre@ated continuing operations and presented as a$mdtsfor sale on our accompany
consolidated balance sheets. In April 2014, the BASued ASU 20148, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topig 208 Property, Pla
and Equipment (Topic 360), Reporting Discontinugmkfations and Disclosures of Disposals of Companehan Entity. This update modif
the requirements for reporting discontinued operesi Under the amendments in ASU 2@B4-the definition of a discontinued operation
been moadified to only include those disposals ofatity that represent a strategic shift that lasw(ill have) a major effect on an enti
operations and financial results. This update algeands the disclosure requirements for dispobalsnheet the definition of a discontini
operation and requires entities to disclose infdimnaabout disposals of individually significantroponents that do not meet the definitio
discontinued operations. We elected to early attse provisions in the third quarter of fiscal 201

Earnings from discontinued operations, net of taresur accompanying consolidated statements afiegs are comprised of the following:

(in millions) Fiscal Year
May 31, 2015 May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013

Sales $ 400.« % 24720 $ 2,630.¢
Restaurant and marketing expenses 353.( 2,134.: 2,212
Depreciation and amortization 0.2 124.¢ 116.¢
Other costs and expenses (1) (810.%) 78.1 54.¢
Earnings before income taxes 857.¢ 135.2 2472
Income tax expense 344.¢ 32.: 721
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 513.1 % 103.C % 174.¢

(1) Amounts for fiscal year ended May 31, 2@d&ude the gain recognized on the sale of Red teo

The following table presents the carrying amoumthe major classes of assets and liabilities datet with the restaurants reported as



discontinued operations and classified as helddt® on our accompanying consolidated balancesheet

(in millions) May 31, 2015 May 25, 2014
Current assets $ — $ 241.(
Land, buildings and equipment, net 32.¢ 1,084.¢
Other assets — 64.t
Total assets 32¢ % 1,390.:
Current liabilities — 3 130.¢
Other liabilities — 84.¢
Total liabilities — $ 215t

During the third quarter of fiscal 2015 , we divebsall of our interest in our lobster aquacultuwtvities and we have no further commitments
or obligations with respect to such activities. sTtivestiture did not represent a strategic shifilir operations, and, accordingly, it did not

meet the definition to be reported as a discontmygeration.




NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES, NET

Receivables from the sale of gift cards in natioe#dil outlets, allowances due from landlords Has® lease terms, miscellaneous receivables
and our overall allowance for doubtful accountsagdollows:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201
Retail outlet gift card sales $ 471 $ 39.€
Landlord allowances due 12.¢ 22.t
Miscellaneous 18.¢ 22.C
Allowance for doubtful accounts (0.9 0.3
Receivables, net $ 78C $ 83.¢

NOTE 4 —IMPAIRMENTS AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS, NET

During fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , we recognizedong-lived asset impairment and disposal cleao§&62.1 million ( $40.3 million net of
tax), $16.4 million ( $10.1 million net of tax) af.9 million ( $0.6 million net of tax), respeatly. During fiscal 2015 , management
identified nine Olive Garden locations and threaseas 52 locations where the estimated usefulviife significantly shortened based on a re-
evaluation of expected lease renewals, leadinggtoficant decreases in projected cash flows. @ftttal impairments in fiscal 2015 , $34.1
million related to these restaurant impairmentsaddition, during fiscal 2015 we began marketingaed restaurant assets for individual sale
leasebacks. During fiscal 2015 , we recorded impaiit charges of $15.2 million related to the restauassets involved in sale-leaseback
arrangements which either closed in fiscal 201&rerexpected to close in fiscal 2016. Impairmeargés were measured based on the amou
by which the carrying amount of these assets exaxbttbir fair value. Fair value is generally detieied based on appraisals or sales prices of
comparable assets and estimates of future cask.fMi& also recognized impairments of assets retattte expected disposal of excess land
parcels, our lobster aquaculture project and aaratp airplane in connection with the closure afaiation department during fiscal 2015 .
These costs are included in impairments and dispdsassets, net as a component of earnings frartireong operations in the accompanying
consolidated statements of earnings for fiscal 2(®L4 and 2013 .

NOTE 5 - LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The components of land, buildings and equipmerit,are as follows:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201
Land $ 6335 $ 659.7
Buildings 3,338.¢ 3,234.!
Equipment 1,439.: 1,378.¢
Assets under capital leases 72.C 69.5
Construction in progress 36.¢ 89.1
Total land, buildings and equipment $ 5,520.c $ 5,431..
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,277.) (2,027.()
Less amortization associated with assets undetat#gases (26.9) (23.2)
Land, buildings and equipment, net $ 3,215.¢ $ 3,381.(

During fiscal 2015 , we announced a plan to pussle-leaseback transactions of approximately Aauesnt properties and our corporate
headquarters. Of the 75 properties listed for ksdeeback transactions, 14 were completed dursieglfR015 generating proceeds of $44.9
million , resulting in a deferred gain of $6.7 nah which will be amortized over the leaseback geion a straighline basis. Subsequent to «
fiscal 2015 year end, we completed an additionahtifvidual restaurant sale-leaseback transactigeserating proceeds of approximately
$63.6 million . We expect to complete the remairafehe sale-leaseback transactions during fis8462
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NOTE 6 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

We manage our restaurant brands, Olive Garden,HomgSteakhouse, The Capital Grille, Yard Housdydaa Breeze, Seasons 52 and E
V's in North America as operating segments. Thadsaperate principally in the U.S. within full-sige dining. We aggregate our operating
segments into reportable segments based on a catigirof the size, economic characteristics andsagment of full-service dining within
which each brand operates. We have feportable segments: 1) Olive Garden, 2) LongHdeal8house, 3) Fine Dining and 4) Other Busir
Prior to fiscal 2015 , we aggregated all of ourrafiag segments into one reportable segment. Howvexebelieve disaggregating our one
segment into these four

reportable segments provides more beneficial in&ion for our financial statement users.

The Olive Garden segment includes the results nEompany-owned Olive Garden restaurants in the 8h8 Canada. The LongHorn
Steakhouse segment includes the results of our @oeyapwned LongHorn Steakhouse restaurants in t8e The Fine Dining segment
aggregates our premium brands that operate witieiffime-dining sub-segment of full-service dinimglancludes the results of our company-
owned The Capital Grille and Eddie V's restauramtie U.S. The Other Business segment aggregatagimaining brands and includes the
results of our company-owned Yard House, Seasomm8Bahama Breeze restaurants in the U.S. Thisesgigalso includes results from our
franchises and consumer-packaged goods sales.

External sales are derived principally from food &everage sales, we do not rely on any major mesteas a source of sales and the
customers and long-lived assets of our reportagiengnts are predominantly in the U.S. There wenmaterial transactions among reportable
segments.

Our management uses segment profit as the measuasdessing performance of our segments. Segmaittipcludes revenues and expenses
directly attributable to restaurant-level result®perations (sometimes referred to as restaueat-karnings). These expenses include food
and beverage costs, restaurant labor costs, ragtaexpenses and marketing expenses.The followlsigd reconcile our segment results to ou
consolidated results reported in accordance witiABA

(in millions)

At May 31, 2015 and for the year ended Olive Garden étc()egiﬂglrjr;e Fine DiningOther Busines Corporate Consolidated
Sales $ 3,789.t $ 1544, $ 500.7 $ 929.t $ — $ 6,764.(
Restaurant and marketing expenses 3,089.: 1,304.¢ 405.2 785.7 — 5,584.¢
Segment profit $ 7005 $ 239.¢ $ 94.¢ $ 143¢ $ — $ 1,179..
Depreciation and amortization $ 149.¢ $ 71€ $ 26.2 $ 472 $ 242z $ 319.:
Impairments and disposal of assets, net 28.2 0.4 — 21.C 12.t 62.1
Segment assets 1,625.: 1,261.: 865.¢ 1,054.¢ 1,188.: 5,994
Capital expenditures 118.¢ 67.£ 22.¢ 83.Z 3.¢ 296.t
(in millions) LongHorn

At May 25, 2014 and for the year ended Olive Garden Steakhouse Fine DiningOther Busines Corporate Consolidated
Sales $ 3,643.. $ 1,383.¢ $ 441¢ $ 817.C $ — $ 6,285.¢
Restaurant and marketing expenses 2,995.; 1,179.¢ 360.2 707.¢ — 5,242.¢
Segment profit $ 648.C $ 2042 $ 81.2 $ 109.1 $ — $ 1,042.¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 149.¢ $ 66.7 $ 24 $ 427 $ 211 $ 304.¢
Impairments and disposal of assets, net 38 0.8 4.€ 3.7 3.€ 16.4
Segment assets 1,717 1,280.: 871.¢ 1,087.: 2,126.: 7,082."
Capital expenditures 131.¢ 114.¢ 42.% 123.1 3.1 414.¢
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(in millions)

At May 26, 2013 and for the year ended Olive Garden étc()er;iﬂglrjr;e Fine DiningOther Busines Corporate Consolidated
Sales $ 3,684.¢ $ 1,231 $ 396.« $ 608.t $ — $ 5,921.(
Restaurant and marketing expenses 2,977.¢ 1,043.: 320.: 516.€ — 4,857."
Segment profit $ 7072 $ 188.C $ 76.1 $ 92.C $ — $ 1,063.:
Depreciation and amortization $ 144 $ 60.1 $ 21.¢ $ 32.C $ 19¢ $ 278.3
Impairments and disposal of assets, net 0.2 0.t — — 0.2 0.¢
Capital expenditures 214.¢ 151.¢ 34.. 103.: 6.1 510.1

Reconciliation of segment profit to earnings froomtinuing operation before income taxes:

Fiscal Year

(in millions) May 31, 2015 May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013

Segment profit $ 1,179.: $ 1,042.¢ $ 1,063.:
Less general and administrative expenses (430.2) (413.)) (384.))
Less depreciation and amortization (319.9 (304.9 (278.9
Less impairments and disposal of assets, net (62.7) (16.9 (0.9)
Less interest, net (192.9 (134.9 (126.0
Earnings before income taxes $ 175 % 174€¢ $ 274.(

NOTE 7 - WORKFORCE REDUCTION

During fiscal 2014 and 2015 , we performed reviefvsur operations and support structure resultinghianges in our growth plans and relate
support structure needs. As a result, we had workfoeductions and program spending cuts in Seegil3 (September 2013 Plan), Jan
2014 (January 2014 Plan), May 2014 (May 2014 Pldoyember 2014 (November 2014 Plan) and May 201&y(RD15 Plan). In accordance
with these actions, we incurred employee termimatienefits costs and other costs which are includeggneral and administrative expense
our consolidated statements of earnings as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014
Employee termination benefits (1) $ 372 $ 17.2
Other (2) 0.t 0.¢
Total $ 37¢ $ 18.1

(1) Includes salary and stotlased compensation expel
(2) Includes postemployment medical, outplacement atotation cost

The following table summarizes the accrued emplageaination benefits and other costs which armarily included in other current
liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet adayf 31, 2015 :

September  January May November May Balance at May
(in millions) 2013 Plan 2014 Plan 2014 Plan 2014 Plan 2015Plan Payments Adjustments 31, 2015
Employee termination benefits ( $ 77 $ 07 $ 5.0 | |5 172 % 7C $ (239 $ 07 $ 14.¢€
Other 0.8 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.2 (1.3 0.2 0.4
Total $ 8E % 0.8 $ 52 $ 17€¢ $ 72 $ (245 9 05 $ 15.2

(1) Excludes costs associated with stock options astdceted stock that will be settled in shares upesting

We expect the remaining liability to be paid by seond quarter of fiscal 2017.
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NOTE 8 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

The components of other current liabilities aréodisws:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201
Non-qualified deferred compensation plan $ 209.¢ $ 228.¢
Sales and other taxes 63.¢ 70.4
Insurance-related 37.4 35.¢
Employee benefits 34.: 47.4
Contingent proceeds - Red Lobster disposition 31.t —
Derivative liabilities — 1.7
Accrued interest 11.4 19.¢
Miscellaneous 61.C 53.4
Total other current liabilities $ 449.1 $ 457 .¢
NOTE 9 - DEBT

The components of long-term debt are as follows:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201
7.125% debentures due February 2016 $ — 3 100.(
Variable-rate term loan (1.68% at May 31, 2015) August 2017 285.( 300.(
6.200% senior notes due October 2017 500.( 500.(
3.790% senior notes due August 2019 — 80.C
4.500% senior notes due October 2021 121.¢ 400.(
3.350% senior notes due November 2022 1111 450.(
4.520% senior notes due August 2024 10.C 220.(
6.000% senior notes due August 2035 150.( 150.(
6.800% senior notes due October 2037 300.( 300.(
Total long-term debt $ 1,478.C $ 2,500.(
Fair value hedge 3.€ 1.€
Less unamortized discount and issuance costs (14.9) (23.2)
Total long-term debt less unamortized discountiasdance costs $ 1,467.0 $ 2,478.
Less current portion (15.0 (15.0
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 1,452 $ 2,463.

During fiscal 2015 , with proceeds from the disgiosi of Red Lobster, we retired approximately $1b@llion aggregate principal of long-term
debt, comprised of $278.1 million aggregate priatgf our 4.500 percent senior notes due 2021 8 $3@illion aggregate principal of our
3.350 percent senior notes due 2022 , $80.0 miliggregate principal amount of our 3.790 percemibseotes due 2019 , $210.0 million
aggregate principal amount of our 4.520 percenpseotes due 2024 and $100.0 million aggregatecial amount of our outstanding 7.125
percent debentures due 2016 .

In fiscal 2015 , we recorded approximately $91.8iom of expenses associated with the retiremehest expenses included cash component
for repurchase premiums and make-whole amountpprbaimately $44.0 million and non-cash chargeseiased with hedge and loan cost
write-offs of approximately $47.3 million . Thesmaunts were recorded in interest, net in our codat#dd statements of earnings.

The interest rates on our $500.0 million 6.200 eetsenior notes due October 2017 and $300.0 miliBO0 percent senior notes due Octobe
2037 are subject to adjustment from time to tintléf debt rating assigned to such series of netdewngraded below a certain rating level (ol
subsequently upgraded). The maximum adjustmen0@2ercent above the initial
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interest rate and the interest rate cannot be egHinelow the initial interest rate. In October 20#body's Investor Service downgraded our
senior unsecured ratings to "Bal" from "Baa3" résglin an increase of 0.250 percent in the inten@®s on our senior notes due in October
2017 and October 2037 , effective as of the fiest of the interest period during which the ratisgange took place. Accordingly, our annual
interest expense increased by $ 2.0 million asaltref these rate adjustments.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Intérebnputation of Interest (Subtopic 83®), Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issua
Costs. This update requires debt issuance cobts poesented in the balance sheet as a direct tilmdérom the carrying amount of the related
debt. This guidance is effective for us in thetfaqaarter of fiscal 2017, however, we elected tyegdopt this guidance in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2015 . As of May 31, 2015, we have reclasidebt issuance costs associated with our leng-tlebt from other assets to long-term
debt, less current portion. Prior year amounts len reclassified to conform to the current yéassification resulting in an adjustment to
long-term debt of $18.0 million for the year endédy 25, 2014 .

The aggregate contractual maturities of long-teeft dor each of the five fiscal years subsequeMay 31, 2015 , and thereafter are as
follows:

(in millions)

Fiscal Year Amount
2016 $ 15.C
2017 15.C
2018 755.(
2019 —
2020 —
Thereafter 693.(
Long-term debt $ 1,478.(

We maintain a $750.0 milliorevolving Credit Agreement (Revolving Credit Agresmt), with Bank of America, N.A. (BOA) as admingtirve
agent, and the lenders and other agents partytéhdiiee Revolving Credit Agreement is a senior ensed credit commitment to the Company
and contains customary representations and affivenahd negative covenants (including limitationsliens and subsidiary debt and a
maximum consolidated lease adjusted total delitéd tapitalization ratio of 0.75 to 1.00) and etgenf default usual for credit facilities of this
type. As of May 31, 2015, we were in compliancéhweill covenants under the Revolving Credit Agreeine

The Revolving Credit Agreement matures on Octode2R18 and the proceeds may be used for commeiier back-up, working capital
and capital expenditures, the refinancing of ceritailebtedness, certain acquisitions and generpbcate purposes. Loans under the Revol
Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate of LIBAW ja margin determined by reference to a ratiragged pricing grid (Applicable Margin), or
the base rate (which is defined as the highes$teBIOA prime rate, the Federal Funds rate plus@p&dcent , and the Eurocurrency Rate plus
1.00 percent ) plus the Applicable Margin. AssumarntBBB-" equivalent credit rating level, the Appdible Margin under the Revolving Credit
Agreement will be 1.300 percent for LIBOR loans @800 percent for base rate loans.

The components of short-term debt are as follows:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201.
Commercial paper $ — 3 207.¢

The weighted-average interest rate on commerc@mporrowings as of May 25, 2014 was 0.80 percent
NOTE 10 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVI TIES

We use financial and commodities derivatives to aganinterest rate, equibhased compensation and commodities pricing andgioi@irrency
exchange rate risks inherent in our business dpamtBy using these instruments, we expose owrseftom time to time, to credit risk and
market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the ctenparty to perform under the terms of the derixationtract. When the fair value of a deriva
contract is positive, the counterparty owes usgctvicreates credit risk for us. We minimize thisdareisk by entering into transactions with
high-quality counterparties. We currently do notdnany provisions in our agreements with countdigmmthat would require either party to
hold or post collateral in the event that the
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market value of the related derivative instrumemeeds a certain limit. As such, the maximum amaodfitdss due to counterparty credit risk
we would incur at May 31, 2015, if counterpartieshe derivative instruments failed completelyp&form, would approximate the values of
derivative instruments currently recognized astasse our consolidated balance sheet. Market siske adverse effect on the value of a
financial instrument that results from a changmtarest rates, commaodity prices, or the marketegpof our common stock. We minimize this
market risk by establishing and monitoring paramsetieat limit the types and degree of market riwkt tmay be undertaken.

We are currently party to interest-rate swap agergswith $200.0 million of notional value to lintite risk of changes in fair value of $100.0
million of the $121.9 million 4.500 percent senmates due October 2021 and $100.0 million of th@0$5 million 6.200 percent senior notes
due October 2017 . The swap agreements effectbvedyp the fixed-rate obligations for floating-ratdigations, thereby mitigating changes in
fair value of the related debt prior to maturithelTswap agreements were designated as fair vatiges®f the related debt and met the
requirements to be accounted for under the shamretihod, resulting in no ineffectiveness in thddirg relationship. During fiscal 2015 ,
2014 and 2013, $3.6 million , $2.9 million andGillion , respectively, was recorded as a reduncto interest expense related to net swap
settlements.

We enter into equity forward contracts to hedgerisle of changes in future cash flows associatdtl thie unvested, unrecognized Darden ¢
units. The equity forward contracts will be settlgdhe end of the vesting periods of their undegyDarden stock units, which range between
four and five years. The contracts were initialsdnated as cash flow hedges to the extent th@eDastock units are unvested and, therefore
unrecognized as a liability in our financial statsts. As of May 31, 2015 , we were party to eqgiatyvard contracts that were indexed to 0.8
million shares of our common stock, at varying fardirates between $41.46 per share and $52.66aer, £xtending through August 2018 .
The forward contracts can only be net settled shcas the Darden stock units vest, we will de-glesie that portion of the equity forward
contract that no longer qualifies for hedge accimgrnéind changes in fair value associated with ploation of the equity forward contract will
recognized in current earnings. We periodicallyuimiaterest on the notional value of the contractd receive dividends on the underlying
shares. These amounts are recognized currentBrivings as they are incurred or received.

We entered into equity forward contracts to hedigerisk of changes in future cash flows associafigu recognized, cash-settled performance
stock units and employee-directed investments im@&astock within the non-qualified deferred comgaion plan. The equity forward
contracts are indexed to 0.2 million shares ofammmon stock at forward rates between $46.17 ahd®$er share, can only be net settled i
cash and expire between fiscal 2016 and 2019 . id/adl elect hedge accounting with the expectatian changes in the fair value of the
equity forward contracts would offset changes mfdir value of the performance stock units andd@arstock investments in the non-qualifiec
deferred compensation plan within general and aidtnative expenses in our consolidated statemdrearaings.

The notional and fair values of our derivative caats are as follows:

Balance
Sheet
(in millions) Notional Values Location Fair Values
Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities
May 31, May 25, May 31, May 25, May 31, May 25,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instntisne
Commodity contracts $ — % 0.¢ 1 $ — % — 3 — $ —
Equity forwards 11.4 20.€ (0] 0.4 — — (0.5
Interest rate related 200.( 200.( (D) 3.€ 1.€ — —
Foreign currency forwards — 0.3 (D) — 0.1 — —
$ 4C $ 17 $ — 3 (0.5)
Derivative contracts not designated as hedgingunstnts
Commodity contracts $ — % — @ $ — 3 — 3 — % —
Equity forwards 51.7 47.4 (0] 1.2 — — (1.2
$ 1.2 $ — 3 — 1.9
Total derivative contracts $ 52 % 1.7 % — ¢ .9

(1) Derivative assets and liabilities are includedeceivables, net, prepaid expenses and othegrtuassets, and other current liabilities, as
applicable, on our consolidated balance sheets.
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The effects of derivative instruments in cash floedging relationships in the consolidated statemehéarnings are as follows:

Location of
Location of Amount of Gain Gain (Loss) Q)

Amount of Gain Gain (Loss) (Loss) Reclassified Recognized in Amount of Gain
(Loss) Recognized in Reclassified from AOCI to Earnings (Loss) Recognized in
AOCI (Effective from AOCI to Earnings (Effective (Ineffective Earnings (Ineffective

(in millions) Portion) Earnings Portion) Portion) Portion)
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Commaodity $ — $ 0€ $ 07 2) $ — $ 04 $ 04 2) $ — $ — $ —
Equity 2.1 (3.5 (2.9 3) (1.0 (0.9 0.z 3) 11 14 11
Interest rate — — (10.1)  Interest, net (45.7)  (10.9) (8.9 Interest, net — — —
Foreign currency  — 0.t (0.5 4) — 1.C — 4) — — —
$ 21 $ (249 $ (1279 $ (46.9) $ 9.9 $ (7.7) $11 $ 14 $11

(1) Generally, all of our derivative instrumentsijnated as cash flow hedges have some leve¢iéativeness, which is recognized
currently in earnings. However, as these amourtg@nerally nominal and our consolidated finanstalements are presented “in
millions,” these amounts may appear as zero intéttiglar presentation.

(2) Location of the gain (loss) reclassified fré&«®Cl to earnings as well as the gain (loss) reczgphin earnings for the ineffective portion of
the hedge is food and beverage costs and restaxpanses.

(3) Location of the gain (loss) reclassified fré&«®Cl to earnings as well as the gain (loss) recogphin earnings for the ineffective portion of
the hedge is restaurant labor expenses and gemetaldministrative expenses.

(4) Location of the gain (loss) reclassified fré&«®Cl to earnings as well as the gain (loss) reczgphin earnings for the ineffective portion of
the hedge is food and beverage costs and generaldaministrative expenses.

The effects of derivative instruments in fair vaheglging relationships in the consolidated stateémehearnings are as follows:

Location of
Gain (Loss)
Location of Recognized
Gain (Loss) Hedged Item in in Earnings o
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized Fair Value Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Earnings on in Earnings on Hedge Recognized in Earnings on Related
(in millions) Derivatives Derivatives Relationship Related Hedged Item Hedged Item
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Interestrate $§ 2C $ (0.3 $ (1.3 Interest, net Debt $ 20 $ 03 $ 13 Interest, net
The effects of derivatives not designated as hepligistruments in the consolidated statements afiegs are as follows:
Location of Gain (Loss) Amount of Gain (Loss)
(in millions) Recognized in Earnings Recognized in Earnings
Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013
Commodity contracts Food and beverage costs and restaurant expense $ — % — % (0.7
Equity forwards Restaurant labor expenses 4.C (0.5 1.€
Equity forwards General and administrative expenses 9.2 1.3 1.4
$ 132  $ 1.) $ 2.6

Based on the fair value of our derivative instruisatesignated as cash flow hedges as of May 35 20& expect to reclassify $4.9 million of
net losses on derivative instruments from accuradlather comprehensive income (loss) to earningaglthe next 12 months based on the
maturity of equity forwards and the amortizatiordeferred losses on settled interest-rate relagiduiments. However, the amounts ultimately
realized in earnings will be dependent on thevfalue of the contracts on the settlement dates.
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NOTE 11 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair values of cash equivalents, receivables,atcounts payable and short-term debt approgithair carrying amounts due to their short
duration.

The following tables summarize the fair valuesio&hcial instruments measured at fair value orcarreng basis at May 31, 2015 and May 25
2014 :

Items Measured at Fair Value at May 31, 2015
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Market for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Assets Observable  Unobservable
of Assets (Liabilities) Inputs Inputs
(in millions) (Liabilities) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fixed-income securities:
Corporate bonds @ $ 22 % — % 22 % —
U.S. Treasury securities 2) 5.C 5.C — —
Mortgage-backed securities Q) 1.€ — 1.€ —
Derivatives:
Equity forwards 3) 1.7 — 1.7 —
Interest rate swaps (4) 3.€ — 3.€ —
Total $ 141 % 5C § 91 % —
Items Measured at Fair Value at May 25, 2014
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Market for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Assets Observable  Unobservable
of Assets (Liabilities) Inputs Inputs
(in millions) (Liabilities) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fixed-income securities:
Corporate bonds 1 $ 9.7 ¢ — $ 9.7 § —
U.S. Treasury securities 2 6.1 6.1 — —
Mortgage-backed securities (1) 2.€ — 2.€ —
Derivatives:
Equity forwards 3) (2.9 — 1.7 —
Interest rate locks & swaps 4) 1.€ — 1.€ —
Foreign currency forwards (5) 0.1 — 0.1 —
Total $ 184 $ 6.1 $ 12: % —

(1) The fair value of these securities is based orirjosarket prices of the investments, when appleatyr, alternatively, valuations utilizir
market data and other observable inputs, inclusitbe risk of nonperformance.

(2) The fair value of our U.S. Treasury securitiesasdd on closing market pric
(3) The fair value of our equity forwards is based loa ¢losing market value of Darden stock, inclusif/éhe risk of nonperformanc

(4) The fair value of our interest rate lock amthp agreements is based on current and expectégniaterest rates, inclusive of the risk of
nonperformance.

(5) The fair value of our foreign currency forwarahtracts is based on closing forward exchang&eb@rices, inclusive of the risk of
nonperformance.

The carrying value and fair value of long-term diebtuding the amounts included in current liaiek, as of May 31, 2015, was $1.47 billion
and $1.57 billion , respectively. The carrying \ahnd fair value of long-term debt including theoammts included in current liabilities as of
May 25, 2014 , was $2.48 billion and $2.63 billioespectively. The fair value of long-term debhieh
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is classified as Level 2 in the fair value hiergrads determined based on market prices or, if igpkices are not available, the present vall
the underlying cash flows discounted at our incnetaeborrowing rates.

The fair value of non-financial assets measurddiavalue on a non-recurring basis as of May 3l 32was approximately $55.4 million .
Adjustments to the fair values of these non-finahassets as of May 31, 2015 are discussed inNetmpairments and Disposal of Assets,
Net. The fair value of nc-financial assets measured at fair value on a pouorring basis, which is classified as Level 3hia tair value
hierarchy, is determined based on appraisals es galces of comparable assets and estimatesuséfoash flows. Adjustments to the fair
values of non-financial assets measured at fairevah a non-recurring basis as of May 25, 2014 wenrerally related to impairments of
property to be disposed of and were not material.

NOTE 12 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Marketable securities are carried at fair value @omsist of available-for-sale securities relathsurance funding requirements for our

workers' compensation and general liability claiifise following table summarizes cost and marketiedbr our securities that qualify as
available-for-sale as of May 31, 2015 :

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
(in millions) Cost Gains Losses Market Value
Available-for-sale securities $ 88 § — 3 — 3 8.8

Earnings include insignificant realized gains amsslfrom sales of available-for-sale securitiesMay 31, 2015 , the scheduled maturities of
our available-for-sale securities are as follows:

(in millions) Cost Market Value
Less than 1 year $ 1.7 $ 1.7
1to 3 years 6.4 6.4
3 to 5years 0.7 0.7
Total $ 8.8 ¢ 8.6

NOTE 13 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share Repurchase Prograi

Repurchased common stock has historically beeaatefll as a reduction of stockholdexguity. On December 17, 2010, our Board of Dires
authorized an additional share repurchase authimiztotaling 25.0 million shares in addition teetprevious authorization of 162.4 million
shares. Share repurchase authorizations and ciwveushiare repurchases under these authorizatimnasdollows:

(in millions) May 31, 201t
Share repurchase authorizations 187.4
Cumulative shares repurchased 182.0

In July 2014, as part of the previously authorighdre repurchase program, we entered into accadeshtire repurchase (ASR) agreements
with Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Wells Fargo Bankjdwetl Association (Dealers). The ASR program predidor the repurchase of an
aggregate of $500.0 million of our common stoclkader the ASR agreements, we paid an aggregated6f@hnillion to the Dealers in August
2014 and received an initial delivery of approxieia.6 million shares on October 1, 2014. In Deben2014, the ASR program was
completed and we received the final delivery ofragpnately 1.3 million shares. The total numbesbéres we purchased in connection with
the ASR transactions was based on a combined dismbwolume-weighted average price (VWAP) of $5(&2 share which was determined
based on the average of the daily VWAP of our comistock over the duration of the program, lessgared discount. Upon receipt, the
repurchased shares were retired and restoredhoraed but unissued shares of common stock.
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The total shares and related cost of our commark ste repurchased was as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013
Shares  Cost Shares  Cost Shares  Cost
Repurchases of common stock 10.C $ 502.: — $ 0¢ 1.C $ 524

As of May 31, 2015, of the 182.0 million cumulatishares repurchased, 169.3 million shares weéredeind restored to authorized but
unissued shares of common stock. We expect thahaitks of common stock acquired in the futurealéb be restored to authorized but
unissued shares of common stock.

Stockholder’ Rights Plan

In connection with the announced REIT transactium,Board approved a Rights Agreement dated Jun2@3 , to deter any person from
acquiring ownership of more than 9.8 percent ofaammon stock during the period leading up to tB#TRransaction. Under the Rights
Agreement, each share of our common stock hasiagswaevith it one right to purchase one thousarwdth share of our Series A Junior
Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock at a pasehprice of $156.26 per share, subject to adjugtoreler certain circumstances to prevent
dilution. The rights are exercisable when, andnartetransferable apart from our common stock uatflerson or group has acqui@8 percen
or more, or makes a tender offer for 9.8 percemhore, of our common stock. If the specified patage of our common stock is then acqu
each right will entitle the holder (other than #egjuiring company) to receive, upon exercise, comstock having a value equal to two times
the exercise price of the right. The rights areesgdable by our Board of Directors under certaioucitstances and expire on June 23, 2016 .
The Rights Plan will not prohibit tender or exchamigfers for all of the stock of the Company, asdfrights plan existed.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Lo
The components of accumulated other comprehensogarie (loss), net of tax, are as follows:

Foreign Unrealized Gains Accumulated
Currency (Losses) on Unrealized Gains Benefit Plan Other
Translation Marketable (Losses) on Funding Comprehensive
(in millions) Adjustment Securities Derivatives Position Income (Loss)
Balances at May 26, 2013 $ 1.9 $ 02 $ (53.¢) $ (77.9) $ (132.9)
Gain (loss) (2.9 (0.7 (2.9 2.7 (7.6
Reclassification realized in net earnings — — 6.2 6.C 12.:
Balances at May 25, 2014 $ 47 % 01 $ (50.9) $ (73.1) $ (128.])
Gain (loss) 4.3 — 2.1 3.1 0.€
Reclassification realized in net earnings 7.3 — 29.2 4.1 40.€
Balances at May 31, 2015 $ @7 $ 01 $ (19.) $ (65.9 $ (86.¢)
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Reclassifications related to foreign currency thatisn primarily relate to the disposition of Redlister and are included in earnings from
discontinued operations, net of tax expense irconsolidated statement of earnings. The followaige presents the amounts and line items i
our consolidated statements of earnings where aitijestments reclassified from AOCI into net eagsiwere recorded:

Fiscal Year
Location of Gain
(in millions) (Loss) Recognized in May 31, May 25,
AOCI Components Earnings 2015 2014
Derivatives
Commodity contracts ) $ — 3 0.4
Equity contracts (2) (2.0 (0.9
Interest rate contracts Interest, net (45.7) (10.9)
Foreign currency contracts (2) — 1.C
Total before tax  $ (46.7) $ 9.9
Tax benefit 17.t 3.4
Net of tax $ (29.2) $ (6.9
Benefit plan funding position
Pension/postretirement plans
Actuarial losses 3) $ (2.6 $ (9.0
Prior service costs 3) — (0.2
Settlement (loss)/curtailment gain ) (6.1) 0.t
Total - pension/postretirement plans $ 8.7 $ (8.€)
Recognized net actuarial gain/(loss) - other plans 4) 1.6 (1.4)
Total before tax  $ 6.9 $ (10.0
Tax benefit 2.8 4.C
Net of tax $ 41 3 (6.0)

(1) Primarily included in food and beverage costs @stiaurant expenses. See Note 10 for additionailsd

(2) Primarily included in restaurant labor costs andegal and administrative expenses. See Note l1&diitional detail:

(3) Included in the computation of net periodinéfit costs - pension and postretirement planschlvid a component of restaurant labor
expenses and general and administrative expensedN@e 17 for additional details.

(4) Included in the computation of net periodinéft costs -other plans, which is a component of general amdigidtrative expense
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NOTE 14 — LEASES

An analysis of rent expense incurred related ttatgants in continuing operations is as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Restaurant minimum rent $ 167.C $ 146.¢ % 125.¢
Restaurant rent averaging expense 16.7 26.€ 24.2
Restaurant percentage rent 7.7 6.€ 6.C
Other 3.t 5. 5.€
Total rent expense $ 194.¢ $ 1852 $ 161.¢€

Total rent expense included in discontinued openativas $6.2 million , $36.2 million and $34.6 il for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. These amounts include restaurantmoini rent of $5.8 million , $33.0 million and $3Xr8llion for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

The annual future lease commitments under cajgiteld obligations and noncancelable operating aadding leases, including those relate
restaurants reported as discontinued operationgafth of the five fiscal years subsequent to MBy2B15 and thereafter is as follows:

(in millions)

Fiscal Year Capital Financing Operating
2016 $ 57 $ 6.6 $ 189.¢
2017 5.¢ 6.8 180.1
2018 6.C 6.9 165.€
2019 6.1 7.C 1472
2020 6.1 7.2 128.7
Thereafter 55.C 117.5 360.¢
Total future lease commitments $ 84.t $ 152 $ 1,172.2
Less imputed interest (at 6.5%), (various) (30.9 (76.9

Present value of future lease commitments $ 545 $ 75:&

Less current maturities (2.9 1.2

Obligations under capital and financing leasesofietirrent maturities $ 521 $ 74.1

During fiscal 2015 we began marketing selected @ntigs for individual sale-leaseback transactitimsugh which we sell the assets at fair
value and subsequently lease them back. The megldiases generally qualify and are accountedsSaparating leases. The operating leases
that resulted from the completed transactionsrasiided in the above table.
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NOTE 15 - INTEREST, NET

The components of interest, net are as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Interest expense (1) $ 186.2 $ 134.C $ 126.2
Imputed interest on capital and financing leases 8.C 3.5 3.€
Capitalized interest (1.3 (2.6) (2.9
Interest income (0.6) (0.6) (0.9
Interest, net $ 192.: $ 1342 $ 126.(

(1) Interest expense in fiscal 2015 includes axpnately $91.3 million of expenses associated withretirement of long-term debt. See Note
9 - Debt.

Capitalized interest was computed using our avebagewing rate. Interest paid, net of amountstediped was as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized (1) $ 142.¢  $ 117t $ 112.¢

(1) Interest paid in fiscal 2015 includes approxiety $44.0 million of payments associated withrétirement of long-term debt. See Note 9 -
Debt.

NOTE 16 - INCOME TAXES

Total income tax expense was allocated as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Earnings from continuing operations $ (211 $ (8.6) $ 36.7
Earnings from discontinued operations 344.¢ 32.: 720
Total consolidated income tax expense $ 3237 % 237 % 109.¢
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The components of earnings from continuing openatizefore income taxes and the provision for inctames thereon are as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes:
u.S. $ 172 $ 189.: % 278.(
Foreign 2.8 (14.¢) (4.0
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $ 1752 $ 174¢ % 274.(
Income taxes:
Current:
Federal $ 12.79) $ 39 % 26.1
State and local (15.9 5.4 7.6
Foreign 6.S 3.C BE
Total current $ (212 % 47¢ % 37.t
Deferred (principally U.S.):
Federal — (43.7) 6.S
State and local 0.1 (12.9) (7.7)
Total deferred $ 01 % (56.5) $ 0.9
Total income taxes $ (21.1) $ 8.6) $ 36.7

Income taxes paid on a consolidated basis werellasvs:

(in millions) Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013
Income taxes paid (1) $ 290.7 $ 90.C $ 98.t

(1) Income taxes paid in fiscal 20l&re higher primarily as a result of the gain retogd on the sale of Red Lobs

The following table is a reconciliation of the Us$atutory income tax rate to the effective incdmerate from continuing operations included
in the accompanying consolidated statements ofregsn

Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013
U.S. statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.(%
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavetis (6.6) (2.7 —
Benefit of federal income tax credits (34.0 (30.9) (18.7)
Other, net (6.4 (6.9 (3.5
Effective income tax rate (12.0% (4.9% 13.£%

As of May 31, 2015, we had estimated current pcegi@ate income taxes of $18.9 million which islited on our accompanying consolidatec
balance sheets as prepaid income taxes, and estimatrent federal income taxes payable of $12lkomi, which is included on our
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as adoemde taxes.

As of May 31, 2015, we had unrecognized tax b&nefi$13.7 million , which represents the aggredak effect of the differences between
tax return positions and benefits recognized inammsolidated financial statements, all of whichulddfavorably affect the effective tax rate if
resolved in our favor.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, we reached a settdmwith the IRS Appeals Division on a previoudrolaeported on either originally filed or
amended tax returns for the 2009 through 2012lfissayears. As a result of this settlement, wegsized a favorable tax benefit of $9.9
million and a reduction in our unrecognized taxdférof $29.7 million .
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeaininrecognized tax benefits follows:

(in millions)

Balances at May 25, 2014 $ 38.1
Additions related to current-year tax positions 4.1
Additions related to prior-year tax positions 10.2
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authesiti (37.2)
Reductions to tax positions due to statute exjpinati (1.5
Balances at May 31, 2015 $ 13.7

We recognize accrued interest related to unrecedrtiax benefits in income tax expense. Penaltibepvincurred, are recognized in general
and administrative expense. Interest expense asedaiith unrecognized tax benefits, excludingriiease of accrued interest related to prior
year matters due to settlement or the lapse ofttitate of limitations was as follow

(in millions) Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013
Interest expense on unrecognized tax benefits $ 11 $ 04 $ 0.t

At May 31, 2015, we had $0.7 million accrued tog payment of interest associated with unrecogrieethenefits.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we partieifiathe Internal Revenue Service's (IRS) Compgahssurance Process (CAP) whereby ou
U.S. federal income tax returns are reviewed by&both prior to and after their filing. Incomaxtreturns are subject to audit by state and
local governments, generally years after the ratare filed. These returns could be subject to n@htedjustments or differing interpretations
of the tax laws. The major jurisdictions in whittetCompany files income tax returns include the. fe8eral jurisdiction, Canada, and all
states in the U.S. that have an income tax. Widwaexceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.& federal income tax examinations by
tax authorities for years before fiscal 2014, atatiesand local, or non-U.S. income tax examinatlmnsax authorities for years before fiscal
2011.

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemeafitMay 31, 2015 is $0.7 million related to tasitions for which it is reasonably possible
that the total amounts could change during the b2xhonths based on the outcome of examinatiorss $0t7 million relates to items that

would impact our effective income tax rate.

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to deferred tax assets and liabilities arfokews:

(in millions) May 31, 201! May 25, 201
Accrued liabilities $ 104¢ $ 111.C
Compensation and employee benefits 186.€ 216.C
Deferred rent and interest income 88.¢ 102.2
Net operating loss, credit and charitable contrdsutarryforwards 50.1 57.c
Other 6.5 7.€
Gross deferred tax assets $ 437.C $ 494
Valuation allowance (13.5) (16.5)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance $ 423fF % 478.2
Trademarks and other acquisition related intangible (220.€) (209.9)
Buildings and equipment (337.)) (396.7)
Capitalized software and other assets (28.7) (26.€)
Other (22.7) (8.2
Gross deferred tax liabilities $ (607.9 $ (640.9)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (184.9) $ (162.])

Net operating loss, credit and charitable contrdsutarryforwards have the potential to expire. Ndge taken current and potential fut
expirations into consideration when evaluatingribed for valuation allowances against these defeareassets. A valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets is provided when it is momyikhan not that some portion or all of the defdrr
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tax assets will not be realized. Realization isahelent upon the generation of future taxable incontbe reversal of deferred tax liabilities
during the periods in which those temporary diffeses become deductible. We consider the schedenedsal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income and tax planningtagiies in making this assessment. Based updewikof historical taxable income and
projections for future taxable income over the @@siin which our deferred tax assets are deducti@ebelieve it is more-likely-than-not that
we will realize the benefits of these deductibliéedlences, net of the existing valuation allowanaeslay 31, 2015 .

NOTE 17 - RETIREMENT PLANS
Defined Benefit Plans and Postretirement BenefitaRl

Certain of our employees are eligible to participata retirement plan. We sponsor non-contributtefined benefit pension plans, which have
been frozen, for a group of salaried employeekéntinited States, in which benefits are based dowsformulas that include years of service
and compensation factors; and for a group of hoamyployees in the United States, in which a fixackl of benefits is provided. Pension plan
assets are primarily invested in U.S. and Inteomati equities as well as long-duration bonds aatlestate investments. Our policy is to fund,
at a minimum, the amount necessary on an actuzags to provide for benefits in accordance withrgquirements of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as ameradetlthe Internal Revenue Code (IRC), as amendedeblension Protection Act of 2006.
We also sponsor a non-contributory postretiremenglfit plan that provides health care benefitsuiosalaried retirees.

Fundings related to the defined benefit pensionpnd postretirement benefit plans, which aredédnzh a pay-as-you-go basis, were as
follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year

2015 2014 2013
Defined benefit pension plans funding $ 04 $ 04 $ 2.4
Postretirement benefit plan funding 11 0.6 0.8

We expect to contribute approximately $0.4 milliorour defined benefit pension plans and approxeipail.1 million to our postretirement
benefit plan during fiscal 2016 .

We are required to recognize the over-or-underdrgtatus of the plans as an asset or liabilityeasured by the difference between the fair
value of the plan assets and the benefit obligatimhany unrecognized prior service costs and aatymins and losses as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (losshfrtai.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2015, the mtisement benefit plan was changed from a sslfred plan to a retiree health exchange w
subsidy to eligible participants through a Heal#irfbursement Account (HRA). As a result of thesandges, the plan was remeasured
resulting in a $23.7 million pre-tax reduction iretaccumulated postretirement benefit obligatiorctvis reflected as a prior year service
credit. This credit is being amortized into expeager the expected remaining service period ofuhg eligible active participant population
and is expected to reduce fiscal 2015 expense Hyrfilflion .

Additionally, during the fourth quarter of fiscad25, the defined benefit pension plan recognized $6llion of unrecognized loss in net
periodic benefit cost due to a settlement chaiggered by lump sum payouts during the fiscal yaeeding the sum of service and interest
costs.

The following provides a reconciliation of the clgas in the plan benefit obligation, fair value &frpassets and the funded status of the plan:
as of May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2014 :
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(in millions) Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan
2015 2014 2015 2014

Change in Benefit Obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 283.¢ % 276.¢ % 38t % 29.¢
Service cost 1.1 4.4 0.t 0.7
Interest cost 10.C 10.2 1.C 1.4
Plan amendments — (0.6 (26.9) —
Plan curtailments — (6.9 — (4.8
Plan settlements (15.9) — — —
Participant contributions — — 0.4 0.t
Benefits paid (8.6) (13.9 (1.5 ()]
Actuarial loss 17.¢ 12.¢ 6.C 12.2

Benefit obligation at end of period $ 288.¢ $ 283¢ $ 18.C $ 38.t

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value at beginning of period $ 243¢ % 2341 % — —
Actual return on plan assets 16.7 22.7 — —
Employer contributions 0.4 0.4 1.1 0.€
Plan settlements (15.9) — — —
Participant contributions — — 04 0.t
Benefits paid (8.6) (13.9 (1.5 (1.9

Fair value at end of period $ 236.6 % 243.¢ % — —

Reconciliation of the Plans’ Funded Status:
Unfunded status at end of period $ (51.¢ $ (40.00 $ (18.0) $ (38.5)

The following is a detail of the balance sheet congmts of each of our plans and a reconciliatiothefamounts included in accumulated othe
comprehensive income (loss):

(in millions) Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan
May 31, May 25, May 31, May 25,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Components of the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Current liabilities $ — 3 — % 1.1 % 1.1
Non-current liabilities 51.¢ 40.C 16.€ 37.4
Net amounts recognized $ 51.¢ % 40.C $ 18.C $ 38.t

Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprelverisicome
(Loss), net of tax:

Prior service (cost) credit $ — ¢ — 14¢ % —
Net actuarial gain (loss) (68.7) (64.0) (9.0 (5.9
Net amounts recognized $ (68.7) $ 64.00 $ 52 $ (5.9
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The following is a summary of our accumulated aragjgeted benefit obligations for our defined benpfans:

(in millions) May 31, 201 May 25, 201
Accumulated benefit obligation for all defined b&nplans $ 288« $ 283.:
Pension plans with accumulated benefit obligatiarexcess of plan assets:
Accumulated benefit obligation 288.< 283.c
Fair value of plan assets 236.¢ 243.¢
Projected benefit obligations for all plans witlojeicted benefit obligations in excess of plan asset 288.¢ 283.¢

The following table presents the weighted-averagaimptions used to determine benefit obligatiomsreat expense:

Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan
2015 2014 2015 2014
Weighted-average assumptions used to determindibeblkgations at
May 31 and May 25 (1)
Discount rate 4.49% 4.41% 4.272% 4.4%%
Rate of future compensation increases N/A 3.8t% N/A N/A
Weighted-average assumptions used to determinexpense for fiscal
years ended May 31 and May 25 (2)
Discount rate 4.41% 4.6(% 4.26% 4.78%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.0(% 8.0(% N/A N/A
Rate of future compensation increases 3.8t% 4.00% N/A N/A

(1) Determined as of the end of fiscal yi
(2) Determined as of the beginning of fiscal y

We set the discount rate assumption annually folh edthe plans at their valuation dates to reftbetyield of high-quality fixed-income debt
instruments, with lives that approximate the mayuof the plan benefits. Additionally, for our mality assumption as of fiscal year end, we
selected the most recent RP-2014 mortality talbidshP-2014 mortality improvement scale to measheebenefit obligations. The expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets is based spveral factors, including our historical asstioms compared with actual results, an
analysis of current market conditions, asset fulwtations and the views of leading financial advisand economists.

We reduced our expected long-term rate of returplan assets for our defined benefit plan fromp@@ent used in fiscal 2013 to 8.0 percent
used in fiscal 2014 and then to 7.0 percent f@afi2015 in connection with our current expectatitr long-term returns and target asset func
allocation. In developing our expected rate of messumption, we have evaluated the actual histigperformance and long-term return
projections of the plan assets, which give consitilem to the asset mix and the anticipated timihipe pension plan outflows. We employ a
total return investment approach whereby a mixquiity and fixed-income investments are used to mae the longerm return of plan asse
for what we consider a prudent level of risk. Oistdrical 10-year, 15-year and 20-year rates afrrebn plan assets, calculated using the
geometric method average of returns, are approrin8t3 percent , 7.8 percent and 9.6 percenpexively, as of May 31, 20150ur Benefi
Plans Committee sets the investment policy foibéned Benefit Plans and oversees the investnilmiaéion, which includes setting long-
term strategic targets. Our overall investmentsgnais to achieve appropriate diversification thgb a mix of equity investments, which may
include U.S., international, and private equiteesswell as long-duration bonds and real estatestnvents. Currently, our target asset fund
allocation is 41.0 percent U.S. equities, 40.0 perdigh-quality, long-duration fixed-income seties, 16.0 percent international equities and
3.0 percent real estate securities. The investpaity establishes a re-balancing band around stebéished targets within which the asset
class weight is allowed to vary. Equity securitiaggrnational equities and fixed-income securitfedude investments in various industry
sectors. Investments in real estate securitiesviotlifferent strategies designed to maximize reguatiow for diversification and provide a
hedge against inflation. Our current positioningésitral on investment style between value and tfra@mpanies and large and small cap
companies. We monitor our actual asset fund allocdab ensure that it approximates our target alion and believe that our long-term asset
fund allocation will continue to approximate ourget allocation. Investments held in the U.S. congted fund, U.S. corporate securities, an
international commingled fund, U.S. governmentdiircome securities, a global fixed income commaddiund, public sector utility
securities, and an emerging markets commingledeme:sented approximately 32.0 percent , 17.5 percH.8 percent , 10.6 percent , 10.2
percent, 6.1 percent and 5.6 percent , respegtioétotal plan assets and represents the onhjfgignt
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concentrations of risk related to a single entiggtor, country, commodity or investment fund. Nlweo single sector concentration of assets
exceeded 5.0 percent of total plan assets.

The discount rate and expected return on plansaasstimptions have a significant effect on amaemisrted for defined benefit pension ple
A quarter percentage point change in the definegfiteplans’ discount rate and the expected lommteate of return on plan assets would
increase or decrease earnings before income tg&8.® million and $0.5 million , respectively.

Due to the fiscal 2015 postretirement benefit mlhanges, health care cost trend rates no longeifisantly effects the amounts reported for
the plan. As result, the only assumption that hsigiificant effect on the amounts reported forgbstretirement benefit plan is the discount
rate. A quarter percentage point change in thegir@ment benefit plan’s discount rate would i@ or decrease earnings before income
taxes by $0.1 million .

Components of net periodic benefit cost includedadntinuing operations are as follows:

(in millions) Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Service cost $ 1.1 $ 44 % 47 % 0 $ 0.7 $ 0.6
Interest cost 10.C 10.2 9.¢ 1.C 14 1.:G
Expected return on plan assets (15.2) (17.3) (19.9 — — —
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost — 0.1 0.1 (2.9 (0.7 (0.7
Recognized net actuarial loss 2.€ 9.C 8.¢ 0.€ — —
Settlement loss recognized 6.1 — — — — —
Curtailment gain recognized — (0.5 — — — —
Net pension and postretirement cost (benefit) $ 4€ $ 6.1 $ 41 $ 05 $ 2C % 2.C

The amortization of the net actuarial gain (losshponent of our fiscal 2016 net periodic benefittdor the defined benefit plans and
postretirement benefit plan is expected to be apprately $(2.8) million and $3.8 million , respeatly.

The fair values of the defined benefit pension plassets at their measurement dates of May 31, &t May 25, 2014 , are as follows:

Items Measured at Fair Value at May 31, 2015
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Market for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
of Assets (Liabilities) Inputs Inputs
(in millions) (Liabilities) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity:
U.S. Commingled Funds 1) $ 75.6 % — 8 75.6 % —
International Commingled Funds (2) 25.7 — 25.7 —
Emerging Market Commingled Funds 3) 13.1 — 13.1 —
Real Estate Commingled Funds (4) 6.9 — 6.9 —
Fixed-Income:
U.S. Treasuries (5) 25.1 25.1 — —
U.S. Corporate Securities (5) 41.4 — 41.4 —
International Securities (5) 8.3 — 8.3 —
Public Sector Utility Securities (5) 14.t — 14.t —
Global Fixed Income Commingled Fund (6) 24.C — 24.C —
Cash & Accruals 1.8 1.€ — —
Total $ 236.6 % 26.¢ $ 209.7 $ —
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Items Measured at Fair Value at May 25, 2014

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Market for Other Significant
Fair Value Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
of Assets (Liabilities) Inputs Inputs
(in millions) (Liabilities) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity:
U.S. Commingled Funds 1) % 87t $ — 3 87t $ —
International Commingled Funds (2) 31.2 — 31.2 —
Emerging Market Commingled Funds 3) 13.z — 13.c —
Real Estate Commingled Funds (4) 10.t — 10.5 —
Fixed-Income:
U.S. Treasuries (5) 27.€ 27.€ — —
U.S. Corporate Securities (5) 48.C — 48.C —
International Securities (5) 10.C — 10.C —
Public Sector Utility Securities (5) 13.1 — 13.1 —
Cash & Accruals 2.7 2.7 — —
Total $ 243.¢ % 30 $ 213¢ $ —

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()
(6)

U.S. commingled funds are comprised of investta in funds that purchase publicly traded U.#roon stock for total return purposes.
Investments are valued using a unit price or nettagalue (NAV) based on the fair value of the ulyileg investments of the funds. There
are no redemption restrictions associated witheliesds.

International commingled funds are compristheestments in funds that purchase publicly tchdent.S. common stock for total retu
purposes. Investments are valued using a unit priceet asset value (NAV) based on the fair valuta® underlying investments of the
funds. There are no redemption restrictions asttiaith these funds.

Emerging market commingled funds and develapacket securities are comprised of investmentsrids that purchase publicly traded
common stock of non-U.S. companies for total repurposes. Funds are valued using a unit pricebasset value (NAV) based on the
fair value of the underlying investments of thedanThere are no redemption restrictions associatidthese funds.

Real estate commingled funds are comprised of tmests in funds that purchase publicly traded comstock of real estate securities
purposes of total return. These investments augedalising a unit price or net asset value (NAVEdasn the fair value of the underlying
investments of the funds. There are no redempéetrictions associated with these funds.

Fixedincome securities are comprised of investment®iregiment and corporate debt securities. Theseiesware valued by the trusi
at closing prices from national exchanges or pgaiandors on the valuation date.

Global fixed income commingled fund is compdsf investments in U.S. and non-U.S. governmigatfincome securities. Investments
are valued using a unit price or net asset valug/N\based on the fair value of the underlying invesnts of the fund. There are no
redemption restrictions associated with these funds

The following benefit payments are expected to &id petween fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2025 :

(in millions) Defined Benefit Plan Postretirement Benefit Pl
2016 $ 10z $ 1.1
2017 10.7 1.1
2018 11.C 1.C
2019 11.5 1.C
2020 12.2 1.C
2021-2025 72.5 4.7

Postemployment Severance PI
We accrue for postemployment severance costs ioansolidated financial statements and recognitigagial gains and losses related to our
postemployment severance accrual as a componectomulated other comprehensive income (loss).fAs o
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May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2014 , $2.5 million andl$8illion , respectively, of unrecognized actubldases related to our postemployment
severance plan were included in accumulated ottrapoehensive income (loss) on a net of tax basis.

Defined Contribution Plan

We have a defined contribution (401(k)) plan congninost employees age 21 and older. We match batitns for participants with at least
one year of service up to 6 percent of compensabased on our performance. The match ranges fraimianum of $0.25 to $1.20 for each
dollar contributed by the participant. The plan natlassets of $610.9 million at May 31, 2015 an2i9$l million at May 25, 2014 . Expense
recognized in fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 was #$0lgn , $0.7 million and $0.9 million , respectily. Employees classified as “highly
compensated” under the IRC are not eligible toigiggte in this plan. Instead, highly compensateghleyees are eligible to participate in a
separate non-qualified deferred compensation (Fdex®) plan. This plan allows eligible employees éfed the payment of part of their annual
salary and all or part of their annual bonus arVigies for awards that approximate the matchingrdmrtions and other amounts that
participants would have received had they beeiibétigo participate in our defined contribution atefined benefit plans. Amounts payable to
highly compensated employees under the FlexComptptaled $209.6 million and $228.8 million at M3y, 2015 and May 25, 2014 ,
respectively. These amounts are included in otheeant liabilities.

The defined contribution plan includes an Emplogésck Ownership Plan (ESOP). The ESOP borrowed®$hélion from us at a variable
rate of interest in July 1996. At May 31, 2015¢ #SOP’s original debt to us had a balance of 88llion with a variable rate of interest of
0.18 percent and is due to be repaid no later Breoember 2019 . At the end of fiscal 2005, the E®OHPowed an additional $1.6 million
(Additional Loan) from us at a variable interedtrand acquired an additional 0.05 million sharfesuo common stock, which were held in
suspense within the ESOP at that time. At May 8152, the Additional Loan had a balance of $1.3ionilwith a variable interest rate of 0.28
percent and is due to be repaid no later than Dieee2018. Compensation expense is recognized astagdions are accrued. Fluctuations in
our stock price impact the amount of expense tebegnized. Contributions to the plan, plus thed#imds accumulated on unallocated shares
held by the ESOP, are used to pay principal, isteard expenses of the plan. As loan payments ade,ncommon stock is allocated to ESOP
participants. In each of the fiscal years 2015148nd 2013 , the ESOP used dividends received.afrdillion , $0.9 million and $1.0 million
respectively, and contributions received from u$@D million , $0.0 million and $0.1 millionrespectively, to pay principal and interest on
debt.

ESOP shares are included in weighted-average consimares outstanding for purposes of calculatingeastings per share with the exception
of those shares acquired under the Additional lwehich are accounted for in accordance with FASB AR®topic 718-40, Employee Stock
Ownership Plans. Fluctuations in our stock priceracognized as adjustments to common stock aptusuvhen the shares are committed to
be released. The ESOP shares acquired under thigohdtlLoan are not considered outstanding uhgltare committed to be released and,
therefore, unreleased shares have been excludedrfooses of calculating basic and diluted netingenper share. As of May 31, 2015, the
ESOP shares included in the basic and dilutedareiregs per share calculation totaled 3.0 millibarss, representing 2.4 million allocated
shares and 0.6 million suspense shares.

NOTE 18 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We maintain two active stock option and stock g@ahs under which new awards may still be isskedwn as the Darden Restaurants, Inc.
2002 Stock Incentive Plan (2002 Plan) and the RAREpitality International, Inc. Amended and Resdé2802 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(RARE Plan). We also have four other stock optiod stock grant plans under which we no longer cantghew awards, although awards
outstanding under the plans may still vest anddeeoésed in accordance with their terms: the Stlek for Directors (Director Stock Plan);
Director Compensation Plan; the Stock Option andg-derm Incentive Plan of 1995 (1995 Plan) andRbstaurant Management and
Employee Stock Plan of 2000 (2000 Plan). All of ptens are administered by the Compensation Comendtt the Board of Directors. The
2002 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 25ldlom common shares in connection with the gragtiri non-qualified stock options,
incentive stock options, stock appreciation righgstricted stock, restricted stock units (RSU)cls awards and other stock-based awards
including performance stock units and Darden stotks to key employees and non-employee direciidis.RARE Plan provides for the
issuance of up to 3.9 million common shares in eation with the granting of non-qualified stockiops, incentive stock options and
restricted stock to employees. Awards under the R&Ran are only permitted to be granted to empleydso were employed by RARE as of
the date of acquisition and continued their emplegtiwith the Company. The Director Stock Plan piedi for the issuance of up to 0.375
million common shares out of our treasury in cotioacwith the granting of non-qualified stock opt® restricted stock and RSUs to non-
employee directors. No new awards could be grambelér the Director Stock Plan after September 8002The Director Compensation Plan
provided for the issuance of 0.1 million commonrskabut of our treasury to non-employee directdsnew awards could be granted under
the Director Compensation Plan after Septembe2@05. The 1995 Plan provided for the issuance dbg8.3 million common shares in
connection with the granting of non-qualified stagkions, restricted stock or RSUs to key employ&hs 2000 Plan provided for the issuanc
of up
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to 5.4 million shares of common stock out of oeasury as nonualified stock options, restricted stock or RSUsder all of these plans, stc
options are granted at a price equal to the fdirevaf the shares at the date of grant for termi®roeeding 10 years and have various vesting
periods at the discretion of the Compensation CdtemiOutstanding options generally vest over orfedr years. Restricted stock and RSUs
granted under the 1995 Plan, the 2000 Plan an2(®2 Plan generally vest over periods ranging ftioree to five years and no sooner than
one year from the date of grant. Performance Stbuks granted under the 2002 Plan generally vest avhree -year period, and vested
amounts may range from 0.0 to 150.0 percent oktatbamounts depending on the achievement of cesddes, free cash flow and earnings
metrics. Darden stock units granted under the Z088& generally vest over a five -year period, withperformance vesting feature.

The Director Compensation Program provides for payisito non-employee directors of: (a) an annualmer; (b) an additional annual
retainer for the committee chairs and members;(@ndn annual equity grant upon election or re{@edo the Board, which will be paid 75
percent in the form of RSUs and 25 perdarthe form of stock options. The annual cash netia are due and paid quarterly, unless the dir
elects to defer the payment. Directors may eleotteive, in lieu of their cash compensation, R&Use of equal value to the foregone cash
fees.

Stock-based compensation expense included in eongjroperations was as follows:

(in millions) Fiscal Year
2015 2014 2013

Stock options $ 20¢ % 19.2 % 16.2
Restricted stock/restricted stock units 2.C 0.6 2.1
Darden stock units 13.: 12.: 13.€
Performance stock units (1) 14t 2.t 4.7
Employee stock purchase plan 1.3 1.8 1.8
Director compensation program/other 1.7 1.8 1kt

$ 537 $ 38.7 $ 40.C

(1) The increase for fiscal 2015 is primarily ititable to the workforce reduction efforts (segeéNd - Workforce Reduction) and the impact
of improved financial performance.

The following table presents a summary of our stmafion activity as of and for the year ended May 2015 :

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Remaining Intrinsic Value
(in millions) Per Share Contractual Life (Yrs) (in millions)
Outstanding beginning of period 11.23 $41.66 5.57 $91.0
Options granted 1.15 45.51
Options exercised (4.16) 37.20
Options canceled (0.51) 48.47
Outstanding end of period 7.71 $44.18 6.08 $164.6
Exercisable 497 $42.15 5.00 $116.2

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrfiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 was $90.2 milli$89.9 million and $47.1 million ,
respectively. Cash received from option exerciseid fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 was $154.6 nilli®50.9 million and $57.0 million ,
respectively. Stock options have a maximum conti@gteriod of 10 years from the date of grant. \&tlesemployee stock option exercises
with authorized but unissued shares of Darden comstack or treasury shares we have acquired througbngoing share repurchase
program.

As of May 31, 2015, there was $11.7 million oferwgnized compensation cost related to unveste#l sgtions granted under our stock
plans. This cost is expected to be recognized avegighted-average period of 1.3 years. The tatabvilue of stock options that vested during
fiscal 2015 was $22.7 million .
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Restricted stock and RSUs are granted at a valu@l émthe market price of our common stock ondate of grant. Restrictions lapse with
regard to restricted stock, and RSUs are settlstianes, at the end of their vesting periods, wisidenerally four years.

The following table presents a summary of our ietstd stock and RSU activity as of and for thedlgear ended May 31, 2015 :

Weighted-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair

(in millions) Value Per Share
Outstanding beginning of period 0.23 $39.04
Shares granted 0.04 54.20
Shares vested (0.14) 33.57
Shares canceled (0.03) 47.02
Outstanding end of period 0.10 $51.19

As of May 31, 2015, there was $2.7 million of wrognized compensation cost related to unvestedatest stock and RSUs granted under ou
stock plans. This cost is expected to be recogrozed a weighted-average period of 2.4 years. ®tad fair value of restricted stock and RSUs
that vested during fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013$4a8 million , $2.3 million and $5.5 million , resgtively.

Darden stock units are granted at a value equbaktanarket price of our common stock on the datgrafit and will be settled in cash at the

of their vesting periods, which range between fudl five years, at the then market price of ourroom stock. Compensation expense is
measured based on the market price of our comnoaRk stich period, is amortized over the vestingogesind the vested portion is carried as ¢
liability on our accompanying consolidated balasbeets. We also entered into equity forward cotgrachedge the risk of changes in future
cash flows associated with the unvested, unrecedridarden stock units granted (see Note 10 — Darevinstruments and Hedging Activities
for additional information).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

The following table presents a summary of our Darsteck unit activity as of and for the fiscal yeaded May 31, 2015 :

Weighted-Average

Units Fair Value Per
(All' units settled in cash) (in millions) Unit
Outstanding beginning of period 2.14 $49.55
Units granted 0.43 45.54
Units vested (0.44) 48.51
Units canceled (0.76) 46.31
Outstanding end of period 1.37 $65.54

As of May 31, 2015, our total Darden stock urabllity was $46.1 million , including $16.2 milliarcorded in other current liabilities and
$29.9 million recorded in other liabilities on azonsolidated balance sheets. As of May 25, 2014 tatal Darden stock unit liability was
$57.3 million , including $32.8 million recorded @ther current liabilities and $24.5 million receddin other liabilities on our consolidated
balance sheets.

Based on the value of our common stock as of May815 , there was $34.0 million of unrecognizethpensation cost related to Darden
stock units granted under our incentive plans. Thi is expected to be recognized over a weigatedage period of 3.0 years. The total fair
value of Darden stock units that vested duringali@915 was $21.5 million .

The following table presents a summary of our penmnce stock unit activity as of and for the fispadr ended May 31, 2015 :

Weighted-Average

Units Fair Value Per

(All units settled in cash) (in millions) Unit

Outstanding beginning of period 0.31 $49.55
Units granted 0.14 44.95
Units vested (0.21) 48.35
Units canceled (0.24) 47.86
Performance unit adjustment 0.38 49.26
Outstanding end of period 0.38 $65.54

As of May 31, 2015, our total performance stock liability was $15.9 million , including $11.2 ttion recorded in other current liabilities
and $4.7 million recorded in other liabilities oar@onsolidated balance sheets. As of May 25, 2@il#4 total performance stock unit liability
was $9.5 million , including $5.3 million recordedother current liabilities and $4.2 million reded in other liabilities on our consolidated
balance sheets.

Performance stock units cliff vest three years ftbmdate of grant, where 0.0 percent to 150.0gmerof the entire grant is earned or forfeited
at the end of three years. The number of unitsabtally vests will be determined for each yeaedlaon the achievement of Company
performance criteria set forth in the award agregraad may range from 0.0 percent to 150.0 perektiie annual target. All awards will be
settled in cash. The awards are measured baséwe onarket price of our common stock each pericglaarortized over the service period and
the vested portion is carried as a liability in ascompanying consolidated balance sheets. As gf3la2015 , there was $3.9 million of
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesddrmance stock units granted under our stoaksplahis cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of larsyd he total fair value of performance stockauttiat vested in fiscal 2015 was $10.2
million .

We maintain an Employee Stock Purchase Plan tageamligible employees who have completed one géaervice (excluding senior office
subject to Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchahgteof 1934, and certain other employees who arpleyed less than full time or own 5
percent or more of our capital stock or that of anlgsidiary) an opportunity to invest up to $5.6uband per calendar quarter to purchase
shares of our common stock, subject to certairtditimns. Under the plan, up to an aggregate ofi8lléon shares are available for purchase by
employees at a purchase price that is 85.0 peoteéhé fair market value of our common stock oheitthe first or last trading day of each
calendar quarter, whichever is lower. Cash recefk@d employees pursuant to the plan during fig€dl5 , 2014 and 2013 was $5.2 million ,
$7.2 million and $7.3 million , respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As collateral for performance on contracts andraditguarantees to banks and insurers, we weringemtly liable for guarantees of
subsidiary obligations under standby letters oflitré\t May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2014 , we had $224illion and $113.5 million
respectively, of standby letters of credit relai@avorkers’compensation and general liabilities accrued inoomsolidated financial statemer
At May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2014 , we had $14.0ieniland $17.8 million , respectively, of standbkgtérs of credit related to contractual
operating lease obligations and other paymentsstaldby letters of credit are renewable annually.

At May 31, 2015 and May 25, 2014 , we had $147 Moniand $3.4 million , respectively, of guarargesssociated with leased properties that
have been assigned to third parties. These amogmissent the maximum potential amount of futusgmgnts under the guarantees. The fair
value of these potential payments discounted atveighted-average cost of capital at May 31, 20idb May 25, 2014 , amounted to $113.4
million and $2.7 million , respectively. We did neicord a liability for the guarantees, as theliicod of the third parties defaulting on the
assignment agreements was deemed to be remoke éveént of default by a third party, the indemaaityl default clauses in our assignment
agreements govern our ability to recover from amdye the third party for damages incurred as@tresits default. We do not hold any third-
party assets as collateral related to these assiginagreements, except to the extent that theramsigt allows us to repossess the building ant
personal property. These guarantees expire ovemrdspective lease terms, which range from fi€dl5 through fiscal 2021 .

We are subject to private lawsuits, administrafixeceedings and claims that arise in the ordinatyse of our business. A number of these
lawsuits, proceedings and claims may exist at angngtime. These matters typically involve claimsnfi guests, employees and others relatec
to operational issues common to the restauransimgluand can also involve infringement of, or tdwades to, our trademarks. While the
resolution of a lawsuit, proceeding or claim mayéan impact on our financial results for the peiilowhich it is resolved, we believe that the
final disposition of the lawsuits, proceedings atadims in which we are currently involved, eithedividually or in the aggregate, will not ha

a material adverse effect on our financial posijtr@sults of operations or liquidity.

NOTE 20 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On June 17, 2015, the Board of Directors declaredsh dividend of $0.55 per share to be paid Augua015 to all shareholders of record as
of the close of business on July 10, 2015 .

On June 23, 2015, our Board of Directors annouapguloval of a strategic real estate plan to putsresfer of approximately 430 of our
owned restaurant properties into a real estatestment trust (REIT), with substantially all of tR&IT’s initial assets being leased back to
Darden. We expect to complete the REIT transadtioing fiscal 2016. The REIT supplements the presiyp announced sale-leaseback
transactions of approximately 75 restaurant prigeend our corporate headquarters that were ligiedg the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015.
We expect to utilize the proceeds generated frasahransactions to pay down our long-term debth¥¥e conducted substantial analysis of
the feasibility of implementing a REIT transactitiowever, a significant amount of work remains Hrete can be no assurance we will be

to successfully complete the transaction and d@stabIREIT.
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NOTE 21 - QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes unaudited quartddia for fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014 :

Fiscal 2015 - Quarters Ended

(in millions, except per share data) Aug. 24  Nov. 23 Feb. 22 May 31 (1) Total (2)
Sales $ 159.¢ $ 1559.( $ 1,730¢ $ 1,878¢ $ 6,764.(
(Loss) earnings before income taxes (43.7) (54.¢ 147.1 126.5 175.%
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations (29.9 (30.9) 128.¢ 118.1 196.4
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, héo 522t (2.0 5.4 (12.9) 513.1
Net (loss) earnings 503.2 (32.9) 133.¢ 105.: 709.t
Basic net earnings per share:

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations (0.19 (0.29) 1.0z 0.94 1.5¢

(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations 3.9t (0.09 0.04 (0.17) 4.0z

Net (loss) earnings 3.81 (0.26) 1.07 0.8: 5.5¢€
Diluted net earnings per share:

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations (0.19 (0.29) 1.01 0.92 1.51]

(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations 3.9t (0.02) 0.04 (0.10 3.9¢

Net (loss) earnings 3.81 (0.2¢) 1.0t 0.82 5.4%
Dividends paid per share 0.5t 0.5t 0.5t 0.5t 2.2C
Stock price:

High 51.21 56.8¢ 62.65 70.3¢ 70.3¢

Low 43.5¢ 46.7( 54.9¢ 61.31 43.5¢

Fiscal 2014 - Quarters Ended

(in millions, except per share data) Aug. 25 Nov. 24 Feb. 23 May 25 Total
Sales $ 1531f $ 1485¢ $ 1618! $ 1,650.. $ 6,285.¢
Earnings before income taxes 49.¢ 1.8 89.1 33.¢ 174.€
Earnings from continuing operations 42.2 6.C 86.¢€ 48.4 183.2
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax 28.C 13.¢ 23.1 38.1 103.(
Net earnings 70.2 19.¢ 109.% 86.5 286.2
Basic net earnings per share:

Earnings from continuing operations 0.32 0.0t 0.6€ 0.37 1.4C

Earnings from discontinued operations 0.22 0.1C 0.1¢ 0.2¢ 0.7¢

Net earnings 0.54 0.1f 0.84 0.6€ 2.1¢
Diluted net earnings per share:

Earnings from continuing operations 0.32 0.0t 0.6t 0.3¢ 1.3¢

Earnings from discontinued operations 0.21 0.1C 0.17 0.2¢ 0.7i

Net earnings 0.52 0.1t 0.82 0.6t 2.1t
Dividends paid per share 0.5t 0.5t 0.5t 0.5t 2.2(
Stock price:

High 55.2¢ 53.9¢ 54.8¢ 52.5( 55.2¢

Low 46.62 44.7¢ 47.0¢ 47.8: 44.7¢

(1) The quarter ended May 31, 2Qddnsisted of 14 weeks while all other quarters bed of 13 week
(2) The year ended May 31, 2015 consisted of 5&kaavhile the year ended May 25, 2@bhsisted of 52 weel
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Five-Year Financial Summary
Financial Review 2015

Fiscal Year Ended

May 31, May 25, May 26, May 27, May 29,
(Dollars in millions, except per share data) 2015 (2) 2014 2013 2012 2011
Operating Results (1)
Sales $ 6,764 $ 6,285¢ $ 5921.( $ 5327. $ 4,980.
Costs and expenses:
Food and beverage 2,085.: 1,892.: 1,743.¢ 1,553.° 1,393.¢
Restaurant labor 2,135.¢ 2,017.¢ 1,892.¢ 1,683.¢ 1,600.¢
Restaurant expenses 1,120.¢ 1,080." 980.4 851.( 791.¢
Marketing expenses 243.: 252.¢ 241.1 215.¢ 205.¢
General and administrative 430.2 413.1 384.1 324.¢ 334.¢
Depreciation and amortization 319.C 304. 278.c 241.c 218.¢
Impairments and disposal of assets, net 62.1 16.4 0.¢ (0.2 0.¢
Total operating costs and expenses $ 6,39%.« $ 5976 $ 5521.( $ 4869.¢ $ 4,545
Operating Income 367.€ 308.¢ 400.( 457 .2 435.1]
Interest, net 192.2 134.: 126.( 102.1 94.(
Earnings before income taxes 175.2 174.¢ 274.( 355.1 341.1
Income tax (benefit) expense (21.7) (8.6) 36.7 75.¢ 71.2
Earnings from continuing operations $ 196.« $ 1832 $ 237.2 % 2792 % 269.¢
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tgpease of
$344.8, $32.3, $72.7, $84.9 and $96.2 513.1 103.C 174.¢ 196.: 206.¢
Net earnings $ 709.5 % 286.:. $ 411.¢ $ 4755 $ 476.%
Basic net earnings per share:
Earnings from continuing operations $ 154 $ 14C $ 184 $ 218 % 1.97
Earnings from discontinued operations $ 40z $ 0.7¢ % 138 $ 150 % 1.51
Net earnings $ 556 $ 21¢  $ 3.1¢ % 365 $ 3.4¢
Diluted net earnings per share:
Earnings from continuing operations $ 151 $ 1.3t $ 1.8C $ 21C $ 1.92
Earnings from discontinued operations $ 3.9 % 077 $ 1.3 % 147 % 1.47
Net earnings $ 547 % 21t $ 3.1 % 357 $ 3.3¢
Average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 127.7 131.( 129.( 130.1 136.¢
Diluted 129.7 133.2 131.¢ 133.2 140.:
Financial Position
Total assets $ 59947 ¢ 7,082 $ 69170 $ 5928 $ 5454
Land, buildings and equipment, net $ 3215¢ $ 3381( $ 4391 $ 39511 $ 3,622.(
Working capital (deficit) $ (140.9 $ 357.2 % (652.00 $ (1,017 $ (623.9)
Long-term debt, less current portion $ 14527 $ 2463: $ 24766 $ 1437.¢ $ 1,394
Stockholders’ equity $ 2,333f $ 2,156¢ $ 2,059f $ 1,842.( $ 1,936.
Stockholders’ equity per outstanding share $ 18.4: $ 16.3C $ 15.81 $ 14.2¢  $ 14.3¢

65




Five-Year Financial Summary (continued)

Fiscal Year Ended

May 31, May 25, May 26, May 27, May 29,

(Dollars in millions, except per share data) 2015 (2) 2014 2013 2012 2011
Other Statistics
Cash flows from operations (1) $ 874.: $ 555« § 594.. $ 513t % 591.:
Capital expenditures (1) $ 296.f $ 414.¢ $ 510.1 $ 457.¢ % 397.1
Dividends paid $ 278.¢ % 288.1 % 2582 $ 223.¢ % 175.f
Dividends paid per share $ 22C % 22C $ 20C $ 1.7z % 1.2¢
Advertising expense (1) $ 2432 % 2522 % 2411 % 2156 $ 205.¢
Stock price:

High $ 703t % 55.2¢ $ 579 $ 55.8¢ § 52.1:

Low $ 43.5¢ $ 44.7¢ % 4411 % 40.6¢ $ 37.0¢

Close $ 65.5¢ $ 495t % 52.8:1 $ 53.0¢ $ 50.9:
Number of employees 148,89:. 206,48 206,57¢ 181,46¢ 178,38l
Number of restaurants (1) 1,53¢ 1,501 1,431 1,28¢ 1,19¢

(1) Consistent with our consolidated financiatet@ents, information has been presented on a eongjroperations basis. Accordingly, the
activities related to Red Lobster, two closed conypawned synergy restaurants, Smokey Bones, Rookgr [&rillhouse and the nine
Bahama Breeze restaurants closed or sold in f&¥af and 2008 have been excluded.

(2) Fiscal year 2015 consisted of 53 weeks while &léofiscal years consisted of 52 we
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.

As of May 31, 2015, we had seven "significant sdiasies", as defined in Regulation S-X, Rule 1-02(dentified as follows:

1.
2.

GMRI, Inc., a Florida corporation, doing businessive Garden, Bahama Breeze and Seaso

RARE Hospitality International, Inc., a Georgia poration, doing business as Olive Garden, LongHeigakhouse and T
Capital Grille.

N and D Restaurants, Inc., a Florida corporati@ng business as Olive Garden, Bahama Breeze, 82820 Eddie V's Prin
Seafood and Wildfish Seafood Girille.

Darden SW, LLC, a Florida limited liability compangoing business as Olive Garden, Seasons 52, Btklierime Seafoc
and Wildfish Seafood Grille.

Florida SE, Inc., a Florida corporation, doing Imesis as Olive Garden, LongHorn Steakhouse, Bahagez® Seasons !
Eddie V's Prime Seafood.

Yard House USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation, ddinginess as Yard Hou

RARE Hospitality Management, Inc., a Delaware cosgion, doing business as LongHorn Steakhouse aedChpital Grille

(@)

In addition, we also had the following subsidiaries

8.

Darden Corporation, a Florida corporat

One whollyewned subsidiary operating in the same line ofress in the United States has been om



EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Darden Restaurants, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréiggstration statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-291ahd 333-169789) and on Forn8S-
(Nos. 333-191490, 333-178876, 333-57410, 333-9183%,105056, 333-124363, 333-122560, 333-148268413®464, 333-156557 and 333-
169788) of Darden Restaurants, Inc. of our repteted July 24, 2015, with respect to the consaididtalance sheets of Darden Restaul
Inc. and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2015 and May2ZHd.4, and the related consolidated statements of eggnicomprehensive incon
changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flowsefwh of the years in the three-year period enday 34, 2015 and the effectiveness
internal control over financial reporting as of M2y, 2015 , which reports are included in the 28hBual Report to Shareholders include
an exhibit to the annual report on Form 10-K of dzar Restaurants, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Orlando, Florida
July 24, 2015
Certified Public Accountants



EXHIBIT 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersignechstdutes and appoints Ricardo Cardenas, Anthor
Morrow and Bruce A. Brown, and each of them, hisher true and lawful attorneys-faet and agents, with full power
substitution and resubstitution, for and in hisher name, place and stead, in any and all capsditiesign the Annual Report
Form 10K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2015 and ang alh amendments thereto and to file the same, alitexhibit:
thereto, and other documents in connection thelnewiith the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtgrag unto said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power arttagity to do and perform each and every act dniinigt requisite ar
necessary to be done in and about the premisadlagd all intents and purposes as might or cdutddone in person, here
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneysfact and agents or any of them, or their substitutsubstitutes may lawfully «
or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney has besigned effective as of the 17th day of June, 2@5the
following persons.

By: /s/ Betsy S. Atkins By: /s/ Eugene |. Lee, Jr.
Betsy S. Atkins Eugene I. Lee, Jr.

By: /s/ Margaret Shan Atkins By: /s/ William H. Lenehan
Margaret Shan Atkins William H. Lenehan

By: /s/ Jean M. Birch By: /s/ Lionel L. Nowell 11|
Jean M. Birch Lionel L. Nowell 11l

By: /s/ Bradley D. Blum By: /s/ William S. Simon
Bradley D. Blum William S. Simon

By: /s/ Peter A. Feld By: /s/ Jeffrey C. Smith
Peter A. Feld Jeffrey C. Smith

By: /s/ James P. Fogarty By: /s/ Charles M. Sonsteby
James P. Fogarty Charles M. Sonsteby

By: /s/ Cynthia T. Jamison By: /s/ Alan N. Stillman

Cynthia T. Jamison Alan N. Stillman



EXHIBIT 31(a)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eugene I. Lee, Jr., certify that:

=

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(@)
(b)

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fDarden Restaurants, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitede a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleding with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, andtf@ periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

Designed such disclosure controls and pha@s, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over finahegporting, or caused such internal control diencial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgaading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmisadisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change inréhgistrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of this annual repibid} has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directf@s persons performing the
equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and materiat@knesses in the design or operation of intern@tabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdives management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl Eugene I. Lee, Jr.
Eugene I. Lee, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal executive officer)

July 24, 2015




EXHIBIT 31(b)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, C. Bradford Richmond, certify that:

=

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(@)
(b)

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fDarden Restaurants, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitede a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleding with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, andtf@ periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

Designed such disclosure controls and pha@s, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over finahegporting, or caused such internal control diremncial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgaading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmtsadisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change inréhgistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of this annual repibid} has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastt's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directf@s persons performing the
equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and materiat@knesses in the design or operation of intern@tabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdives management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl C. Bradford Richmond

C. Bradford Richmond

Senior Vice President, Finance Transition
(Principal financial officer)

July 24, 2015




EXHIBIT 32(a)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Darden Rastnts, Inc. (“Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded May 31, 201pas filed witt

the Securities and Exchange Commission (“Repotf”Eugene I. Lee, Jr., President and Chief Exeeu@fficer of the Company, certi
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursu&@edtion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; tha

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Eugene I. Lee, Jr.

Eugene |. Lee, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal executive officer)

July 24, 2015




EXHIBIT 32(b)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Darden Rastnts, Inc. (“Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded May 31, 201pas filed witt
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“Repolt";. Bradford Richmond, Senior Vice President,dfice Transition of the Compa
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adoptedyant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AQOOR, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl C. Bradford Richmond

C. Bradford Richmond

Senior Vice President, Finance Transition
(Principal financial officer)

July 24, 2015




